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Members of Council
City of Akron

166 South High Street
Akron, Ohio 44308

We have reviewed the Independent Auditor’s Report of the City of Akron, Summit County, prepared by
Plante & Moran, PLLC, for the audit period January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020. Based upon
this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit required by Section 117.11, Revised
Code. The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, we are
unable to express, and do not express an opinion on them.

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by the
Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor of State,
regulations and grant requirements. The City of Akron is responsible for compliance with these laws and
regulations.

Nl

Keith Faber
Auditor of State
Columbus, Ohio

September 07, 2021

Efficient . Effective . Transparent
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DANIEL HORRIGAN, MAYOR

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
200 Municipal Building / 166 South High Street / Akron, Ohio 443038
PH: (330) 373-2316

August 2, 2021

The Honorable Daniel Horrigan
and Members of City Council
The City of Akron, Ohio

Dear Mayor Horrigan and Council Members:

I am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (ACFR) of the City of Akron
for the year ended December 31, 2020. This report presents financial and operating information
about the City’s activities during 2020 that should be useful to citizens and taxpayers. The report,
prepared by the Department of Finance, contains a comprehensive analysis of the City’s financial
position and activities for the year.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City of Akron. To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects; it is presented in a manner designed
to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the
financial activity of our various funds; and all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the
maximum understanding of the City’s financial activities have been included.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that has been
established for this purpose. The cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits;
therefore, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements. The Audit and Budget Division prepared all of
the financial statements and assisted the external independent auditors in their performance of the
annual audit. The Treasury Division assisted in drafting the statistical section.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to



complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Akron’s MD&A can
be found immediately following the Independent Auditor’s Report.

As background for the reader of this report, the City of Akron is a charter city. The City is the fifth
largest Ohio municipality in terms of population based on the 2019 Census population of 197,597.
The City’s land area is approximately 62.03 square miles and is located in the northeastern region of
the state in the County of Summit.

The City is directed by a mayor and council form of government. Legislative authority is vested in a
13-member Council, three members of which are elected at-large and ten by wards. The Council
determines the compensation of City officials and employees and enacts members' ordinances and
resolutions relating to City services, tax levies, appropriation and borrowing of money, licensing
and regulating businesses and trades, and other municipal purposes.

The Mayor is elected for a four-year term and has the responsibility as the City’s chief executive and
administrative officer. The Mayor may veto any legislation passed by Council. A veto may be
overridden by a two-thirds vote of all members of Council. The Director of Finance is appointed by
the Mayor and serves as the City’s chief financial officer and chief accounting officer. The Director
of Finance has comprehensive responsibility for the City’s fiscal activities, including budget
preparation and control, payroll and general accounting, investment and debt management,
purchasing, local income tax administration, utility revenue collection and financial reporting.

The City provides the full range of municipal services mandated by statute or charter, including
police and fire protection, health, parks, recreation, street maintenance, planning, zoning and other
general government services. The City has management control of the following enterprise
activities: water, sewer, oil and gas development, golf course, airport and off-street parking.

Economic Conditions and Qutlook

The COVID-19 pandemic has upended the world and has dramatically impacted the United States.
From unprecedented and tragic loss of life to historic job loss, this worldwide crisis continues to
significantly impact the way people work, play and engage with one another. The City of Akron has
been affected due to the impact on our residents, businesses and the increased need for municipal
services (including, but not limited to, first responder and other critical services).

Major revenue sources for the City continue to be the City’s income tax, property taxes, local fees,
charges for services, and state-shared local government revenue. The City’s cash income tax
collections decreased by approximately 2.67% in 2020. On a cash basis for 2020, property taxes in
the general fund decreased by 0.35% and the state’s local government revenue to the City increased
by approximately .61%. While revenues have decreased due to the COVID 19 Pandemic, the City
was a recipient of Federal CARES Act dollars in the amount of $30,071,353.83 which helped
stabilize the City’s finances during this precarious time.

Despite the pandemic, the City of Akron remains in a stable financial position due to assistance
from the federal government and the slow reopening of the economy. In addition to CARES Act
funding, in May 2021 the City received approximately $72 million dollars of an expected $153
million in American Rescue Plan Funds that will be utilized in part as revenue replacement as well



as to continue to respond to the COVID-19 emergency and to bring equitable economic recovery to
Akron.

Long-term Financial Policies

Unassigned fund balance in the general fund is 19.38% of the general fund expenditures. The
general fund of the City does not have a specified unassigned fund balance target. The
recommended level of unassigned fund balance will be determined as needed and as recommended
by officials and approved by Council when necessary.

The City completes a five-year capital budget that is updated annually. In this document, the City
attempts to forecast its capital requirements for the next five years.

Relevant Financial Policies

The City has a charter requirement that the 2% income tax (the City’s largest revenue source) used
specifically for City services, be allocated so that 73% of net revenue is used for operations and the
balance is used for capital needs. The passage of Issue 4 that went into effect January 2018
increased the Akron income tax rate by 0.25%. This tax increase will fund police, fire, emergency
medical services and roads.

Major Initiatives

The major initiatives for the City of Akron can be summarized as follows: complete major
construction projects, expand economic opportunity and entrepreneurship, redevelop
neighborhoods, empower Akron families financially and build a more equitable Akron.

While 2020 was a challenging year unlike any other, the City’s administration re-affirmed its
commitment to investing in infrastructure through city and capital improvements. With the help of
the Safety and Streets Income Tax, the City of Akron completed paving another 33 miles of streets
in 2020. This is an addition to the more than 150 miles of Akron roadway that were repaved during
over the last five years. Since its passage in November 2017, the .25% Safety and Streets income
tax (“Issue 4”), has brought in over $34 million in new funding to support Akron police, fire, and
roads. These additional funds have supported the construction of two new fire stations, purchased
new body cameras, vehicles and safety equipment, and re-opened the Akron Police Academy.

In July 2018, the City embarked on Phase I of the Main St. reconstruction, a full improvement
project from Cedar Street to Mill Street. In October 2020, Phase 1 was completed and the City
opened the more connected, dynamic and modern Main Street which has been purposefully
designed to welcome and serve Akron’s businesses, citizens and visitors. Phase 1 was a $30+
million effort to reconstruct all infrastructure from building face to building face along the South
Main corridor width, between Cedar and Mill Streets, including: new pavement with a lane
dedicated to parking/buses/delivery vehicles, new sidewalks, a permanent bicycle track, upgraded
underground utilities, upgraded traffic signal equipment, smart LED lighting, a roundabout at Main
and Mill Streets, storm water management improvements, and a complete rebuild of the State Street
bridge. Also included were all the amenities needed to make this an attractive corridor including
landscaping and public benches.



The City of Akron broke ground in October 2020 on Phase II of the Main Street Project. Phase II
improvements will include new roadway with one lane in each direction, plus turn lanes at Market
Street and SR 59, a lane on each side of the street for parallel parking, short term deliveries, or
buses, a continuation of the cycle track connecting to the nearby towpath trail, new sidewalks,
pedestrian and roadway LED lighting, utility upgrades, and aesthetics and amenities, including room
for sidewalk cafes. One mid-block pedestrian crossing near the library will be provided. Once it is
finished, the improvements will create a unified, accessible, and beautiful corridor all the way from
Cedar Street to Martin Luther King Blvd (State Route 59).

In 2020, the City of Akron also announced a new program to assist businesses and entrepreneurs
with financial aid, technical assistance, and vacant retail properties in Great Streets Akron districts.
The program has been designed to achieve two goals at once: boost Akron’s neighborhood retail
zones and remove barriers for new and expanding businesses to thrive locally. The City of Akron
was able to assist seventeen businesses through the Business Plan Award and the Space Award.
Through the Business Plan Award, accepted business owners received free tuition to attend
MORTAR at Bounce, a 15-week accelerator that helps both existing and aspiring non-tech
entrepreneurs learn the nuances of business ownership and build a comprehensive business canvas;
the goal being to launch businesses that create jobs and circulate dollars locally. Through the Space
Award, accepted business owners will have the opportunity to be matched with top commercial
properties in Akron and receive technical assistance from Bounce, the Minority Business Assistance
Center, or the Small Business Development Center to help them choose their space.

The City of Akron is partnering with the Western Reserve Community Fund (WRCF) to launch the
Akron Resiliency Fund (the “Fund”). WRCEF is a non-profit managed by the Development Finance
Authority of Summit County. The Fund will provide low-cost small business loans to help stabilize
Akron’s small businesses. Long term, this fund will continue in perpetuity, supporting growth in the
small business community of Akron while encouraging further investment in our local economy.
The loan amounts will vary between $10,000 and $70,000, depending on business needs. The
funding will be used for items like payroll, working capital, equipment, and refinancing debt. To
qualify, businesses must have fewer than 50 employees and at least 25% of those employees must
be Akron residents.

Redeveloping our neighborhoods is a high priority for Akron. In a continued attempt to further
promote homeownership in Akron a new property acquisition program called “Welcome Home
Akron.” Welcome Home Akron is a data driven government Software Company that focuses on
housing and economic development strategies. The online tool, found at akronliving.org, makes it
simple for residents, builders and developers to easily view City properties for sale and allows
anyone to download and complete necessary applications online.

This new program is designed to encourage construction of new residential homes on unused and
underutilized city property in its long established neighborhoods, otherwise known as infill
development. The goal of the program is to further increase new home construction opportunities
while also combatting blight and increasing the vitality and safety of Akron neighborhoods.
Currently, the program includes approximately 50 vacant buildable lots selected by the City. All
participants that take advantage of the program will be eligible for citywide tax abatement for 15
years.

10



Akron is committed to empowering Akron families financially and building a more equitable
Akron. The City provided over $401,100 in direct water/sewer bill relief to more than 2,300 Akron
households through the Akron Cares program. The program was totally revamped in 2020 to
address all COVID-related hardships and make more relief available to a greater number of
residents during the pandemic. In 2020, the City of Akron referred 873 customers to free financial
empowerment services and additional assistance through the Akron Financial Empowerment
Center, through a new program modeled off the Lift-Up program piloted by the National League of
Cities. The Lift-Up program included, identifying customers struggling to stay current on utility bills
using a matrix of utility data and doing outreach to enroll them in the program, restructuring utility
debt and allowing customers to enter into much longer-term and more lenient repayment
arrangements, one-on-one financial counseling, including a budget review and customized action
plan to address financial needs, as well as referrals to appropriate emergency assistance, public
benefits, and banking services, providing additional financial incentives and waiving fees and
penalties for customers who participate, supporting ongoing relationships with participants to assess
and motivate their progress toward long-term financial health.

Reporting Standards

The City’s accounts are organized as funds. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with its own
self-balancing set of accounts, assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources, and fund balance/equity. Following are the titles of these fund types with a
brief description.

Governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City and is appropriated.
It is used to account for all financial resources traditionally associated with government that are
not required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds — The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues derived
from specific taxes, grants, or other restricted revenue sources. City ordinances or federal or
state statutes specify the uses and limitations of each Special Revenue Fund. During 2020, the
City had 23 Special Revenue Funds.

Debt Service Funds — The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.
During 2020, the City had ten Debt Service Funds.

Capital Projects Funds — The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by
proprietary funds. During 2020, the City had six Capital Projects Funds.

Permanent Funds — The Permanent Funds are used for the purpose of accounting for resources

that are legally restricted to the extent that earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes
that support the reporting governments. The City does not have any Permanent Funds.

1"



Proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds — The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, in that the intent of the governing
body is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis
be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The City has six Enterprise Funds.

Internal Service Funds — The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of
goods or services provided by one division or agency to other divisions or agencies of the
government, generally on a cost-reimbursement basis. The City has seven Internal Service
Funds.

Fiduciary funds:

Private Purpose Trust Funds — The Private Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for other
trust arrangements which benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.
During 2020, the City had three Private Purpose Trust Funds.

Agency Funds — The Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent
for individuals, private organizations, and other governments. During 2020, the City had seven
Agency Funds.

Other Fiduciary Funds — The Other Fiduciary Funds include pension trust funds and investment
trust funds. The City does not utilize any such Other Fiduciary Funds.

Basis of Accounting:

Except for budgetary purposes, the basis of accounting used by the City conforms to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to
governmental units and is consistent with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Cod.
Sec. 1600, “Basis of Accounting.” All governmental funds are accounted for using a current
financial resources-current assets and current liabilities measurement focus. The modified accrual
basis of accounting is utilized for governmental funds. Revenues are recognized when they are
susceptible to accrual (both measurable and available). Expenditures are recognized when the
related liability is incurred, except for interest on long-term debt which is recorded when due.

The measurement focus on the City’s proprietary and fiduciary funds is on the flow of total
economic resources (all assets and liabilities). The accrual basis of accounting (revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses when incurred) is utilized by the City in its proprietary funds.
The City’s basis of accounting for budgetary purposes differs from GAAP in that revenues are
recognized when received rather than when susceptible to accrual (measurable and available), and

encumbrances are included as expenditures rather than as an allocation of fund balances.

Accounting policies are further explained in Note 1 to the basic financial statements.
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Cash Management

Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management. The primary
objectives of the City’s investment activities are the preservation of capital and the protection of
investment principal. The Treasurer’s Office within the Department of Finance invests all cash,
following the City’s own investment ordinance, in various securities which consist of fixed-rate City
bonds and notes, certificates of deposit, fully collateralized repurchase agreements, and U.S.
government obligations. The City’s investment ordinance was modified in late 1986 to take
advantage of State of Ohio investment opportunities. However, the local investment policy continues
to be conservative with the highest priority given to safeguarding assets. For 2020, investment
interest income averaged a yield of .45% compared to a yield of 1.98% in 2019. The interest
earnings are maximized by investing to projected payment dates on a competitive bid basis and by
investing bank balances daily.

Risk Management

The City has been self-insured for liability coverage for non-auto-related incidents since 1985. This
program was established in response to the dramatic rise in premiums in the mid-1980’s and the
increases in exclusions written into standard insurance policies. Additionally, the City is primarily
self-insured for employee medical benefits, including major medical, dental, and vision care. This
has proven to be the most cost-effective program for this type of coverage. The City also has in
place reserve funds for workers’ compensation and medical benefits. For other types of coverage,
such as property insurance, airport liability, employee life, auto liability, and boiler and machinery
coverage, the City has secured traditional insurance. The City is assisted in its insurance program
by an independent consulting firm that does not underwrite insurance but has expertise in the
insurance industry. The City relies on the advice offered by the consultant in securing any
insurance.

Pension

The City contributes to two state-administered retirement plans covering various groups of City
employees. Uniform police and fire employees participate in the statewide Ohio Police and Fire
Pension Fund. Substantially, all other City employees participate in the statewide Ohio Public
Employees Retirement System (OPERS). The City’s total contributions to these plans were equal to
100% of the required employer contributions for the year. In accordance with GASB Statement No.
68 and GASB Statement No. 75, the City’s statements prepared on an accrual basis of accounting
include an annual pension expense for their proportionate share of each plan’s change in net pension
liability and net OPEB liability not accounted for as deferred inflows/outflows.

Independent Annual Audit

This report is subject to review and acceptance by the Auditor of State’s office, and the
requirements of Ohio Revised Code § 117.25 are not met until the Auditor of State certifies this
report. This process will be completed by the Auditor of State in a reasonable timeframe and reports
are subject to change if the Auditor of State determines that modification of a report is necessary to
comply with required accounting or auditing standards or Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.
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In 2017, Plante Moran PLLC was contracted to perform the audit of the City of Akron for a period
of five years. We appreciate the cooperation of State Auditor Keith Faber and Plante Moran PLLC
in completing the City’s audit in a timely and highly professional manner.

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Akron, Ohio, for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019. The
Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with the
highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform
to program standards. Such an ACFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year
only. The City of Akron, Ohio, has received Certificates of Achievement for the last 36 consecutive
years (1984 through 2019). We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of
Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.

Acknowledgments

The 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report could not have been accomplished without the
dedication of the professionals in the Audit and Budget Division of the Department of Finance.
Special acknowledgment must go to the Audit and Budget staff for the many hours of quality
service they have provided to the City in the formulation of this report. I further wish to thank you,
Mayor, for continuing to provide to the department the necessary support and leadership required to
enhance the City’s overall fiscal position and its financial reporting practices. We trust that this
timely, complete, and fully readable Comprehensive Annual Financial Report satisfies your needs
and those of City Council for responsible financial planning and reporting.

Respectfully,

Stephen F. Fricker
Director of Finance
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Daniel Horrigan, Mayor, and
Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance
City of Akron, Ohio

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Akron,
Ohio (the "City") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City of Akron, Ohio's basic financial statements, as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Akron, Ohio as of December 31,
2020 and the respective changes in its financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.
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To the Honorable Daniel Horrigan, Mayor, and
Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance
City of Akron, Ohio

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 30 to the basic financial statements, the 2019 basic financial statements have
been restated to correct a misstatement. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information, as identified in the
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Akron, Ohio's basic financial statements. The supplementary
information, as identified in the table of contents, and introductory section and statistical section are
presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The supplementary information, as identified in the table of contents, is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information, as identified in the table of contents,
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.
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To the Honorable Daniel Horrigan, Mayor, and
Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance
City of Akron, Ohio

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 2,
2021 on our consideration of the City of Akron, Ohio's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City of Akron, Ohio's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City of Akron, Ohio's internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.
7g£wﬁaizanév,ﬁLLc

August 2, 2021
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CITY OF AKRON, OHIO
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s discussion and analysis of the City of Akron, Ohio financial performance
provides an overview of Akron’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020.
Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on page 7 and the City’s financial
statements, which begin on page 40.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

e The assets and deferred outflows of the City of Akron, Ohio exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows at December 31, 2020 by $675,118,122 (net position). Of this amount,
$7,001,292 is restricted for debt service, $36,302,660 is restricted for community learning
centers, $21,652,225 is restricted for capital projects and $22,224,597 restricted for
program purpose.

e The unrestricted net position is primarily the result of the City's implementation of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions - an Amendment of GASB Statement 27 (GASB 68) in 2015 and
in 2018. 75 (GASB 75), Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions in 2018. For the year ended, December 31, 2020, the City
reports a net pension liability of $239,553,202 and $20,144,907 for governmental and
business-type, respectively. Additionally, a net OPEB liability of $145,995,069 and
$25,062,811 are reported for the governmental and business-type, respectively.

e The City’s total net position increased by $67,061,713 during the current year, as restated.

Governmental activities total net position increased by $58,481,174 and the
business-type activities, total net position increased by $8,580,539. This reflects an
improvement in the overall financial position of the City.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Akron’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $108,972,534, an increase from the prior year which is
attributed to the increase in grants and subsidies and shared revenues. A portion of these
revenues are being used to fund the payment of expenditures as reflected in public service
and community environment expenditures for project specific costs.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$28,220,027 or 19.4% of total General Fund expenditures.

e The City of Akron’s total debt outstanding increased by $68,579,866 (6.0%) during the
current year. During 2020, the City issued $16,805,000 in General Obligation Bonds for
various purpose improvements. Additionally, the City issued $12,030,000 in income Tax
Revenue Bonds for various purpose improvements. There were OWDA loans issued for
the cost of improving the Waterworks System totaling$7,450,643 and the Sanitary Sewer
System totaling$116,923,031.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Akron’s basic
financial statements. The City of Akron’s basic financial statements are comprised of the
following: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to
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the financial statements. This report also contains required and other supplementary information
in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Akron’s finances in a manner
similar to a private sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Akron’s assets and
deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of the
financial position of the City of Akron.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Akron that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Akron
include general government, public service, public safety, community environment, public
health, and recreation and parks. The business-type activities of the City of Akron include water,
sewer, oil and gas, golf course, airport, and off-street parking operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 40—41 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of
Akron, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Akron can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
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statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Akron maintains 40 individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Community
Learning Centers (CLC) Fund, the Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund, the Special
Assessment Fund, and the Streets Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data
from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Akron adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, special revenue
funds, some debt service, enterprise and internal service funds. The General Fund, Community
Learning Centers Fund, Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund, and Special Assessment Fund
budgetary schedules (non-GAAP budgetary basis) have been provided as Required
Supplementary Information (RSI) to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 42-45 of this report.

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. The City
implemented GASB 63 — Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position and also GASB 65 Iltems Previously Reported as Assets
and Liabilities. The standard establishes a basis to reclassify certain items that were previously
reported as assets and liabilities and instead classify them as Deferred Inflows of Resources,
Deferred Outflows of Resources, or as outflows of resources.

Fund balances are the differences between assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and
deferred inflows in governmental funds. 1) Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that
are not in spendable form, or amounts that are required to be maintained intact. 2) Restricted
fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
external providers, such as grantors or bondholders, as well as amounts that are restricted through
enabling legislation. 3) Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes that are determined by a formal action of the City’s highest level of decision
making authority. 4) Assigned fund balance applies to amounts that are intended for specific
purposes as expressed by the governing body or authorized official and applies to remaining
resources in any governmental funds other than the General Fund. 5) Unassigned fund balances
include all amounts not contained in other classifications for the General Fund and deficit fund
balances in any other governmental funds.
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As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s total governmental funds reported an ending
fund balance of $108,972,534, an increase of $13,240,702 in comparison with the prior year. As
a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents
19.4% of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 21.7% of that
same amount.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Akron maintains two different types of proprietary funds:
enterprise and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City of
Akron uses enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer, oil and gas, golf, airport, and
off-street parking operations. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among the City of Akron’s various functions. The City of Akron
uses internal service funds to account for its motor equipment, medical self-insurance, workers’
compensation self-insurance, other self-insurance costs, information technology (responsible for
all data processing and computer operations of the City), telephone system (with outside cable
plant consisting of underground and aerial wires and telephone cables), and engineering bureau
(responsible for design and construction for City streets, sidewalks, sewer and water utilities,
bridges, and City facilities). Because most of the internal services predominantly benefit
governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within the
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Water, Sewer, and Off-Street Parking funds, which are considered to be
major funds of the City of Akron. Conversely, the internal service funds are combined into a
single aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data
for the nonmajor enterprise and the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 4648 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of
Akron’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 4950 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 51-132 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain Required Supplementary Information (RSI) concerning the City of
Akron’s General Fund, Community Learning Centers Fund, Income Tax Capital Improvement
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Fund, Special Assessment Fund, and Streets Fund budgetary comparison. Also included are
three required schedules related to the City's participation in two state pension and OPEB funds.
The Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability includes a history of the
City's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability for each state pension fund. The
Schedule of City Contributions to State Pension and OPEB Funds includes a history of
contractually required contributions compared to contributions made. The Schedule of the City's
Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability includes a history of the City's proportionate share of
the collective net OPEB liability for each state pension fund. Additionally, the Schedule of
Contributions to the City of Akron's OPEB Plan includes a history of contributions made.
Required Supplementary Information (RSI) can be found on pages 133-147 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds,
enterprise funds and internal service funds are presented immediately following the RSI and can
be found on pages 152-213 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Akron, assets and deferred outflows of resources
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $675,118,122 at the close of the most
recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City of Akron’s net position reflects its net investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Akron uses these capital assets to provide
services to the citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City of Akron’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
resources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The City’s overall net position increased by $67,061,713 during the current year; the net position
of the governmental activities increased by $58,481,174 and business-type activities increased by
$8,580,539. In addition, 1.4% of the City of Akron’s net position is restricted for the payment of
debt service, 5.4% is restricted for community learning center activity and 6.5% is restricted for
other purposes.
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Summary Statement of Net Position
as of December 31, 2019 and 2020
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
Assets:
Current and other assets $ 303256 § 311,577  $ 137,058 § 132885 § 440,314  § 444,462
Capital assets 1,092,015 1,124,372 990,064 1,174,517 2,082,079 2,298,889
Total assets $ 1395271 § 1435949 $1,127,122 $1,307,402 $ 2,522,393 § 2,743,351
Deferred outflows 111,215 68,805 10,454 6,309 121,669 75,114

Total assets and deferred outflows $ 1,506,486 $ 1,504,754  $ 1,137,576  $ 1,313,711 $ 2,644,062 $§ 2,818,465

Liabilities:

Long-term liabilities 1,166,724 1,052,234 680,107 758,546 1,846,831 1,810,780
Other liabilities 62,224 68,334 27,766 37,486 89,990 105,820
Total liabilities $ 1228948 $§ 1,120,568 § 707,873 $§ 796,032 § 1,936,821 $§ 1,916,600
Deferred inflows 166,740 214,906 4,474 11,841 171,214 226,747

Total liabilities and deferred inflows $ 1,395,688 § 1335474 § 712,347 § 807,873 § 2,108,035 § 2,143,347

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 402,657 525,092 368,625 465,595 771,282 990,687
Restricted 96,913 83,645 3,519 3,536 100,432 87,181
Unrestricted (deficit), as restated (388,771) (439,457) 53,083 36,707 (335,688) (402,750)
Total net position $ 110,799  $ 169,280  § 425227 $ 505,838 $ 536,026 $ 675,118

For fiscal year 2018, the City adopted GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which significantly revises accounting for
costs and liabilities related to other postemployment benefits (OPEB). For reasons discussed
below, many end users of this financial statement will gain a clearer understanding of the City's
actual financial condition by adding deferred inflows related to pension and OPEB, the net
pension liability, and the net OPEB liability to the reported net position and subtracting deferred
outflows related to pension and OPEB.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) standards are national and apply to all
government financial reports prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Prior accounting for pensions (GASB 27) and postemployment benefits (GASB 45)
focused on a funding approach. This approach limited pension and OPEB costs to contributions
annually required by law, which may or may not be sufficient to fully fund each plan's net
pension liability or net OPEB liability. GASB 68 and GASB 75 take an earnings approach to
pension and OPEB accounting; however, the nature of Ohio's statewide pension/OPEB plans and
state law governing those systems requires additional explanation in order to properly understand
the information presented in these statements. GASB 68 and GASB 75 require the net pension
liability and the net OPEB liability to equal the City's proportionate share of each plan's
collective:

1. Present value of estimated future pension/OPEB benefits attributable to active and

inactive employee's past service;
2. Minus plan assets available to pay these benefits
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GASB notes that pension and OPEB obligations, whether funded or unfunded, are part of the
employment exchange - that is, the employee is trading his or her labor in exchange for wages,
benefits, and the promise of a future pension and other postemployment benefits. GASB noted
that the unfunded portion of this promise is a present obligation of the government, part of a
bargained-for benefit to the employee, and should accordingly be reported by the government as
a liability since they received the benefit of the exchange. However, the City is not responsible
for certain key factors affecting the balance of these liabilities. In Ohio, the employee shares the
obligation of funding pension benefits with the employer. Both employer and employee
contribution rates are capped by State statute. A change in these caps requires action of both
Houses of the General Assembly and approval of the Governor. Benefit provisions are also
determined by State statute. The Ohio Revised Code permits, but does not require the retirement
systems to provide healthcare to eligible benefit recipients. The retirement systems may allocate
a portion of the employer contributions to provide for these OPEB benefits.

The employee enters the employment exchange with the knowledge that the employer's promise
is limited not by contract, but by law. The employer enters the exchange also knowing that there
is a specific, legal limit to its contribution to the retirement system. In Ohio, there is no legal
means to enforce the unfunded liability of the pension/OPEB plan against the public employer to
the employee, because all parties enter the employment exchange with notice as to the law. The
retirement system is responsible for the administration of the pension and OPEB plans.

Most long-term liabilities have set repayment schedules or, in the case of compensated absences
(i.e. sick and vacation leave), are satisfied through paid time-off or termination payments. There
is no repayment schedule for the net pension liability or the net OPEB liability. Changes in
benefits, contribution rates, and return on investments affect the balance of these liabilities, but
are outside the control of the local government. In the event that contributions, investments
returns, and other changes are insufficient to keep up with the required nature of how the net
pension liability and the net OPEB liability are satisfied, these liabilities are separately identified
within the long-term liability section of the statement of net position.

In accordance with GASB 68 and GASB 75, the City's statements prepared on an accrual basis of
accounting include an annual pension expense and an annual OPEB expense for their
proportionate share of each plans change in net pension liability and net OPEB liability,
respectively, not accounted for as deferred inflows/outflows.

Governmental Activities. Changes in net position before transfers was an increase in the
amount of $60,182 (in thousands).

For the governmental activities, the unrestricted deficit results from having insufficient assets set
aside for long-term obligations such as pension liability, compensated absences, and OPEB
liability. The City finances such obligations on a year-to-year basis as they come due and also
has ongoing capital projects that are debt-financed.

The following table (in thousands) shows total revenues for 2020 were $432,498 which reflects
an increase from the prior year. Charges for services reflect a decrease of $9,059 which stems
from the COVID-19 pandemic as activities were cancelled. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
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the City received a significant amount of COVID grants as reflected by the increase in operating
grants and contributions. Once again, COVID-19 attributed to the $4,660 decline in income
taxes. Unrestricted shared revenues increased by $27,634 which is directly attributed to the
Community Learning Centers (CLC) activity. Miscellaneous revenues increased by $18,487
largely due to an unusually large amount of rebates and dividends. Charges for Services in the
Business-type Activities decreased due to a reduction in accounts receivable in both the Water
and Sewer funds.

Expenses for 2020 were higher than 2019 by approximately $97,740. The most significant
increase relates to the Ohio Police & Fire Pension Fund's (OP&F) OPEB plan. Most notable is
the significant increase recognized in the governmental type activity within the department of
public safety due to the results of OPEB expense. General government reflected a decrease of
$7,693 due to the impact of COVID-19 as previously mentioned. The expenses for community
environment increased by $23,590 which is directly attributed to the activity for Community
Learning Centers (CLC). The decrease reflected in the Business-type Activities resulted from
expenses for capital assets in both the Water and Sewer funds.

Key events contributing to the changes are as follows:

e Charges for service activities including cancellation of recreation and Lock 3 activities,
school resource officers were not needed during remote learning, and the automated
mobile speed enforcement schedule was altered during remote learning.

e The City received operating grant funding for COVID in excess of $30 million, of which
approximately $23 million had been earned by December 31, 2020.

e Community Learning Centers (CLC) fund accounts for both the increase in unrestricted
shared revenues and community environment expense relating to the spending on CLC
construction related activities.

e The increase in miscellaneous revenue relates to the Ohio Bureau of Workers'
Compensation rebates and dividends and a one-time vendor payment that were received.

e General government expenses decreased due to the reduction of program activities related
to the COVID-19 pandemic including recreation programs and activities at Lock 3.

e Public safety expenses, as previously mentioned, increased significantly due to OP&F
OPEB that is recorded as current year increase in expense.

e The City has focused efforts on reducing transfers to Enterprise funds. During 2019, the
transfers to the Off-Street Parking and Airport funds were reduced.

e The balances for capital assets in the Sewer fund as of December 31, 2019 were restated
to capture assets previously recorded as expense.
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Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Income taxes
Property taxes
JEDD revenues
Investment earnings
Unrestricted shared revenues
Miscellaneous
Gain on sale of capital assets
Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Public service
Public safety
Community environment
Public health
Recreation and parks
Interest on debt
Unallocated depreciation
Water
Sewer
Oil & gas
Golf course
Airport
Off-street parking

Total expenses

Changes in net position before
transfers

Transfers
Changes in net position
Net position - beginning, as restated

Net position - ending

Changes in Net Position
For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2019 and 2020
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
$ 60,609 S 51,550 § 126,256 § 123,148 § 186,865 § 174,698
15,543 34,625 192 636 15,735 35,261
40,582 33,943 7,531 8,107 48,113 42,050
170,037 165,377 - - 170,037 165,377
24,048 26,030 - - 24,048 26,030
16,083 15,786 - - 16,083 15,786
5,909 2,392 36 8 5,945 2,400
45,059 72,693 - - 45,059 72,693
11,591 30,078 2,661 832 14,252 30,910
12 25 - - 12 25
$ 389473 $§ 432499 § 136,676 $§ 132,731 $§ 526,149 § 565,230
$ 55914  § 48,221  $ - 8 -3 55914 § 48,221
69,325 66,127 - - 69,325 66,127
49,458 138,263 - - 49,458 138,263
47,822 71,412 - - 47,822 71,412
4,451 5,812 - - 4,451 5,812
5,720 5,140 - - 5,720 5,140
23,887 19,814 - - 23,887 19,814
18,000 17,528 - - 18,000 17,528
- - 46,574 29,520 46,574 29,520
- - 103,947 86,926 103,947 86,926
- - 372 137 372 137
- - 2,057 1,323 2,057 1,323
- - 1,450 1,004 1,450 1,004

- - 7,278 6,941 7,278 6,941
$ 274577 $ 372317 § 161,678 $§ 125851 § 436,255 § 498,168
114,896 60,182 (25,002) 6,880 89,894 67,062
(730) (1,700) 730 1,700 - -
$ 114,166 $ 58,482 $§ (24272) $ 8,580 § 89,894 § 67,062
(3,368) 110,798 449,499 497,258 446,131 608,056
$§ 110,798 § 169,280 § 425227 § 505838 $ 536,025 $ 675,118
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The above chart shows the revenue generated by the various programs of the City of Akron and
the expenses relating to each program. As shown below, the primary source of revenue that
funds these programs is reported in the financial statements as income taxes.

Revenues By Sources Governmental Activities

Other revenues
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of Akron uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Akron’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City of Akron’s financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Akron’s governmental funds reported a
combined ending fund balance of $108,972,534, an increase in comparison to the prior year. The
unassigned fund balance at the end of the current year is $7,195,658. The remainder of fund
balance is distributed to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already
been dedicated. The City’s major governmental funds are the General Fund, the Community
Learning Centers (CLC) Fund, the Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund, the Special
Assessment Fund, and the Streets Fund.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Akron. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $28,220,027, while the total fund
balance is $31,567,302. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to
compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unassigned fund balance represents 19.4% of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 21.7% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the City of Akron’s General Fund increased by $18,086,831 during the
current fiscal year. Key factors in this change are as follows:

e The City’s commitment to monitor revenues and approve expenditures in conformity with
available resources.

e The increase in miscellaneous revenue relates to the Ohio Bureau of Workers'
Compensation rebates and dividends of $9 million.

e Public safety expenditures during 2020 show a significant decrease of approximately
$11.8 million. The main factor that contributed to the decrease was allocating safety
forces wages and benefits from the General fund to the Various Purpose Funding as an
allowable expense for the COVID-19 grants.

e In addition to the subsidy for EMS and the local match for grants, the practice of
transferring monies from the General Fund, to subsidize various operations is a method
used annually by the City to provide resources to these funds. The City was able to
reduce the subsidy to EMS Fund and Airport Fund allowing resources to be redirected
and add subsidy to Off-Street Parking Fund, Golf Fund, Motor Equipment Fund, and
Information Technology Fund.

The Community Learning Centers Fund has a total fund balance of $36,302,660. The net
decrease in fund balance the Community Learning Centers Fund from the prior year of
$14,339,892 is attributed to the spending of previously issued Income Tax Revenue Bonds. The
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proceeds are being used to fund the payment of expenditures as reflected in the community
environment expenditures for project specific costs.

The Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund has a total fund balance of $6,263,379. Revenues
exceed expenditures by $5,243,635 in 2020 due to delaying capital projects. Coupled with the
issuance of bonds and refunding bonds yields an increase in the fund balance of $5,707,753 The
Fund is responsible for debt service payments and relies heavily on the collection of income
taxes.

The Special Assessment Fund has a total fund balance deficit of $11,062,569. The Fund is
utilized for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, special assessment note issued
for street lighting and street cleaning along with related assessment costs.

The Streets Fund has a total fund balance deficit of $8,587,656. The Fund is used to account for
the accumulation of resources for, and payment of street projects.

Other Governmental Funds have a combined fund balance of $54,489,418. The increase in the
combined fund balance was $11,332,180. This majority of the change is attributed to Police,
Fire, and Road Activity fund as projects were delayed due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Additionally, the JEDD fund and Tax Equivalency fund had restraint on spending during 2020.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY OVERVIEW

During the year, actual revenues and other sources were greater than original budgetary estimates
by $6,587,477 (3.8%). Taxes, Assessments and JEDD revenue, the major revenue sources, were
less than the budgeted amount by $5,099,333 and miscellaneous revenues higher by $9,021,355.
Increases in revenues during 2020 included charges for services by $1,737,499,
intergovernmental revenues by $755,991, and license and fees by $171,965.

As a result of revenue monitoring, restraint on spending was prioritized and the General Fund
balance reported an increase of $16,730,372. The actual expenditures were under the final
budget by $4,133,610.

Key events contributing to the changes in the General Fund budget amounts are as follows:

e The Public Service Department’s budget was increased by $6,090,000 and the Finance
Department’s budget was increased by $2,835,000 to allow for year-end encumbrances
along with transfers and advances. The Department of Public Safety, Fire Department,
and Police Department was decreased as expenditures were allocated to the COVID-19
grant fund.

e The Department of Public Safety’s actual expenditures were under the final budgeted
amount by $946,354, Fire Department's by $12,866, and the Police Department by
$74,938 and is attributed to the utilization of the COVID-19 grants.
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The above chart shows the revenue generated by the various business-type activities of the City of Akron
and the expenses relating to each activity. As shown below, the majority of the revenue that funds these
activities is reported in the financial statements as charges for services.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Business-Type Activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Akron’s net position by
$8,580,539 compared to a decrease of $24,272,658 in the prior year. Total program revenues
decreased by $2,088,355 combined with a decrease in expenses of $35,828,515 contributed to the
overall increase in net position.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Akron’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The City’s major
enterprise funds are the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, and Oft-Street Parking Fund.

Unrestricted net deficit of the Water Fund at the end of the year was $25,298,611, for the Sewer
Fund unrestricted net position was $66,351,951, and for the Off-Street Parking Fund was a
deficit of $366,557. The increases reported in net position for the Water and the Sewer Funds
were $222,377 and $9,862,394, respectively. The decrease reported in net position for Off-Street
Parking was $2,286,999.

The expenses in the Sewer Fund decreased significantly, but the decrease relates to the
capitalization of assets during 2020. As previously mentioned, the balances for capital assets in
the Sewer fund as of December 31, 2019 were restated to capture assets previously recorded as
expense.

The Water Bureau services the City and 13 surrounding communities which account for 83,482
customer accounts and 1,181 miles of water lines. All bonds of the Water Fund are paid from
water enterprise revenues. A ten-year comparison of certain water enterprise data is shown in
Schedule 15 of the Statistical Section. Water rates remained stable and results of operations
yielded an increase in net position due to cost containment. The Sewer Bureau services the City
and 12 surrounding communities which account for 75,966 customer accounts and 1,346 miles of
sewer lines. All bonds of the Sewer Fund are paid from sewer enterprise revenues. A ten-year
comparison of certain sewer enterprise data is shown in Schedule 15 of the Statistical Section.
Sewer rates remained virtually unchanged with only slight increases to a small population of
non-resident customers and results of operations yielded an increase in net position due again to
cost containment.

The Off-Street Parking Fund experienced a decrease in both the operating revenues and operating
expenses. The decrease in net position directly relates to expenses exceeding operating revenues.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. The City of Akron’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and

business-type activities as of December 31, 2020, amounts to $2,298,887,661 (net of

accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in

progress, buildings, improvements (other than buildings), equipment, and infrastructure. The

total increase in the City of Akron’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was

$216,808,164 (a 2.9% increase for governmental activities and an 18.6% increase for

business-type activities).

Capital Assets

(net of accumulated depreciation)

(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
Land $ 153,973 $ 153,958 $ 38,403 $ 38,403 $ 192,376 $ 192,361
Construction in progress 133,625 145,471 438,773 495,679 572,398 641,150
Buildings 354,287 344,775 103,741 100,322 458,028 445,097
Improvements 107,938 106,930 145,499 137,704 253,437 244,634
Equipment 34,638 32,084 41,217 39,806 75,855 71,890
Infrastructure 307,554 341,153 222,431 362,603 529,985 703,756
$ 1,092,015 $ 1,124,371 $ 990,064 $ 1,174,517 $ 2,082,079 $ 2,298,888

The City of Akron displays additional information relating to the capital assets of the City that
can be found in Note 1. G. and Note 7.

Major capital assets placed into service during the current fiscal year included the following:

e WREF Biocept - $29,363,893

e Ohio Interceptor Tunnel - $27,986,858

e Hazel Storage Basin CSO Rack 10 & 11 - $25,787,984
e Main Street Corridor and State Street Bridge - $22,705,853

e Romig Road Improvements - $13,031,544

e WRF Headworks Improvements - $8,100,193
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Long-Term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Akron had total debt
outstanding of $1,204,243,774. All general obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and
credit of the City. Special assessment bonds and notes are covered by special assessment
collections and are backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The remainder of the City of
Akron’s debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources.

City of Akron
Outstanding Debt
(in thousands)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
General Obligation Bonds $ 121,001 $ 105085 §$ 219 $ - $ 121,220 $ 105,085
General Obligation Notes 1,500 17,400 - - 1,500 17,400
OPWC Loan 5,141 5,843 355 290 5,496 6,133
Ohio Development
Services Agency 3,955 3,635 - - 3,955 3,635
Non-Tax Revenue Bonds 30,410 27,305 - - 30,410 27,305
Income Tax Revenue
Income Tax Revenue
Bonds and Notes 358,629 344,100 - - 358,629 344,100
Special Revenue Bonds 7,720 3,680 - - 7,720 3,680
Special Assessment
Bonds and Notes 20,272 20,598 - 20,272 20,598
Mortgage Revenue Bonds - - 13,655 12,490 13,655 12,490
OWDA Loan - - 572,807 663,818 572,807 663,818

$ 548,628 § 527,646 § 587,036 $ 676,598 $ 1,135,664 $ 1,204,244

The City of Akron’s total debt outstanding increased by $68,579,866 (6.0%) during the current
fiscal year.

During 2020, the City issued $16,805,000 in General Obligation Bonds for various purpose
improvements. Additionally, the City issued $12,030,000 in income Tax Revenue Bonds for
various purpose improvements. There were OWDA loans issued for the cost of improving the
Waterworks System totaling $7,450,643 and the Sanitary Sewer System totaling $116,923,031.

The Ohio Revised Code provides that the outstanding general obligation bonds less
self-supporting debt (e.g., income tax-backed projects) of the municipal corporation, whether or
not approved by the electors, shall not exceed 10.5% of the assessed value of all property in the
municipal corporation as listed and assessed for taxation. In addition, the unvoted net debt of
municipal corporations cannot exceed 5.5% of total assessed value of property. The City of
Akron’s total debt limit (10.5%) is $291,406,810 and the total unvoted net debt limit (5.5%) is
$152,641,662.
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The City’s general obligation bonds are rated “A+” by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, “A+”
by Fitch Ratings and “Aa3” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. The insured Water Revenue
bonds were originally rated Aa2 from Moody's and they were assigned AA by Standard & Poor’s
in 2017.

Additional information on the City of Akron’s long-term debt can be found in Notes 10-12.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The United States, the State of Ohio and the City all declared a state of emergency in
March 2020 due to the global Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic. The
financial impact of COVID-19 will impact subsequent periods of the City. The impact on
the City's future operating costs, revenues, and any recovery from emergency funding,
either federal or state, cannot be estimated.

e The average unemployment at year-end 2020 was 10.0% compared to 4.5% in 2019,
which is a result of COVID-19. Subsequent to year-end, the economy has returned to
almost pre-COVID unemployment level mid-year 2021

e The City of Akron budgeted income tax collections to increase by 2.0%, Local
Government to remain stable, and Property Taxes to increase by 10%.

e No increase in Water or Sewer service rates for 2021.

In the 2021 budget, the General Fund unencumbered fund balance is projecting an increase of
$527,848.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Akron’s finances
for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or request for additional information should be addressed to
the Director of Finance, Municipal Building, 166 South High Street, Room 205, Akron, Ohio
44308.
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Assets
Current assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables, net
Loans receivable
Due from other governments
Due from others
Internal balances
Inventories, at cost
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Receivables, net
Restricted cash and investments
Loans receivable
Deposits
Assets held for resale
Net pension asset
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
Deposits
Due to other governments
Accrued interest payable
Accrued wages
Accrued vacation and leave
COPs and obligations under capital lease
Liability for unpaid claims
Bonds, notes and loans payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
COPs and obligations under lease
Liabilities due in more than one year
Bonds, notes and loans payable
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for community learning centers
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for program purpose
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

City of Akron, Ohio

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2020

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 91,294,446 $ 115,965,680 $ 207,260,126
114,840,272 14,165,236 129,005,508
3,321,754 - 3,321,754
914,758 937,626 1,852,384
216,806 - 216,806
4,785,612 (4,785,612) -
797,783 2,895,957 3,693,740
216,171,431 129,178,887 345,350,318
59,624,029 - 59,624,029
3,608,263 3,535,913 7,144,176
7,382,439 - 7,382,439
16,323,574 - 16,323,574
7,919,423 - 7,919,423
548,570 169,588 718,158
299,428,597 534,081,879 833,510,476
824,942,548 640,434,637 1,465,377,185
1,219,777,443 1,178,222,017 2,397,999,460
1,435,948,874 1,307,400,904 2,743,349,778
68,805,077 6,308,386 75,113,963
1,504,753,951 1,313,709,790 2,818,463,741
32,333,317 9,157,529 41,490,846
662,128 751,797 1,413,925
7,389,729 16,748,085 24,137,814
1,781,945 6,727,566 8,509,511
6,219,733 812,994 7,032,727
9,028,686 1,264,938 10,293,624
5,608,428 2,021,850 7,630,278
5,309,157 - 5,309,157
53,882,789 31,218,261 85,101,050
122,215,912 68,703,020 190,918,932
58,392,854 29,811,424 88,204,278
75,996,176 6,438,143 82,434,319
478,415,091 645,869,801 1,124,284,892
239,553,202 20,144,907 259,698,109
145,995,069 25,062,811 171,057,880
998,352,392 727,327,086 1,725,679,478
1,120,568,304 796,030,106 1,916,598,410
214,906,004 11,841,205 226,747,209
1,335,474,308 807,871,311 2,143,345,619
525,092,122 465,595,180 990,687,302
3,465,287 3,536,005 7,001,292
36,302,660 - 36,302,660
21,652,225 - 21,652,225
22,224,597 - 22,224,597
(439,457,248) 36,707,294 (402,749,954)
$ 169,279,643  $ 505,838,479 $ 675,118,122

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 2
City of Akron, Ohio
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital Grants

Charges for Grants and and Governmental  Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities:
General government S 48,220,787 $ 21,989,861 $ 903,940 $ 3,438,080 $ (21,888,906) $ - $  (21,888,906)
Public service 66,126,909 20,286,697 - 29,032,041 (16,808,171) - (16,808,171)
Public safety 138,263,446 2,734,169 22,971,739 1,308,081 (111,249,457) - (111,249,457)
Community environment 71,412,215 6,113,122 10,749,027 164,615 (54,385,451) - (54,385,451)
Public health 5,811,774 304 - - (5,811,470) - (5,811,470)
Recreation and parks 5,140,282 426,181 - - (4,714,101) - (4,714,101)
Interest 19,813,627 - - - (19,813,627) - (19,813,627)
Unallocated depreciation*® 17,527,935 - - - (17,527,935) - (17,527,935)
Total governmental activities 372,316,975 51,550,334 34,624,706 33,942,817 (252,199,118) - (252,199,118)
Business-type Activities:
Water 29,519,412 36,123,839 567,436 33,475 - 7,205,338 7,205,338
Sewer 86,925,634 83,584,606 - 7,255,818 - 3,914,790 3,914,790
Oil and gas 137,109 7,988 - - - (129,121) (129,121)
Golf course 1,323,278 1,030,771 - - - (292,507) (292,507)
Airport 1,004,481 172,607 69,000 599,045 - (163,829) (163,829)
Parking facilities 6,940,659 2,227,090 - 219,042 - (4,494,527) (4,494,527)
Total business-type activities 125,850,573 123,146,901 636,436 8,107,380 - 6,040,144 6,040,144
Total Government $ 498,167,548 § 174,697,235 $ 35,261,142 $ 42,050,197 $ (252,199,118) $ 6,040,144 $ (246,158,974)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Income taxes $ 165,377,499 $ -$ 165,377,499
Property taxes 26,029,888 - 26,029,888
JEDD Revenues 15,785,527 - 15,785,527
Investment earnings 2,392,020 8,671 2,400,691
Unrestricted shared revenues 72,693,019 - 72,693,019
Miscellaneous 30,077,575 831,724 30,909,299
Gain on sale of capital assets 24,764 - 24,764
Transfers (1,700,000) 1,700,000 -
Total general revenues and transfers 310,680,292 2,540,395 313,220,687
Change in net position 58,481,174 8,580,539 67,061,713
Net position - beginning, as restated 110,798,469 497,257,940 608,056,409
Net position - ending $ 169,279,643 § 505,838,479 § 675,118,122

*Excludes depreciation included in program expenses.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Assets
Pooled cash and investments

Restricted cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances for

uncollectibles
Loans receivable
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Due from others
Deposits
Advances to other funds
Assets held for resale

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Deposits

Advances from other funds
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

Due to others

Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages

Accrued vacation and leave
Unearned revenue

Special assessment notes

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund balances
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows

and fund balances

City of Akron, Ohio

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020

Exhibit 3

Income
Community Tax Special Other Total
Learning Capital Assessment Governmental  Governmental
General Centers Improvement Fund Streets Funds Funds

28,990,056 17,417,326 § 1,813,204 § 3,395,271 $ 34,856 $§ 60,856,902 $§ 112,507,615
- 128,847 - - - 3,479,416 3,608,263
52,111,807 41,236,514 6,789,335 29,473,629 290,864 38,712,211 168,614,360
- - - - - 10,704,193 10,704,193

- - - 136,497 202,181 3,617,865 3,956,543
1,981,780 1,296,849 354,753 - - 1,653,111 5,286,493

- - - - - 216,806 216,806

- 16,323,574 - - - - 16,323,574
1,705,000 - 250,000 - - - 1,955,000

- - - - - 7,919,423 7,919,423
84,788,643 76,403,110 § 9,207,292 $§ 33,005,397 $§ 527,901 § 127,159,927 $ 331,092,270
1,357,901 63 $ 74,082 $ 986,121 $ 4,108,653 $ 3,241,316 § 9,768,136
2,150 - - - - 659,978 662,128

- - - - - 695,000 695,000

2,747,581 - 257 - 3,724,100 5,242,533 11,714,471
385,642 160,717 639 126,759 52,027 3,293,820 4,019,604
770,993 - - - - 6,234,772 7,005,765
1,562,610 - 9,542 62,587 1,221,005 469,868 3,325,612
4,322,847 - 21,180 264,735 9,772 1,274,339 5,892,873
48,406 - - 29,639 - 160 78,205
6,652,185 - - - - 7,355,368 14,007,553
- - - 13,000,000 - - 13,000,000
17,850,315 160,780 105,700 14,469,841 9,115,557 28,467,154 70,169,347
35,371,026 39,939,670 2,838,213 29,598,125 - 44,203,355 151,950,389
- 36,302,660 6,263,379 - - 42,898,174 85,464,213

507,535 - - - - 12,965,388 13,472,923
2,839,740 - - - - - 2,839,740
28,220,027 - - (11,062,569) (8,587,656) (1,374,144) 7,195,658
31,567,302 36,302,660 6,263,379 (11,062,569) (8,587,656) 54,489,418 108,972,534
84,788,643 76,403,110 § 9,207,292 $ 33,005,397 $ 527,901 § 127,159,927 § 331,092,270

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position - Governmental Funds

City of Akron, Ohio

December 31, 2020

Total fund balances for governmental funds (Exhibit 3)

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position

is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities (excluding internal service fund capital
assets) are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

The net pension asset (excluding internal service fund net pension asset) is not an

available resource and, therefore, is not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,

therefore, are deferred inflows in the funds.
Income taxes
Property taxes
Special assessments
Shared revenues

Long-term accounts receivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures.

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in the governmental

activities in the statement of net position.

Long-term liabilities (excluding internal service fund liabilities) including bonds payable
and accrued interest payable are not due and payable in the current period and therefore

are not reported in the funds.
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Accrued vacation and leave
Bonds, notes and loans payable
Net OPEB deferred inflows/outflows
Net OPEB liabilities
Net Pension deferred inflows/outflows
Net Pension liabilities
Obligations under capital lease and COPs
Unamortized bond premium, discount, deferred loss, gain

Total net position of governmental activities (Exhibit 1)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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12,392,815
8,043,265
18,763,762

7,242,927

(11,409,341)
(1,781,945)
(61,773,140)
(514,645,696)
(14,260,226)
(137,247,595)
(388,370)
(231,811,381)
(64,001,282)

(59,424,559)

$

Exhibit 3a

108,972,534

1,122,331,213

483,618

46,442,769

990,768

(13,197,724)

(1,096,743,535)

$

169,279,643




Revenues
Income taxes
Property taxes
JEDD revenues
Special assessments
Grants and subsidies
Investment earnings
Shared revenues
Licenses, fees and fines
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Expenditures

Current:
General government
Public service
Public safety
Community environment
Public health
Recreation and parks

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest
Bond issuance expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of bonds
Premium on debt
Issuance of refunding obligations
Issuance of capital lease
Payment to refunding agent
Transfers-in
Transfers-out

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances (deficit),
January 1, 2020

Fund balances (deficit),
December 31, 2020

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

City of Akron, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Exhibit 4

Income

Community Tax Special Other Total
Learning Capital Assessment Governmental Governmental

General Centers Improvement Fund Streets Funds Funds
$ 95,931,507 $ 15977,079 $ 34,700,016 $ - 300,000 $ 21,965,213 $ 168,873,815
16,739,923 - - - - 7,982,736 24,722,659
2,550,000 - 1,700,000 - - 11,535,527 15,785,527
119,763 - - 17,209,809 1,627,819 - 18,957,391
44,998 771,532 - - 14,986,891 34,612,941 50,416,362
1,657,947 234,999 62,427 - - 461,403 2,416,776
11,978,919 37,676,086 - - - 28,985,988 78,640,993
15,999,568 - 1,475,500 39,524 619,256 7,997,772 26,131,620
16,059,685 - 354,753 39,644 - 2,640,896 19,094,978
14,050,465 - 2,441,256 281,986 4,575,245 9,777,469 31,126,421
175,132,775 54,659,696 40,733,952 17,570,963 22,109,211 125,959,945 436,166,542
26,611,561 166,900 - 2,427,113 7,563 17,181,930 46,395,067
25,492,103 - 5,950 15,472,522 37,461,715 22,300,695 100,732,985
81,962,962 - 1,499,894 - 230,145 48,466,170 132,159,171
2,218,732 47,061,883 838,070 - 206,196 33,235,172 83,560,053
4,391,975 - - 6,923 161 6,334 4,405,393
3,854,258 - 1,435 101 173,547 1,415,121 5,444,462
865,000 10,940,000 23,564,238 1,310,446 - 8,023,510 44,703,194
233,598 10,830,805 9,411,569 335,890 - 3,687,642 24,499,504
- - 169,161 25,000 - 160,018 354,179
145,630,189 68,999,588 35,490,317 19,577,995 38,079,327 134,476,592 442,254,008
29,502,586 (14,339,892) 5,243,635 (2,007,032) (15,970,116) (8,516,647) (6,087,466)
- - - - 9,637,193 9,400,000 19,037,193
- - 459,118 - - 1,358,072 1,817,190
- - 16,805,000 - - 12,030,000 28,835,000
- - - 793,785 - - 793,785
- - (16,800,000) - - (10,805,000) (27,605,000)
- - - - - 7,865,755 7,865,755
(11,415,755) - - - - - (11,415,755)
(11,415,755) - 464,118 793,785 9,637,193 19,848,827 19,328,168
18,086,831 (14,339,892) 5,707,753 (1,213,247) (6,332,923) 11,332,180 13,240,702
13,480,471 50,642,552 555,626 (9,849,322) (2,254,733) 43,157,238 95,731,832
$§ 31,567,302 $ 36,302,660 $ 6,263,379 $ (11,062,569) $§ (8,587,656) $ 54,489,418 § 108,972,534
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City of Akron, Ohio

Exhibit 4a

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

to the Statement of Activities - Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit 4)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets, which meet capitalization requirements, is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which capital outlays ($73,754,231) exceeded depreciation
($40,159,448) in the current period.

The net effect of selling capital assets increased net position.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources

are not reported as revenues in the funds. The amount is the net effect of the reversal of

prior year items against current year accruals.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums and
deferred amount on refundings when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. The amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Issuance of debt

Issuance of capital lease

Payment of debt

Payment to refunding agent

Premium on debt

Bond issuance expenditures

Some of the expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

The change in net position of the internal service funds are included in the
governmental activities in the statement of activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit 2)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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§ 13,240,702

33,594,783

24,764

(42,356,914)

(47,872,193)

(793,785)
44,703,194
27,605,000
(1,817,190)
354,179

22,179,205

25,694,777

6,103,857

S 58481174



Assets

Current assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowance for

uncollectibles

Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Inventories, at cost

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments
Net pension asset
Property, plant and equipment,
net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total assets and deferred outflows
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deposits
Due to other governments
Advances from other funds
Due to other funds
Accrued interest payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages
Accrued vacation and leave
Obligations under capital lease
Liability for unpaid claims
Debt:
Mortgage revenue bonds
OWDA loans
OPWC loans
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Obligations under capital lease
Due in more than one year
Bonds, notes, and loans payable
Net pension liability
Net OPEB Liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net
position

City of Akron, Ohio
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2020

Exhibit 5

Governmental
Other Activities-
Off-Street Enterprise Internal

Water Sewer Parking Funds Total Service Funds
7,806,008 $ 107,651,031 $ 271,305 $ 237,336 $ 115,965,680 $ 13,360,115
2,667,200 11,441,370 48,678 7,988 14,165,236 773,318

- 595,073 - 342,553 937,626 -

963,751 - - - 963,751 809,140
1,862,713 951,030 - 82,214 2,895,957 797,783
13,299,672 120,638,504 319,983 670,091 134,928,250 15,740,356
1,157,755 2,378,158 - - 3,535,913 -
99,611 63,843 - 6,134 169,588 64,952
157,092,797 945,359,796 63,559,391 8,504,532 1,174,516,516 2,039,932
158,350,163 947,801,797 63,559,391 8,510,666 1,178,222,017 2,104,884
171,649,835 1,068,440,301 63,879,374 9,180,757 1,313,150,267 17,845,240
3,730,830 2,376,623 - 201,433 6,308,886 2,369,074
175,380,665 1,070,816,924 63,879,374 9,382,190 1,319,459,153 20,214,314
2,177,713 4,057,464 581,467 33,760 6,850,404 3,655,210
751,797 - - - 751,797 -
43,180 16,673,682 31,223 - 16,748,085 140,258

- - - 1,260,000 1,260,000 -

468,416 2,369,173 70,818 27,015 2,935,422 104,358
408,641 6,318,925 - - 6,727,566 -
136,167 2,080,549 - 90,409 2,307,125 1,366,497
490,141 306,711 - 16,142 812,994 326,860
755,100 476,656 - 33,182 1,264,938 530,147

- 2,021,850 - - 2,021,850 -

- - - - - 5,021,657

1,259,392 - - - 1,259,392 -
1,848,768 28,041,343 - - 29,890,111 -
44,750 24,008 - - 68,758 -
8,384,065 62,370,361 683,508 1,460,508 72,898,442 11,144,987

- 29,811,424 - - 29,811,424 -

3,633,361 2,430,654 - 374,128 6,438,143 3,508,285
38,259,357 607,610,444 - - 645,869,801 -
11,845,829 7,569,366 - 729,712 20,144,907 7,741,821
15,047,761 9,519,239 - 495,811 25,062,811 8,747,474
68,786,308 656,941,127 - 1,599,651 727,327,086 19,997,580
77,170,373 719,311,488 683,508 3,060,159 800,225,528 31,142,567
6,670,525 4,924,601 3,032 243,047 11,841,205 3,823,412
115,680,530 277,850,727 63,559,391 8,504,532 465,595,180 2,039,932
1,157,848 2,378,157 - - 3,536,005 -
(25,298,611) 66,351,951 (366,557) (2,425,548) 38,261,235 (16,791,597)
91,539,767 346,580,835 63,192,834 6,078,984 507,392,420 (14,751,665)
175,380,665 $ 1,070,816,924 § 63,879,374 § 9,382,190 $ 20,214,314

(1,553,941)

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds:

Net position of business-type activities
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 6
City of Akron, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Governmental
Other Activities-
Off-Street Enterprise Internal
Water Sewer Parking Funds Total Service Funds
Operating revenues
Charges for services $  35751,232  $ 82,903,796 $ 2,217,672 $ 1,209,357 $ 122,082,057 $ 57,813,497
Other 747,657 893,028 617,638 318,027 2,576,350 7,652,949
36,498,889 83,796,824 2,835,310 1,527,384 124,658,407 65,466,446
Operating expenses
Personal services 14,661,176 10,285,664 - 466,785 25,413,625 9,207,882
Direct expenses 12,883,702 40,781,604 2,754,114 1,590,542 58,009,962 13,220,729
Claims 25,154 33,568 - - 58,722 33,595,852
Rentals and lease 142,198 856 - 70,623 213,677 414,834
Utilities 1,604,131 2,989,531 751,119 50,370 5,395,151 176,927
Insurance 210,370 714,316 100,918 30,778 1,056,382 3,197,305
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 5,676,089 13,726,624 2,513,311 275,497 22,191,521 311,622
Other 115,624 52,922 821,616 - 990,162 2,902
35,318,444 68,585,085 6,941,078 2,484,595 113,329,202 60,128,053
Operating income (loss) 1,180,445 15,211,739 (4,105,768) (957,211) 11,329,205 5,338,393
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income 3,558 4,347 - - 7,905 726
Interest expense (1,020,597) (12,584,014) (273) (1,060) (13,605,944) (43,269)
(1,017,039) (12,579,667) (273) (1,060) (13,598,039) (42,543)
Gain (loss) before transfers and contributions 163,406 2,632,072 (4,106,041) (958,271) (2,268,834) 5,295,850
Transfers-in - - 1,600,000 100,000 1,700,000 1,850,000
Capital contributions 58,971 7,230,322 219,042 599,045 8,107,380 -
58,971 7,230,322 1,819,042 699,045 9,807,380 1,850,000
Changes in net position 222,377 9,862,394 (2,286,999) (259,226) 7,538,546 7,145,850
Net position, January 1, 2020, as restated 91,317,390 336,718,441 65,479,833 6,338,210 (21,897,515)
Net position, December 31, 2020 $ 91,539,767 $ 346,580,835 $ 63,192,834 § 6,078,984 $  (14,751,665)
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds. 1,041,993
Change in net position of business-type activities $ 8,580,539

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid for salaries and employee benefits
Other revenues
Other expenses

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Non-capital financing activities
Transfers from other funds
Transfers/advances in for negative cash balances
Principal paid on bonds, loans and notes
Interest paid on bonds, loans and notes

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital
financing activities

Capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from the sale of bonds
Principal paid on bonds and loans
Interest paid on bonds and loans
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Capital contributions

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related
financing activities

Investing activities
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investment securities
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1, 2020

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31, 2020

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Receivables
Due from other funds
Inventories
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages
Accrued vacation and leave
Estimated liability for unpaid claims
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

City of Akron, Ohio
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Exhibit 7

Governmental
Other Activities
Off-Street Enterprise Internal

Water Sewer Parking Funds Total Service Funds
$ 36,062,471 $ 86,043,505 $ 2,300,873 $ 1,358,239 § 125,765,088 $ 58,703,609
(14,399,072) (35,886,953) (3,687,181) (1,778,881) (55,752,087) (13,041,074)
(13,730,647) (8,966,582) - (780,187) (23,477,416) (45,406,989)
747,657 893,028 617,638 318,027 2,576,350 7,652,949
(115,624) (52,922) (821,616) - (990,162) (2,902)
8,564,785 42,030,076 (1,590,286) (882,802) 48,121,773 7,905,593
- - 1,600,000 100,000 1,700,000 1,850,000
- - - 460,000 460,000 (1,020,000)
- - - - - (1,500,000)
- - - - - (22,375)
- - 1,600,000 560,000 2,160,000 (692,375)
7,450,643 116,923,031 - - 124,373,674 -
(3,381,963) (31,210,844) (219,042) - (34,811,849) -
(1,203,993) (12,718,933) (896) (1,060) (13,924,882) (20,894)
(7,569,534) (127,508,631) - (325,207) (135,403,372) (36,392)
58,971 7,230,322 219,042 599,045 8,107,380 -
(4,645,876) (47,285,055) (896) 272,778 (51,659,049) (57,286)
(1,657,055) (2,185,055) - - (3,842,110) -
1,657,055 2,185,055 - - 3,842,110 -
3,558 4,347 - - 7,905 726
3,558 4,347 - - 7,905 726
3,922,467 (5,250,632) 8,818 (50,024) (1,369,371) 7,156,658
5,041,296 115,279,821 262,487 287,360 120,870,964 6,203,457
$ 8,963,763 $ 110,029,189 $ 271,305 $ 237,336 $ 119,501,593 § 13,360,115
$ 1,180,445 $ 15,211,739 $ (4,105,768) $ (957,211) § 11,329,205 $ 5,338,393
5,676,089 13,726,624 2,513,311 275,497 22,191,521 311,622
325,994 2,927,644 90,073 148,882 3,492,593 (735,046)
16,164 - - - 16,164 1,625,158
380,443 163,570 - (6,948) 537,065 (171,053)
171,182 (1,292,122) 454,424 (96,019) (762,535) 2,849,173
(119,435) (91,949) 15,710 26,139 (169,535) (109,776)
9,139 9,819,855 (551,164) - 9,277,830 140,258
657,609 1,495,191 (6,872) (280,565) 1,865,363 66,135
79,297 51,776 - 3,979 135,052 57,812
187,858 17,748 - 3,444 209,050 91,930
- - - - - (1,559,013)
$ 8,564,785 $ 42,030,076 $ (1,590,286) $ (882,802) § 48,121,773 $ 7,905,593

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 8
City of Akron, Ohio
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds - Custodial
December 31, 2020

Custodial
Funds

Assets
Cash $ 1,611,733
Receivables 4,429,767

Total assets 6,041,500
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities 757,781
Due to other governments 216,806
Due to others 6,277

Total liabilities 980,864
Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,313,818
Restricted for individuals, organizations, and governments 2,868,282
Unrestricted (121,464)
Net Position $ 2,746,818

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Akron, Ohio
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Custodial Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Additions
Confiscated evidence $
JEDD income tax
Miscellaneous

6,565,922

Deductions
Distribution to participatns
JEDD district expenses
Refunds

6,340,800

Net Increase in Fiduciary Net Position
Net position, January 1, 2020

Net position, December 31, 2020 $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Custodial
Funds

393,630
6,154,550
17,742

90,016
5,739,568
511,216

225,122

2,521,696

2,746,818

Exhibit 9



City of Akron, Ohio
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Akron (the City) was incorporated in 1836 and is a home rule municipal corporation
under the laws of the State of Ohio. The City operates under a Council-Mayor form of government
and provides the following services as authorized by its Charter: public safety, public service, public
health, recreation and development. The accompanying financial statements comply with the
provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity, Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are
Component Units, and Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, Statement No.
80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units, and Statement No. 90, Majority Equity
Interests, in that the financial statements include those activities and functions for which the City is
accountable. The City has no component units as defined by GASB 14, 39, 61, 80, and 90. The City
is associated with certain organizations which are defined as jointly governed organizations, joint
ventures and related organizations. These organizations are presented in Notes 25, 26 and 27 to the
basic financial statements. These organizations are the Akron/Summit Convention and Visitors’
Bureau, the Copley-Akron Joint Economic Development District (“JEDD”), the Coventry-Akron
JEDD, the Springfield-Akron JEDD, the Bath-Akron-Fairlawn JEDD, and the Summit Medina
Business Alliance (SMBA). The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the City
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applicable to governmental units.

The following is a summary of the more significant policies followed during the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements.

A. Government-wide and fund financial statements

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments establishes requirements and a reporting model
for the annual financial reports of state and local governments. The Statement was developed
to make annual reports easier to understand and more useful to the people who use
governmental financial information to make decisions. Financial information of the City is
presented in the following format:

Basic Financial Statements:

1. Government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net position and a
statement of activities.

These statements report all of the assets and deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, revenues, expenses, and gains and
losses of the City. Governmental activities are reported separately from
business-type activities. Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, whereas business-type activities are normally
supported by fees and charges for services and are usually intended by
management to be financially self-sustaining. Fiduciary funds of the City are not
included in these government-wide financial statements.

Interfund receivables and payables, and bonds and notes issued by the City and
held by the City as investments, within governmental and business-type activities
have been eliminated in the government-wide statement of net position. Related



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

interest amounts are eliminated in the government-wide statement of activities.
These eliminations minimize the duplicating effect on assets and liabilities within
the governmental and business-type activities total column. Interfund services
provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.

Internal service net position, whether positive or negative, have been eliminated
against the expenses and program revenues shown in the governmental activities
statement of activities.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the different business-type activities of the City and for
each function of the City’s governmental activities.

Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program
revenue includes (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered
by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not
classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general
revenues.

2. Fund financial statements consist of a series of statements focusing on information
about the City’s major governmental and enterprise funds. Separate statements are
presented for the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds.

The City’s major governmental funds are the General Fund, the Community
Learning Centers (CLC) Fund, Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund, Special
Assessment Fund, and the Streets Fund. Of the City’s business-type activities,
the Water, Sewer, and Off-Street Parking Funds are considered major funds.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other
funds. Its revenues consist primarily of income and property taxes, JEDD
revenues, shared revenues, charges for services, and licenses, fees, and fines.

General Fund expenditures represent costs of general government, public service
(including sanitation and recycling collection), public safety (including police and
fire), community environment, public health, and recreation and parks. General
Fund resources are also transferred annually to support other services which are
accounted for in other separate funds.

The Community Learning Centers (CLC) Fund is used to account for the daily
activity relating to the CLC project. The cooperative agreement with the Board
of Education of the Akron Public Schools District (District) provides a
mechanism to fund the renovation and/or rebuilding of all CLC's in Akron. This
major rebuilding program is funded primarily through City income tax, shared
revenue and bond proceeds.

The Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund, a special revenue fund, is used to
account for the accumulation of income tax revenue and the payments of costs for
items specifically designated as project costs and payment of debt service. The
primary revenue source is income tax revenue and some debt proceeds.
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The Special Assessment Fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, assessment related activities including Street
Lighting, Street Cleaning, and related costs. Revenues consist primarily of
special assessment collections.

The Streets Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
payment of street projects. Revenue consists primarily of grants and subsidies.

The Water Enterprise Fund accounts for financial activity related to operating the
City’s water supply, treatment and distribution system. The Water Enterprise
Fund serves six other municipalities and parts of six adjacent townships.
Revenues consist primarily of charges for services.

The Sewer Enterprise Fund accounts for the financial activity related to operating
the City’s wastewater collection and treatment system that serves the City and
twelve other subdivisions. Revenues consist primarily of charges for services.

The Off-Street Parking Fund accounts for the financial activity related to
operating the City’s parking facilities located throughout the downtown area.
Revenues consist almost exclusively of charges for services.

While not considered major funds, the City maintains Internal Service Funds used
to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or
division to another department or division of the City, generally on a
cost-reimbursement basis. The three largest of these funds account for the motor
equipment, engineering, and information technology services. In addition, the
City also maintains Internal Service Funds to account for the financial activity
relating to self-insurance. The financial activity relating to the self insurance
funds are for workers’ compensation, medical, and judgment and claims.

3. Notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user’s
understanding of the basic financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information:

Required supplementary information such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis and
budgetary comparison schedules are also required by GASB Statement No. 34. GASB
Statement No. 68 requires the Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
and the Schedule of the City Contributions to State Pension Funds. GASB Statement No. 75
requires the Schedule of Net OPEB Liability and the Schedule of Contributions for the OPEB
Plan.

B. Financial reporting presentation

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set
of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of
resources, fund balance (equity), revenues, and expenditures (expenses). The fund types and
classifications that the City reports are as follows:
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

1.

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City and is
appropriated. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to
be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds — Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues
derived from specific taxes, grants, or other restricted revenue sources. The uses and
limitations of each Special Revenue Fund are specified by City ordinances or federal
or state statutes.

Debt Service Funds — Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation
of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and
related costs.

Capital Projects Funds - The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for
financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital projects
(other than those financed by proprietary funds).

Permanent Funds — Permanent Funds are for the purpose of accounting for
resources that are legally restricted to the extent that earnings, and not principal, may
be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs. The City,
however, does not utilize Permanent Funds at this time.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

1.

Enterprise Funds - The Enterprise Funds are used to account for the operations that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where
the intent of the governing body is that costs of providing goods or services to the
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

Internal Service Funds - The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the
financing of goods or services provided by one department to other departments or to
other governments on a cost-reimbursement basis.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

1.

Custodial Funds — Custodial Funds are used to account for assets held by the City
for individuals, private organizations, or other governments. The City reports on
eight Custodial Funds, the first one is the Claire Merrix which is to fund tennis
related activities. The second is the Holocaust Memorial to pay for the annual
holocaust services throughout the City. This is the final year that these activities will
be reported by the City as the activity has been taken over by Jewish Community
Board of Akron, Inc. Followed by the Police/Fire Beneficiary Fund which provides
scholarships for dependents of those serving in the Police and Fire Departments. The
Police Property Monetary Evidence Fund and is used to account for funds held by the
Police Department that will be returned to other agencies. The remaining funds relate
to specific Joint Economic Development Districts (JEDD) and include: Copley-Akron
JEDD, Coventry-Akron JEDD, Springfield-Akron JEDD, and Bath-Akron-Fairlawn
JEDD. The JEDD funds are used to account for the specific JEDD District activities
and disbursements.
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C.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting

Except for budgetary purposes, the basis of accounting used by the City conforms to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applicable to governmental units. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to
a fund is determined by its measurement focus.

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting, except
Agency Funds because they are custodial in nature. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash
flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value
without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include income taxes, property
taxes, grants, shared revenue, and donations. On a full accrual basis, revenue from income
taxes is recognized in the period in which the taxpayer’s liability occurs and revenue from
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. On a full accrual
basis, revenue in the form of shared revenue is recognized when the provider government
recognizes its liability to the City. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. The City generally considers all revenues reported in the
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after
year-end. Expenditures are generally recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures only when payment is due.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds of general long-term debt are reported as other financing sources.

In applying the susceptible-to-accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following
revenue sources are deemed both measurable and available (i.e., collectible within the current
year or within sixty days after year-end and available to pay obligations of the current period).
These include income taxes, JEDD revenues, investment earnings, shared revenues, and a
portion of special assessments. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility
requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the amount is recieved during the
period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year end).
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have
been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received
during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of
year end). Property taxes and the balance of special assessments receivables, though
measurable, are not available soon enough in the subsequent year to finance current period
obligations.
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Therefore, property tax and the balance of special assessment receivables are recorded as
deferred inflows until they become available. Other revenues, including licenses, fees and
fines, and charges for services are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they
are generally not measurable until actually received. The City applies restricted resources
first when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
net position are available.

Proprietary Fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating
revenues, such as rental revenue and connection fees, result from ancillary activities.
Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or service that is the
primary activity of the fund.

Budgetary Procedures
The City Council follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data.
(N The Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal

year commencing January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures
and the means of financing them.

2) Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
3) According to state law, the budget must be enacted through passage of an ordinance
by April 1.

@) The City Finance Director is authorized by City Council to transfer funds already
appropriated within departments within any fund or category of expenditures;
however, any revisions that alter the total appropriation of said department must be
individually approved by the City Council. During 2020, supplemental
appropriations were passed by City Council.

%) Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g.,
purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year-end are recorded as the equivalent of
expenditures. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end.

(6) The majority of all funds have a legally adopted annual budget. Those funds include:

General Fund

Income Tax Collection

Emergency Medical Service

Special Assessment

Income Tax Capital Improvement
Street and Highway Maintenance
Community Development

Community Environment Grants

Akron Metro. Area Transportation Study
H.O.M.E. Program

Tax Equivalency

E.D.A. Revolving Loans

Joint Economic Development Districts
Akron Muni. Court Information System
Police Grants

Safety Programs

City Facilities Operating

Various Purpose Funding

Deposits

Community Learning Centers
Police, Fire, and Road Activity
General Grants

General Bond Payment Fund
Streets

Information Technology and Improvements
Parks and Recreation

Public Facilities and Improvements
Public Parking

Economic Development

Water

Sewer

Oil and Gas
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Golf Course

Airport

Off-Street Parking

Motor Equipment

Medical Self-Insurance
Workers' Compensation Reserve
Self-Insurance Settlement
Telephone System

Engineering Bureau

Information Technology

Claire Merrix

Holocaust Memorial

Police/Fire Beneficiary

Police Property Monetary Evidence



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(7 The City appropriates an annual budget for the Police Pension Employer's Liability
Fund and the Fire Pension Employer's Liability Fund, which are required due to their
funding source. On a GAAP basis, the two funds are combined with the General
Fund.

®) The City appropriates an annual budget for the Unclaimed Monies Fund which on a
GAAP basis, is combined with the General Fund.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash balances of the individual funds are combined to form a pool of cash held by the City
Treasurer and invested in authorized investments (see Note 2). Earnings from these
investments are credited to the General Fund in accordance with the City Charter except
where the terms of a grant or regulation specify otherwise. Certain cash balances are held on
behalf of the City by outside agents (see Note 2). Earnings from these investments are
credited to the General Fund and certain other funds pursuant to the City Charter and federal
and state requirements.

Investments are stated at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded as a component of
investment earnings.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, equity in pooled cash and investments, as well
as segregated investments with original maturities of three months or less at the time they are
purchased by the City, are considered to be cash equivalents. Investments with maturities of
more than three months are not considered to be cash equivalents.

Inventories — Inventories are valued at cost (first-in, first-out) and adjusted to annual physical
counts which are then maintained on a perpetual basis until the end of the year.

Capital Assets — Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure
assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements
to the extent the City’s capitalization threshold is met. The City defines capital assets as
assets with an estimated useful life in excess of three years and an individual cost of more
than $5,000 for land; $10,000 for equipment and vehicles; $50,000 for intangibles —
easements; $500,000 for intangibles — computer software; $25,000 for land improvements,
buildings, and improvements other than buildings; and $100,000 for infrastructure. Assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost is not available.
Contributed capital assets are recorded at their acquisition value at the date contributed.
Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a
service concession arrangement are recorded at acquisition value. Acquisition value is the
price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential in an orderly
market transaction at the acquisition date. Infrastructure acquired prior to December 31, 1980,
is also reported as a component of the above-mentioned capital assets.

Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized.
The valuation basis for proprietary fund capital assets are the same as those used for the
governmental capital assets. Interest accrued during the construction of capital assets utilized
by the proprietary funds is also capitalized through December 31, 2017.
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Costs for maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred. However, costs for repairs
and upgradings that materially add to the value or life of an asset and meet the above criteria
are capitalized.

The City depreciates capital assets on a straight-line basis half-year convention, using the
following estimated useful lives:

Asset Years
Buildings, bridges, and storm sewers 50
Improvements, skywalks, and paving 40
Sewer and water mains 40
Sidewalks, curbs, electrical, and lighting 30
Traffic control system and bridge repairs 25
Land improvements 20
Equipment and Intangibles 3-20
CLC Building Equity Interest 70
CLC improvements other than buildings 40
H. Compensated Absences — Vacation, paid leave, and compensatory time benefits are accrued

for as liabilities as the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to receive compensation
are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the City will compensate
the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means. The City records a
liability for accumulated unused vacation, paid leave, and compensatory time when earned for
all employees.

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. An accrual for sick
leave is made to the extent that it is probable that benefits will result in payments. The
liability is an estimate based on the City’s past experience at making payments.

L Fund Balances — Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the
extent to which the City is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources in the governmental funds.

The classifications are as follows:

(1) Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, or
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable form”
criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash. It also includes the
long-term amount of interfund loans.

(2) Restricted — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as
grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or
by enabling legislation.

(3) Committed — Amounts constrained to specific purposes imposed by a formal action
(ordinance) of City Council, its highest level of decision making authority; to be reported as
committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purposes unless the same highest level of
action is taken to remove or change the constraint.
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(4) Assigned — Amounts the City intends to use for a specified purpose; intent can be
expressed by the governing body or by the Director of Finance which has been designated this
authority. The City’s intent is typically expressed through a directive issued by the Director
of Finance.

(5) Unassigned — Amounts that are available for any new purpose: positive amounts are
reported only in the general fund. In other governmental funds, the unassigned classification
is used only to report a deficit fund balance.

Council establishes fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance. Assigned fund
balance is established by City administration including the Director of Finance through the
issuance of requisitions, purchase orders, contracts, and directives.

The City applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for
which either restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are
available. Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first
followed by assigned, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for
purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be
used.

Governmental funds of the City do not have specified fund balance targets. Recommended
levels of committed and/or assigned fund balance will be determined on a case by case basis,
based on the needs of each fund and as recommended by officials and approved by Council
where necessary.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for
the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to restrict that portion of the appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental funds.
Significant encumbrances as of December 31, 2020, total $2,841,738 in the General fund,
$675,816 in the Income Tax Capital Improvement fund, $1,648,222 in the Special Assessment
fund, $3,378,735 in the Streets fund, and $6,262,468 in all other Governmental funds.

Interfund Transactions — During the course of normal operations, the City records numerous
transactions between funds including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide
services, subsidize operations, and service debt. The City has the following types of
transactions among funds:

(D Reciprocal interfund services provided and used — Purchases and sales of goods and
services between funds for a price approximating their external exchange value.

2) Nonreciprocal interfund transfers — Flows of assets between funds without equivalent
flows of assets in return and without a requirement for repayment. This includes
transfers to subsidize various funds.

3) Nonreciprocal interfund reimbursements — Repayments from the funds responsible
for particular expenditures or expenses to the funds that initially paid for them.

The City’s interfund receivables and payables at December 31, 2020 are presented in Note 5.

These are eliminated entity-wide and shown as Internal Balances on the Statement of Net
Position. Interfund transfers are presented in Note 22.
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K. Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits — For purposes of measuring the net pension
liability, OPEB liability, deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB,
deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB, and pension and OPEB
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the pension and OPEB plans and
additions to/deductions from their fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by the pension systems. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. The pension systems report investments at fair value.

In addition to the post-retirement benefits provided by the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund
and the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio, the City provides post-retirement
health care and life insurance benefits, in accordance with union agreements and City Council
ordinances, for retired employees (see note 9).

L. Debt Issuance Costs, Premiums, Discounts, and Losses on Refundings — Debt issuance
costs, except prepaid insurance costs, are reported as expenses in the period incurred. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as prepaid insurance costs, are deferred and amortized over
the life of the bonds. Losses on advance refundings are deferred and amortized over the life of
the new debt, or the life of the advance refunded debt, whichever is shorter.

M. Employment Related Liabilities — The City records a liability for employment related
liabilities relating to former employees of the Health Department (see note 14).

In the best interest of the public health, safety and welfare and to improve governmental
efficiency and economy, effective January 1, 2011, the City’s Health Department
consolidated with the Summit County Health District.

The former Health Department employees while employed by Summit County must retire
under Ohio Public Employees Retirement System to be entitled to receive payment of the
accumulated sick leave at the hourly rate the employee was receiving at the time of
resignation from the City, along with the retirement differential. The City has recorded a
long-term liability of $736,624. Additionally, the former Health Department employees are
entitled to staggered payouts for their accumulated vacation, paid leave, and compensatory
time at the hourly rate the employee was receiving at the time of resignation from the City.
The liability is the actual amount due to employees.

N. Net Position — Net Position is the residual amount when comparing assets and deferred
outlfows of resources to liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. The net investment in
capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets. The restricted component of net position is
reported when there are limitations imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of
other governments. Net position restricted for Capital Projects are mainly attributed to
economic development, public parking, and street projects. The City applies restricted
resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available.
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0.

Accounting Standards — The City applies all applicable and effective pronouncements issued
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

In June 2017, GASB issued statement No. 87, Leases. The object of this Statement is to
improve accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. For the City, this
statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021.

In June 2018, the GASB issued statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred
before the End of a Construction Period. The objective of this Statement is to enhance the
relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for
a reporting period and to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. For the City, this statement is effective for reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2019. The City's financial statements have been prepared in conformance
with this Statement.

In May 2019, the GASB issued statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The objective of
this Statement is to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers
and eliminate diversity in practice. For the City, this statement is effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2021.

In Jauary 2020, the GASB issued statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objective of this
Statement is to enhance comparability in accounting and finanical reporting and to improve
the consistency of authoritative literature. For the City, this statement is effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.

In March 2020, the GASB issued statement No 93, Placement of Interbank Offered Rates.
The objective of this Statement requires governments to terminate hedge accounting when it
renegotiates or amends a a critical term of hedging derivative instrument. For the City, this
statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021, except paragraph
11b effective for reporting periods ending after December 31, 2022.

In March 2020, the GASB issued statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public
Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to
improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-provate and public-plublic
partnership arrangements (PPPs). For the City, this statement is effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2022.

In May 2020, the GASB issued statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of
Certain Authorative Guidance. The objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief
to governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic by postponing the
effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementaton Guides. The City's
financial statements have been prepared in conformance with this statement.
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In May 2020, the GASB issued statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information
Technology Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by (a) establishing uniform accounting and financial
statements reporting requirements for Subscription-Based Information Technology
Agreements (SBITA); (b) improving the comparability of financial statements among
governments that have entered into SBITAs; and (c¢) enhancing the understandability,
reliability, relevance, and consistency of information about SBITAs. For the City, this
statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022.

In June 2020, the GASB issued statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and
Accounting and Financial Reporting for IRS Seciton 457 Deferred Compensation Plans (an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No.
32). The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and
comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which
a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary government
performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs
associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined
contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other
than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component
units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and
comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC)
Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a
pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans.

Pooled Cash and Investments

City ordinances require that all cash, with the exception of certain debt service cash and cash held by
fiscal agents, be deposited with the City Treasurer. Each fund’s portion of these funds is displayed on
the statements of net position or balance sheets as “pooled cash and investments.” Earnings on these
investments are allocated to the various funds based on City and state statutes, grant agreements, and
various bond agreement requirements. Investments are also held separately by the Special Revenue,
Debt Service, Enterprise, and Internal Service Funds. City ordinances further authorize and direct the
permitted types of deposits and investments.

Deposits:

City ordinances require that all deposits be secured by collateral securities pledged at market value in
an amount equal to at least 100% of the deposit, less any amount covered by federal deposit
insurance. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City will not be able
to recover deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. All deposits
are collateralized with eligible securities in amounts equal to at least 105% of the carrying value of
the deposits. Such collateral, as permitted by Ohio Revised Code, is held in collateral pools at
Federal Reserve Banks, or at member banks of the Federal Reserve System, in the name of the
depository bank and pledged as a pool of collateral against all public deposits held by the depository.
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The City has no deposit policy for custodial credit risk beyond the requirements of State statute.
Although the securities were held by the pledging institutions’ trust department and all statutory
requirements for the deposit of money have been followed, noncompliance with federal requirements
could potentially subject the City to a successful claim by the FDIC.

At December 31, 2020, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $44,866,859 and the bank
balance was $49,335,738. The difference in the carrying amount and bank balance was composed of
outstanding checks and other normal reconciling items. Of the bank balance, $2,345,013 was covered
by federal depository insurance, and $46,990,725 was uninsured but collateralized with unregistered
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department in the City’s name.

The money market funds, amounting to $132,832 while held by bond trustees as the City’s agents and
in the City’s name, are also considered uncollateralized and uninsured. The City holds money market
funds amounting to $2,383,584, while held by the City these funds are also considered
uncollaterialized and uninsured. However, their disposition and availability are governed by bond
ordinances and indentures.

Investments in City of Akron notes amounting to $34,573,284 are eliminated in the government-wide
statement of net position at December 31, 2020.

Investments:

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. Investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share
(or its equivalent) as a practical expedient are not classified in the fair value hierarchy below.

Investments in U.S. Treasury securities of $13,514,363 were classified in Level 1 of fair value
hierarchy and valued using quoted market prices.

The City does not have any Investments in Federal Government Agency securities as of December 31,
2020 classified in Level 2 of fair value hierarchy and valued using pricing sources as provided by the
investment managers. Investments in the City of Akron notes and Akron Public Schools (APS) bonds
amounting to a fair value of $42,778,283 and other State and Municipal investments amounting to
$4,842,457 were classified as Level 3. At December 31, 2020, total fair value was $33,782 above the
City’s net cost for its investments.

Interest Rate Risk. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rate risk.

Credit Risk. City ordinances authorize the treasurer to invest in obligations of the United States
Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities, and direct obligations of the State of Ohio, including any
subdivisions of the state. As of December 31, 2020, the investments held by the bond trustees and
STAROhio were rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. All municipal bonds and notes are rated A2 or
better by Moody’s or A or better by Standard & Poor’s.
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Pooled Cash and Investments (Continued)

The City has invested funds in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio). STAR Ohio is
an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s office, which allows governments within the
State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAR Ohio is not registered with the SEC as an
investment company, but has adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 79, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain External Investment Pools and Pool
Participants, which establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for qualifying external
investment pools that elect to measure for financial reporting purposes all of their investments at
amortized cost. Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at STAR Ohio’s share price, which is the price
at which the investment could be sold on December 31, 2020.

As of December 31, 2020 the City had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Types

U.S. Treasuries or Agencies:
FFCB Bond
FHLB Bond
FHLMC Bonds
Municipal Bonds
State of Ohio Bonds

City of Akron and Akron Public
Schools (APS):
Municipal Notes
Assessment Debt
School Facility Bonds

Investments held by bond trustees:

U.S. Treasuries or Agencies
Cash Reserve

Total Investment Maturities

Total Fair Value

Fair Value

$ 5,001,100
4,512,343
4,000,920
2,841,017
2,001,440

27,340,000
7,233,283
8,205,000

3,535,925
132,832

S 64.803.860

Investment Maturities (In Years)

Less Than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10
- $ 4,999,500 - $ -

- 4,507,383 - -

- 4,000,000 - -
2,816,155 - - -
2,000,000 - - -
25,434,000 156,000 239,000 1,511,000
1,280,284 4,558,416 1,394,583 -
935,000 3,990,000 3,280,000 -
3,535,925 - - -
132,832 - - -
36,134,196 $ 22,211,299 4,913,583 $ 1,511,000

Not included in the fair value totals above is STAR Ohio, an external investment pool which was
recorded at amortized cost of $140,918,600 at December 31, 2020. The investments in STAR Ohio
are measured at amortized cost; therefore, they are not included in the tables above. There are no
limitations or restrictions on any STAR Ohio participant withdrawals due to redemption notice
periods, liquidity fees, or redemption gates. However, notice must be given to STAR Ohio 24 hours in
advance of all deposits and withdrawals exceeding $25 million. STAR Ohio reserves the right to limit
the transaction to $50 million, requiring the excess amount to be transacted the following business
day(s), but only to the $50 million limit. All accounts of the STAR Ohio investors will be combined

for these purposes.
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Pooled Cash and Investments (Continued)

Bond trustees and Community Learning Center trustees holding the investments are not registered
with the SEC as an investment company but do operate in a manner consistent with rule 2a7 of the
Investment Company Act of 1940.

Investments held by bond trustees, Community Learning Centers, and STAROhio are not exposed to
custodial credit risk because their existence is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or
book entry form.

At December 31, 2020, $7,144,176 of cash and investments was restricted for the following purposes:
$127,392 was restricted for lease costs for Canal Park Stadium; $2,391,314 was restricted for Akron
District Energy COPs; and $4,496,623 was restricted solely for retirement of City obligations; and the
balance of $128,847 was held by the trustee for payment of debt service on the Community Learning
Centers' Income Tax Revenue Bonds.

The following is a reconciliation of cash and investments to the Statement of Net Position as of
December 31, 2020:

Fair Value
Investments (Summarized in prior table) $ 64,803,860
STAR Ohio 140,918,600
Carrying amount of the City's Deposits 44,866,859

$ 250,589,319

Governmental Activities:
Governmental Funds

Cash and investments with treasurer $ 112,507,615
Restricted Cash and investments with fiscal and escrow agents 3,608,263
and others
Internal Service Funds
Cash and investments with treasurer 13,360,115
Total Cash and Investments - Governmental Activities $ 129,475,993

Business-Type Activities:

Enterprise Funds
Cash and investments with treasurer $ 115,965,680
Restricted cash and cash equivalents with treasurer and others 3,535,913
Total Cash and Investments - Business-Type Activities $ 119,501,593
Fiduciary Funds
Cash and investments with City $ 1,611,733
Total $ 250,589,319
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3. Receivables

Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectible reported in the Statement of Net Position, consist of
the following at December 31, 2020:

Customer
Charges,
Special Allowance
Assessments, Gross for
Taxes and Others Receivables Uncollectibles Net
Governmental Activities
Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ 42,632,121 $ 10,496,850 $ 53,128,971 $ (1,017,164) $ 52,111,807
Community Learning Centers 2,236,514 39,000,000 41,236,514 - 41,236,514
Income Tax Capital
Improvement 6,755,248 34,087 6,789,335 - 6,789,335
Special Assessment Fund . 82,250,053 82,250,053 (52,776,424) 29,473,629
Streets - 290,864 290,864 - 290,864
Other Governmental Funds 30,846,884 24,266,415 55,113,299 (11,324,465) 43,788,834
Total Governmental Funds 82,470,767 156,338,269 238,809,036 (65,118,053) 173,690,983
Internal Service Funds - 773,318 773,318 - 773,318
Total Governmental Activities 82,470,767 157,111,587 239,582,354 (65,118,053) 174,464,301
Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds:
Water - 3,817,450 3,817,450 (1,150,250) 2,667,200
Sewer - 14,350,210 14,350,210 (2,908,840) 11,441,370
Off-Street Parking - 54,218 54,218 (5,540) 48,678
Other Enterprise Funds - 7,988 7,988 - 7,988
Total Business-type Activities - 18,229,866 18,229,866 (4,064,630) 14,165,236
Total Receivables $ 82,470,767 $ 175,341,453 $ 257,812,220 $  (69,182,683) $ 188,629,537

Included in the amounts above are water and sewer unbilled charges for services of approximately
$752,950 and $3,819,764 respectively.

Delinquent special assessment receivables amounted to $52,776,424 at December 31, 2020 and were

fully reserved for in the allowance for uncollectibles in the General, Special Assessment, Water, and
Sewer funds.
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4.

Due From/To Other Governments

Amounts due from other governments at December 31, 2020 consist of the following:

Federal State Total

Governmental Funds:

Special Assessment Fund ~ $ - $ 136,497 $ 136,497

Streets - 202,181 202,181

Other Governmental Funds 3,103,071 514,794 3,617,865
Total Governmental Funds $ 3,103,071 $ 853,472 $ 3,956,543
Enterprise Funds:

Sewer $ - $ 595,073 $ 595,073

Airport 88,087 254,466 342,553
Total Enterprise Funds $ 88,087 $ 849,539 $ 937,626

Amounts due to other governments at December 31, 2020 consist of the follo

wing

Federal State County/ Local Total
Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ - 8 111,152 $ 2,636,429 $§ 2,747,581
Streets - 3,722,678 1,422 3,724,100
Income Tax Capital Improvement - - 257 257
Other Governmental Funds 4,805,000 305,460 132,073 5,242,533
Total Governmental Funds $ 4,805,000 $ 4,139290 $ 2,770,181 $ 11,714,471

The $11,714,471 due to other governments includes $4,465,000 that is reported as
government-wide statement of net position as liabilities due in more than one year.

long-term liabilities in the

Federal State County/Local Total
Enterprise Funds:
Off-Street Parking $ -3 - 3 31,223 $ 31,223
Water - - 43,180 43,180
Sewer 4,500 16,399,780 269,402 16,673,682
Total Enterprise Funds $ 4500 $ 16,399,780 $ 343,805 § 16,748,085

The federal amount listed in due to other governments is comprised of thre
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

e section 108 loans from

The state amount listed in due to other governments is comprised of accounts payable transactions for

capital assets and engineering estimates for projects for work completed.

The county amount listed in due to other governments relates to City reimbursements to Summit
County for property taxes, services provided for the consolidated computer aided dispatch, and police

grant expenditures.

The state amount recorded in Business type Activities relates to accounts
capital assets and engineering estimates for projects for work completed.

payable transactions for

The county amount recorded in Business-type Activities relates to a master meter sewer agreement in

the Mud Brook service area.
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Due From/To Other Funds

Interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2020, due within one year, consist of the

following individual fund receivables and payables:

Governmental Funds:
General
Income Tax Collection
Emergency Medical Service
Special Assessment

Income Tax Capital Improvement
Street and Highway Maintenance

Community Development

Akron Metro. Area Transportation Study
Joint Economic Development Districts
Akron Muni. Court Information System

Police Grants

Safety Programs

Various Purpose Funding
Deposits

Community Learning Centers
Police, Fire, and Road Activity

General Grants

General Bond Payment
Streets

Information Technology
Parks and Recreation

Public Facilities and Improvements

Public Parking
Economic Development

Proprietary Funds:
Enterprise:
Water
Sewer
Oil and Gas
Golf Course
Off-Street Parking

Internal Service Funds:
Motor Equipment
Self-Insurance Settlement
Telephone System
Engineering Bureau
Information Technology

Total
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Receivable Payable
1,981,780 $ 385,642
160,717 2,611,874
- 19,177
- 126,759
354,753 639
- 152,189
- 2,872
- 1111
- 2,120
6,858 1,716
1,051 1,380
1,414 730
43,887 -
140,166 142,111
1,296,849 160,717
1,299,018 33
- 179
- 364
- 52,027
- 233
- 354,753
- 1,166
- 1,735
- 77
5,286,493 $ 4,019,604
963,751 $ 468,416
- 2,369,173
- 28
- 26,987
- 70,818
963,751 $ 2,935,422
590,230 4,134
- 6,740
52,196 -
120,537 92,001
46,177 1,483
809,140 104,358
7,059,384 $ 7,059,384




Due From/To Other Funds (Continued)

Transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the receiving funds, and expenditures/expense
in purchaser funds. The transactions result from numerous transactions between funds including
expenditure and transfers of resources to provide services, subsidize operations, administration
charges, and rental fee.

The General and the Income Tax Capital Improvement funds make advances to other funds and the
repayment is shown above. The General Fund charges an administration fee and storeroom services
to various funds. The Income Tax Collection Fund receives tax revenue during December that is
posted in the subsequent month to the Community Learning Centers Fund and the Police, Fire, and
Road Activity Fund. The proprietary funds provide goods and services through the end of the year
causing a time lag between the dates the goods or services were provided and when the transactions
are recorded.

Deposits

On December 15, 2003, the City of Akron entered into a cooperative agreement for Community
Learning Centers (CLC) with the Board of Education of the Akron City School District (District). The
cooperative agreement is the foundation for all the activity associated with the City’s .25% income tax
and the ownership relating to the CLCs. As of December 31, 2020, the District had $16,323,574 of
unspent City funds that are recorded as Deposits on the City’s Statement of Net Position and are
recorded on the District’s financial statements as “due to City of Akron”.
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7. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
CLC Land
CLC Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
CLC Building Equity Interest
Improvements other than buildings
CLC Improvements other than buildings
Equipment & Intangibles
Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
CLC Building Equity Interest
Improvements other than buildings
CLC Improvements other than buildings
Equipment & Intangibles
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2020 Additions Deletions 2020
$ 152,597,805 - $ 15,000 $ 152,582,805
109,317,232 6,760,291 7,497,073 108,580,450
1,374,959 - - 1,374,959
24,308,019 12,582,364 - 36,890,383
287,598,015 19,342,655 7,512,073 299,428,597
217,762,088 100,154 - 217,862,242
285,443,269 - - 285,443,269
198,832,325 5,481,886 - 204,314,211
253,244 - - 253,244
148,811,070 4,002,029 1,098,609 151,714,490
720,694,820 51,568,314 187,654 772,075,480
1,571,796,816 61,152,383 1,286,263 1,631,662,936
112,190,979 4,497,110 - 116,688,089
36,727,561 5,115,049 - 41,842,610
91,095,124 6,481,745 - 97,576,869
52,914 7,672 - 60,586
114,172,871 6,275,672 818,399 119,630,144
413,139,889 17,782,201 - 430,922,090
767,379,338 40,159,449 818,399 806,720,388
804,417,478 20,992,934 467,864 824,942,548
$ 1,092,015,493 40,335,589 $ 7,979,937 $ 1,124,371,145
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7. Capital Assets (Continued)

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2020, as Restated Additions Deletions 2020

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 38,402,937 $ - $ - $ 38,402,937

Construction in progress (Note 30) 510,804,275 40,521,928 55,647,261 495,678,942
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 549,207,212 40,521,928 55,647,261 534,081,879
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings 207,772,360 - - 207,772,360

Improvements other than buildings 470,249,967 217,533 - 470,467,500

Equipment and Intangibles 81,358,720 341,087 167,617 81,532,190

Infrastructure 291,901,096 149,179,545 - 441,080,641
Total capital assets, being depreciated 1,051,282,143 149,738,165 167,617 1,200,852,691

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 104,030,917 3,419,268 - 107,450,185

Improvements other than buildings 324,751,497 8,012,560 - 332,764,057

Equipment and Intangibles 40,141,725 1,751,908 167,617 41,726,016

Infrastructure 69,470,015 9,007,781 - 78,477,796
Total accumulated depreciation 538,394,154 22,191,517 167,617 560,418,054
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 512,887,989 127,546,648 - 640,434,637
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 1,062,095,201 $ 168,068,576 $ 55,647,261 $ 1,174,516,516

The City adopted GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, in fiscal year 2019. This
statement requires governmental entities to record a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow at the time
there is an external obligating event such as a federal or state regulation, a legally binding contract or court
judgment, and when there is an internal obligating event which is at the time an asset is acquired or if
constructed placed in service. In accordance with GASB 83, the City recorded a current liability of $62,570
and long-term liability of $312,850 associated with the retirement of inactive oil wells as there is an
enforceable legal obligation. After extensive legal and procedural research, the City has determined that it is
impractical that City's sewer and water treatment facilities will ever be closed, and ongoing projects preserve
the overall condition of the operations of the facilities. Thus, no associated retirement liability was recorded
for the sewer and water treatment facilities. While the FAA-administered financing requires reimbursement if
closure of the airport occurrs, the City intends to keep the facility operational as new projects are ongoing to
preserve the conditions and overall operations at the facility, and therefore no retirement liability was
recorded. The liabilities for Hardy Road Landfill and City-owned gas tanks fall under GASB 18 and GASB
49, respectively, and are reflected in the statements. Other assets are maintained and/or disposed of by the
City in accordance with best practice standards.
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7.

Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged during 2020 to functions of the government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government $ 1,864,508
Public service 9,365,346
Public safety 3,523,366
Community environment 7,316,055
Public health 250,617
Unallocated depreciation 17,527,935
Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds are

charged to the various functions based on their usage of the assets 311,622
Total depreciation expense charged to governmental activities $ 40,159,449

Business-type Activities:

Water $ 5,676,088
Sewer 13,726,624
Off-Street Parking 2,513,309
Other Business-type activities 275,496

Total depreciation, depletion, and amortization expense
charged to business-type activities $ 22,191,517

Construction in progress and remaining capital commitments (including capitalized interest of
$5,390,276 through December 31, 2017 before the implementation of GASB statement No. 89,
Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period) are comprised of the
following:

Expended to
Project December 31,
Authorization 2020 Committed
Governmental Activities:
Governmental $ 101,550,249  $ 99,324286  $ 2,225,963
Business-type Activities:
Water 60,373,063 15,459,350 44,913,713
Sewer 517,364,582 473,868,955 43,495,627

$ 679,287,894  § 588,652,591 $ 90,635,303
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Accrued Vacation and Leave

GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, requires a liability to be
established for all compensated absences as earned by the employees. At the time of the
employee’s separation, such compensated absences are paid to the employee from the fund to
which the employee’s payroll is charged.

Vacation, paid leave, sick leave, and compensatory time accumulated by employees whose wages
are charged to governmental fund types have been recorded as liabilities in the governmental
funds only if they have matured. The balance has been recorded on the statement of net position.
Vacation, paid leave, sick leave, and compensatory time accumulated by employees whose wages
are charged to proprietary fund types are expensed when earned and recorded as liabilities in the
government-wide statement of net position and in the proprietary fund statement of net position.

Sick leave is earned by substantially all employees. Unused sick leave is accumulated up to 960
hours for uniformed firefighters and 1,000 hours for all other eligible employees. Unused sick
leave vests upon reaching certain age and service requirements. The vested portion of
accumulated sick leave and amounts earned through December 31, 2020 and expected to vest in
the future has been accrued for in the Government-wide Statement of Net Position for all City
employees. Amounts related to the City’s proprietary fund operations are also accrued for in the
proprietary fund statement of net position due to the nature of these funds.

The following governmental funds have typically been used in prior years to reduce or liquidate
the liability for compensated absences:

General Fund Street and Highway Maintenance
Income Tax Collection Community Development
Emergency Medical Service Police Grants

Special Assessment Fund Safety Programs

Income Tax Capital Improvement
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8. Accrued Vacation and Leave (Continued)

As of December 31, 2020, the accrued vacation, paid leave, sick leave, and compensatory time is
recorded as a current liability (due within one year) in the Statement of Net Position as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2020 Additions Deletions 2020
Governmental Activities:
Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ 7,000,179 $ 6,456,161 $ (7,000,179) $ 6,456,161
Income Tax Capital Improvement 32,017 77,210 (32,017) 77,210
Special Assessment Fund 277,332 264,816 (277,332) 264,816
Other Governmental Funds 1,795,436 1,700,352 (1,795,436) 1,700,352
Total Governmental Funds 9,104,964 8,498,539 (9,104,964) 8,498,539
Internal Service Funds 589,898 530,147 (589,898) 530,147
Total Governmental Activities 9,694,862 9,028,686 (9,694,862) 9,028,686
Business-type Activities:
Enterprise Funds:
Water 851,196 755,100 (851,196) 755,100
Sewer 512,047 476,656 (512,047) 476,656
Other Enterprise Funds 24,925 33,182 (24,925) 33,182
Total Enterprise Funds/
Business-type Activities 1,388,168 1,264,938 (1,388,168) 1,264,938

$ 11,083,030 $ 10,293,624 $ (11,083,030) S 10,293,624

The following amounts are also included as long-term obligations in the government-wide statement of net
position (Note 14):

Governmental Activities:
Governmental Funds:

General Fund $ 37,905,548 $ 13,917,061 $ (9,773,376)  $ 42,049,233
Income Tax Capital Improvement 200,733 152,030 (81,931) 270,832
Special Assessment Fund 930,183 420,301 (393,301) 957,183
Other Governmental Funds 9,521,004 2,782,404 (2,227,850) 10,075,558
Total Governmental Funds 48,557,468 17,271,796 (12,476,458) 53,352,806
Internal Service Funds 2,739,156 923,103 (771,422) 2,890,837
Total Governmental Activities 51,296,624 18,194,899 (13,247,880) 56,243,643
Business-type Activities:
Water 3,349,407 1,334,553 (1,050,599) 3,633,361
Sewer 2,377,515 1,252,932 (1,199,793) 2,430,654
Other Business-type Activities 66,091 38,871 (43,684) 61,278
Total Business-type Activities 5,793,013 2,626,356 (2,294,076) 6,125,293

$ 57,089,637 $ 20,821,255 $ (15,541,956) $ 62,368,936
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Police officers and firefighters participate in the statewide Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (Police
and Fire), a cost-sharing, multi-employer defined-benefit public employee retirement system. Police
and Fire offers three types of service retirement: normal, service commuted, and age/service commuted.
In a normal retirement, a member is eligible at age 48 with 25 years of service with a monthly pension
equal to 60% of the average of the three highest years of allowable earnings. The maximum pension of
72% of the average allowable earnings for the three highest years is paid after 33 years of service.
Under the service commuted retirement, a member is eligible if they have at least 15 years of service,
they have reached the age of 48 and 25 years has elapsed from the date of their full-time hire. Under
the age/service commuted retirement, a member is eligible if they have 15 years of service and they
have reached the age of 62. In the event of death, eligible survivors may qualify for a monthly benefit
and a one-time $1,000 lump sum benefit payment. Benefits are established by the Ohio Revised Code.

The City also participates in a cost-sharing multi-employer post-retirement health benefits plan,
administered by Police and Fire, for these city employees. Substantially all other City employees
participate in the statewide Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). OPERS administers
three separate pension plans. The traditional plan is a cost-sharing, multi-employer defined-benefit
pension plan. The member-directed plan is a defined-contribution plan in which the member invests
both member and employer contributions (employer contributions vest over five years at 20% per year).
Under the member-directed plan, members accumulate retirement assets equal to the value of the
member and vested employer contributions plus any investment earnings. The combined plan is a
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined-benefit pension plan that has elements of both a
defined-benefit and a defined-contribution plan. Under the combined plan, employer contributions are
invested by the retirement system to provide a formula retirement benefit similar to the traditional plan
benefit. Member contributions, whose investment is self-directed by the member, accumulate
retirement assets in a manner similar to the member-directed plan. The City also participates in a
cost-sharing multi-employer post-retirement health benefits plan, administered by OPERS, for these
City employees.

In addition to participating in the plans described above, the City provides its own post-retirement
health and life insurance benefits plan which is administered as a single-employer benefit plan.
Typically, the following funds have been used to liquidate the net pension obligation or net other
post-retirement benefit obligation:

General Fund General Bond Payment
Income Tax Collection Water

Emergency Medical Service Sewer

Special Assessment Oil & Gas

Income Tax Capital Improvement Golf Course

Street and Highway Maintenance Airport

Community Development Motor Equipment
Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study Engineering

Joint Economic Development Districts Information Technology
Safety Programs
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans (Continued)
Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability reported on the statement of net position represents a liability to employees for
pensions. Pensions are a component of exchange transactions-—between an employer and its
employees—of salaries and benefits for employee services. Pensions are provided to an employee—on
a deferred-payment basis—as part of the total compensation package offered by an employer for
employee services each financial period. The obligation to sacrifice resources for pensions is a present
obligation because it was created as a result of employment exchanges that already have occurred.

The net pension liability represents the City’s proportionate share of each pension plan’s collective
actuarial present value of projected benefit payments attributable to past periods of service, net of each
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability calculation is dependent on critical
long-term variables, including estimated average life expectancies, earnings on investments, cost of
living adjustments and others. While these estimates use the best information available, unknowable
future events require adjusting this estimate annually.

Ohio Revised Code limits the City’s obligation for this liability to annually required payments. The
City cannot control benefit terms or the manner in which pensions are financed; however, the City does
receive the benefit of employees’ services in exchange for compensation including pension.

GASB 68 assumes the liability is solely the obligation of the employer, because (1) they benefit from
employee services; and (2) State statute requires all funding to come from these employers. All
contributions to date have come solely from these employers (which also includes costs paid in the
form of withholdings from employees). State statute requires the pension plans to amortize unfunded
liabilities within 30 years. If the amortization period exceeds 30 years, each pension plan’s board must
propose corrective action to the State legislature. Any resulting legislative change to benefits or
funding could significantly affect the net pension liability. Resulting adjustments to the net pension
liability would be effective when the changes are legally enforceable.

The proportionate share of each plan’s unfunded benefits is presented as a long-term net pension
liability on the accrual basis of accounting. Any liability for the contractually-required pension
contribution outstanding at the end of the year is included in due to other governments on both the
accrual and modified accrual bases of accounting.

Plan Description — Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS)

Plan Description - City employees, other than full-time police and firefighters, participate in the Ohio
Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). OPERS administers three separate pension plans. The
traditional pension plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, the
member-directed plan is a defined contribution plan, and the combined plan is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with defined contribution features. While members
(e.g. City employees) may elect the member-directed plan and the combined plan, the vast majority of
the City’s employees participate in the traditional plan. Therefore, the following plan description focus
on the traditional pension plan.

OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits, and annual cost of living
adjustments to members of the traditional plan. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided
by Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code. OPERS issues a stand-alone financial report that includes
financial statements, required supplementary information and detailed information about OPERS’
fiduciary net position that may be obtained by visiting https://www.opers.org/financial/reports.shtml, by
writing to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio
43215-4642, or by calling 800-222-7377.
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans (Continued)

Senate Bill (SB) 343 was enacted into law with an effective date of January 7, 2013. In the legislation,
members were categorized into three groups with varying provisions of the law applicable to each
group. The following table provides age and service requirements for retirement and the retirement
formula applied to final average salary (FAS) for the three member groups under the traditional plan as
per the reduced benefits adopted by SB 343 (see OPERS ACFR referenced above for additional

information):

Group A
Eligible to retire prior to
January 7, 2013 or five years
after January 7, 2013

Group B
20 years of service credit prior to
January 7, 2013 or eligible to retire
ten years after January 7, 2013

Group C
Members not in other Groups
and members hired on or after
January 7, 2013

State and Local

Age and Service Requirements:
Age 60 with 60 months of service credit
or Age 55 with 25 years of service credit

Formula:
2.2% of FAS multiplied by years of
service for the first 30 years and 2.5%
for service years in excess of 30

Public Safety
Age and Service Requirements:

Age 48 with 25 years of service credit
or Age 52 with 15 years of service credit
Law Enforcement

Age and Service Requirements:
Age 52 with 15 years of service credit
Public Safety and Law Enforcement
Formula:
2.5% of FAS multiplied by years of

service for the first 25 years and 2.1%
for service years in excess of 25

State and Local

Age and Service Requirements:
Age 60 with 60 months of service credit
or Age 55 with 25 years of service credit

Formula:
2.2% of FAS multiplied by years of
service for the first 30 years and 2.5%
for service years in excess of 30

Public Safety

Age and Service Requirements:
Age 48 with 25 years of service credit
or Age 52 with 15 years of service credit

Law Enforcement

Age and Service Requirements:
Age 48 with 25 years of service credit
or Age 52 with 15 years of service credit

Public Safety and Law Enforcement

Formula:
2.5% of FAS multiplied by years of
service for the first 25 years and 2.1%
for service years in excess of 25

State and Local

Age and Service Requirements:
Age 57 with 25 years of service credit
or Age 62 with 5 years of service credit

Formula:
2.2% of FAS multiplied by years of
service for the first 35 years and 2.5%
for service years in excess of 35

Public Safety

Age and Service Requirements:
Age 52 with 25 years of service credit
or Age 56 with 15 years of service credit

Law Enforcement

Age and Service Requirements:
Age 48 with 25 years of service credit
or Age 56 with 15 years of service credit

Public Safety and Law Enforcement

Formula:
2.5% of FAS multiplied by years of
service for the first 25 years and 2.1%
for service years in excess of 25

Final Average Salary (FAS) represents the average of the three highest years of earnings over a
member’s career for Groups A and B. Group C is based on the average of the five highest years of
earnings over a member’s career.

Members who retire before meeting the age and years of service credit requirement for unreduced
benefits receive a percentage reduction in the benefit amount.

When a benefit recipient has received benefits for 12 months, an annual cost of living adjustment
(COLA) is provided. This COLA is calculated on the base retirement benefit at the date of retirement
and is not compounded. For those retiring prior to January 7, 2013, the COLA will continue to be a 3
percent simple annual COLA. For those retiring subsequent to January 7, 2013, beginning in calendar
year 2019, the COLA will be based on the average percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index,
capped at 3 percent.
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Funding Policy - The Ohio Revised Code (ORC) provides statutory authority for member and employer
contributions as follows:

State
and Local
2020 Statutory Maximum Contribution Rates
Employer 14.0 %
Employee 10.0
2020 Actual Contribution Rates
Employer:

Pension 14.0
Post-employment Health Care Benefits 0.0
Total Employer 14.0 %
Employee 10.0 %

Employer contribution rates are actuarially determined and are expressed as a percentage of covered
payroll.

The City’s contractually required contribution was $8,790,951 for 2020. Of this amount, $722,818 is
reported as a due to other governments. Both amounts reflected contributions for employees
participating in the OPERS traditional plan, combined plan, and member directed plan.

Plan Description — Ohio Police & Fire Pension Fund (OP&F)

Plan Description - City full-time police and firefighters participate in Ohio Police and Fire Pension
Fund (OP&F), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by OP&F.
OP&F provides retirement and disability pension benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by the Ohio State
Legislature and are codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohio Revised Code. OP&F issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial information and required supplementary information
and detailed information about OP&F fiduciary net position. The report that may be obtained by
visiting the OP&F website at www.op-f.org or by writing to the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund,
140 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-5164.

Upon attaining a qualifying age with sufficient years of service, a member of OP&F may retire and
receive a lifetime monthly pension. OP&F offers four types of service retirement: normal, service
commuted, age/service commuted and actuarially reduced. Each type has different eligibility guidelines
and is calculated using the member’s average annual salary. The following discussion of the pension
formula relates to normal service retirement.
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For members hired after July 1, 2013, the minimum retirement age is 52 for normal service retirement
with at least 25 years of service credit. For members hired on or before July 1, 2013, the minimum
retirement age is 48 for normal service retirement with at least 25 years of service credit.

The annual pension benefit for normal service retirement is equal to a percentage of the allowable
average annual salary. The percentage equals 2.5 percent for each of the first 20 years of service credit,
2.0 percent for each of the next five years of service credit and 1.5 percent for each year of service
credit in excess of 25 years. The maximum pension of 72 percent of the allowable average annual
salary is paid after 33 years of service credit.

Under normal service retirement, retired members who are at least 55 years old and have been receiving
OP&F benefits for at least one year may be eligible for a cost-of-living allowance adjustment. The age
55 provision for receiving a COLA does not apply to those who are receiving a permanent and total
disability benefit and statutory survivors.

Members retiring under normal service retirement, with less than 15 years of service credit on July 1,
2013, will receive a COLA equal to either three percent or the percent increase, if any, in the consumer
price index (CPI) over the 12-month period ending on September 30 of the immediately preceding year,
whichever is less. The COLA amount for members with at least 15 years of service credit as of July 1,
2013 is equal to three percent of their base pension or disability benefit.

Funding Policy - The Ohio Revised Code (ORC) provides statutory authority for member and employer
contributions as follows:

Police Firefighters

2020 Statutory Maximum Contribution Rates
Employer 19.50 % 24.00 %
Employee: 12.25 12.25
2020 Actual Contribution Rates
Employer:

Pension 19.00 23.50

Post-employment Health Care Benefits 0.50 0.50
Total Employer 19.50 % 24.00 %

Employer contribution rates are expressed as a percentage of covered payroll. The City’s contractually
required contribution, excluding the amount related to post-retirement health care benefits, to OP&F
was $13,812,992 for 2020. Of this amount $1,059,115 is reported as a due to other governments. Both
amounts reflected contributions for police and firefighters participating in OP&F.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows

of Resources Related to Pensions

The net pension liability for OPERS was measured as of December 31, 2019, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date. OP&F’s total pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2019, and was determined by
rolling forward the total pension liability as of January 1, 2019, to December 31, 2019. The City's
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City's share of contributions to the pension plan
Following is information related to the

relative to the contributions of all participating entities.

proportionate share and pension expense:

OPERS
Traditional Combined Member
Plan Plan Directed OP&F Total

Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 85,358,175 $ (710,799) $ (7,359)  $ 174,339,934 $ 258,979,951
Proportion of the Net Pension

Liability/(Asset) as of 12/31/2019 0.43185% 0.34091% 0.19367% 2.58798%
Proportion of the Net Pension

Liability/(Asset) as of 12/31/2018 0.43797% 0.31576% 0.19508% 2.65988%
Increase (Decrease) in Proportion (0.00611)% 0.02516% (0.00141)% (0.07190)%
Pension Expense $ 13,956,950 $ 78,689 $ (4,412)  § 29,033,125 $ 43,064,352

At December 31, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions from the following sources:

OPERS
Traditional Combined Member
Plan Plan Directed OP&F
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan investments ~ § -8 - 8 6,021 $ -
Differences between expected and actual
experience - - 11,423 6,599,331
Changes in proportion and differences
between City contributions and proportionate
share of contributions 692,550 10,180 7,566 3,530,531
Changes in assumptions 4,559,121 70,044 695 4,279,591
City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 8,790,951 215,087 - 13,812,992
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 14,042,622 $ 295,311 $ 25,705 $ 28,222,445
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan investments  $ (17,026,902) § (100,301) S - $ (8,431,737)
Differences between expected and actual
experience (442,274) (164,472) (3,814) (8,991,415)
Changes in proportion and differences
between City contributions and proportionate
share of contributions (1,152,609) (32,282) - (7,684,378)
Changes in assumptions (636,914) - -
$ (19,258,699) § (297,055)  $ (3.814) §  (25,107,530)

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
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At December 31, 2020, $22,819,030 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension
resulting from City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction
of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal period rather than the current fiscal period. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred (inflows) of resources related to
pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

OPERS
Traditional Combined Member
Plan Plan Directed OP&F

Year Ending December 31:

2021 $ (2,312,426) $ (51,341 $ 3,926 $ (2,354,926)

2022 (5,638,898) (49,609) 3,665 (920,023)

2023 705,114 (23,899) 3,711 2,410,111

2024 (6,760,818) (54,893) 4,295 (8,693,472)

2025 - (12,684) 2,262 (1,139,767)

Thereafter - (24,406) 4,033 -

Total $(14,007,028) $ (216,832) $ 21,892 $ (10,698,077)

Actuarial Assumptions - OPERS

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the values of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and cost trends. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual review or modification as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employers and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2019, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Measurement and Valuation Date December 31, 2019

Experience Study 5-Year Period Ended December 31, 2015
Acturial Cost Method Individual Entry Age

Investment Rate of Return 7.2%

Wage Inflation 3.25%

Projected Salary Increases 3.25%-10.75 % (includes wage inflation at 3.25%)
Cost-of-living Adjustments Pre-1/7/2013 Retirees: 3.00% Simple

Post-1/7/2013 Retirees: 3.00% Simple
Through 2020, then 2.15% Simple

Mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant mortality table. For males, Healthy
Annuitant Mortality tables were used, adjusted for mortality improvemants back to the observation
period base of 2006 and then established the base year as 2015. For females, Healthy Annuitant
Mortality tables were used, adjusted for mortality improvemants back to the observation period base of
2006 and then established the base year as 2010. The mortality rates used in evaluating disability
allowances were based on the RP-2014 Disabled mortality tables, adjusted for mortality improvement
back to the observation period base of 2006 and then established the base year as 2015 for males and
2010 for females. Mortality rates for a particular calendar year for both healthy and disabled retiree
mortality tables are determined by applying the MP-2015 mortality improvement scale to the above
described tables. 81
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The most recent experience study was completed for the five year period ended December 31, 2015.

The long-term rate of return on defined benefit investment assets was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected real rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage, adjusted
for inflation. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.2 percent.

OPERS manages investments in three investment portfolios: the Defined Benefits portfolio, the Health
Care portfolio, and the Defined Contribution portfolio. The Defined Benefit portfolio includes the
investment assets of the Traditional Pension Plan, the defined benefit component of the Combined
Plan, the annuitized accounts of the Member-Directed Plan and the VEBA Trust. Within the Defined
Benefit portfolio, contributions into the plans are all recorded at the same time, and benefit payments
all occur on the first of the month. Accordingly, the money-weighted rate of return is considered to be
the same for all plans within the portfolio. The money weighted rate of return, net of investments
expense, for the Defined Benefit portfolio was a 17.2%.

The allocation of investment assets with the Defined Benefit portfolio is approved by the Board of
Trustees as outlined in the annual investment plan. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with
a long-term objective of achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits provided
through the defined benefit pension plans. The table below displays the Board-approved asset
allocation policy for 2019 and the long-term expected real rates of return:

Long Term Expected
Weighted Average
Taget Long-Term Expected
Allocation Real Rate of Return
Asset Class for 2019 (Arithmetic)
Fixed Income 25.00 % 1.83 %
Domestic Equities 19.00 5.75
Real Estate 10.00 5.20
Private Equity 12.00 10.70
International Equities 21.00 7.66
Other investments 13.00 4.98
Total 100.00 % 5.61 %

Discount Rate The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.2 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members and those of the contributing employers are made at the statutorily required rates. Based on
those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefits payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate The following table presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the current period discount rate assumption of 7.2 percent, as well as what the City’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is one-percentage-point lower (6.2 percent) or one-percentage-point higher (8.2 percent) than the
current rate:

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset)

(in '000s)
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.20% 7.20% 8.20%
Traditional Plan $ 140,783 $ 85,358 $ 35,533
Combined Plan (430) (710) (914)
Member Directed Plan 4 @) (10)

Actuarial Assumptions — OP&F

OP&F’s total pension liability as of December 31, 2019 is based on the results of an actuarial valuation
date of January 1, 2019, and rolled-forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The total
pension liability is determined by OP&F’s actuaries in accordance with GASB Statement No. 67, as
part of their annual valuation. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of reported
amounts and assumptions about probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment mortality, salary increases, disabilities, retirements and
employment terminations. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual review and
potential modifications, as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future.

Key methods and assumptions used in calculating the total pension liability in the latest actuarial
valuation, prepared as of January 1, 2019, are presented below:

Valuation Date January 1, 2019, with actuarial liabilities
rolled forward to December 31, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal (Level Percent of Payroll)

Actuarial Assumption Experience Study Date 5 year period ended December 31, 2016

Investment Rate of Return 8.00%

Cost of Living Increases (COLA) 3% simple; 2.2% simple for increases

based on the lesser of the increase in CPI and 3%
Salary Increases 3.75 to 10.50%
Payroll Growth Inflation rate of 2.75% plus productivity

increase rate of 0.5%
Healthy Mortality
Mortality rates for non-disabled participants is based on the RP-2014 Total Employee and Healthy
Annuitant Mortality Tables rolled back to 2006, adjusted according to the rates in the following table,

and projected with the Buck Modified 2016 Improvement Scale. Rates for survivng beneficiaries are
adjusted by 120%.
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Age Police Fire

67 or less 77 % 68 %
68-77 105 87

78 and up 115 120

Diasbled Mortality

Mortality for diasbled retirees is based on the RP-2014 Diasbled Mortality Tables rolled back to 2006,
adjusted to according to the rates in the following table, and projected with the Buck Modified 2016
Improvement Scale. Rates for surviving beneficiaries are adjusted by 120%.

Age Police Fire

59 or less 35 % 35 %
60-69 60 45
70-79 75 70

80 and up 100 90

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block approach and assumes a time horizon, as defined in the Statement of Investment Policy.
A forecasted rate of inflation serves as the baseline for the return expectation. Various real return
premiums over the baseline inflation rate have been established for each asset class. The long-term
expected nominal rate of return has been determined by calculating a weighted averaged of the
expected real return premiums for each asset class, adding the projected inflation rate and adding the
expected return from rebalancing uncorrelated asset classes. Best estimates of the long-term expected
geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in OP&F’s target asset allocation as of
December 31, 2019 are summarized below:

Target Long Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.00 % 1.00 %
Domestic Equity 16.00 5.40
Non-US Equity 16.00 5.80
Private Markets 8.00 8.00
Core Fixed Income* 23.00 2.70
High Yield Fixed Income 7.00 4.70
Private Credit 5.00 5.50
U.S. Inflation Linked Bonds* 17.00 2.50
Master Limited Partnerships 8.00 6.60
Real Assets 8.00 7.40
Private Real Estate 12.00 6.40
Total 120.00 %

OP&F’s Board of Trustees has incorporated the “risk parity” concept into OP&F’s asset liability
valuation with the goal of reducing equity risk exposure, which reduces overall Total Portfolio risk
without sacrificing return, and creating a more risk-balanced portfolio based on their relationship
between asset classes and economic environments. From the national portfolio perspective above, the
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Total Portfolio may be levered up to 1.2 times due to the application of leverage in certain fixed income
asset classes.

Discount Rate The total pension liability was calculated using the discount rate of 8.00 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from employers
and from the members would be computed based on contribution requirements as stipulated by State
statute. Projected inflows from investment earning were calculated using the long-term assumed
investment rate of return 8.00 percent. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
a long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefits to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate Net pension liability is sensitive to changes in the discount rate, and to illustrate the
potential impact the following table presents the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate
of 8.00 percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is one percentage point lower (7.00 percent), or one percentage point higher (9.00 percent)
than the current rate.

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability

(in '000s)
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
7.00% 8.00% 9.00%
OP&F $ 241,629 $ 174,340 $ 118,059

Other Post-retirement Benefits (OPEB)

In addition to the post-retirement benefits provided by the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund and the
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio, the City provides post-retirement health care and
life insurance benefits, in accordance with union agreements and City Council ordinances, for retired
employees. The post-retirement healthcare coverage is a single self-insured plan, administered through
Medical Mutual, which provides medical, prescription drugs, dental, and vision benefits. The major
medical portion of the coverage, which includes prescription drugs, ends at age 65. All other benefits
continue for the lifetime of the participant. The life insurance amounts are dependent on age at
retirement and the retiree’s collective bargaining unit. All life insurance amounts are reduced by 50%
after the first year of retirement. Dependents are not eligible for life insurance during retirement. The
life insurance is fully insured. Substantially all of the City’s employees may become eligible for those
benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the City. The City pays 100% of the
cost of health care and life insurance benefits. Effective February 1, 2020, monthly contributions for
supplemental medical coverage are $55 single / $110 family for Non-Bargaining and AFSCME
partcipants, and $27.50 / $55 family for all other participatns. Supplemental dental, vision, and life
insurance are non-contributory. These benefits are financed on a pay-as-you go basis; as such, the cost
of retiree health care and life insurance benefits is recognized as expenditure/expense as claims are
incurred. Eligibility for OPEB benefits is receiving a pension benefit from OPERS, Police and Fire, or
disability retirement. Former employees who are term-vested for pension benefits are not eligible.
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The net OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2019 and the the net OPEB liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018, and rolled-forward to the measurement
date. For OPERS and OP&F, the City's proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on the City's
share of contributions relative to the contributions of all participating entities. The following
information is related to the proportionate share and OPEB expense (in '000s):

OPERS OP&F

Proportion of the Net OPEB Liability

as of December 31, 2019 0.4199% 2.58798%
Proportion of the Net OPEB Liability

as of December 31, 2018 0.4252% 2.65988%
Increase (Decrease) in Proportion (0.0053)% (0.0719)%
Proportionate share of the Net

OPEB Liability $ 57,992 $§ 25,565

OPEB Expense 6,547 3,122

The Net OPEB Liability for the City's OPEB plan was measured as of December 31, 2019 and the net
OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018, and rolled-forward
to the measurement date. The following information is related to the changes in the net OPEB liability

for the City's plan (in '000s):

Net OPEB Liability - December 31, 2018 $ 101,158
Total service cost 1,982
Interest cost 3,703
Experience (gains)/losses (962)
Changes in assumptions (15,524)
Benefit payments (2,856)
Net OPEB Liability - December 31, 2019 $ 87,501

At December 31, 2019 the City reported deferred (outflows) of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

City of Akron OPERS OP&F
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments $ - $ - 5,105,077
Differences between expected
and actual experience - 1,575 -
Changes in proportion and differences between City
and proportionate share of contributions - 102,025 1,888,289
Changes in assumptions 3,172,375 9,181,695 10,124,431
City's contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 2,601,094 - 327,574
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 5,773,469 $ 9,285,295 17,445,371
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments (4,775,245) $ (3,084,297) -
Differences between expected
and actual experience - (5,304,662) (523,304)
Changes in proportion and differences between City
and proportionate share of contributions - (549,046) (740,358)
Changes in assumptions (26,230,691) - (9,663,249)
Total Deferred Inflowsof Resources $ (31,005,936) $ (8,938,005) (10,926,911)
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At December 31, 2018, $2,899,909 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB
resulting from City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction
of the net OPEB liability in the subsequent fiscal period. Other amounts reported as deferred (inflows)
outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in the OPEB expense as follows:

City of Akron OPERS OP&F

Fiscal Year Ending December 31:

2021 $ (5,890,725) $ 1,134,210 $ 1,879,471
2022 (5,890,725) 509,141 $ 1,879,471
2023 (7,064,069) (34,225) 2,120,769
2024 (6,616,695) (1,261,836) 1,740,350
2025 (2,371,347) - 311,353
Thereafter - - (1,740,528)
Total $ (27,833,561) $ 347,290 $ 6,190,886

Actuarial Assumptions - City of Akron OPEB Plan

The total OPEB liability is based on the results of an actuarial measurement date and valuation date of
December 31, 201 using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The total OPEB liability was
calcualted by using the following assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal, level percent of projected payroll
Discount Rate 3.26%
Projected Payroll Growth Rate 2.00%
Health Care Cost Trend Rate for
Medical and Prescription Drugs 6.3% in fiscal 2020, decreasing to an ultimate rate of

5.0% in fiscal year 2027 and after.
Health Care Cost Trend Rate for
Dental and Vision 4.5%

Pursuant to paragraph 36 of GASB 75, since the City's plan is an unfunded plan, the discount rate
should reflect a yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an
average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The discount rate selected by the City reflect the S&P Municipal
Bond 20-High Grade as of December 31, 2019. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB
liability was 3.26 percent, which is a decrease from 3.64 percent used for the measurement date of
December 31, 2018.

For OP&F active members, non-disabled retirees and beneficiaries, and disabled retirees, mortality
rates are based on the RPH-2014 Mortality Table adjusted to 2006 and projected with the Buck
Modified 2019 Improvement Scale. Rates are also adjusted for experience. For OPERS active members,
non-disabled retirees and beneficiaries, and disabled retirees, mortality rates are based on the
PubH-2010 General and Disabled Moratility Tables projected with the Buck Modified 2016
Improvement Scale.

The Net OPEB Liability is sensitive to changes in the discount rate and the health care trend rate. The
following table presents what the Net OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is one (1) percentage point lower (2.26%) and higher (4.26%) than the current discount rate
(2.26%). Additionally shown is what the City's net OPEB liability would be based on current health
care trend rates that are one (1) percentage point lower (5.30%) and higher (7.30%) than the current

rate (7.30%). &7



Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans (Continued)

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
2.64% 3.64% 4.64%
Net OPEB Liability $ 102,364,885 $ 87,500,861 $ 75,660,218
1% Decrease Current Trend Rate 1% Increase
Net OPEB Liability $ 80,125,365 $ 87,500,861 $ 96,864,996

The below table covers the classes of plan members covered:

Retirees and surviving spouses receiving benefits: 2,304
Active plan members 1,808
Total membership 4,112

Actuarial Assumptions - OPERS

The total OPEB liability is based on the results of an actuarial valuation dated December 31, 2018 and
rolled-forward to December 31, 2019 using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The total OPEB
liability was calculated using the following assumptions:

Actuarial Valuation Date December 31, 2018
Rolled-Forward Measurement Date December 31, 2019
Experience Study 5-Year Period Ended
December 31, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Individual Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions
Single Discount Rate 3.16%
Investment Rate of Return 6.00%
Municipal Bond Rate 2.75%
Wage Inflation 3.25%
Projected Salary Increases 3.25%-10.75%
(Includes Wage Inflation at 3.25%)
Health Care Cost Trend Rate 10.5% Initial, 3.5% ultimate in 2030

Pre-retirement mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Employees mortality table for males and
females, adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base
year for males and females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Post-retirement
mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant mortality table for males and females,
adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for
males and females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Post-retirement mortality
rates for disabled retirees are based on the RP-2014 Disabled mortality table for males and females,
adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for
males and females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Mortality rates for a
particular calendar year are determined by applying the MP-2015 mortality improvement scale to all of
the above described tables.
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans (Continued)

A single discount rate of 3.16% was used to measure the OPEB liability on the measurement date of
December 31, 2019, which is a decrease from 3.96% used for the measurement date of December 31,
2018. Projected benefit payments are required to be discounted to their actuarial present value using a
single discount rate that reflects (1) a long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments (to
the extent that the health care fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and (2)
tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an average
AA credit rating as of the measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the
long-term expected rate are not met). This single discount rate was based on an expected rate of return
on the health care investment portfolio of 6.00% and a municipal bond rate of 2.75%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be
made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rate. Based on these assumptions, the
health care fiduciary net position and future contributions were sufficient to finance health care costs
through 2034. As a result, the long-term expected rate of return on health care investments was applied
to projected costs through the year 2034, and the municipal bond rate was applied to all health care
costs after that date.

The following table presents the OPEB liability calculated using the single discount rate of 3.16%, and
the expected Net OPEB Liability if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point
lower (2.16%) or one percentage point higher (4.16%) than the current rate (in '000s):

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
2.16% 3.16% 4.16%
City's proportionate share
of the Net OPEB Liability $ 75,893 $ 57,992 $ 43,661

Retiree health care valuations use a health care cost-trend assumption that changes over several years
built into the assumption. The near-term rates reflect increases in the current cost of health care; the
trend starting in 2020 is 10.50%. If this trend continues for future years, the projection indicates that
years from now virtually all expenditures will be for health care. A more reasonable alternative is that
in the not-to-distant future, the health plan cost will decrease to a level at, or near, wage inflation. On
this basis, the actuaries project premium rate increases will continue to exceed wage inflation for
approximately the next decade, but by less each year, until leveling off at an ultimate rate, assumed to
be 3.25% in the most recent valuation. The following table presents the OPEB liability calculated using
the health care cost trend rate and the expected Net OPEB Liability if it were calculated using a rate
that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate (in '000s):

Current Health Care
Cost Trend Rate
1% Decrease Assumption 1% Increase
City's Proportionate Share
of the Net OPEB Liability $ 56,281 $ 57,992 $ 59,682

The allocation of of investment assets within the Health Care portfolio is approved by the Board as
outlined in the annual investment plan. Assets are managed on a total return basis with a long-term
objective of continuing to offer a sustainable health care program for current and future retirees. The
System's primary goal is to achieve and maintain a fully funded status for benefits provided through the
defined pension plans. Health care is a discretionary benefit. The table below displays the
Board-approved asset allocation policy for 2018 and the long-term expected real rates of return.
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans (Continued)

Weighted Average Long-Term

Target Expected Real Rate of Return

Asset Class Allocation (Arithmetic)

Fixed Income 36.00 % 1.53 %
Domestic Equities 21.00 5.75
REITs 6.00 5.69
International Equities 23.00 7.66
Other investments 14.00 4.90
Total 100.00 % 4.55 %

Actuarial Assumptions - OP&F

The toal OPEB liability is determined by OP&F's actuaries in accordance with GASB Statement No.
74, as part for their annual valuation. Actuarial valuations of an ongiong retirement plan involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about probability of occurrence of events
far into the future. This can include assumptions about service credit, salaries and salary increases,
disabilities, and retirements. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual review and
potential modification, as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by employers and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employers and members to
that point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the
potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations.

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. For a newly hired employee, actuarial
calculations will take into account the employee's entire career with the employer and also take into
consideration the benefits, if any, paid to the employee after termination of employment until the death
of the employee and any applicable contingent annuitant. In many cases, actuarial calculations reflect
several decades of service with the employer and the payment of benefits after termination.

The following key methods and assumptions were used in calculating the total OPEB liability as of
December 31, 2019:

Valuation Date January 1, 2019
Rolled Forward Valuation Date December 31, 2019
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

(Level Percent of Payroll)
Actuarial Assumption Experience

Study Date 5-Year Period Ended December 31, 2016
Investment Rate of Return OP&F OPEB Long Term Rate is 8.0%
Cost of Living Increases (COLA) 3% Simple; 2.2% simple for increases
based on the lesser of the increases in CPI and 3%
Salary Increases 3.75% to 10.50%
Payroll Growth Inflation rate of 2.75 percent plus productivity

increase rate of 0.5 percent
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans (Continued)
Mortality Rates - OP&F

Mortality for non-disabled participants is based on the RP-2014 Total Employee and Healthy Annuitant
Mortality Tables rolled back to 2006, adjusted according to the rates in the following table, and
projected with the Buck Modified 2016 Improvement Scale. Rates for surviving beneficiaries are
adjusted by 120%.

Age Police Fire

67 or less 77 % 68 %
68-77 105 87

78 and up 115 120

Mortality for disabled retirees is based on the RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Tables rolled back to 2006,
adjusted according to the rates in the following table, and projected wih the Buck Modified 2016
Improvement Scale.

Age Police Fire

59 or less 35 % 35 %
60-69 60 45
70-79 75 70

80 and up 100 90

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block approach and assumes a time horizon, as defined in the Statement of Investment Policy.
A forecasted rate of inflation serves as the baseline for the return expectation. Various real return
premiums over the baseline inflation rate have been established for each asset class. The long-term
expected nominal rate of return has been determined by calculating a weighted averaged of the
expected real return premiums for each asset class, adding the projected inflation rate and adding the
expected return from rebalancing uncorrelated asset classes. Best estimates of the long-term expected
real rates of return for each major asset class included in OP&F’s target asset allocation as of December
31, 2019 are summarized below:

Long-Term
Expected
Target Real Rate
Asset Class Allocation of Return
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.00 % 1.00 %
Domestic Equity 16.00 5.40
Non - U.S. Equity 16.00 5.80
Private Markets 8.00 8.00
Core Fixed Income* 23.00 2.70
High Yield Fixed Income 7.00 4.70
Private Credit 5.00 5.50
U.S. Inflation Linked Bonds* 17.00 2.50
Master Limited Partnerships 8.00 6.60
Real Assets 8.00 7.40
Private Real Estate 12.00 6.40
Total 120 %
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans (Continued)

OP&F’s Board of Trustees has incorporated the “risk parity” concept into OP&F’s asset liability
valuation with the goal of reducing equity risk exposure, which reduces overall Total Portfolio risk
without sacrificing return, and creating a more risk-balanced portfolio based on their relationship
between asset classes and economic environments. From the national portfolio perspective above, the
Total Portfolio may be levered up to 1.2 times due to the application of leverage in certain fixed income
asset classes.

Discount Rate The total OPEB liability was calculated using the discount rate of 3.56 percent, which is
a decrease from 4.66 percent used for the measurement date of December 31, 2018. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from employers and from the
members would be computed based on contribution requirements as stipulated by State statute.
Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the longer-term assumed investment
rate of return 8.00 percent. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to not be available to make all future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, a municipal
bond rate of 2.75 at December 31, 2019 and 4.13 percent at December 31,2018 was blended with the
long-term rate of 8.00 percent, which resulted in a blended discount rate of 3.56 percent.

The Net OPEB Liability is sensitive to changes in the discount rate. The following tables present the
Net OPEB Liability of OP&F and what OP&F's Net OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated
using a rate that is 1% point lower and 1% point higher than what the current discount cost trend rates
are (in '000s).

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
Rate
2.56% 3.56% 4.56%
City's proportionate share
of the Net OPEB Liability $ 31,697 $ 25,563 $ 20,467
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10. Notes Payable

The following is a summary of note transactions for the year ended December 31, 2020, reflected in
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements:

Governmental
Governmental Governmental Activities Governmental
Activities Activities Internal Service Activities
Special Capital General
Assessment Projects Health Total
Notes Payable at January 1, 2020 $ 13,000,000 $ - $ 1,500,000 $ 14,500,000
New notes issued 13,000,000 17,400,000 - 30,400,000
Notes retired (13,000,000) - (1,500,000) (14,500,000)
Notes Payable at December 31, 2020 $ 13,000,000 $ 17,400,000 $ - $ 30,400,000

The following is a summary of the City’s future debt service requirements for notes payable as of

December 31, 2020:
Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ending Special Assessment Notes General Obligation Notes
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 13,000,000 $ 39,000 $ 17,400,000 $ 130,000 $ 30,569,000

The following notes are backed by the full faith and credit of the City and generally mature within one
to five years. The notes generally are issued in anticipation of long-term bond financing and are
refinanced, if necessary, until such bonds are issued.

Notes issued by the City of Akron and held by the City as investments at December 31, 2020,
amounting to $34,573,284 (Note 2) are eliminated in the government-wide statement of net position.
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10. Notes Payable (Continued)
Special assessment notes are issued to finance the property owners’ share of improvements. Upon
completion of a project, owners may pay the assessments in full. Bonds are issued in the amount of any
unpaid assessments and are repaid largely from levies on the property owners for principal and interest
collected by the County Fiscal Officer on behalf of the City.

The weighted average interest rates on special assessment notes and general obligation notes at
December 31, 2020 were 0.30% and 0.75% respectively.

Notes payable as of December 31, 2020, are comprised of the following individual issues:

Issued Rate % Issue Final Maturity Amount

Special Assessment Notes:

Governmental Activities:
Street Cleaning/Lighting Note:
December 01, 2020 0.30 12-1 November 30, 2021 $ 13,000,000

General Obligation Notes:

Governmental Activities:
Various Purpose Improvements Note:
December 16, 2020 0.30 12-16 December 15, 2021 12,400,000

Non-Tax Revenue Note:
October 7, 2020 1.85 10-7 October 6, 2021 5,000,000

$ 30,400,000
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11.

Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt

The following is a summary of bonds and loans payable for the year ended December 31, 2020:

Bonds and loans payable
at January 1, 2020

New Issues:

Capital Projects

Resurfacing

Street Improvements

Sewer System

Water System

Various Purpose Improvements
Retirements

Bonds and loans payable
at December 31, 2020

Bonds and loans payable
at January 1, 2020

New Issues:

Capital Projects

Resurfacing

Street Improvements

Sewer System

Water System

Various Purpose Improvements
Retirements

Bonds and loans payable
at December 31, 2020

Bonds and loans payable
at January 1, 2020

New Issues:

Capital Projects

Resurfacing

Street Improvements

Sewer System

Water System

Various Purpose Improvements
Retirements

Bonds and loans payable
at December 31, 2020

Governmental Activities

General OPWC - ODSA - Non-Tax
Obligation Direct Borrowings Direct Borrowings Revenue
$ 121,000,958 $ 5,140,863 $ 3,955,000 $ 30,410,000
- 1,000,000 - -
16,805,000 - - -
(32,720,958) (298,239) (320,000) (3.105,000)
$ 105,085,000 $ 5,842,624 $ 3,635,000 $ 27,305,000

Governmental Activities

Income Tax Special Special
Income Tax Revenue - Revenue Assessment -
Revenue Direct Borrowings (JEDD) Direct Placements
$ 348,945,000 $ 9,684,297 $ 7,720,000 $ 7,271,537
- - - 1,495,864
- - - 141,329
12,030,000 - - -
(25,850,000) (709,509) (4.040.000) (1,310,446)
$ 335,125,000 $ 8,974,788 $ 3,680,000 $ 7,598,284
Business-type Activities
Mortgage OWDA - OPWC -
General Mortgage Revenue - Direct Direct
Obligation Revenue Direct Placements Borrowings Borrowings Total
$ 219,042 $ 7,660,000 $ 5,995,000 $ 572,807,222 $ 354,989 $ 1,121,163,908
- - - - - 1,000,000
- - - - - 1,495,864
- - - - - 141,329
- - - 116,923,031 - 116,923,031
- - - 7,450,643 - 7,450,643
- - - - - 28,835,000
(219.042) (375,000) (790,000) (33,363,309) (64,498) (103,166,001)
$ - 3 7,285,000 $ 5,205,000 $ 663,817,587 $ 290,491 $ 1,173,843,774
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11. Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

Bonds and loans payable at December 31, 2020 is comprised of the following individual issues:

Issued Rate % Issue
Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds:
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds:
November 29, 2012 2.0t0 4.0 Series 2012
March 20, 2014 1.25t0 4.0 Series 2014A
March 20, 2014 451t04.125 Series 2014B
December 2, 2014 2.0t05.0 Series 2014C
March 10, 2015 1.50t0 5.0 Series 2015
May 26,2016 1.00 to 4.00 Series 2016 Judgement
December 6, 2016 1.75 t0 4.00 Series 2016A
December 6, 2016 1.45t0 3.05 Series 2016B
December 20, 2017 1.75 t0 4.00 Series 2017A
December 20, 2017 1.85t0 3.70 Series 2017B
November 12, 2020 2.0 Series 2020
Total General Obligation Bonds:
Ohio Public Works Commission Loans - Direct Borrowings:
July 1, 1998 - Lakeshore Blvd.
July 1, 1998 - Tallmadge Ave.
July 1, 1999 - Lakeshore Blvd.
July 1, 1999 - Bye Street
July 1, 1999 - Wooster/East Ave.
July 1, 2000 - Bishop Street
July 1, 2000 - NW Storm Outlets
July 1, 2000 - N. Arlington Bridge
July 1, 2001 - Darrow Road
July 1, 2003 - US 244 Phase II
July 1, 2005 - Manchester Rd Ph I
July 1, 2005 - Arlington St Signalization
July 1, 2005 - E. Market St Widening
July 1, 2006 - W. Market Street
July 1, 2006 - Tallmadge Ave Singalization
July 1, 2006 - Brown and Power St.

November 28, 2008 -
November 28, 2008 -
July 1, 2008 -
March 13, 2009 -
August 4, 2010 -
October 11, 2011 -
July 1, 2020 -

Barbara Ave.
Newton Street Bridge
Mill St. Bridge
Dover Ave.
Smith/Riverview Round
Carroll Street
Firestone Industrial Park

Total Ohio Public Works Commission Loans - Direct Borrowings:
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Final Maturity

December 1, 2024
December 1, 2026
December 1, 2026
December 1, 2031
December 1, 2028
December 1, 2036
December 1, 2031
December 1, 2028
December 1, 2031
December 1, 2031
December 1, 2023

January 1, 2020
July 1, 2021
July 1, 2022
July 1, 2022
July 1, 2022
July 1, 2022
July 1, 2022
July 1, 2022
July 1, 2023
July 1, 2025
July 1, 2027
July 1, 2027
July 1, 2027
July 1, 2028
July 1, 2027
July 1, 2027
January 1, 2040
January 1, 2040
July 1, 2039
January 1, 2030
December 1, 2031
July 1, 2041
July 1, 2050

Amount

$ 5,355,000
8,085,000
8,710,000

16,505,000
16,745,000
4,345,000
7,155,000
9,945,000
7,640,000
3,795,000

16,805,000

$ 105,085,000

$ 25,350
133,381
24,480
21,938
59,850
15,250
75,686
41,440
164,757
260,010
24,300
301,666
657,300
469,300
69,150
396,150
133,396
438,974
661,018
269,637
106,524
493,067
1,000,000
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11. Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

Issued Rate %
Governmental Activities (Continued):

Ohio Development Services Agency Loans - Direct Borrowings:

March 31, 2011 2.0

Total Ohio Development Services Agency Loans - Direct Borrowings:

Non-Tax Revenue Bonds:

November 25, 2014 .85t04.75
November 12, 2015 1.40 to 3.625
Total Non-tax Revenue Bonds:

Income Tax Revenue Bonds:

November 25, 2014 2.0t05.0
November 12, 2015 1.0t0 5.0
December 6, 2016 1.50t0 5.0
December 6, 2019 4.0
November 24, 2020 3.15
Total Income Tax Revenue Bonds:

Income Tax Revenue Bonds - CLC:

July 28, 2010 5.87
June 27,2012 3.5t05.0
May 7, 2014 S51t05.0
December 8, 2016 3.5t05.0
December 20, 2017 1.75t0 5.0
August 4, 2019 3.0t05.0
Total CLC Income Tax Revenue Bonds:

Income Tax Revenue Bonds - Direct Borrowings:

August 8, 2013 2.03
August 8, 2013 4.20
August 7,2014 2.03
June 24, 2015 2.42
November 14, 2018 4.7

Total Income Tax Revenue Bonds - Direct Borrowings:

Special Revenue (JEDD) Bonds:
December 21, 2011
December 21, 2011

2.75t05.0
2.75t05.0

Total Special Revenue (JEDD) Bonds:

Goodyear 166 Loan
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Issue

2014
2015

2014
2015
2016
2019
2020

2010C

2012A
2014
2016
2017
2019

2013
2013
2014
2015
2018

2002
2002

Final Maturity

December 1, 2030

December 1, 2034
December 1, 2026

December 1, 2034
December 1, 2028
December 1, 2028
December 1, 2041
December 1, 2032

December 1, 2026
December 1, 2033
December 1, 2033
December 1, 2033
December 1, 2033
December 1, 2033

December 1, 2021
December 1, 2028
December 1, 2021
June 1, 2035

December 1, 2048

December 1, 2022
December 1, 2022

Amount

3,635,000

3,635,000

18,250,000
9,055,000

27,305,000

24,855,000
14,210,000
11,835,000
51,780,000

12,030,000

114,710,000

15,060,000
120,525,000
16,305,000
22,280,000
36,085,000

10,160,000

220,415,000

322,355
2,355,914
121,901
4,234,618
1,940,000

8,974,788

2,280,000
1,400,000

3,680,000



11. Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

Issued Rate % Issue Final Maturity Amount
Governmental Activities (Continued):
Special Assessment Obligations - Direct
Placements:

Street Improvement Bonds - Direct Placements:

November 22, 2011 2.5 2011 December 1, 2021 $ 365,000
December 15,2017 2.3 2017 December 1, 2027 2,275,853
December 15,2017 1.9 2017 December 1, 2022 160,356
December 15,2017 2.3 2017 December 1, 2027 39,345
November 11, 2018 1.95 2018 December 1, 2023 305,289
December 11, 2018 2.35 2018 December 1, 2028 48,643
December 11,2018 2.35 2018 December 1, 2028 1,517,959
December 13, 2019 1.45 2019 December 1, 2024 1,248,646
December 1, 2020 0.95 2020 December 1, 2025 1,495,864
December 1, 2020 1.35 2020 December 1, 2030 141,329
Total Special Assessment Obligations - Direct Placements: $ 7,598,284

Business-type Activities:
Mortgage Revenue Bonds:

Waterworks System Bonds:
September 17, 2009 2.51t05.0 2009 March 1, 2034 $ 7,285,000

Total Mortgage Revenue Bonds: $ 7,285,000

Mortgage Revenue Bonds - Direct Placements:

Waterworks System Bonds:
December 18, 2015 2.59 2015 March 1, 2026 $ 5,205,000

Total Mortgage Revenue Bonds - Direct Placements: $ 5,205,000
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11. Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

Business-type Activities (Continued):

Rate %

Ohio Water Development Authority Loans - Direct Borrowings:

January 14, 2010
November 19, 2009
December 10, 2009
March 31, 2011
February 24, 2011
February 24, 2011
December 8, 2011
December 8, 2011
December 8, 2011
December 8, 2011
December 8, 2011
October 27, 2011
October 27, 2011
October 27, 2011
June 28, 2012
March 28, 2013
May 30,2013

June 27,2013

June 27, 2013
August 29, 2013
September 26, 2013
December 12, 2013
January 30, 2014
January 30, 2014
February 27, 2014
February 27, 2014
April 24,2014
April 24,2014
June 26, 2014

June 26, 2014
August 28, 2014
February 26, 2015
February 26, 2015
April 30,2015
May 28, 2015

May 28, 2015
September 24, 2015
February 25, 2016
May 28, 2015

June 25, 2015

July 30, 2015
August 27, 2015
September 24, 2015
October 29, 2015
October 29, 2015
October 29, 2015
December 10, 2015
December 10, 2015
December 10, 2015
January 28, 2016
February 25, 2016
March 31, 2016
June 30, 2016

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2016

3.25
3.25
3.25
4.72
4.14
4.14
2.80
2.80
2.80
2.80
3.55
2.78
2.85
2.85
2.00
3.15
2.67
2.00
2.00
3.05
4.24
3.62
3.66
3.66
3.65
4.15
3.95
3.45
3.09
3.01
3.34
1.89
1.89
2.03
2.26
2.26
245
2.04
1.96
1.57
2.29
232
1.74
2.18
235
1.68
2.14
2.14
2.14
2.21
2.05
1.95
1.75
1.75
1.66
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Issue

Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Water
Sewer
Sewer
Water
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Water
Sewer
Sewer
Water
Water
Sewer
Water
Water
Sewer
Water
Water
Water
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Water
Sewer
Sewer
Water
Sewer
Sewer
Water
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer
Sewer

Final Maturity

January 1, 2030
July 1, 2030
January 1, 2030
January 1, 2032
January 1, 2032
January 1, 2032
July 1, 2032
January 1, 2033
January 1, 2033
January 1, 2032
July 1, 2032
July 1, 2033
January 1, 2033
July 1, 2032
July 1, 2033
July 1, 2034
July 1, 2033
July 1, 2034
July 1, 2034
January 1, 2035
July 1, 2023
January 1, 2035
July 1, 2034
July 1, 2024
January 1, 2035
July 1, 2035
January 1, 2036
July 1, 2034
January 1, 2036
July 1, 2036
July 1, 2035
January 1, 2036
January 1, 2038
July 1, 2021
January 1, 2036
January 1, 2036
January 1, 2036
January 1, 2036
January 1, 2038
January 1, 2037
January 1, 2036
January 1, 2037
July 1, 2036
January 1, 2037
July 1, 2049
July 1, 2037
January 1, 2037
January 1, 2037
July 1, 2036
January 1, 2026
January 1, 2047
January 1, 2048
January 1, 2047
July 1, 2048
July 1, 2048

Amount

549,216
93,013
48,153

547,684

1,470,544
277,253
1,831,319
1,347,887
1,347,887
579,440
320,806
16,017,299

856,970

652,788

755,029

3,700,043
1,579,418
2,157,325
535,048
4,830,403
77,223
607,212
1,101,929
283,965
1,803,367
8,183,287
2,718,850
1,136,085
7,993,414
12,018,728
5,046,422
3,394,139
15,727,334
5,333,548
761,038
5,333,351
3,615,232
902,412
25,607,911
719,714
4,472,980
5,005,763
1,301,318
2,469,811
226,994,510
338,049
2,752,196
3,583,911
1,144,176
433,786
4,398,994
18,860,748
1,007,140
19,864,274
12,964,810



11. Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

Issued Rate % Issue
Business-type Activities (Continued):
Ohio Water Development Authority Loans - Direct Borrowings (Continued):

August 25, 2016 1.56 Sewer
August 25, 2016 1.40 Sewer
August 25,2016 0.45 Sewer
August 25,2016 1.40 Sewer
September 29, 2016 1.33 Sewer
April 27,2017 2.33 Sewer
April 27,2017 2.33 Sewer
April 27,2017 1.83 Water
May 25,2017 0.93 Sewer
June 29, 2017 2.13 Sewer
June 29, 2017 2.51 Sewer
February 22, 2018 - Sewer
April 26, 2018 2.89 Water
June 28, 2018 1.65 Water
July 26, 2018 - Water
September 27, 2018 1.63 Water
September 27,2018 223 Sewer
December 6, 2018 2.54 Sewer
December 6, 2018 2.62 Sewer
January 31, 2019 2.40 Sewer
January 31, 2019 2.62 Sewer
January 31, 2019 2.52 Sewer
February 28, 2019 - Water
March 28, 2019 - Water
May 30, 2019 1.87 Sewer
May 30, 2019 - Water
May 30, 2019 0.66 Sewer
June 27, 2019 - Water
July 25,2019 1.77 Sewer
October 31, 2019 - Water
December 12, 2019 1.30 Sewer
December 12, 2019 1.29 Sewer
December 12, 2019 1.23 Sewer
January 30, 2020 - Water
February 27, 2020 1.39 Sewer
March 26, 2020 1.13 Sewer
June 25, 2020 - Water
July 30, 2020 - Water
August 27, 2020 0.88 Sewer
August 27, 2020 - Sewer
October 29, 2020 - Water
October 29, 2020 - Water
October 29, 2020 - Water
December 10, 2020 0.52 Water

Total Ohio Water Development Authority Loans - Direct Borrowings:

Ohio Public Works Commission Loans - Direct Borrowings:

July 1, 1997 - Sewer
July 1, 2000 - Water
July 1, 2005 - Sewer

Total Ohio Public Works Commission Loans - Direct Borrowings:
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Final Maturity

July 1, 2037
July 1, 2047
July 1, 2049
July 1, 2048
January 1, 2048
July 1, 2024
July 1, 2023
July 1, 2038
July 1, 2063
January 1, 2025
January 1, 2048
July 1, 2023
January 1, 2029
January 1, 2039
January 1, 2039
July 1, 2039
July 1, 2065
July 1, 2064
July 1, 2065
July 1, 2066
January 1, 2066
July 1, 2065
January 1, 2050
January 1, 2025
January 1, 2037
July 1, 2024
January 1, 2067
July 1, 2040
July 1, 2066
July 1, 2040
July 1, 2066
January 1, 2067
January 1, 2051
July 1, 2041
July 1, 2066
July 1, 2051
January 1, 2051
July 1, 2026
July 1, 2066
January 1, 2027
January 1, 2027
January 1, 2052
July 1, 2026
July 1, 2038

January 1, 2021
July 1, 2021
July 1, 2025

Amount

1,597,645
1,338,244
40,627,559
6,652,789
4,020,415
5,348,764
13,897,456
584,743
19,702,955
929,024
2,253,524
187,611
448,324
195,851
211,283
2,506,149
2,098,839
1,379,300
427,990
29,649,066
1,324,491
6,190,378
299,603
519,926
1,439,361
222,644
45,597,549
4,444
903,164
3,987,081
5,690,040
11,189,402
681,562
4,675
790,643
278,648
4213
6,745
1,104,957
1,260,381
3,309
4,687
3,369
793,632

663,817,587

29,750
201,375
59,366

290,491



11. Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

The following is a summary of the City’s future debt service requirements as of December 31, 2020
(in thousands):

Governmental Activities

Fiscal General OPWC - ODSA -
Year Obligation Direct Borrowings Direct Borrowings
Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 $ 18,475 3,295 $ 604 $ - $ 330 $ 80
2022 15,370 2,818 572 - 335 73
2023 14,340 2,451 511 - 340 65
2024 12,240 2,026 489 - 350 57
2025 8,500 1,585 403 - 360 49
2026-2030 30,430 3,552 1,416 - 1,920 121
2031-2035 5,380 386 628 - -
2036-2040 350 14 628 - - -
2041-2045 - - 425 - - -
2046-2050 - - 167 - - -
2051-2055 - - - - - -
2056-2060 - - - - - -
2061-2063 - - - - - -
$ 105,085 $ 16,127  § 5,843 $ - $ 3,635 $ 445
Fiscal Non-Tax Income Tax Income Tax Revenue -
Year Revenue Revenue Direct Borrowings
Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 $ 3,190 $ 1,013 $ 19,800 $ 15,124 $ 725 $ 304
2022 3,285 915 20,620 14,175 632 287
2023 3,395 808 21,455 13,169 628 265
2024 3,515 692 21,585 12,184 638 243
2025 3,635 568 22,580 11,123 649 220
2026-2030 8,915 1,080 123,235 39,365 2,717 766
2031-2035 1,370 166 89,080 11,603 1,778 426
2036-2040 - - 13,730 2,175 381 254
2041-2045 - - 3,040 122 481 154
2046-2050 - - - 346 34
2051-2055 - - - - - -
2056-2060 - - - - - -
2061-2063 - - - - - -
$ 27,305 $ 5,242 $ 335,125 $ 119,040 $ 8,975 $ 2,953
Fiscal Special Special Assessment -
Year Revenue (JEDD) Direct Placements
Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 $ 1,810 $ 117 $ 1,645 $ 140
2022 1,870 58 1,303 109
2023 - - 1,243 87
2024 - - 1,158 65
2025 - - 855 45
2026-2030 - - 1,394 52
2031-2035 - - - -
2036-2040 - - - -
2041-2045 - - - -
2046-2050 - - - -
2051-2055 - - - -
2056-2060 - - - -
2061-2063 - - - -
$ 3,680 $ 175 $ 7,598 $ 498




11. Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

Business-type Activities

Fiscal Mortgage Mortgage Revenue - OWDA -
Year Revenue Direct Placements Direct Borrowings
Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 $ 390 $ 320 $ 810 $ 124 $ 29,890 $ 13,155
2022 405 305 830 103 28,439 14,413
2023 420 288 855 81 29,565 14,581
2024 440 271 880 59 29,499 13,970
2025 2,490 1,060 1,830 48 26,012 13,367
2026-2030 3,140 409 - - 137,286 58,390
2031-2035 - - - - 135,751 40,283
2036-2040 - - - - 95,416 26,588
2041-2045 - - - - 95,928 17,459
2046-2050 - - - - 35,660 6,579
2051-2055 - - - - 9,482 2,883
2056-2060 - - - - 8,355 1,462
2061-2063 - - - - 2,535 210
$ 7,285 $ 2,653 $ 5,205 $ 415 $ 663,818 $ 223,340
Fiscal OPWC -
Year Direct Borrowings
Ending
December 31 Principal Interest
2021 $ 84 $ -
2022 54 -
2023 54 -
2024 54 -
2025 32 -
2026-2030 12 -
2031-2035 - -
2036-2040 - -
2041-2045 - -
2046-2050 - -
2051-2055 - -
2056-2060 -
2061-2063 - -
$ 290 $ -
Governmental Business-type
Fiscal Activities Activities Grand
Year Total Total Total
Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 $ 46,579 $ 20,073 $ 31,174 $ 13,599 $ 77,753 $ 33,672
2022 43,987 18,435 29,728 14,821 73,715 33,256
2023 41,912 16,845 30,894 14,950 72,806 31,795
2024 39,975 15,267 30,873 14,300 70,848 29,567
2025 36,982 13,590 30,364 14,475 67,346 28,065
2026-2030 170,027 44,936 140,438 58,799 310,465 103,735
2031-2035 98,236 12,581 135,751 40,283 233,987 52,864
2036-2040 15,089 2,443 95,416 26,588 110,505 29,031
2041-2045 3,946 276 95,928 17,459 99,874 17,735
2046-2050 513 34 35,660 6,579 36,173 6,613
2051-2055 - - 9,482 2,883 9,482 2,883
2056-2060 - - 8,355 1,462 8,355 1,462
2061-2063 - - 2,535 210 2,535 210

$ 497,246 $ 144,480 $ 676,598 $ 226,408 $ 1,173,844 $ 370,888
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11.

Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

All bonds and notes are backed by the full faith and credit of the City except revenue bonds. Water
Mortgage Revenue Bonds are collateralized by the capital assets of the Water System that had net
carrying values of approximately $157,092,797 at December 31, 2020. In the event of default the Series
2015 Water Mortgage Revenue Bonds are subject to a default rate of 10% at minimum. It is the City’s
policy to pay debt service of the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds from the receipts of those funds.
Accordingly, such debt is reported in those funds. Any deficiency is paid from the City’s General
Fund. Revenue bonds and OWDA loans are retired entirely from the excess of operating revenues over
operating expenses of the applicable enterprise activity. Therefore, the City is under no obligation to
repay these long-term obligations from the City’s General Fund.

The oustanding Income Tax Revenue bond agreements contain provisions that in an event of default,
the trustee may accelerate the bonds to be immediately due and payable, may sue to enforce the terms
of the agreement, or may enforce available remedies including marshall all money available in the
funds. The Non-Tax Revenue bond agreements are secured by a pledge of non-tax revenues and under
the agreement any amounts in default will bear a minimum interest rate of 10%.

The outstanding OPWC Direct Borrowing loan agreements contain provisions that in an event of
default, the lender may terminate its obligations and elect to accelerate the amount outstanding to
become immediately due and payable. Under the agreement terms any amounts in default will bear an
interest rate of 8%.

The outstanding OWDA Direct Borrowing loan agreements contain provisions that in an event of
default, the amount of such default will bear an interest rate at 3% above the agreed contract interest
rate. If the City fails to perform terms of the project agreement and fails to provide a remedy, the State
may increase the rate of the contract to recover remedy costs and eliminate the discount rate for the
remainder of the contract period. In the event of termination, the loan principal will be made due and
payable in full no later than 30 days after the termination or upon terms mutually agreed upon between
the State and the City.

The Ohio Revised Code provides that the net debt of a municipal corporation, whether or not approved
by the electors, shall not exceed 10.5% of the assessed value of all property in the municipal
corporation as listed and assessed for taxation. In addition, the unvoted net debt of municipal
corporations cannot exceed 5.5% of the total assessed value of property. At December 31, 2020, the
City’s total net debt amounted to 2.57% of the total assessed value of all property within the City and
unvoted net debt amounted to 2.57% of the total assessed value of all property within the City.
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11. Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

On November 12, 2020, the City issued $16,805,000 in General Obligation Various Purpose Refunding Bonds,
Series 2020, maturing December 1, 2023 with an interest rate of 2.00% to advance refund $16,800,000 of
outstanding General Obligation Bonds Series 2010A, Series 2010B, and Series 2011. Net proceeds of
$17,192,617, including a premium of $459,118 and an underwriter's discount of $71,501, were used to provide
cash for debt service payments on the Series 2010A, 2010B and 2011 bonds.

As a result, the Series 2010A, 2010B and 2011 refunded bonds are considered defeased and the liability for
these bonds has been removed from the financial statements. The City advanced refunded these bonds to reduce
its total debt service payments by $601,599 and incurred an economic gain (difference between the present
values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $608,217.

On November 24, 2020, the City issued $12,030,000 in Various Purpose Income Tax Refunding Bonds, Series
2020, maturing December 1, 2032 with an interest rate of 3.15% to advance refund $1,980,000 of outstanding
Series 2011 Income Tax Revenue Bonds and $7,550,000 Series 2012 Income Tax Revenue Bonds. The issuance
also partially refunded 2020 debt service payments including $1,275,000 principal due and $2,412,888 interest.
Net proceeds of $13,228,053, including a premium of $1,358,072 and an underwriter's discount of $160,018,
were used to provide cash for debt service payments on the various Income Tax Revenue bonds.

As aresult, the Series 2011 and 2012 refunded bonds are considered defeased and the liability for these bonds
has been removed from the financial statements. The City advanced refunded these bonds to reduce its total
debt service payments by $834,488 and incurred an economic gain (difference between the present values of the
debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $995,054.
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11. Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

The City has defeased certain debt issues by placing investments in U.S. Government obligations in

irrevocable escrow accounts.

Such accounts will be used, together with interest earned thereon, to

provide for the payment of all principal and interest on the defeased bonds on their scheduled due
dates. Accordingly, the escrow accounts and the defeased bonds summarized below are not included in
the accompanying financial statements at December 31, 2020:

Issue
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 1996

Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 1999
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2000

Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2001
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2002
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2003
Income Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1999

Special Revenue Bonds (JEDD), Series 2002
CLC Income Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2003
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2005

Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2010C

Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2006
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2007
Non-Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006

Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2006

Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2009
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2010D
Income Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2012

Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2010B
CLC Income Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A
CLC Income Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2014

CLC Income Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2010A

Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2010B
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2011

Income Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2011
Income Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2012

Defeasance

Date
2005

2005
2005

2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2012
2012
2014

2014

2015

2015

2015

2015

2016

2016

2016

2017

2017

2017

2019

2020

2020
2020

2020
2020
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Original Amount

Outstanding

Defeased Escrowed at 12/31/20
$ 2,600,000 - $ 210,000
14,310,000 - -
14,265,000 - 1,290,000
31,175,000 40,208,751 1,500,000
7,425,000 7,474,877 3,160,000
19,390,000 20,342,508 6,115,000
15,635,000 17,109,007 4,625,000
42,450,000 44,926,392 13,900,000
6,290,000 6,330,767 1,935,000
16,400,000 17,153,385 3,605,000
165,000,000 177,376,931 125,755,000
8,755,000 9,301,891 5,100,000
36,750,000 40,380,525 17,140,000
25,930,000 26,063,093 16,985,000
62,680,000 66,443,618 34,125,000
12,990,000 14,021,482 8,185,000
11,095,000 12,333,842 7,895,000
24,085,000 26,355,324 16,080,000
14,580,000 15,663,380 5,930,000
8,065,000 8,242,290 5,255,000
10,200,000 10,609,118 9,330,000
7,275,000 7,321,742 7,195,000
15,955,000 16,473,042 12,260,000
11,950,000 12,610,415 11,245,000
15,000,000 15,929,577 15,000,000
20,625,000 23,306,790 20,625,000
35,625,000 39,236,367 35,625,000
12,060,000 12,825,548 11,060,000
1,360,000 1,360,000
1,195,000 1,195,000
14,245,000 14,245,000
16,800,000 17,085,332 16,800,000
1,980,000 2,015,863 $ 1,980,000
7,550,000 7,683,162 $ 7,550,000
9,530,000 9,699,025 $ 9,530,000

S 326230000



11. Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

As of December 31, 2020, the City’s bond ratings are as follows:

Bond Description

2009 Waterworks System Mortgage Revenue Improvement and
Refunding Bonds

2010C Income Tax Revenue Bonds (CLC)

2011 JEDD Revenue Refunding Bonds

2012A Income Tax Revenue Bonds (CLC)

2012 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds

2013-A Certificates of Participation

2013-B Certificates of Participation

2014 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series A

2014 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series B

2014 Income Tax Revenue Bonds (CLC)

2014 Various Purpose Income Tax Refunding Bonds

2014 Nontax Revenue Economic Development Bonds

2014 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series C

2015 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds

2015 Income Tax Revenue Bonds

2015 Income Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds

2015 Nontax Revenue Economic Development Bonds

2015 Waterworks System Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds
2016 General Obligation Judgement Bonds

2016 Steam Utility Certificates of Participation

2016 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series A

2016 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series B

2016 Income Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds

2016 Income Tax Revenue Bonds (CLC)

2017 Resurfacing Special Assessment Bonds, Series A

2017 Street Improvement Special Assessment Bonds, Series A
2017 Street Improvement Special Assessment Bonds, Series B
2017 Income Tax Revenue Bonds (CLC)

2017 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series A

2017 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series B

2018 Steam Utility Certificates of Participation

2018 Resurfacing Special Assessment Bonds, Series A

2018 Income Tax Revenue Bonds

2018 Street Improvement Special Assessment Bonds, Series A
2018 Street Improvement Special Assessment Bonds, Series B
2019 Income Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (CLC)

2019 Steam Utility Certificates of Participation

2019 Resurfacing Special Assessment Bonds, Series A

2019 Income Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds

2020 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds

2020 Income Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds

2020 Resurfacing Special Assessment Bonds, Series A

2020 Street Improvement Special Assessment Bonds, Series A
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Moody's Investors
Service

Current
Rating

A3
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Standard

and Poor's

N/A
N/A
A+
N/A
A+

A+
A+
AA-

N/A
N/A
N/A

A+
A+

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
AA-
A+

N/A
N/A

Fitch
Ratings

Current
Rating

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
A+
A+
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A



11.

Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

During 2010, the City entered into an agreement with various parties to unconditionally guarantee the
principal and interest payments on behalf of the International Soap Box Derby, Inc. for the loan issued
by FirstMerit Bank. As of December 31, 2020, the principal amount outstanding was $166,130. The
City believes that the International Soap Box Derby Inc. is current on all required debt service
payments and will continue to pay all debt service when due throughout the remaining term of the loan;
therefore, no provision for such guarantee has been recorded in the financial statements as of December
31, 2020.

During 2012, the City entered into an amendment and restatement of cooperative agreement among
various parties to unconditionally guarantee the principal and interest payments of the Development
Finance Authority of Summit County Revenue Bonds (Akron Civic Theatre Project), issued by the
Development Finance Authority of Summit County. As of December 31, 2020, the principal amount
outstanding was $11,955,000. The City believes that the Development Finance Authority of Summit
County is current on all required debt service payments and will continue to pay all debt service when
due throughout the remaining term of the bonds; therefore, no provision for such guarantee has been
recorded in the financial statements as of December 31, 2020.

On May 8, 2013, the Development Finance Authority (DFA) of Summit County issued Taxable
Development Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A, in the amount of $6,645,000 for the University Edge
project by developer Lawrence B. Levey & University Square Investors I, LLC. These bonds mature
on November 15, 2027. The City has received approval from the State of Ohio for Tax Increment
Financing (TIF) on improvements to the land to be used for the project. The TIF Service Payments will
be used to pay the debt service on the bonds issued by the DFA. In the event TIF Service Payments are
not sufficient in any particular year to cover the annual debt service on the bonds, the developer will be
required to pay the deficiency.

On March 1, 2019, the Development Finance Authority (DFA) of Summit County issued Development
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2019, in the amount of $2,750,000 to refinance previous bond
obligations which the City had guaranteed on behalf of the Akron Community Service Center and
Urban League to pay the costs of the Akron Urban League's community service center and operations.
During 2019 the City entered into an agreement with the County of Summit and Development Finance
Authority to guarantee one half of the loan payments on behalf of the Akron Community Service Center
and Urban League. As of December 31, 2020, the principal outstanding on the loan is $2,612,036. The
City believes the Akron Urban League is current on all required debt service payments and will
continue to pay all debt service when due throughout the remaining term of the bond; therefore, no
provision for such guarantee has been recorded in the financial statements as of December 31, 2020.

During 2020, the City entered into an agreement with various parties to unconditionally guarantee
$100,000 for the Soil Stabilization Loan Payments on behalf of Q.T. Equipment Company for the loan
issued by Western Reserve Community Fund, Inc.. The City has agreed to contribute a third-party
payment in the amount of $35,000 which is due from the City no later than May 1, 2022. The City has
recorded a long-term liability of $35,000 for the scheduled payment in the accompanying financial
statements.
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11.

Bonds and Loans Payable and Defeased Debt (Continued)

During 2012, the City entered into a cooperative agreement with the Development Finance Authority of
Summit County (DFA), Akron Baseball, LLC, and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company,
N.A. to facilitate financing. The Development Finance Authority of Summit Development Revenue
Bonds, Series 2012 were issued for $3.6 million. During 2020 the DFA issued Development Finance
Authority of Summit County Development Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 for $3 million to
refund the Series 2012 bonds and refinance the coopoerative agreement. The obligation of the City is
subject to the annual appropriations made by City Council. The City has recorded a short-term liability
of $210,875 and a long-term liability of $4,585,925 for the principal and interest payments scheduled to
be paid during 2021 through 2042 in the accompanying financial statements. The principal balance
outstanding as of December 31, 2020 is $3,000,000.

The obligations of the City under this agreement, including its obligation to make payments during any
fiscal year of the City in which this agreement is in effect, shall not constitute a general obligation or
indebtedness of the City within the meaning of the constitution and laws of the State of Ohio. The
agreement does not pledge any taxes or other moneys to the amounts payable by the City. Nothing
constitutes a pledge by the City or an obligation by the City, of any taxes or other moneys to the
payment of any amount payable by the City under this agreement.
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12.

Obligations Under Capitalized Leases and Certificates of Participation (COPs)

In November, 1996, $28.9 million Series 1996 Convertible Capital Appreciation Certificates of
Participation (COPS) were issued by a bank to finance the costs of the construction of a professional
baseball stadium (meeting class “AA” standards) within the City. This issue was refunded by the
issuance of Series 2005 COPS. The 2005 issue was refunded by the issuance of Series 2013 COPS. In
connection with the issuance of these COPS, and as amended, the City entered into a capital lease
agreement (as lessee) for the baseball stadium. The City will make lease payments during successive
annual renewal periods through November 25, 2023, providing City Council appropriates funds each
year for that purpose. If the lease is paid through November 25, 2023, the City will acquire title to the
baseball stadium. The lease agreement also includes a purchase option during the years 2014 through
2023.

The trust agreement for the issuance of the 2013 COPS requires the City to deposit $20,000 annually
into a Capital Renewal Fund. The City can utilize these funds for capital improvements such as
repairs, renovations, additional equipment, other facilities, or other improvements to the baseball
stadium.

The City has defeased certain certificate issues by placing investments in U.S. Government
Obligations in irrevocable escrow accounts. Such accounts will be used, together with interest earned
thereon, to provide for the payment of all principal and interest on the defeased certificates on their
scheduled due dates. Accordingly, the escrow accounts and the defeased certificates summarized
below are not included in the accompanying financial statements at December 31, 2019:

Original Amount

Principal
Issue Defeasance Date Defeased Escrowed Outstanding at
12/31/19

Certificates of Participation, Series 2010 2019 $9,830,000 $ 10,539,250 $ -

On October 25, 2016, the City issued $11,965,000 Series 2016 Convertible Certificates of
Participation(COPs) for the Akron Energy Systems Project (AES). During 2018, the City issued
additional COPs totaling $24,445,000 for the Akron Energy Systems Project. During 2019 the City
issued additional AES COPS totaling $9,360,000. Total future payments as of December 31, 2020 are
as follows:

Series 2016 Series 2018 Series 2019

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 350,000 366,394 605,000 937,175 795,000 232,801
2022 360,000 358,519 635,000 906,925 810,000 214,834
2023 365,000 349,969 670,000 875,175 830,000 195,961
2024 385,000 331,719 700,000 841,675 855,000 176,041
2025 405,000 312,469 735,000 806,675 875,000 154,666
2026-2030 2,295,000 1,294,194 4,255,000 3,468,575 4,605,000 403,433
2031-2035 2,680,000 910,394 5,190,000 2,533,756 - -
2036-2040 3,150,000 442,231 6,205,000 1,512,669 - -
2041-2045 695,000 23,456 4,305,000 327,000 - -
$ 10,685,000 $ 4,389,345 § 23,300,000 § 12,209,625 § 8,770,000 § 1,377,736
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12.

Obligations Under Capitalized Leases and Certificates of Participation (COPs) (Continued)

The City also has eight other capital leases. The first is a 2020 five-year capital lease agreement for
three packer trucks. The cost of the equipment is $793,785 and is included in the City's capital assets
in the Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities.

The second is a 2016 15-year capital lease agreement with Summit County to upgrade the radio
system. The City's share of equipment totals $10,635,000, consisting of City owned equipment in the
amount of $5,710,490 and the City's share of jointly owned equipment in the amount of $4,924,510. It
is included in the City's capital assets in the Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities.

The third is a 2017 four-year capital lease for street sweepers. The cost of the equipment is $570,147
and is included in the City's capital assets in the Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities.

The fourth agreement is a 2018 three-year packer trucks lease at a rate of 2.13% for equipment
totaling $776,157 and is included in the City's capital assets in the Statement of Net Position -
Governmental Activities.

The fifth agreement is a five-year 2018 street sweepers lease at a rate of 4.18% for equipment totaling
$427,992 and is included in the City's capital assets in the Statement of Net Position - Governmental
Activities.

The sixth agreement is a 2018 five-year lease at a rate of 4.19% for one Vac-Con sewer cleaning
truck totaling $386,934. It is included in the City's capital assets in the Statement of Net Position -
Business-Type Activities and in the Sewer Fund.

The seveth agreement is a 20-year capital lease agreement at a rate of 4.00% for Fire Station No. 4
totaling $9,585,000. The Development Finance Authority of Summit County (DFA) issued conduit
bonds during 2018 to finance construction of Fire Station No. 4 on behalf of the City and will use the
lease payments to pay the debt service on the bonds. The DFA also entered into a ground lease
agreement with the City for the location of the property. The lease is included in the City's capital
assets in the Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities.

The eight agreement is a 2017, 20-year capital lease agreement for Compost Facility Anaerobic
Digestion System 2(ADS2) totaling $39,490,889 and is included in the City's capital assets in the
Statement of Net Position - Business-Type Activities. This was previously reported as construction in
process and restated beginning balance at January 1, 2019 to record as a capital lease (Note 30).

The following is a summary of the capital lease transactions for the year ended December 31, 2020:

Governmental Activities

COPS 2020 Packer 2017 Street 2018 Street

Stadium Trucks Sweepers Sweepers

Capital Lease at January 1, 2020 $ 5,030,000 $ - $ 266,035 $ 295,096
Additions - 793,785 - -
Retirements (2,215,000) (150,771) (101,587) (61,514)

Capital Lease at December 31, 2020 $ 2,815,000 $ 643,014 $ 164,448 $ 233,582
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12. Obligations Under Capitalized Leases and Certificates of Participation (COPs) (Continued)

Governmental Activities (continued)

Business-type Activities

Radio Packer Fire Station ADS2 Vac-Con

System Trucks No. 4 Plant Sewer Truck
Capital Lease at January 1, 2020 $ 8,895,000 $ 396,284 $ 9,260,000 $ 33,567,256 $ 285,968
Additions - - - - -
Retirements (625,000) (196,047) (340,000) (1,974,544) (45,405)
Capital Lease at December 31, 2020 $ 8,270,000 $ 200,237 $ 8,920,000 $31,592,711 $ 240,563

Future lease payments are as follows as of December 31, 2020:

Governmental Activities

COPS 2020 Packer 2017 Street 2018 Street
Year Stadium Trucks Sweepers Sweepers
2021 $ 2,394,513 $ 171,263 $ 168,000 $ 73,849
2022 283,200 171,263 - 73,849
2023 282,150 171,263 - 106,000
2024 171,263 -
2025 - - - -
Total lease payments 2,959,863 685,053 168,000 253,698
Less amount representing interest 144,863 42,036 3,552 20,117
Present value of lease payments $ 2815000 $ 643,017  $ 164,448 $ 233,581
Net book value of leased assets *$ 15,026,628 $ 754,096 $ 370,595 $ 320,994
Governmental Activities (continued) Business-type Activities
Radio Packer Fire Station ADS2 Vac-Con
Year System Trucks No. 4 Plant Sewer Truck
2021 $ 920,625 $ 203,435 $ 694,275 $ 2,583,496 $ 57,387
2022 921,025 - 695,275 2,583,496 57,387
2023 921,525 - 695,675 2,583,496 150,000
2024 919,725 - 695,475 2,583,496 -
2025 921,925 - 694,675 2,583,496 -
2026-2030 4,602,475 - 3,473,975 12,917,480 -
2031-2035 920,400 - 3,473,250 12,917,480 -
2036-2040 - - 2,085,694 2,583,496 -
Total lease payments 10,127,700 203,435 12,508,294 41,335,936 264,774
Less amount representing interest 1,857,700 3,198 3,588,294 9,743,225 24210
Present value of lease payments $ 8,270,000 $ 200,237 $ 8,920,000 $ 31,592,711 $ 240,564
Net book value of leased assets $ 5849250 § 582,117 § 9,105,750 § 36,035,437 § 290,200

* Amount represents the entire net book value of the capital lease recorded in the statement of net position.
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13.

Self-Insurance Funds

The City is exposed to various risks of loss including employee health-care costs and accidents, torts
and legal judgments, and damage or destruction of assets. The City purchases fire and extended
coverage insurance on all buildings and contents up to $300,000,000 per occurrence, with a variety of
deductibles beginning at $250,000. Coverage is purchased on 981 vehicles for total auto liability
including auto liability umbrella of $21,000,000. There has been no significant reduction in coverage
from the prior year, and settled claims have not exceeded the City’s insurance coverage in any of the
past three years.

The City has a Medical Self-Insurance Fund. The purpose of this fund is to pay medical claims for
City employees and their covered dependents and minimize the total cost of medical benefits of the
City. The plan is internally managed and accounted for as an Internal Service Fund. This Internal
Service Fund has been in existence since 1987.

The City has an Internal Service Fund entitled “Workers’ Compensation Reserve Fund” to account for
self-insured workers’ compensation claims. Workers’ compensation is administered by the State of
Ohio under a retrospective rating plan. The City reimburses the Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensation for injured workers’ claims subject to a maximum annual claim limit of $300,000 for
each worker’s compensation claim. All funds of the City participate in the program and make
payments to the Internal Service Fund based on the experience premium that would normally be
charged by the Ohio Bureau of Workers” Compensation. Future claims liabilities are actuarially
determined.

The City has a Self-Insurance Settlement Fund. The purpose of this fund is to pay judgments and
claims. Claims are accrued based upon estimates, past experience, and current claims outstanding.
Actual claims experience may differ from the estimate.

The claims liabilities of $4,154,587, $880,973, and $603,545 reported in the Medical, Workers’
Compensation, and Self-Insurance Settlement funds, respectively, at December 31, 2020, are in
accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, and GASB Statement No. 30, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues. These GASB statements
require that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial
statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The liabilities recorded include
the estimated incremental expenses to be incurred to settle the claims, including legal fees. Claims
liabilities are based on evaluations of individual claims and a review of experience with respect to the
probable number and nature of claims arising from losses that have been incurred but have not yet
been reported. The claims liabilities represent the estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims,
including the effects of inflation and other societal and economic factors. Estimated future recoveries
on settled and unsettled claims, such as subrogations, if any, are evaluated in terms of their estimated
realizable value and deducted from the liability for unpaid claims. Any adjustments resulting from
the actual settlement of the claims are reflected in the financial statements at the time the adjustments
are determined.
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13. Self-Insurance Funds (Continued)

Changes in the funds’ claims liabilities (both current and long-term) amounts in fiscal 2019 and 2020

were:
Beginning Current Balance
of Year Claim Period Claim at End
Liability Adjustments Claims Payments of Year
Medical Self-
Insurance Fund
2019 $3,412,447 $ - $ 34,263,653 $(33,777,623) § 3,898,477
2020 3,898,477 - 33,353,424 (33,097,314) 4,154,587
Workers' Compensation
Reserve Fund
2019 1,996,399 (58,216) - (439,520) 1,498,663
2020 1,498,663 (119,152) - (498,538) 880,973
Self-Insurance
Settlement Fund
2019 882,915 (721,995) 744,699 - 905,619

2020 905,619 (408,895) 106,821 - 603,545
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14.

Long-term Liabilities

The City reports the following amounts, on the Statement of Net Position, relating to the
government’s long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2020:

Governmental Activities:
Governmental Funds:

Accrued vacation and leave (Note 8)

Bonds, notes and loans payable

COPs and obligations under capital lease (Note 12)
Due to other governments (Note 4)

Employment Related Liabilities (Note 1)
Guarantees and other obligations

Net pension liability (Note 9)

OPEB liability (Note 9)

Unearned revenue

Total Governmental Funds

Internal Service Funds:

Accrued vacation and leave (Note 8)
Bonds, notes and loans payable

Net pension liability (Note 9)

OPEB liability (Note 9)

Liability for unpaid claims

Total Internal Service Funds

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Enterprise Funds:

Water

Sewer

Accrued vacation and leave (Note 8)

Bonds, notes and loans payable (Notes 10,11)
Net pension liability (Note 9)

OPEB liability (Note 9)

Accrued vacation and leave (Note 8)

Bonds, notes and loans payable (Notes 10,11)
COPs and obligations under capital lease (Note 12)
Due to other governments (Note 4)

Net pension liability (Note 9)

OPEB liability (Note 9)

Off Street Parking

Bonds, notes and loans payable (Notes 10,11)

Other Business-type Activities

Accrued vacation and leave (Note 8)
Net pension liability (Note 9)

OPEB liability (Note 9)

Guarantees and other obligations

Total Business-type Activities

Total

January 1, December 31,
2020 Additions Deletions 2020

N 48,557,468 17,271,796 $ (12,476,458) $ 53,352,806
521,294,553 61,872,193 (104,751,655) 478,415,091
63,358,268 793,785 (5,759,199) 58,392,854
4,805,000 - (340,000) 4,465,000
806,960 - (70,336) 736,624
7,727,874 - (446,598) 7,281,276
297,728,118 - (65,916,737) 231,811,381
144,821,921 9,557,914 (17,132,240) 137,247,595
6,793,721 - (141,536) 6,652,185
1,095,893,883 89,495,688 (207,034,759) 978,354,812
2,739,156 923,103 (771,422) 2,890,837
1,500,000 - (1,500,000) -
11,406,554 - (3,664,733) 7,741,821
9,449,616 - (702,142) 8,747,474
1,287,625 - (670,177) 617,448
26,382,951 923,103 (7,308,474) 19,997,580
1,122,276,334 90,418,791 (214,343,233) 998,352,392
3,349,407 1,334,553 (1,050,599) 3,633,361
33,926,184 7,450,643 (3,117,470) 38,259,357
16,707,511 - (4,861,682) 11,845,829
16,218,004 - (1,170,243) 15,047,761
2,377,515 1,252,932 (1,199,793) 2,430,654
520,991,836 116,923,031 (30,304,423) 607,610,444
31,833,276 - (2,021,852) 29,811,424
33,071 - (33,071) -
10,329,718 - (2,760,352) 7,569,366
9,506,320 12,919 - 9,519,239
127,372 - (127,372) -
66,091 38,871 (43,684) 61,278
1,001,085 - (271,373) 729,712
820,819 - (325,008) 495,811
279,300 33,550 - 312,850
647,567,509 127,046,499 (47,286,922) 727,327,086
$ 1,769,844,343 217,465,290 $  (261,630,155) $  1,725,679,478
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15. Compliance and Accountability
The following funds have fund balance deficits or net position deficits at December 31, 2020:

Special Revenue Funds:

Special Assessment 11,062,569
Community Development 1,188,938
City Facilities Operating 185,206

Capital Projects Funds:
Streets 8,587,656

Enterprise Funds:
Golf 495,875

Internal Service Funds:

Motor Equipment 3,067,171
Medical Self-Insurance 2,906,716
Self-Insurance Settlement 713,241
Engineering Bureau 9,986,260
Information Technology 2,115,778

The Special Revenue Funds that have deficit fund balances at year-end have incurred expenditures
that have not yet received the revenue under federal or state grant agreements or as a reimbursement
including some from other funds. The Special Assessment Fund is awaiting receipt of assessments
from property owners to retire the special assessment notes issued to cover the property owners
assessments including street cleaning and street lighting. The Community Development fund incurred
expenditures related to grants and has not yet been reimbursed. The City will review the charges for
services in the City Facilities Operating Fund. The Streets Fund will be reviewed throughout the year.

In 2018 GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
other than Pension was implemented This implementation for OPEB (other postemploymment
benefits) liabilites attributes to the deficits in Golf, Motor Equipment, Medical Self-Insurance,
Engineering Bureau and Information Technology. The Golf fund has a deficit net position balance at
year-end due primarily to the implementation of this GASB. Internal Service Funds that have deficit
net position balances at year-end have incurred expenses above charges for services. User charges
will be assessed to eliminate the deficits. The City is reviewing the charges for services in the Motor
Equipment Fund and will adjust rates if necessary. The Medical Self-Insurance Fund debt will
continue to be repaid through user charges. The City’s policy is to transfer funds from the pertinent
division’s operating budget for actual claim settlements to reimburse the Self-Insurance Settlement
Fund. The Engineering Bureau Division will continue to review applied overhead rates charged for
projects to decrease deficits going forward.
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16.

17.

Income Taxes

The City levies a tax at the rate of 2.50% on substantially all income earned within the City. In
addition, residents of the City are required to pay City income tax on income earned outside the City.
However, a credit is allowed for income taxes paid to other municipalities. Employers within the City
are required to withhold income tax on employee compensation and remit this tax to the City at least
quarterly. Corporations and other individual taxpayers are required to file a declaration annually and
pay their estimated tax quarterly.

On May 6, 2003, Akron voters increased the City’s income tax rate from 2% to 2.25% which took
effect January 1, 2004. However, the additional .25% increase is restricted exclusively for funding
the Akron Public Schools’ local share in obtaining State of Ohio grants for the construction and
renovation of community learning centers in Akron. Therefore, the additional .25% will not be
distributed according to City Charter into both operation and capital improvement funds, as described
below.

On November 7, 2017, Akron voters increased the City’s income tax rate from 2.25% to 2.50% which
took effect January 1, 2018. However, the additional .25% increase is designated exclusively for
funding public safety protection, including the capital and operating expenses of the Akron Police and
Fire Departments, and public service improvements, including roadway improvements and related
capital and operating expenses of the City of Akron. Therefore, the additional .25% will not be
distributed according to the City Charter into both operation and capital improvement funds, as
described below.

The proceeds of income taxes, after payment of the expenditures incurred from collection thereof, are
allocated by the City Charter as follows: 27% to capital expenditures and 73% to the General Fund.
The portion allocated to capital expenditures may be utilized for payment of debt service or capital
expenditures of any City fund.

Property Taxes

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real and public utility property located in the City.
The Property taxes collected are allocated to the various funds based upon voter authorization.

Real property taxes are levied each October on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1.
Assessed values are established by the County Fiscal Officer at 35% of appraised market value. By
law, a revaluation of all property based on current individual appraisals is required to be completed no
less than every six years. The last revaluation was completed in tax year 2017 for collection in 2018.
The next sexennial revaluation will be completed in 2020 for collection in 2021. In addition, the
County Fiscal Officer is required to adjust (but without individual appraisal of properties except in the
sexennial reappraisal) taxable real property values triennially to reflect true values.

Real estate and public utility taxes attach an enforceable lien on property as of December 31 in the
year levied. Payments are scheduled in two installments in mid-February and mid-July of the
succeeding year and are considered delinquent if unpaid as of December 31 of that year

The assessed value upon which the 2020 property tax collections was based aggregated
$2,846,659,680. The assessed value for 2021 (upon which the 2020 property tax collections will be
based) is approximately $3,168,889,560. Under the current allocation method, the City’s share was
1.05% (10.5 mills) of
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17.

18.

Property Taxes (Continued)

assessed value in 2020 for collection in 2021. The City’s Charter limits the maximum total tax rate
that could be levied without a vote of the electors to 1.05% (10.5 mills).

The Fiscal Officer collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in the County including the
City of Akron and periodically remits to the City its portion of the taxes collected. Current real
property tax collections for the year ended December 31, 2020, including delinquencies from prior
years, were 87.46% of the current year tax levy. On a full accrual basis, collectible delinquent
property taxes have been recorded as revenue, while the remainder of the tax receivable is deferred.

JEDD Revenues

In an effort to promote regional growth and economic development, the City has entered into
contracts with four surrounding townships and a bordering municipality to create Joint Economic
Development Districts (JEDDs). The City entered into separate contracts with Copley, Coventry, and
Springfield Townships to create JEDDs in 1994. Voters in each township approved the respective
JEDD contracts in the November 1994 election, which became effective January 1, 1995. In
accordance with state law, each of the Districts’ Board of Trustees levied a 2% income tax effective
January 1, 1995. In accordance with the City of Akron’s income tax increases, as of January 1, 2005,
Copley, Coventry and Springfield’s income tax rate increased to 2.25% and as of January 1, 2018
increased to 2.5%. The proceeds of that tax are allocated, in accordance with the contract, primarily
to the City. The City has utilized these JEDD revenues, in part, to construct water and sewer lines so
that the JEDDs have access to the City’s water and sewer system and to encourage and promote
economic development.

In 1998 the City entered into a JEDD contract with Bath Township (Bath) and the City of Fairlawn
(Fairlawn). This contract was approved by voters in November 1998 and became effective on
January 1, 1999. As in the other JEDDs, a 2% income tax has been levied by the District. In
accordance with the City of Akron’s income tax increases, as of January 1, 2006, Bath’s income tax
rate increased to 2.25% and as of January 1, 2018 increased to 2.5%. As stated in the contract, the net
JEDD revenues are allocated to the City and Fairlawn, with the City providing water and sewer
services.
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Pledged Revenues

Pursuant to GASB No. 48, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Sales and Pledges of Receivables
and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues, the City holds different types of pledged
revenue. Pledged revenues of the City are broken down into water system revenues, sewer system
revenues, JEDD revenues, non-tax revenues, income tax revenues, and CLC income tax revenues.

Water System Revenues

The City has pledged future water customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay
$132.2 million in water system revenue bonds and Ohio Water Development Authority loans issued at
various dates ranging from September 17, 2009 through December 10, 2020. Proceeds from the
bonds and loans provided financing for various water projects. The bonds and loans are payable
solely from water customer net revenues and have varying final maturity dates ranging from July 7,
2024 through January 1, 2052. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds and
loans as of December 31, 2020 is $49,727,625. Principal and interest paid for 2020 and total
customer net revenues were $3,782,197 and $6,856,534 respectively.

Amount Final Future
Issued of Issue Purpose of Issue Maturity Debt Service Debt Service
09/17/09 $ 22,100,000  Various Water Projects 03/01/34 $ 709,353 $ 9,938,422
12/18/15 8,300,000  Various Water Projects 03/01/26 935,040 5,620,112
06/28/12 1,092,305 Water Main Replacement 07/01/33 66,245 861,179
12/08/11 2,375,202 Water Wall 01/01/33 125,716 1,606,817
12/08/11 470,615 Stow Road Bolt Replemnt 07/01/32 33,064 396,771
06/27/13 2,913,053 High Service Pumps Install 07/01/34 177,438 2,484,126
06/27/13 761,969 Chlorine Dioxide Feed Syst. 07/01/34 44,007 616,099
09/26/13 306,056  Spillway Improvements 07/01/23 27,656 83,053
12/12/13 783,568 Johnston St. Pump Station 01/01/35 54,194 785,809
01/30/14 699,377  Standby Generator Imprvmts 07/01/24 76,961 307,844
02/27/14 2,648,531 Water Main Reloctn & Repr 01/01/35 161,277 2,338,514
02/27/14 10,161,593 Water Distribution Yard 07/01/35 738,034 11,074,858
06/25/15 850,896  N. Generator & Substation 01/01/37 50,249 820,901
09/24/15 1,596,553 Backwash Water Supply 07/01/36 93,529 1,496,472
10/29/15 441,878 Sedimentation Basin 1 & 2 01/01/37 23,544 388,474
04/27/17 759,321 Stow Rd Emerg. Connection 07/01/38 45,675 709,123
04/26/18 573,613 Spillway Improvements 01/01/29 56,528 508,857
06/28/18 209,269  Eastwood Pump Station Impr. 01/01/39 12,328 228,062
07/26/18 288,468 Lead Service Line Replacement 01/01/39 14,423 211,283
09/27/18 2,665,509 Middleton Road Water Main 07/01/39 156,583 2,929,258
01/31/19 2,437,495 Water Main Replacement Prog. 01/01/40 55,456 467,263
02/28/19 309,895 Druid Drive Wtr Main Extension 01/01/50 5,165 299,603
03/28/19 577,695 Brittain Road Reservoir Design 01/01/25 57,770 519,926
05/30/19 309,811 Asset Management Plan 07/01/24 61,962 222,644
06/27/19 333,663 Lead Service Line Replacement 07/01/40 - 4,444
10/31/19 6,898,614 Enhanced Raw Wtr Pre-Trtmt Fac.  07/01/40 - 3,987,081
01/30/20 350,993 Lead Service Line Replacement 07/01/41 - 4,675
06/25/20 316,271 Akron PWS Regionalization 01/01/51 - 4,213
07/30/20 506,345 Main Steel Transmission Study 07/01/26 - 6,745
10/29/20 248,434 Risk and Resilience Assessment 01/01/27 - 3,309
10/29/20 90,000 Lead Service Line Replacement 01/01/52 - 4,687
10/29/20 252,959  Advance UV Treatment Study 07/01/26 - 3,369
12/10/20 59,574,866 Advanced Metering Infrastructure 07/01/38 - 793,632

$ 132,204,817 § 3,782,197 $ 49,727,625
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19. Pledged Revenues (Continued)
Sewer System Revenues

The City has pledged future sewer customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses to repay
$904.8 million in Ohio Water Development Authority loans issued at various dates ranging from
November 19, 2009 through August 27, 2020. Proceeds from the loans provided financing for various
sewer projects. The loans are payable solely from sewer customer net revenues and have varying
maturity dates ranging from July 7, 2021 through January 1, 2067. The total principal and interest
remaining to be paid on the bonds as of December 31, 2020 is $852,988,908. Principal and interest
paid for 2020 and total customer net revenues were $37,322,103 and $28,938,363 respectively.

Amount Final Future
Issued of Issue Purpose of Issue Maturity Debt Service Debt Service
01/14/10 $ 989,338 Sand Run Sewer Recon 01/01/30 $ 66,428 $ 642,773
11/19/09 160,393 Mill Street Sewer Repair 07/01/30 10,762 109,692
12/10/09 86,741 WWTP Roof Replemnt 01/01/30 5,824 56,355
03/31/11 846,270 Lake Woods Pump Station 01/01/32 62,134 715,991
02/24/11 2,189,031 Massillon Road Sewer 01/01/32 161,946 1,863,168
02/24/11 414,210 2nd Street Pump Station 01/01/32 30,533 351,277
12/08/11 2,987,144 CSO Rack 8 Sewer Sep 07/01/32 176,884 2,168,848
12/08/11 2,375,202 Water Wall 01/01/33 125,716 1,606,817
12/08/11 903,132 Sanitary Sewer Recon 2011 01/01/32 58,059 681,740
10/27/11 23,943,236 WPC Step Feed Phl 07/01/33 1,443,020 19,195,453
10/27/11 1,243,132 CSO Rack 25 Separation 01/01/33 80,177 1,024,690
10/27/11 979,845 Northside Interceptor Rehab 07/01/32 63,240 775,361
03/28/13 4,861,683 Little Cuyahoga Int Rplcmnt 07/01/34 328,877 4,604,274
05/30/13 2,593,857 Main Outfall Sewer Rehab 07/01/33 141,288 1,879,766
08/29/13 6,174,836 Mud Run Trunk Swr Lining 01/01/35 404,581 6,013,151
01/30/14 1,881,680 Main Outfall Sewer 07/01/34 101,292 1,418,086
04/24/14 3,419,313 Retention Tank #2 Rehab. 01/01/36 251,069 3,718,309
04/24/14 1,500,016 Kingswood-Rocky Hollow Swr 07/01/34 103,003 1,442,036
06/26/14 11,029,390 Rack 15 Storage Basin 01/01/36 636,160 10,120,294
06/26/14 17,900,171 Mud Run Pump Station Impr. 07/01/36 158,465 15,232,749
08/28/14 6,827,976 OCIT Lining Protection of LCI 07/01/35 430,455 6,456,827
02/26/15 5,070,277 Mud Run Dist. Cap. Impr. 01/01/36 68,277 3,931,433
02/26/15 18,319,051 Rack 14 CSO Storage Basin 01/01/38 1,100,517 18,740,896
04/30/15 25,387,222 CSO Program Mgmt 2013 07/01/21 5,396,367 5,414,888
05/28/15 1,155,041 OCIT Otto St Pump Station 01/01/36 58,474 906,348
05/28/15 6,564,391 Sanitary Sewer Reconstruction 01/01/36 521,012 6,351,687
09/24/15 4,433,515 Sanitary Sewer Reconstruction 01/01/36 189,667 4,366,852
02/25/16 1,431,749 Sanitary Sewer Reconstruction 01/01/36 49,042 1,057,146
05/28/15 31,617,614 Rack 12 CSO Storage Basin 01/01/38 1,893,695 30,915,673
07/30/15 5,502,246 Sanitary Sewer Rec 2014 Ph 2 01/01/36 335,147 5,338,980
08/27/15 5,844,021 Sanitary Sewer Rec 2014 Ph 1-A 01/01/37 389,490 6,053,473
10/29/15 3,273,284 Dan Sewer Separation 01/01/37 173,898 2,953,872
10/29/15 254,744,002 Ohio Canal Interceptor Tunnel 07/01/49 11,771,341 325,370,578

12/10/15 5,653,479  Mud Run District I-I Rehab 01/01/37 - 3,307,131
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19. Pledged Revenues (Continued)

Sewer System Revenues (Continued)

Issued

12/10/15
12/10/15
01/28/16
02/25/16
03/31/16
06/30/16
06/30/16
06/30/16
08/25/16
08/25/16
08/25/16
08/25/16
09/29/16
05/30/19
04/27/17
05/25/17
06/29/17
06/29/17
02/22/18
09/27/18
12/06/18
12/06/18
01/31/19
01/31/19
01/31/19
05/30/19
05/30/19
07/25/19
12/12/19
12/12/19
12/12/19
02/27/20
03/26/20
08/27/20
08/27/20

Amount
of Issue

$ 4,500,378
1,374,691
1,299,344
4,823,288

26,047,415
1,238,790
22,158,491
14,692,039
2,147,990
1,458,160
47,518,521
7,409,403
5,147,458
5,791,638
18,071,206
21,922,129
1,343,546
2,919,239
312,685
4,173,574
5,253,792
2,378,678
36,235,266
1,537,468
9,460,635
2,000,000
86,851,394
1,150,527
8,596,490
73,305,117
917,745
1,680,494
2,584,389
5,468,825
10,683,059

$ 904,756,354

Purpose of Issue

Mud Run District Repairs

Shullo & Weathervane Pump
Seiberling Street Sewer

Sewer Maintenance Relocation
Main Outfall Relief Sewer

White Pond Dr Pump Station
Middlebury Separation

Merriman Separation - Rack 36
Carpenter Sewer Separation
Tallmadge Ave Sanitary Sewer
WREF Step Feed Phase 2

Old Main Sewer Separation
Sanitary Sewer Recon 2016
Sanitary Sewer Recon 2016

CSO Program Management
Howard Storage Basin

Northside Interceptor Conveyance
Aqueduct St Green Impr.
Hawkins, Hackberry, Grand Park Study
Sanitary Sewer Recon. 2017
Sevilla Trunk Sewer Reconstruction
Kelly Conveyance Rack 3

Hazel Storage Basin CSO
Chittenden Green Project

Uhler Conveyance

Sanitary Sewer Rec 2014 Ph 1-B
WRF BioCEPT

Hampton Ridge Sanitary Sewer
Duane Green (CSO Rack 3)

WRF Headworks Improvements
Mayfield Ave Sewer Impr. Study
Sanitary Sewer Reconstruction
Cuyahoga St. Storage Facility Impr.
Sanitary Sewer Reconstruction
Sewer Separation and Conveyance
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Final
Maturity

01/01/37
07/01/36
01/01/26
01/01/47
01/01/48
01/01/47
07/01/48
07/01/48
07/01/37
07/01/47
07/01/49
07/01/48
01/01/48
01/01/48
07/01/24
07/01/63
01/01/25
01/01/48
07/01/23
07/01/65
07/01/64
07/01/65
07/01/66
01/01/66
07/01/65
01/01/37
01/01/67
07/01/66
07/01/66
01/01/67
01/01/51
07/01/66
07/01/51
07/01/66
01/01/27

Debt Service

Future
Debt Service

$ 204,499 $ 4,272,753
82,473 1,357,322
72,167 469,822

206,997 5,723,492
850,861 24,457,246
31,631 1,262,978
910,613 25,155,162
603,572 16,548,224
125,442 1,858,524
56,955 1,611,692
1,610,292 43,726,948
289,849 8,140,839
301,835 4,946,810
152,746 7,057,743
3,891,410 14,689,869
517,005 23,949,608
141,006 993,165
139,081 3,304,168
62,537 187,611
- 4,148,805
186,105 3,451,731
- 1,171,834

- 52,413,923

- 2,401,744

- 12,192,545
97,587 1,739,608
- 56,523,751

- 1,409,529

- 8,230,637

- 19,474,010

- 853,105

- 1,244,788

- 389,642

- 1,582,285

- 1,260,381

$ 37,322,103 § 852,988,908




Pledged Revenues (Continued)
JEDD Revenues

The City has pledged future JEDD revenues to repay JEDD revenue refunding bonds originally issued
in 2011 for $27.2 million. Proceeds from the original bonds issued provided financing for various
water and sewer projects. The bonds are payable solely from JEDD revenues and have a final
maturity date of December 1, 2022. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds
as of December 31, 2020 is $3,855,700. Principal and interest paid for 2020 and total JEDD revenues
were $4,268,363 and $15,785,527 respectively.

Amount Final Future
Issued of Issue Purpose of Issue Maturity Debt Service Debt Service

12/21/11 $ 27,165,000 Various Water/Sewer Projects 12/01/22 ' $ 4,268,363 $ 3,855,700

Non-Tax Revenues

The City has pledged future non-tax revenues, to repay $46.5 million in non-tax revenue bonds issued
November 25, 2014 through July 1, 2020. In December of 2011, bonds were issued to refund the
bonds originally issued in 1997. The 2014 issue refunded the issue from 2008. The 2015 issue
refunded the issue from 2006. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for various economic
development and renovation projects. The bonds are payable from non-tax revenue including shared
revenue, charges for services, licenses, fees, and fines, and miscellaneous revenue. The maturity dates
range from July 1, 2021 through December 1, 2034. The total principal and interest remaining to be
paid on the bonds as of December 31, 2020 is $37,639,308. Principal and interest paid for 2020 and
total non-tax revenues were $4,203,439 and $154,994,012 respectively.

Amount Final Future
Issued of Issue Purpose of Issue Maturity Debt Service Debt Service

11/25/14 $ 28,230,000 Various Econ Dev. Proj.  12/01/34 $ 2,513,043 $ 22,382,718
11/12/15 13,250,000 Various Econ. Dev. Proj. 12/01/26 1,690,396 10,164,090
07/01/20 5,000,000 Various Econ. Dev. Pro;j. 07/01/21 - 5,092,500

$ 46,480,000 $ 4,203,439 $ 37,639,308
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Pledged Revenues (Continued)

Income Tax Revenues

The City has pledged future income tax revenues to repay $161.8 million in income tax revenue bonds
and bond anticipation notes issued at various dates ranging from August 8, 2013 through

December 16, 2020. The 2016 issue partially refunded the 2012 issue. The 2020 issue refunded
issues from 2011 and 2012 as well as 2020 debt service payments for series 2014, 2015, 2016, and
2019. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for various liabilities, equipment, facilities, and
improvements. The bonds are payable solely from income tax revenues and have varying maturity
dates ranging from December 1, 2021 through December 1, 2048. The total principal and interest
remaining to be paid on the bonds as of December 31, 2020 is $180,217,428. Principal and interest
paid for 2020 and total income tax revenues were $6,714,004 and $152,896,736 respectively.

Amount Final Future
Issued of Issue Purpose of Issue Maturity Debt Service Debt Service
08/08/13 $ 2,493,570  OAQDA Series A 12/01/21 $ 328,904 $ 328,901
08/08/13 2,355,914  OAQDA Series B 12/01/28 98,948 2,851,174
08/07/14 838,000 OAQDA Series A 12/01/21 124,376 124,376
11/25/14 32,340,000  Var Purp IT Rev Bonds 12/01/34 1,819,000 33,884,000
06/24/15 5,500,000  Var Purp IT Rev Bonds 06/01/35 351,198 5,069,035
11/12/15 25,370,000  Var Purp IT Rev Bonds 12/01/28 2,625,200 16,763,250
12/06/16 14,655,000  Var Purp IT Rev Bonds 12/01/28 263,238 14,395,850
11/14/18 2,000,000  Var Purp IT Rev Bonds 12/01/48 127,112 3,555,027
12/09/19 51,780,000  Var Purp IT Rev Bonds 12/01/41 976,028 75,826,950
11/24/20 12,030,000  Var Purp IT Rev Bonds* 12/01/32 - 14,981,768
12/16/20 12,400,000  Var Purp IT Rev Note 12/15/21 - 12,437,097

$ 161,762,484 $ 6,714,004 $ 180,217,428

CLC Income Tax Revenues

The City’s income tax rate includes .25% Community Learning Center (CLC) income tax revenue.
This is designated exclusively for funding the Akron Public Schools’ local share in obtaining State of
Ohio grants for the construction and renovation of community learning centers (CLC) in Akron. The
City has issued bonds totaling $295 million with final maturities in 2026 and 2033. The Akron Public
Schools’ annual contribution towards this debt is $3,000,000. The City has committed each year,
from the supplemental income tax revenue, amounts sufficient to cover the City’s portion of the
principal and interest requirements. Total principal and interest remaining on bonds are
$298,312,498. For 2020 total principal and interest paid by the City was $21,770,806 and total
income tax revenues were $15,977,079.

Amount of Final Future Debt
Issued Issue Purpose of Issue Maturity Debt Service* Service
07/28/10 $ 15,060,000 Community Learning Centers ~ 12/01/26 $ 884,624 $ 18,156,185
06/27/12 155,360,000 Community Learning Centers ~ 12/01/33 12,864,500 166,827,250
05/07/14 50,000,000 Community Learning Centers ~ 12/01/33 2,747,119 19,673,713
12/08/16 27,000,000 Community Learning Centers ~ 12/01/33 2,301,650 29,931,950
12/20/17 36,615,000 Community Learning Centers ~ 12/01/33 1,633,163 49,169,400
08/04/19 11,045,000 Community Learning Centers ~ 12/01/33 1,339,750 14,554,000

$ 295,080,000 $ 21,770,806 $ 298,312,498

*Net of $3,000,000 annual contribution from Akron City School District.
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20.

Pollution Remediation

GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Cost
addresses reporting standards for pollution remediation obligations. The City is aware of four sites
that meet the requirements for disclosure. The first site is a vacant, undeveloped piece of land known
as the Middlebury Property, which includes Middlebury East. The City of Akron legally obligated
itself by voluntarily commencing cleanup activities and obtained a $750,000 grant to assist in the
remediation clean-up. The projected cost to remediate Middlebury East was estimated at
approximately $1,200,000. A No Further Action (NFA) letter was submitted to the Ohio
Environmental Protection Agency (OEPA) in 2014. Ohio EPA issued a Covenant Not To Sue on July
14, 2015. However, the cost of the abandonment of all the wells, piping, and vaults associated with
the remediation will be completed in 2023,with an estimated cost of $234,000. There are no expenses
expected for 2021. This amount is included in the Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2020.

The second site is known as the Westside Depot property where the City of Akron was compelled to
take remediation action. This site used to house an underground storage tank (UST) system. During
an upgrade to this system in 1991, there was evidence of residual petroleum hydrocarbons under the
tank and the associated dispensing equipment. This site also had been the location of a previous UST
system that may have consisted of a diesel tank, a gasoline tank, and a kerosene tank. The City
conducted free product recovery in 2016 from this site. The Ohio Bureau of Underground Storage
Tank Regulation (BUSTR) approved the City's Tier II evaluation in November 2016. The City
received the No Further Action status on February 11, 2021. The amount estimated for 2021 is
$23,500 with no further expenses in 2022 and beyond. These amounts are recorded as a liability in
the Proprietary Statement of Net Position, Airport Fund, as of December 31, 2020.

The third site for remediation work is known as the former Bridgestone property located at the
southeast corner of Firestone Parkway and South Main Street. The City took ownership of the
property in 2013 and with it transferred an Environmental Agreement regarding obligations for past
completed remediation work. The City is obligated to operate and maintain the engineering control
that is located in the basement floor in Plant N. 1. The Ohio EPA issued a Covenant Not to Sue on
June 12, 2020. The City will continue to maintain financial assurance in the amount of $4,000 for
operation and maintenance activities in 2021. No expenses are expected in 2022 and beyond. This
amount 1s included in the Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2020.

The fourth site is known as the Rack 27/29 Combined Sewer Overflows (CSO) Project -Rule 13. A
federal Consent Decree between the City, the United States, and Ohio requires the City to implement
specific control measures addressing CSO's. One set of measures includes upsizing the underflow
drains to the interceptor sewer at CSO Rack 27 and CSO Rack 29 locations. In order to implement
this project, the City needed to perform construction activities within and through a former solid
waste landfill. Per Ohio's Rule 13, known as the Ohio Administrative Code 3745-27-13, the City
needed authorization from the Ohio EPA. Rule 13 authorization was issued by the Ohio EPA on
October, 18, 2018. This authorization imposed obligations on the City with regard to the construction
activities within the former landfill area. The amount estimated to complete Rule 13 pollution
remediation for 2021 is $100,000. There are no expected costs for 2022 and beyond. This amount is
included as a liability in the Proprietary Net Position, Sewer Fund, as of December 31, 2020.
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21.

Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has deferred
charges on the issuance of bonds reported in the Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Statements
of Net Position. A deferred charge results from the difference in the carrying value of the debt and its
par amount. This amount is deferred and amortized over the life of the debt. Deferred outflows related
to pensions and OPEB result from changes in net pension liability and the net OPEB liability not
recognized as a component of current year pension and OPEB expense. This amount is deferred and
amortized over various periods as instructed by the pension plan administrators.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has nonexchange revenue
transactions and loans where a receivable has been recorded (such as when property taxes were
levied), but the resources cannot be used until a future period. When the City refinances certain debt
obligations, the portion of the gain that is not recognized in the current period has been deferred.
These items have been reported as deferred inflows on the Government-wide Statement of Net
Position. In addition, deferred inflows related to pensions and OPEB are reported in the
Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Statements of Net Position. Deferred inflows related to
pensions and OPEB result from changes in net pension liability and net OPEB liability not recognized
as a component of current year pension and OPEB expense. This amount is deferred and amortized
over various periods as instructed by the pension plan administrators.

On the Statement of Net Position Proprietary Funds, the City has recorded certain deferred items that
will not be expensed in the current period. Internal service fund deferred outflows from pension and
OPEB expense at December 31, 2020 were $2,369,074 are included in governmental activities:

Business Type Activities

Deferred Loss on Early Retirement $

OPEB Expense
Pension Expense

Other Total
Governmental Enterprise Enterprise
Activities Water Sewer Funds Funds
125,770 $ - $ - $ - $ -
29,483,468 1,736,420 1,103,560 78,662 2,918,642
39,195,839 1,994,410 1,273,063 122,771 3,390,244
$ 68,805,077 $ 3,730,830 $ 2,376,623 $ 201,433 $ 6,308,886

A summary of the deferred inflows of resources reported in the Government-wide and Proprietary
Fund Statement of Position follows. Internal service fund deferred inflows related to pensions and
OPEB at December 31, 2020 were $3,823,412, and are included in governmental activities.

Deferred Gain
Nonexchange revenues
OPEB

Pension

Pollution

Loans

Business Type Activities

Off Other Total
Governmental Street Enterprise Enterprise

Activitics Water Sewer Parking Funds Funds
20,324,861 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
97,505,051 236,506 845,958 3,032 - 1,085,496
44,730,751 3,720,900 2,342,793 - 76,408 6,140,101
40,051,490 2,713,119 1,735,850 - 166,639 4,615,608
3,247,212 - - - - -
9,046,639 - - - - -
214,906,004 $ 6,670,525 $ 4,924,601 $ 3,032 $ 243,047 $ 11,841,205
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21. Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources (Continued)

On the modified accrual basis of accounting, the City has recorded certain receivables where the
related revenue is unavailable. Unavailable revenues have been reported as deferred inflows of
resources on the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet for the following:

Governmental Funds

Community Income Tax Special Other Total
General Learning Capital Assessment Governmental Governmental

Fund Centers Improvement Fund Streets Funds Funds
Grants $ - $ - $ - $ 136,497 $ - S 3,066,626 $ 3,203,123
Income Taxes 7,673,687 939,670 2,838,213 - - 941,245 12,392,815
Loans - - - - - 9,046,639 9,046,639
Property Taxes 24,716,623 - - 29,461,628 - 28,756,639 82,934,890
Shared Revenue 2,980,716 39,000,000 - - - 2,392,206 44,372,922
$ 35,371,026 $ 39,939,670 $ 2,838,213 $ 29,598,125 $ - $ 44,203,355 $ 151,950,389

Deferred inflows described in the table above also include shared revenues of $39,000,000 and
property taxes of $54,257,858 where the resources cannot be used until a future period.

22. Transfers and Advances

For the year ended December 31, 2020 transfers and advances presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) are listed in the following tables. Interfund transfers are
made to cover expenditures/expenses in various funds or to fulfill grant match requirements.

Transfers In

Other Other Internal Off- Street
Transfers Governmental ~ Enterprise Service Parking
Out Funds Funds Funds Total

Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ 11,415,755 $ 7,865,755 $ 100,000 $ 1,850,000 $ 1,600,000 $ 11,415,755
$ 11415755 $ 7,865,755 $ 100,000 $ 1,850,000 $ 1,600,000 $ 11,415,755

The table below presents the amounts the City has advanced to various funds during 2020.

Advanced To
Other Other
Advanced Governmental Enterprise
From Funds Funds Total
Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ 1,705,000 $ 445,000 $ 1,260,000 $ 1,705,000
Income Tax Capital Improvement 250,000 250,000 - 250,000
$ 1,955,000 $ 695,000 $ 1,260,000 $ 1,955,000
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23.

24.

Contingencies
€)) Litigation

The City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits pertaining to matters that are incidental to
performing routine governmental functions. During 2019, an agreement was reached in an
ongoing case, the plaintiff and City agreed to a settlement in the amount of $1,150,000 to be
paid over a three year period. As of December 31, 2020 the City has paid $575,000 in 2019,
$287,500 in 2020, and recorded the remaining balance of $287,500 as an accrued liability.
Additionally, the City is a party to a labor arbitration proceeding with the Civil Service
Personnel Association (CSPA), Inc., a labor union representing a group of employees
regarding grievances over the City's implementation of Temporary Emergency Leave during
the COVID-19 pandemic. The parties are awaiting the decision of the arbitrator. The
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome cannot be determined at this time. The City's
management is of the opinion that ultimate settlement of all outstanding litigation and claims
will not result in a material adverse effect on the City’s financial position.

) Federal and State Grants

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies or their designees. Such audits could lead to a request for
reimbursement to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the
grants. The City believes that such disallowances, if any, would not have a material adverse
effect on the City’s financial position.

3) Water Agreement

The City of Akron acquired a water system, located in Hudson, from the County of Summit in
December of 2006 for $6,454,845. In exchange for the water system, the County received the
benefit of a future credit to be applied towards the purchase of Akron owned sewer
infrastructure. As of December 31, 2020, the County has not purchased any sewer
infrastructure and the full balance of the credit is remaining.

Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs

On November 9, 1998, the City entered into an agreement to transfer control and operating
responsibility of its Hardy Road Landfill (Landfill) to Akron Regional Landfill, Inc. (ARLI), a
subsidiary of Waste Management of Ohio, Inc. Under the twenty-five year agreement, ARLI assumed
the full responsibility for all future costs for operation, permitting, groundwater monitoring, closure,
and post-closure costs of the Landfill, which are currently expected to approximate $6,400,000 through
2034. There are estimated costs after agreement with ARLI terminates; therefore, the City has
recorded a liability for $3,013,212 for future estimated post-closure care costs.

Pursuant to a ruling by the Ohio EPA, the Landfill officially closed on June 30, 2002. The City has
begun diverting its waste to Waste Management’s American Landfill located in Stark County. As part
of a 1998 agreement, the City agreed to use landfill facilities controlled by Akron Regional Landfill,
Inc., (a subsidiary of Waste Management) for disposal of ninety percent of the refuse collected by the
City’s sanitation division.

On October 4, 2004, the City entered into an Agreement with the Summit/Akron Solid Waste

Management Authority (Authority) implementing a $1.20 per ton increase in the waste management

generation fee by the Authority to help fund the closure and post-closure operations of the Landfill.
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25.

26.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The Akron/Summit Convention and Visitors’ Bureau (Convention Center) was constructed by the
City of Akron along with the County of Summit and the University of Akron, with the City paying
approximately 26% of the construction costs. The Convention Center contains meeting rooms, an
exhibit hall, and a large ballroom-banquet facility to accommodate a wide range of seminars, trade
shows, and major community events.

Joint Ventures

The Copley-Akron Joint Economic Development District (“Copley-Akron JEDD”) was created by
contract between the City and Copley Township under the provisions of Ohio Revised Code sections
715.70 and 715.71. The Copley-Akron JEDD is governed by a six member Board of Directors of
which three members are from the City (Mayor and two members of Council appointed by the Mayor
and approved by Council) and three members are from the Coply Township (all three Copley
Township Trustees). The Copley-Akron JEDD Boards, pursuant to the contract, levies an income tax
at the same rate as the City of Akron’s income tax. The proceeds of that tax are allocated, in
accordance with the contract, primarily to the City. Because it is legally separate from the City the
Coply-Akron JEDD is not reported as part of the primary government. A summary of the financial
information is as follows:

Statement of Receipts, Disbursements and Change in Fund Balance

(Cash Basis)
Income Tax Receipts $ 6,680,041
Contractual Disbursements (728,312)
5,951,729

Disbursements to Akron (5,951,729)
Change in Fund Cash Balance -

Fund Cash Balance, January 1, 2020 -

Fund Cash Balance, December 31, 2020 $ -
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26.

Joint Ventures (Continued)

The Coventry-Akron Joint Economic Development District (“Coventry-Akron JEDD”) was created by
contract between the City and Coventry Township under the provisions of Ohio Revised Code
sections 715.70 and 715.71. The Coventry-Akron JEDD is governed by a six member Board of
Directors of which three members are from the City (Mayor and two members of Council appointed
by the Mayor and approved by Council) and three members are from the Coventry Township (all
three Coventry Township Trustees). The Coventry-Akron JEDD Board, pursuant to the contract,
levies an income tax at the same rate as the City of Akron’s income tax. The proceeds of that tax are
allocated, in accordance with the contract, primarily to the City. Because it is legally separate from
the City the Coventry-Akron JEDD is not reported as part of the primary government. A summary of
the financial information is as follows:

Statement of Receipts, Disbursements and Change in Fund Balance

(Cash Basis)
Income Tax Receipts $ 3,435,066
Contractual Disbursements (411,556)
3,023,510
Disbursements to Akron (3,023,510)

Change in Fund Cash Balance -

Fund Cash Balance, January 1, 2020 -

Fund Cash Balance, December 31, 2020 $ -

The Springfield-Akron Joint Economic Development District (“Springfield-Akron JEDD”’) was
created by contract between the City and Springfield Township under the provisions of Ohio Revised
Code sections 715.70 and 715.71. The Springfield-Akron JEDD is governed by a six member Board
of Directors of which three members are from the City (Mayor and two members of Council
appointed by the Mayor and approved by Council) and three members are from the Springfield
Township (all three Springfield Township Trustees). The Springfield-Akron JEDD Board, pursuant
to the contract, levies an income tax at the same rate as the City of Akron’s income tax. The proceeds
of that tax are allocated, in accordance with the contract, primarily to the City. Because it is legally
separate from the City the Springfield-Akron JEDD is not reported as part of the primary government.
A summary of the financial information is as follows:

Statement of Receipts, Disbursements and Change in Fund Balance

(Cash Basis)
Income Tax Receipts $ 3,308,496
Contractual Disbursements (352,215)
2,956,281
Disbursements to Akron (2,956,281)

Change in Fund Cash Balance -

Fund Cash Balance, January 1, 2020 -

Fund Cash Balance, December 31, 2020 $ -
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27.

Joint Ventures (Continued)

The Bath-Akron-Fairlawn Joint Economic Development District (“Bath-Akron-Fairlawn JEDD”) was
created by contract between the City of Akron (City), City of Fairlawn and Bath Township under the
provisions of Ohio Revised Code sections 715.70 and 715.71. The Bath-Akron-Fairlawn JEDD is
governed by a nine member Board of Directors of which three members are from the City (Mayor and
two members of Council appointed by the Mayor and approved by Council), three members are from
the City of Fairlawn (Mayor and approved by Council) and three members are from the Bath
Township (all three Bath Township Trustees). The Bath-Akron-Fairlawn JEDD Boards, pursuant to
the contract, levies an income tax at the same rate as the City of Akron’s income tax. The proceeds of
that tax are allocated, in accordance with the contract, primarily to the City. Because it is legally
separate from the City the Bath-Akron-Fairlawn JEDD is not reported as part of the primary
government. A summary of the financial information is as follows:

Statement of Receipts, Disbursements and Change in Fund Balance

(Cash Basis)
Income Tax Receipts $ 8,257,030
Contractual Disbursements (4,601,917)
3,655,113
Disbursements to Akron (3,655,113)

Change in Fund Cash Balance -

Fund Cash Balance, January 1, 2020 -

Fund Cash Balance, December 31, 2020 $ -

Related Organization

The City of Akron, in conjunction with Summit County, University of Akron, Medina County, and
Greater Akron Chamber of Commerce, agreed to form the Summit Medina Business Alliance
(SMBA). SMBA is a not-for-profit corporation which supports economic development of the region.
The organization entered into an agreement with the Kent Regional Business Alliance to carry out
activities in cooperation with the Ohio Development Services Agency and the Small Business
Administration. The Mayor of the City of Akron appoints three of the five voting members of the
board of trustees of the Summit Medina Business Alliance. The SMBA does not pose a financial
burden on the City of Akron since it receives revenues from the City and other governments in the
area. During 2020, the City paid SMBA $37,500 for operating expenses.
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28. Fund Balance

Fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based
primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources in the government funds. The constraints placed on fund balance for the major
governmental funds and all other governmental funds are presented below:

Fund balances:
Restricted:
Asset management
Building, housing and
economic incentive
Construction and rennovation of
CLCs
Community betterment and outreach
Debt service reserves
General governance
Information technology
Life enrichment
Other Purposes
Police and fire equipment
Protection and enforcement
Transportation/mobility
Total restricted

Committed:
Building, housing and
economic incentive
Community betterment and outreach
Information technology
Life enrichment
Non-financial assets held for resale
Protection and enforcement
Transportation/mobility

Total committed

Assigned:
Asset management
Building, housing and
economic incentive
Community betterment and outreach
General governance
Life enrichment
Municipal justice
Protection and enforcement
Transportation/mobility
Waste management
Wellness and prevention
Total assigned

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Income

Community Tax Special Other Total
General Learning Capital Assessment Streets Governmental Governmental

Fund Centers Improvement Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ - $ - $ - $ - 8 -8 1,931,566 $ 1,931,566
- - 208,117 - - 3,316,055 3,524,172
- 36,302,660 - - - 36,302,660
- - 186,019 - - 19,722,148 19,908,167
- - - - - 602,277 602,277
- - 518,667 518,667
- - - 1,178,006 1,178,006
- - 219,885 - - - 219,885
127,394 127,394
- - 5,130,691 - - - 5,130,691
- - - - - 9,148,066 9,148,066
- - - - - 6,872,662 6,872,662
- 36,302,660 6,263,379 - - 42,898,174 85,464,213
- - - - - 6,412,859 6,412,859
- - - - - 566,380 566,380
- - - - - 168,249 168,249
234,379 234,379
- - - - - 5,028,854 5,028,854
507,535 - - - - - 507,535
- - - - - 554,667 554,667
507,535 - - - - 12,965,388 13,472,923
320,664 - - - - - 320,664
183,483 - - - - - 183,483
39,343 - - - - - 39,343
223,623 - - - - - 223,623
275,063 - - - - - 275,063
48,668 - - - - - 48,668
466,367 - - - - - 466,367
5,731 - - - - - 5,731
1,273,763 - - - - - 1,273,763
3,035 - - - - - 3,035
2,839,740 - - - - - 2,839,740
28,220,027 - - (11,062,569) (8,587,656) (1,374,144) 7,195,658
$ 31,567,302 $ 36,302,660 $ 6,263,379 $ (11,062,569) $  (8,587,656) $ 54,489,418 $ 108,972,534
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30.

Tax Abatements

Community Reinvestment Areas (CRAs) were established under Ohio Revised Code Section
3735.66 and administered through ORC Sections 3735.66 to 3735.70. The ORC Sections prescribe
that in return for building or remodeling properties within the CRA boundaries, applicants can apply
for an exemption of real property taxes at 100% of the increased market value of the property.

The City established a CRA in 2010 relating to Envision Apartments. For the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2020, the City had only 1 active CRA for which it abated property taxes totaling
$12,224.

During 2017, the City of Akron launched the residential tax abatement program, which designates
the entire City as a CRA. Through the program residential applicants can apply for an exemption of
real property taxes at 100% of the added property value on any new construction or improvements
for a period of 15 years. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020, there were 60 active
residential agreements with residential taxes abated of $189,045.

Restatement of Net Position
Effective January 1, 2020, the City recorded adjustments to begining balances to correct an

understatement of construction in progress in the Sewer fund. The impact of this adjustment had the
following effect:

Balance as of Restatement December 31, 2019
December 31, 2019 as restated

Statement of Net Position - Business-Type Activities

Net Position $ 425,226,744 § 72,031,196 § 497,257,940
Statement of Activities - Business-Type Activities

Change in Net Position $ (11,887,252) § 72,031,196 § 60,143,944
Proprietary Funds - Sewer

Net Position $ 264,687,245 § 72,031,196 § 336,718,441

31.

Change in Net Position

$ (24,272,658) § 72,031,196

&~

47,758,538

Future Leasing Rights, Assigned Agreements and Collaterialized Borrowing

During 2017, the City entered into an agreement with EIP Communications I, LLC (EIP), under which
the City relinquishes to EIP its future interest in the Assigned Agreements to EIP for the next 50 years.
The City received from EIP a lump-sum payment of $11,104,987. The estimated present value of the
cell tower rent payments sold assuming a 2.2% interest rate and 4% rent escalation at the time of sale
was $4,028,194.
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32,

Future Leasing Rights, Assigned Agreements and Collaterialized Borrowing (Continued)

The City reports $6,652,185 on the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds as unearned revenue that
will be recognized over 50 years. The City also reports $2,604,973 on the Statement of Net Position as
liabilities due in more than one year as of December 31, 2020. The following is a summary of the
City's future debt service requirements as of December 31, 2020:

Fiscal Year Ending
December 31 Principal
2021 $ 474,407
2022 474,407
2023 474,407
2024 474,407
2025 474,407
2026-2028 232,938

3 2604973

Subsequent Events

The United States, the State of Ohio and the City declared a state of emergency in March 2020 due to
the global Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic. As a result of the pandemic the City, in
conformity with the United States and the State of Ohio, extended the income tax filing deadline to
May 17, 2021.

On January 25, 2021, City Council passed ordinance 12-2021 authorizing the City to enter into
agreements with the Water Pollution Control Loan Fund (WPCLF) with the Ohio Environmental
Protection Agency and the Ohio Water Development Authority for construction of the Sanitary Sewer
Reconconstruction 2019 Large Diameter Lining Project totaling $14,441,230.

On March 8, 2021, City Council passed ordinance 59-2021 authorizing the City to enter into
agreements with the Water Supply Revolving Loan Account (WSRLA) with the Ohio Environmental
Protection Agency and the Ohio Water Development Authority for planning, design and/or
construction of sixWater Supply Bureau projects totaling $11,700,000.

On March 11, 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) was signed into law. The City
anticipates is will receive approximately $153 million in funding from the ARPA based upon formulas
provided by the U.S. Treasury. Funds are to be distributed in two rounds. The City received the first
round of $72,668,813 on May 19, 2021. The second will be distributed in May 2022. The City is
awaiting formal guidelines from the U.S. Treasury before determinining how the funds will be used.
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Taxes, Assessments and JEDD
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services
License and Fees
Miscellaneous Revenues

Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures and other uses
Expenditures:
Civil Service:
Wages/benefits
Other

Finance:
Wages/benefits
Other

Law:
Wages/benefits
Other

Legislative:
Wages/benefits
Other

Municipal Court - Clerk:
Wages/benefits
Other

City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -

General Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 119,977,993 $ 119,212,636 $ 114,113,303
9,829,129 9,739,619 10,495,610
32,074,710 32,074,710 33,812,209
2,643,290 2,643,290 2,815,255
6,653,220 6,653,220 15,674,575
171,178,342 170,323,475 176,910,952
1,477,346 1,477,346 1,477,346
1,477,346 1,477,346 1,477,346
172,655,688 171,800,821 178,388,298
1,092,550 1,092,550 1,003,919
228,927 228,927 215,603
1,321,477 1,321,477 1,219,522
2,528,350 2,528,350 2,479,872
3,688,006 6,523,006 6,072,241
6,216,356 9,051,356 8,552,113
3,325,750 3,325,750 3,069,490
1,370,323 1,630,323 1,425,824
4,696,073 4,956,073 4,495,314
1,156,870 1,162,870 1,156,583
279,986 279,987 189,246
1,436,856 1,442,857 1,345,829
4,807,180 4,842,180 4,804,200
278,691 473,691 338,368
5,085,871 5,315,871 5,142,568
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City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
General Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(continued)

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Municipal Court - Judges:

Wages/benefits $ 4,807,180 $ 4,842,180 $ 4,804,200

Other 278,691 473,691 338,368
5,085,871 5,315,871 5,142,568
Office of the Mayor:

Wages/benefits 1,661,010 1,661,010 1,655,885

Other 281,622 281,622 243,940
1,942,632 1,942,632 1,899,825
Planning:

Wages/benefits 39,270 39,270 37,639

Other 1,398 1,398 957
40,668 40,668 38,596
Public Health:

Wages/benefits 22,660 172,660 158,868

Other 4,206,460 4,226,460 4,218,924
4,229,120 4,399,120 4,377,792
Public Safety:
Wages/benefits 6,188,950 5,188,950 5,175,675
Other 7,898,821 7,898,821 6,965,742
14,087,771 13,087,771 12,141,417
Public Service:
Wages/benefits 10,058,450 10,288,450 10,242,233
Other 12,892,312 18,752,312 17,969,894
22,950,762 29,040,762 28,212,127
Fire:

Wages/benefits 26,929,190 21,929,190 21,920,717
Other 12,514,799 9,164,799 9,160,406
Capital Outlay - - -

39,443,989 31,093,989 31,081,123
Police:

Wages/benefits 55,312,171 45,312,170 45,263,618
Other 3,950,163 4,284,423 4,277,196

Capital outlay - 85,000 65,841

59,262,334 49,681,593 49,606,655
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City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
General Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(continued)

Budgeted Amount (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Neighborhood Assistance:
Wages/benefits $ 5,717,360 $ 5,637,360 $ 5,628,268
Other 1,597,990 1,597,990 1,515,105
7,315,350 7,235,350 7,143,373
Integrated Development
Wages 5,320,300 5,320,300 4,795,368
Other 1,106,460 1,566,460 1,557,573
6,426,760 6,886,760 6,352,941
Total expenditures 174,606,276 165,791,536 161,657,926
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over expenditures (1,950,588) 6,009,285 16,730,372
Fund balance, January 1, 2020 8,417,359 8,417,359 8,417,359
Fund balance, December 31, 2020 $ 6,466,771 $ 14,426,644 $ 25,147,731
Note:
Included in Other expenditures above are transfers out and advances of the following:
Finance $ 1,600,000
Fire $ 6,818,900
Police $ 57,500
Public Service $ 2,550,000
Recreation and Parks $ 100,000
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City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Community Learning Centers Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues
Revenues:

Taxes, Assessments and JEDD $ 22,950,430 $ 22,950,430 $ 16,209,461
Intergovernmental Revenues 1,340,200 1,340,200 771,533
Intra Fund Transfers 4,477,040 4,477,040 1,646,969
Miscellaneous Revenues 625,330 625,330 309,349

Total revenues 29,393,000 29,393,000 18,937,312
Expenditures
Department Wide:
Other 22,524,000 22,724,000 20,322,409
Total expenditures 22,524,000 22,724,000 20,322,409
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 6,869,000 6,669,000 (1,385,097)
Fund balance, January 1, 2020 18,834,343 18,834,343 18,834,343
Fund balance, December 31, 2020 $ 25,703,343 § 25,503,343 $ 17,449,246
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City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Taxes, Assessments and JEDD $ 44,506,430 $ 44,506,430 $ 35,692,340
Miscellaneous revenues 3,715,270 3,715,270 5,000,936
48,221,700 48,221,700 40,693,276
Other sources:
Note/bond proceeds 3,011,300 3,011,300 492,500
Previous year's encumbrances 927,656 927,656 927,656
3,938,956 3,938,956 1,420,156
Total revenues and other sources 52,160,656 52,160,656 42,113,432
Expenditures
Department Wide:
Wages/benefits 554,700 554,700 540,840
Other 38,757,669 38,757,669 35,262,838
Capital outlay 2,312,817 5,412,817 5,341,258
Total expenditures 41,625,186 44,725,186 41,144,936
Excess of revenues and
other sources over expenditures 10,535,470 7,435,470 968,496
Fund deficit, January 1, 2020 (620,896) (620,896) (620,896)
Fund balance, December 31, 2020 $ 9,914,574 $ 6,814,574 $ 347,600

Note: Included in Other expenditures above are advances of $250,000
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City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -

Special Assessment Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Special assessments
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Finance:
Wages/benefits
Other

Public Service:
Wages/benefits
Other
Capital outlay

Neighborhood Assistance:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts

$ 20,590,730 $ 20,590,730 § 16,635,004
51,020 51,020 107,833
156,110 156,110 281,984
20,797,860 20,797,860 17,024,821
14,914,140 14,914,140 13,000,000
1,667,006 1,667,006 1,667,006
16,581,146 16,581,146 14,667,006
37,379,006 37,379,006 31,691,827
183,690 185,290 183,739
3,440,929 3,440,929 3,117,321
3,624,619 3,626,219 3,301,060
4,792,320 5,227,320 5,014,909
21,090,584 21,090,584 20,543,787
1,960,542 2,460,542 1,965,095
27,843,446 28,778,446 27,523,791
300,990 300,990 287,990
1,138,551 1,188,551 1,038,820
1,439,541 1,489,541 1,326,810
32,907,606 33,894,206 32,151,661
4,471,400 3,484,800 (459,834)
2,199,567 2,199,567 2,199,567

$ 6,670,967 $ 5,684,367 $ 1,739,733
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City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Streets Fund, Non-GA AP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Taxes, Assessments and JEDD $ 1,270,030 $ 2,795,900 $ 1,927,794
Intergovernmental Revenues 582,210 1,281,700 597,279
Service Revenues 827,950 1,822,690 1,196,825
Miscellaneous revenues 952,450 2,096,750 4,033,230
3,632,640 7,997,040 7,755,128
Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds 8,852,360 19,487,960 9,637,193
Previous year's encumbrances 2,075,511 2,075,511 2,075,511
10,927,871 21,563,471 11,712,704
Total revenues and other sources 14,560,511 29,560,511 19,467,832
Expenditures
Department Wide:
Wages/benefits 200,000 264,500 255,046
Other 4,122,090 7,109,090 6,405,342
Capital outlay 10,066,911 17,466,911 16,724,870
Total expenditures 14,389,001 24,840,501 23,385,258
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures 171,510 4,720,010 (3,917,426)
Fund balance, January 1, 2020 573,547 573,547 573,547
Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2020 $ 745,057 $ 5,293,557 $ (3,343,879)
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City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios under OPERS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Traditional Plan

Proportionate
Proportion of Share of Net Pension
Collective Collective Liability/(Asset) Fiduciary Net Position
Measurement Net Pension Net Pension Covered as a Percentage of as a Percentage of
Date Liability/(Asset) Liability/(Asset) Payroll** Covered Payroll Total Pension Liability
12/31/2019 0.43836 % $ 85,358,175 $ 60,759,457 140.5 % 822 %
12/31/2018 0.43836 120,056,821 59,205,414 202.8 74.7
12/31/2017 0.43977 68,990,774 58,131,654 118.7 84.7
12/31/2016 0.44509 101,073,278 57,520,375 175.7 77.3
12/31/2015 0.43764 75,805,111 54,382,817 139.4 81.1
12/31/2014 0.44358 53,500,585 52,357,017 102.2 86.5
12/31/2013 0.44358 52,292,185 53,972,510 96.9 86.4
OPERS Combined Plan
Proportionate
Proportion of Share of Net Pension
Collective Collective Liability/(Asset) Fiduciary Net Position
Measurement Net Pension Net Pension Covered as a Percentage of as a Percentage of
Date Liability/(Asset) Liability/(Asset) Payroll** Covered Payroll Total Pension Liability
12/31/2019 0.43185 % 3 (710,799) $ 1,517,579 46.8% 1453 %
12/31/2018 0.31576 (353,085) 1,349,550 26.2 126.6
12/31/2017 0.32691 (444,922) 1,329,738 335 137.3
12/31/2016 0.33706 (187,599) 1,312,142 14.3 116.6
12/31/2015 0.31566 (153,607) 1,117,900 13.7 116.9
12/31/2014 0.30583 (117,750) 1,123,475 10.5 114.8
12/31/2013 0.30586 (32,090) 1,123,400 2.9 114.8

OPERS Member Directed Plan

Proportionate
Proportion of Share of Net Pension
Collective Collective Liability/(Asset) Fiduciary Net Position
Measurement Net Pension Net Pension Covered as a Percentage of as a Percentage of
Date Liability/(Asset) Liability/(Asset) Payroll** Covered Payroll Total Pension Liability
12/31/2019 0.19367 % $ (7,359) $ 1,151,207 0.64 % 118.1 %
12/31/2018 0.19508 (4,445) 1,349,550 0.33 113.4
12/31/2017 0.19522 (11,441) 1,066,892 1.07 124.5
12/31/2016 0.16885 (703) 890,550 0.08 103.4
12/31/2015 0.18979 (725) 905,960 0.08 103.9

** Covered Payroll has been estimated by the City of Akron.
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City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Contributions Under OPERS to State Pension and OPEB

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Traditional Plan

Statutorily
Fiscal Measurement Required Actual Contribution Contractually Required
Year Year Employer Employer Excess Covered Contribution Rates:
Ending Ending Contribution Contributions (Deficiency) Payroll* Pension OPEB Toal
12/31/2020 12/31/2019 $ 8,790,951 §$ 8,790,951 $ - $62,792,506 14.00 % 0.00 % 14.00
12/31/2019 12/31/2018 8,506,324 8,506,324 - 60,759,457 14.00 0.00 14.00
12/31/2018 12/31/2017 8,288,758 8,288,758 - 59,205,414 14.00 0.00 14.00
12/31/2017 12/31/2016 8,138,432 8,138,432 - 58,131,654 13.00 1.00 14.00
12/31/2016 12/31/2015 8,052,852 8,052,852 - 57,520,375 12.00 2.00 14.00
12/31/2015 12/31/2014 6,525,938 6,525,938 - 54,382,817 12.00 0.00 12.00
12/31/2014 12/31/2013 7,329,982 7,329,982 - 52,357,017 12.00 2.00 14.00
12/31/2013 N/A 7,556,151 7,556,151 - 53,972,510 10.00 4.00 14.00
12/31/2012 N/A 7,346,888 7,346,888 - 52,477,770 10.00 4.00 14.00
12/31/2011 N/A 7,556,151 7,556,151 - 53,972,510 10.00 4.00 14.00
Combined Plan
Statutorily
Fiscal Measurement Required Actual Contribution Contractually Required
Year Year Employer Employer Excess Covered Contribution Rates:
Ending Ending Contribution Contributions (Deficiency) Payroll* Pension OPEB Total
12/31/2020 12/31/2019 $ 215,087 $ 215,087 $ - $ 1,536,336 14.00 % 0.00 % 14.00
12/31/2019 12/31/2018 212,461 212,461 - 1,517,579 14.00 0.00 14.00
12/31/2018 12/31/2017 188,937 188,937 - 1,349,550 14.00 0.00 14.00
12/31/2017 12/31/2016 186,163 186,163 - 1,329,738 13.00 1.00 14.00
12/31/2016 12/31/2015 183,700 183,700 - 1,312,142 12.00 2.00 14.00
12/31/2015 12/31/2014 156,506 156,506 - 1,117,900 12.00 2.00 14.00
12/31/2014 12/31/2013 157,285 157,285 - 1,123,475 12.00 2.00 14.00
Member Directed Plan
Statutorily
Fiscal Measurement Required Actual Contribution Contractually Required
Year Year Employer Employer Excess Covered Contribution Rates:
Ending Ending Contribution Contributions (Deficiency) Payroll* Pension OPEB Total
12/31/2020 12/31/2019 $ 171,111 $ 171,111 $ - $ 1,222,221 14.00 % 0.00 % 14.00
12/31/2019 12/31/2018 169,169 169,169 - 1,151,207 14.00 0.00 14.00
12/31/2018 12/31/2017 188,937 188,937 - 1,349,550 14.00 0.00 14.00
12/31/2017 12/31/2016 149,365 149,365 - 1,066,892 13.00 1.00 14.00
12/31/2016 12/31/2015 124,677 124,677 - 890,550 12.00 2.00 14.00

*Covered payroll has been estimated by the City of Akron.
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City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios under OP&F

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Fire
Proportionate
Proportion of Share of Net Pension
Collective Collective Liability/(Asset) Fiduciary Net Position
Measurement Net Pension Net Pension Covered as a Percentage of as a Percentage of
Date Liability/(Asset) Liability/(Asset) Payroll** Covered Payroll Total Pension Liability
12/31/2019 1.3122261 % $ 88,398,559 28,140,217 3141 % 69.9 %
12/31/2018 1.3535830 110,488,140 27,458,083 402.4 63.1
12/31/2017 1.3615340 80,801,637 25,926,353 311.7 70.9
12/31/2016 1.3274720 84,080,723 25,713,251 327.0 68.4
12/31/2015 1.3199200 84,911,384 23,457,047 362.0 66.8
12/31/2014 1.3172024 68,236,576 20,458,336 333.5 72.2
12/31/2013 1.3172024 64,151,888 18,706,713 3429 72.2
Police
Proportionate
Proportion of Share of Net Pension
Collective Collective Liability/(Asset) Fiduciary Net Position
Measurement Net Pension Net Pension Covered as a Percentage of as a Percentage of
Date Liability/(Asset) Liability/(Asset) Payroll** Covered Payroll Total Pension Liability
12/31/2019 1.2757506 % $ 85,941,375 $ 33,447,297 256.9% 69.9
12/31/2018 1.3062930 106,628,025 32,520,558 3279 63.1
12/31/2017 1.3006560 79,827,131 31,566,974 252.9 70.9
12/31/2016 1.3613200 86,224,625 32,224,089 267.6 68.4
12/31/2015 1.3057420 83,998,130 29,950,321 280.5 66.8
12/31/2014 1.3597730 70,441,912 34,172,517 206.1 72.2
12/31/2013 1.3597730 66,225,111 35,596,596 186.0 72.2

** Covered Payroll has been estimated by the City of Akron.
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City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Contributions Under OP&F to State Pension and OPEB

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Fire
Statutorily
Fiscal Measurement Required Actual Contribution Contractually Required
Year Year Employer Employer Excess Covered Contribution Rates:

Ending Ending Contributions Contributions (Deficiency) Payroll** Pension OPEB Total
12/31/2020 12/31/2019 $ 7,280,940 $ 7,280,940 $ - $30,337,250 2350 % 050 % 24.00 %
12/31/2019 12/31/2018 6,753,652 6,753,652 - 28,140,217 23.50 0.50 24.00
12/31/2018 12/31/2017 6,589,940 6,589,940 - 25,926,353 23.50 0.50 24.00
12/31/2017 12/31/2016 6,092,693 6,092,693 - 25,926,353 23.50 0.50 24.00
12/31/2016 12/31/2015 6,042,614 6,042,614 - 25,713,251 23.50 0.50 24.00
12/31/2015 12/31/2014 5,512,406 5,512,406 - 23,457,047 23.50 0.50 24.00
12/31/2014 12/31/2013 4,807,709 4,807,709 - 20,458,336 23.50 0.50 24.00
12/31/2013 N/A 3,784,368 3,784,368 - 18,706,713 20.38 3.62 24.00
12/31/2012 N/A 3,784,368 3,784,368 - 21,938,365 17.25 6.75 24.00
12/31/2011 N/A 3,667,167 3,667,167 - 21,258,939 17.25 6.75 24.00

Police
Statutorily
Fiscal Measurement Required Actual Contribution Contractually Required
Year Year Employer Employer Excess Covered Contribution Rates:

Ending Ending Contributions Contributions (Deficiency) Payroll** Pension OPEB Total
12/31/2020 12/31/2019 $ 6,859,626 $§ 6,859,626 § - $35,177,569 19.00 % 0.50% 19.50 %
12/31/2019 12/31/2018 6,522,223 6,522,223 - 33,447,297 19.00 0.50 19.50
12/31/2018 12/31/2017 6,341,509 6,341,509 - 32,520,558 19.00 0.50 19.50
12/31/2017 12/31/2016 6,155,560 6,155,560 - 31,566,974 19.00 0.50 19.50
12/31/2016 12/31/2015 6,283,697 6,283,697 - 32,224,089 19.00 0.50 19.50
12/31/2015 12/31/2014 5,840,313 5,840,313 - 29,950,321 19.00 0.50 19.50
12/31/2014 12/31/2013 6,663,641 6,663,641 - 34,172,517 15.73 3.77 19.50
12/31/2013 N/A 6,941,336 6,941,336 - 35,596,596 12.75 6.75 19.50
12/31/2012 N/A 5,320,063 5,320,063 - 27,282,376 12.75 6.75 19.50
12/31/2011 N/A 5,170,880 5,170,880 - 26,517,333 12.75 6.75 19.50

**Covered Payroll has been estimated by the City of Akron.
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City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

144

City of Akron OPEB Plan
Net OPEB
Liability / (Asset) Fiduciary Net Position
Measurement Net OPEB Covered as a Percentage of as a Percentage of
Date Liability / (Asset) Payroll Covered Payroll Total OPEB Liability
12/31/2019 $ 87,500,861 $ 125,015,757 69.99 % 0.00 %
12/31/2018 101,158,647 119,397,841 85.05 0.00
12/31/2017 124,741,033 118,465,624 105.30 0.00
12/31/2016 115,704,251 113,130,435 102.28 0.00
OPERS OPEB Plan
Proportionate
Proportion of Share of Net OPEB
Collective Collective Covered Liability / (Asset) Fiduciary Net Position
Measurement Net OPEB Net OPEB Employee as a Percentage of as a Percentage of
Date Liability / (Asset) Liability / (Asset) Payroll Covered Payroll Total OPEB Liability
12/31/2019 0.42 % $ 57992341 § 63,428,243 91.43 % 47.80 %
12/31/2018 0.43 55,435,783 61,904,514 89.55 46.30
12/31/2017 0.43 46,401,790 60,528,284 76.66 54.10
12/31/2016 0.43 43,158,581 59,723,067 72.26 62.10
OP&F OPEB Plan
Proportionate
Proportion of Share of Net OPEB
Collective Collective Covered Liability / (Asset) Fiduciary Net Position
Measurement Net OPEB Net OPEB Employee as a Percentage of as a Percentage of
Date Liability / (Asset) Liability / (Asset) Payroll Covered Payroll Total OPEB Liability
12/31/2018 2.587977 % $ 25564,678 $ 61,587,514 41.51 % 14.10 %
12/31/2018 2.659876 24,222,250 59,978,641 40.38 14.10
12/31/2017 2.61719 148,286,319 57,937,340 255.94 14.10
12/31/2016 2.61719 124,232,123 53,407,368 232.61 16.00



City of Akron, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Contributions under the City of Akron's OPEB Plan

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Fiscal Measurement Actual
Year Year Employer Covered
Ending Ending Contributions Payroll *
12/31/2020 12/31/2019 $ 2,856,926 128,309,627
12/31/2019 12/31/2018 2,591,971 125,015,757
12/31/2018 12/31/2017 3,015,640 119,397,841
12/31/2017 N/A 4,462,299 118,465,624
12/31/2016 N/A 4,867,000 113,130,435
12/31/2015 N/A 5,048,000 108,908,085
12/31/2014 N/A 4,908,000 107,105,770
12/31/2013 N/A 4,725,000 108,275,819
12/31/2012 N/A 4,772,000 83,935,000
12/31/2011 N/A 4,335,000 88,115,000
12/31/2010 N/A 9,825,000 114,340,000

* Covered Payroll has been estimated by the City of Akron
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City of Akron, Ohio
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgetary Data

The City’s budgetary process is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis

other than on generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The actual results of

operations are presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule in accordance with the City’s
budgetary process (budget basis) to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the
budget. The legal level of budgetary control is by category for each department within each fund.
The categories are wages/benefits, other, and capital outlay.

The major differences between budget basis and GAAP basis in the General Fund, the Community
Learning Centers Fund, the Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund, and the Special Assessment Fund

are:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when the liability is
incurred (GAAP).

3. Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budget) as opposed to

restricted, committed or assigned fund balance (GAAP).

Recognition of certain revenues may be reclassified between funds to facilitate matching with the
related expenditures.

Community Income Tax
Learning Capital Special
General Centers Improvement Assessment Streets

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over expenditures and
other financing uses (budgetary basis)  $ 16,730,372  $ (1,385,097) $ 968,496 $  (459,834) $ (3,917,426)

Adjustments:

To adjust revenues for accruals (3,255,523) 35,722,384 15,884,638 (13,327,079) 12,278,572
To adjust expenditures for accruals 1,770,244 (48,677,179) (11,821,197) 10,925,444 (18,072,804)
To adjust for encumbrances 2,841,738 - 675,816 1,648,222 3,378,735

Net change in fund balance (GAAP basis) $ 18,086,831  $ (14339,892) § 5,707,753 $ (1213,247) $ (6,332,923)

skekeskskskok
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City of Akron, Ohio
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

Information regarding the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) for fiscal years
ending 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019 has been provided by the Ohio Public Employees
Retirement System (OPERS) and the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (OP&F). The net pension
liability (asset) presented in the City's financial statement as of December 31, 2020 is based on the
measurement date of December 31, 2019. Information presented in this exhibit is not available for
years prior to 2013.

Schedule of the City Contributions to State Pension Funds and OPEB

The Board of Trustees for both OPERS and OP&F determine the allocation between pension and
OPEB plans annually and this allocation may change for year to year. The city pays all contractually
required employer rates for OPERS and OP&F employees.

OPERS maintains three separate pension plans. The employer contribution rate is the same for all
three plans. The City does not know which plan each of its employees participates in and; therfore;
the information presented in the contribution schedule combines all plans from fiscal year ending
December 31, 2007 through fiscal year ending December 31, 2013.

Schedule of the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Information regarding the City's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability for the fiscal year
ending 2020 has been provided by OPERS and OP&F. The net OPEB liability presented in the City's
financial statement as of December 31, 2020 is based on the measurement date of December 31, 2019.
Information presented in this exhibit is not available prior to 2016.

The City also maintains its own plan that is funded on a "Pay-as-you-go" basis. The net OPEB

liability for presented in the City's fiancial statements as of December 31, 2020 is based on the
measurement date of December 31, 2019.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds - are used to account for types of resources for which specific uses are
mandated by City ordinances or federal and state statutes. The title of the fund is descriptive of the
activities accounted for therein. The non-major Special Revenue Funds are:

To Account for Special Purposes:

Income Tax Collection Canal Park Stadium COPs
Emergency Medical Service Downtown District Heating COPs
Street and Highway Maintenance Safety Programs

Tax Equivalency City Facilities Operating

E.D.A. Revolving Loans Various Purpose Funding

Joint Economic Development Districts Deposits

Akron Muni. Court Information System  Police, Fire, and Road Activity

Federal and/or State Statutes
to Account for Grants and Subsidies:

Community Development H.O.M.E. Program
Community Environment Grants Police Grants
Akron Metro. Area Transportation Study  General Grants
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

Debt Service Funds - are used to account for the accumulation of financial resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. The non-major Debt Service
Funds are as follows:

General Bond Payment Non-Tax Revenue Bond Payment
Debt Service Bond Payment Pension Obligation Refunding
Special Assessment Bond Payment JEDD Bond Payment

Main Place Bond Payment Income Tax Bond Payment
Downtown Hotel Bond Payment Taxable Revenue Bond Payment

Capital Project Funds — are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The non-major
Capital Projects Funds are as follows:

To Account for Grant Revenue and Other Funding Sources:

Information Technology and Improvements  Public Parking
Parks and Recreation Economic Development
Public Facilities and Improvements
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Assets

Pooled cash and investments

Restricted cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles
Loans receivable

Due from other governments

Due from other funds

Due from others

Assets held for resale

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Deposits

Advances from other funds
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

Due to others

Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages

Accrued vacation and leave
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Fund balances

Restricted

Committed

Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances

City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020

Special Revenue Funds

Income Emergency Street and Community

Tax Medical Highway Community Environment
Collection Service Maint Develop t Grants

$ 4,277,126  $ 1,206,965  § 2,542,384  $ 1,446,373  § 285,263

- 10,790,970 3,864,808 - -

- - - 3,081,811 241,876

- - - 1,287,349 51,951

160,717 - - - -

216,806 - - - -

$ 4,654,649 § 11,997,935  § 6,407,192 § 5,815,533 § 579,090

$ 44,035  $ 22,825  $ 927,712 § 530,891 $ 133,868

- - - 250,000 -

- - 186,547 1,859,527 -

2,611,874 19,177 152,189 2,872 -

11,348 279,182 60,245 14,000 215

55,826 686,168 319,246 68,626 622

2,723,083 1,007,352 1,645,939 2,725,916 134,705

- 9,637,035 2,392,206 4,278,555 201,951

1,931,566 1,353,548 2,369,047 - 242,434

- - - (1,188,938) -

1,931,566 1,353,548 2,369,047 (1,188,938) 242,434

$ 4,654,649  $ 11,997,935  § 6,407,192 $ 5,815,533  § 579,090
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Assets

Pooled cash and investments

Restricted cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles
Loans receivable

Due from other governments

Due from other funds

Due from others

Assets held for resale

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Deposits

Advances from other funds
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

Due to others

Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages

Accrued vacation and leave
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Fund balances

Restricted

Committed

Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances

City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020

Special Revenue Funds

Akron Joint
Metro. Area E.D.A. Economic
Transportation H.O.M.E. Tax Revolving Development
Study Program Equivalency Loans Districts
$ 326,888 990,784  § 7,569,605  $ 11,910 4,094,260
- - 16,826,340 - 7,929
- 3,282,933 - - 1,000,000
220,077 990,822 - - -
$ 546,965 5,264,539 § 24395945  § 11,910 5,102,189
$ 2,061 402,434  § 37,702 $ - 87,352
60,210 - - - 14,996
1111 - - - 2,120
- - 1,168,889 - 1,711,286
9,975 107 - - 4,368
48,988 231 - - 22,799
- - - - 160
122,345 402,772 1,206,591 - 1,843,081
- 3,961,255 16,776,495 - 500,000
424,620 900,512 - 11,910 2,759,108
- - 6,412,859 - -
424,620 900,512 6,412,859 11,910 2,759,108
$ 546,965 5,264,539 § 24395945  § 11,910 5,102,189
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Assets
Pooled cash and investments

Restricted cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles

Loans receivable

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Due from others

Assets held for resale

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Deposits

Advances from other funds
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

Due to others

Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages

Accrued vacation and leave
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund balances
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances

City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020

Special Revenue Funds

Akron
Muni. Court
Information

System

Police
Grants

Safety
Programs

$ 1,176,689  $

220,095

283,264
1,051

1,580,078

242,689
1,414

$ 1,183,547  §

504,410

1,824,181

$ 3,825 8§

32,079
185,000
10,000
1,380

5,610
21,006

4,505

250,000

730

12,019
35,681

1,178,006

255,075

175,192

74,143

302,935

512,099
1,009,147

1,178,006

74,143

1,009,147

$ 1,183,547  $

504,410

1,824,181




Assets
Pooled cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles

Loans receivable

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Due from others

Assets held for resale

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Deposits

Advances from other funds
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

Due to others

Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages

Accrued vacation and leave
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Fund balances

Restricted

Committed

Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances

City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020

Special Revenue Funds

B-1

City Various Police, Fire,
Facilities Purpose and Road
Operating Funding Deposits Activity General Grants
$ 104,927  $ 20,385,038  § 1,799,657  $ 10,587,062  § 49,277
- 37,154 2,601,638 2,240,263 -
- 49,213 - - -
- 43,887 140,166 1,299,018 -
$ 104,927  $ 20,515,292 § 4,541,461  $ 14,126,343 § 49,277
$ 17,154  § 27,354  § - 3 25795  $ -
- - 659,978 - -
- 10,000 - - -
93,183 - - - -
- - 142,111 33 179
179,796 - 2,814,631 - -
- 7,355,368 - - -
290,133 7,392,722 3,616,720 25,828 179
- 49,213 - 941,245 -
- 12,997,532 924,741 13,159,270 49,098
- 75,825 - - -
(185,206) - - - -
(185,206) 13,073,357 924,741 13,159,270 49,098
$ 104,927  $ 20,515,292 § 4,541,461  $ 14,126,343 § 49,277
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Assets

Pooled cash and investments

Restricted cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles
Loans receivable

Due from other governments

Due from other funds

Due from others

Assets held for resale

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Deposits

Advances from other funds
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

Due to others

Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages

Accrued vacation and leave
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Fund balances

Restricted

Committed

Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances

City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020

Debt Service Funds

Debt Main
General Service Special Place Downtown
Bond Bond Assessment Bond Hotel Bond
Payment Payment Bond Payment Payment Payment
$ 60,248  $ -8 -8
- 392,507 39,080
2,343,109 - -
$ 2,403,357  $ 392,507 $ 39,080 $
$ 82 8 - 3 -8
364 - -
- - 2,000
3,217 - -
15,146 - -
18,809 - 2,000
2,343,109 - -
41,439 392,507 37,080
41,439 392,507 37,080
$ 2,403,357 $ 392,507 $ 39,080 $
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City of Akron, Ohio

Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Governmental Funds

December 31, 2020

Debt Service Funds

Non-Tax
Revenue
Bond
Payment

Pension
Obligation
Refunding

JEDD Bond
Payment

Income Tax
Bond
Payment

Taxable
Revenue
Bond
Payment

Assets

Pooled cash and investments $
Restricted cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles

Loans receivable

Due from other governments

Due from other funds

Due from others

Assets held for resale

280,086

$ - 3

242,933

$ -

Total assets $

280,086

242,933

Liabilities

Accounts payable $
Deposits

Advances from other funds
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

Due to others

Accrued liabilities

Accrued wages

Accrued vacation and leave
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Fund balances

Restricted

Committed

Unassigned

280,086

6 5,869

237,568

229

Total fund balances (deficits)

280,086

6 5,869

237,568

229

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances $

280,086

5,869

242,933
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Assets

Pooled cash and investments

Restricted cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles
Loans receivable

Due from other governments

Due from other funds

Due from others

Assets held for resale

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Deposits

Advances from other funds
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

Due to others

Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages

Accrued vacation and leave
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Fund balances

Restricted

Committed

Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances

City of Akron, Ohio B-1
Combining Balance Sheet - Non-Major Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020
Capital Project Funds
Information Public
Technology Parks Facilities
and and and Public Economic
Improv t Recreation Improv ts Parking Develop t Total

$ 456,303  $ 595,840 107,796 558,822  § 423,510  $ 60,856,902
- - - - - 3,479,416

- - - - - 38,712,211

- - - - 3,097,573 10,704,193

- - 492,500 - - 3,617,865

- - - - - 1,653,111

- - - - - 216,806

- - - - 7,919,423 7,919,423

$ 456,303  $ 595,840 600,296 558,822  § 11,440,506  § 127,159,927
$ 287,821  § 4,100 9,975 2,420 $ 631,961 §$ 3,241,316
- - - - - 659,978

- - - - - 695,000

- 926 56,116 - 2,961,028 5,242,533

233 354,753 1,166 1,735 77 3,293,820

- - - - 358,170 6,234,772

- 1,682 42,484 - 25,416 469,868

_ R - - - 1,274,339

- - - - - 160

- R - - - 7,355,368

288,054 361,461 109,741 4,155 3,976,652 28,467,154

- - - - 2,435,000 44,203,355

- - - - - 42,898,174

168,249 234,379 490,555 554,667 5,028,854 12,965,388
- - - - - (1,374,144)

168,249 234,379 490,555 554,667 5,028,854 54,489,418

$ 456,303 $ 595,840 600,296 558,822  § 11,440,506  § 127,159,927
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City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Special Revenue Funds

Income Emergency Street and Community
Tax Medical Highway Community Environment
Collection Service Maint e Develop t Grants
Revenues
Income taxes $ 5,391,118  $ - 8 -3 - 8 -
Property taxes - 6,620,309 - - -
JEDD revenues - - - - -
Grants and subsidies - - - 6,919,542 888,590
Investment earnings - 3,036 21,123 193,931 2,763
Shared revenues - 958,053 10,427,430 - -
Licenses, fees and fines 274,172 - 131,256 10,302 -
Charges for services 160,717 1,575,672 - - -
Miscellaneous 18,735 418,766 428,997 141,324 87
5,844,742 9,575,836 11,008,806 7,265,099 891,440
Expenditures
Current:
General government 5,312,697 54,300 - - -
Public service - 154 11,230,887 965,735 -
Public safety - 16,218,503 - 29,136 -
Community environment - - - 6,592,321 953,914
Public health - - 6,192 142 -
Recreation and parks - - - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement - 1,998 - - -
Interest 321 106 - - -
Bond issuance expenditures - - - - -
5,313,018 16,275,061 11,237,079 7,587,334 953,914
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 531,724 (6,699,225) (228,273) (322,235) (62,474)
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of bonds - - - - -
Premium on debt - - - - -
Issuance of refunding obligations - - - - -
Payment to refunding agent - - - - -
Transfers-in - 7,518,900 - - -
- 7,518,900 - - -
Net change in fund balances 531,724 819,675 (228,273) (322,235) (62,474)
Fund balances (deficit), January 1, 2020 1,399,842 533,873 2,597,320 (866,703) 304,908
Fund balances (deficit), December 31, 2020 $ 1,931,566  $ 1,353,548 $ 2,369,047 $ (1,188,938) $ 242,434
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Revenues
Income taxes
Property taxes
JEDD revenues
Grants and subsidies
Investment earnings
Shared revenues
Licenses, fees and fines
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Expenditures

Current:
General government
Public service
Public safety
Community environment
Public health
Recreation and parks

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest
Bond issuance expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of bonds
Premium on debt
Issuance of refunding obligations
Payment to refunding agent
Transfers-in

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances (deficit), January 1, 2020

Fund balances (deficit), December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Special Revenue Funds

B-2

Akron Joint
Metro. Area E.D.A. Economic
Transportation H.O.M.E. Tax Revolving Development

Study Program Equivalency Loans Districts

$ - 8 -8 - - 8 -
- - - - 10,574,555
1,557,770 1,383,131 - - -
- 10,358 - 1,063 79,917

- - 16,976,897 - -

- - - - 5,000

- - - - 109,808

183,055 60,551 17,632 7,166 804,401
1,740,825 1,454,040 16,994,529 8,229 11,573,681
- - 12,376 - 489,102

- - - - 55,187
1,757,231 1,240,896 11,766,133 7,165 1,332,459
- - - - 1,139,515

- - 2,236,759 - 4,580,214

- - 36,782 - 322,882
1,757,231 1,240,896 14,052,050 7,165 7,919,359
(16,406) 213,144 2,942,479 1,064 3,654,322
(16,406) 213,144 2,942,479 1,064 3,654,322
441,026 687,368 3,470,380 10,846 (895,214)

$ 424,620 $ 900,512 § 6,412,859 11,910  § 2,759,108
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Revenues
Income taxes
Property taxes
JEDD revenues
Grants and subsidies
Investment earnings
Shared revenues
Licenses, fees and fines
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Expenditures

Current:
General government
Public service
Public safety
Community environment
Public health
Recreation and parks

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest
Bond issuance expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of bonds
Premium on debt
Issuance of refunding obligations
Payment to refunding agent
Transfers-in

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances (deficit), January 1, 2020

Fund balances (deficit), December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Special Revenue Funds

B-2

AKkron Canal Downtown
Muni. Court Park District
Information Stadium Heating Police Safety
System COPs COPs Grants Programs

$ - 3 -8 - - 8 -
- - - 927,567 31,784

- 2,722 34,927 1,282 17,017

- - - - 552,251

152,378 - - - 26,502

- - - 1,051 550,601

- - - 6,139 236,844

152,378 2,722 34,927 936,039 1,414,999
237,128 - - 1,378 3,066

- - - - 3,367

- - - 971,599 2,347,344

- - 6,391,594 - R

- 13,773 1,203 - -

237,128 13,773 6,392,797 972,977 2,353,777
(84,750) (11,051) (6,357,870) (36,938) (938,778)

- - - 258,383 88,472

- - - 258,383 88,472
(84,750) (11,051) (6,357,870) 221,445 (850,306)
1,262,756 138,445 8,749,184 (147,302) 1,859,453

$ 1,178,006  $ 127,394  § 2,391,314 74,143 § 1,009,147
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Non-Major Governmental Funds

Revenues
Income taxes
Property taxes
JEDD revenues
Grants and subsidies
Investment earnings
Shared revenues
Licenses, fees and fines
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Expenditures

Current:
General government
Public service
Public safety
Community environment
Public health
Recreation and parks

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest
Bond issuance expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of bonds
Premium on debt
Issuance of refunding obligations
Payment to refunding agent
Transfers-in

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances (deficit), January 1, 2020

Fund balances (deficit), December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Special Revenue Funds

City Various Police, Fire,
Facilities Purpose and Road
Operating Funding Deposits Activity General Grants

$ - 3 -8 -8 16,081,595  § -
960,972 - - - -
- 22,871,330 - - -
- 61,566 15,820 - -
592,129 1,088,377 5,668,379 - 49,277
- 102,881 140,166 - -
288,180 163,245 2,238,747 6,008 -
1,841,281 24,287,399 8,063,112 16,087,603 49,277
37,133 849,550 8,900,889 33 179
5,504,715 - - 398,825 -
- 22,027,385 - 6,259,209 -
501,681 89,836 - - -
4,140 342 - - -
44,516 - - 351,376 -
6,092,185 22,967,113 8,900,889 7,009,443 179
(4,250,904) 1,320,286 (837,777) 9,078,160 49,098
5,000,000 - - - -
5,000,000 - - - -
749,096 1,320,286 (837,777) 9,078,160 49,098
(934,302) 11,753,071 1,762,518 4,081,110 -
$ (185,206) ' $ 13,073,357 ' § 924,741  $ 13,159,270 ' § 49,098
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City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Debt Service Funds

Debt Main
General Service Special Place Downtown
Bond Bond Assessment Bond Hotel Bond
Payment Payment Bond Payment Payment Payment
Revenues
Income taxes $ - 8 -8 -8 - 8 -
Property taxes 1,362,427 - - - -
JEDD revenues - - - - -
Grants and subsidies - - - - -
Investment earnings - 15 66 - -
Shared revenues 71,357 - - - -
Licenses, fees and fines - - - - -
Charges for services - - - - -
Miscellaneous 6,491 13,421 - - -
1,440,275 13,436 66 - -
Expenditures
Current:
General government 128,647 14,503 - 21 4
Public service - - - - -
Public safety - - - - -
Community environment - - - - R
Public health - - - - -
Recreation and parks - - - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement 1,204,539 - - - -
Interest 250,650 - - - -
Bond issuance expenditures - - - - -
1,583,836 14,503 - 21 4
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (143,561) (1,067) 66 21 (@]
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of bonds - - - - -
Premium on debt - - - - -
Issuance of refunding obligations - - - - -
Payment to refunding agent - - - - -
Transfers-in - - - - -
Net change in fund balances (143,561) (1,067) 66 21) “)
Fund balances (deficit), January 1, 2020 185,000 393,574 37,014 21 4
Fund balances (deficit), December 31, 2020 $ 41,439  $ 392,507 $ 37,080  § - 8 -
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City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Debt Service Funds

Non-Tax Taxable
Revenue Pension Income Tax Revenue
Bond Obligation JEDD Bond Bond Bond
Payment Refunding Payment Payment Payment
Revenues
Income taxes $ -3 -8 -3 -8 -
Property taxes - - - - -

JEDD revenues - - - - -
Grants and subsidies - - - - R
Investment earnings 46 30 159 - 445
Shared revenues - - - - -
Licenses, fees and fines - - - - -
Charges for services - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - 1,531,800 R

46 30 159 1,531,800 445
Expenditures
Current:

General government - - - - -
Public service - - - - -
Public safety - - - -
Community environment - - - 1,500,000 -
Public health - - - - -
Recreation and parks - - - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement - - - - R
Interest - 387 2,382 2,412,888 45,082

Bond issuance expenditures - - - 160,018 -
- 387 2,382 4,072,906 45,082
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 46 (357) (2,223) (2,541,106) (44,637)
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of bonds - - - - -
Premium on debt - - - 1,358,072 -
Issuance of refunding obligations - - - 12,030,000 -
Payment to refunding agent - - - (10,805,000) -
Transfers-in - - - - -
- - - 2,583,072 -
Net change in fund balances 46 (357) (2,223) 41,966 (44,637)
Fund balances (deficit), January 1, 2020 280,040 363 8,092 195,602 44,866
Fund balances (deficit), December 31, 2020 $ 280,086 $ 6 $ 5869 § 237,568  § 229
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Revenues
Income taxes
Property taxes
JEDD revenues
Grants and subsidies
Investment earnings
Shared revenues
Licenses, fees and fines
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Expenditures

Current:
General government
Public service
Public safety
Community environment
Public health
Recreation and parks

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest
Bond issuance expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of bonds
Premium on debt
Issuance of refunding obligations
Payment to refunding agent
Transfers-in

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficit), January 1, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio B-2
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
Capital Projects Funds
Information Public
Technology Parks Facilities
and and and Public Economic
Improvements Recreation Improvements Parking Development Total

$ - 8 - S 492,500 $ - 8 -3 21,965,213
- - - - - 7,982,736

- - - - - 11,535,527

- - - - 33,227 34,612,941

- - - - 15,117 461,403

- - - - - 28,985,988

- - - - - 7,997,772

- - - - - 2,640,896

- - - - 3,205,880 9,777,469

- - 492,500 - 3,254,224 125,959,945

63,619 387,216 633,596 - 56,493 17,181,930

2,300,434 254,443 718,010 423,555 445,383 22,300,695

- - 415,960 - 197,034 48,466,170

- 305,163 20,701 - 776,078 33,235,172

- - - - - 6,334

- 213,892 57,232 - - 1,415,121

- - - - - 8,023,510

- - - - 205,294 3,687,642

- - - - - 160,018

2,364,053 1,160,714 1,845,499 423,555 1,680,282 134,476,592
(2,364,053) (1,160,714) (1,352,999) (423,555) 1,573,942 (8,516,647)
2,500,000 500,000 649,999 - 750,001 9,400,000

- - - - - 1,358,072

- - - - - 12,030,000
- - - - - (10,805,000)

- - - - - 7,865,755

2,500,000 500,000 649,999 - 750,001 19,848,827
135,947 (660,714) (703,000) (423,555) 2,323,943 11,332,180

32,302 895,093 1,193,555 978,222 2,704,911 43,157,238

$ 168,249  § 234379 $ 490,555  $ 554,667 $ 5,028,854  $ 54,489,418

Fund balances (deficit), December 31, 2020
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B-3
City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Income Tax Collection Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes $ 8,835,190 $ 8,835,190 $ 5,137,479
Miscellaneous revenues 305,810 305,810 459,940
9,141,000 9,141,000 5,597,419
Other sources:

Previous year's encumbrances 92,577 92,577 92,577
Total revenues and other sources 9,233,577 9,233,577 5,689,996
Expenditures

Finance:
Wages/benefits 1,785,500 1,785,500 1,627,681
Other 4,818,097 4,818,097 4,078,931
Total expenditures 6,603,597 6,603,597 5,706,612
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

sources over expenditures 2,629,980 2,629,980 (16,616)
Fund balance, January 1, 2020 4,211,582 4,211,582 4211,582
Fund balance, December 31, 2020 $ 6,841,562 $ 6,841,562 $ 4,194,966
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Emergency Medical Services Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 7,770,849 $ 7,440,139 $ 7,562,706
Transport billing 2,436,430 2,436,440 1,501,798
Other revenue 351,440 351,430 381,751
10,558,719 10,228,009 9,446,255
Other sources:
General fund subsidy 10,200,000 10,200,000 7,518,900
Previous year's encumbrances 88,184 88,184 88,184
10,288,184 10,288,184 7,607,084
Total revenues and other sources 20,846,903 20,516,193 17,053,339
Expenditures
Fire:
Wages/benefits 19,635,020 16,135,020 15,122,593
Other 1,808,434 1,808,434 1,623,470
Total expenditures 21,443,454 17,943,454 16,746,063
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures (596,551) 2,572,739 307,276
Fund balance, January 1, 2020 711,599 711,599 711,599
Fund balance, December 31, 2020 $ 115,048 $ 3,284,338 §$ 1,018,875

Note: Included in in General fund subsidy above is transfers in of $7,518,900.
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -

Police Pension Employer's Liability Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

Revenues
Property taxes

Total revenues
Expenditures
Police:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 832,590 $ 797,158 § 797,207
832,590 797,158 797,207
472,350 468,300 -
377,650 377,650 366,958
850,000 845,950 366,958
(17,410) (48,792) 430,249
48,834 48,834 48,834
$ 31,424 $ 42 3 479,083
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -

Fire Pension Employer's Liability Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

Revenues
Property taxes

Total revenues
Expenditures
Fire:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 832,590 $ 797,158 § 797,207
832,590 797,158 797,207
472,350 468,300 -
377,650 377,650 366,958
850,000 845,950 366,958
(17,410) (48,792) 430,249
48,834 48,834 48,834
$ 31,424 $ 42 8 479,083
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Street and Highway Maintenance Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Gasoline tax
Motor vehicle license tax
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Public Service:
Wages/benefits
Other
Capital Outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 13,696,850 $ 13,696,840 $ 7,723,197
3,649,090 3,649,090 2,346,182
460 460 295,350
379,600 379,610 587,340
17,726,000 17,726,000 10,952,069
223,162 223,162 223,162
223,162 223,162 223,162
17,949,162 17,949,162 11,175,231
7,048,860 7,048,860 6,542,560
5,010,452 4,010,452 3,106,818
61,100 1,061,100 1,021,582
12,120,412 12,120,412 10,670,960
12,120,412 12,120,412 10,670,960
5,828,750 5,828,750 504,271
1,663,067 1,663,067 1,663,067
$ 7,491,817 § 7,491,817 $ 2,167,338
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Department Wide:
Wages/benefits
Other
Capital Outlay

Total expenditures

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -

Community Development Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

sources over expenditures
Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

Note: Included in Miscellaneous revenues above is advances of $250,000.

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 10,822,040 $ 11,774,740 $ 6,979,101
26,280 28,600 42,313
522,680 568,690 819,096
11,371,000 12,372,030 7,840,510
178,068 178,068 178,068
11,549,068 12,550,098 8,018,578
1,966,860 1,973,850 1,863,219
6,242,168 6,742,178 5,658,111
- 595,000 593,813
8,209,028 9,311,028 8,115,143
3,340,040 3,239,070 (96,565)
1,093,101 1,093,101 1,093,101
$ 4,433,141 § 4,332,171 § 996,536
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Revenues and other sources
Governmental revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other Sources:

Previous year's encumbrances
Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures

Department Wide:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Community Environment Grants Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts

$ 1,599,020 $ 1,599,020 § 888,588
228,980 228,980 3,628

1,828,000 1,828,000 892,216

14,113 14,113 14,113

1,842,113 1,842,113 906,329

6,100 16,100 15,556

1,199,113 1,189,113 917,641

1,205,213 1,205,213 933,197

636,900 636,900 (26,868)

258,688 258,688 258,688

$ 895,588 $ 895,588 § 231,820
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:

Federal/State grants $ 1,991,370 $ 1,991,370 $ 1,611,349

Service revenues 13,990 13,990 450

Miscellaneous revenues 25,640 25,640 14,644

2,031,000 2,031,000 1,626,443
Other sources:

Previous year's encumbrances 2,456 2,456 2,456
Total revenues and other sources 2,033,456 2,033,456 1,628,899
Expenditures

Planning:
Wages/benefits 1,302,061 1,302,060 1,275,368
Other 542,325 542,326 412,335
Total expenditures 1,844,386 1,844,386 1,687,703
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

sources over expenditures 189,070 189,070 (58,804)
Fund balance, January 1, 2020 381,952 381,952 381,952
Fund balance, December 31, 2020 $ 571,022 $ 571,022 $ 323,148
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Revenues and other sources
Governmental revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:

Previous year's encumbrances
Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures

Department Wide:
Wages/Benefits
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
H.O.M.E. Program Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 2,010,540 $ 2,010,540 § 1,383,130
70,460 70,460 99,912
2,081,000 2,081,000 1,483,042
217 217 217
2,081,217 2,081,217 1,483,259
7,000 9,000 8,346
2,000,217 2,000,217 1,614,917
2,007,217 2,009,217 1,623,263
2,007,217 2,009,217 1,623,263
74,000 72,000 (140,004)
872,745 872,745 872,745
$ 946,745 § 944,745 § 732,741
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Taxes and assessments
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:

Previous year's encumbrances
Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures

Department Wide:
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Tax Equivalency Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 17,845,690 $ 17,845,690 $ 16,972,926
17,310 17,310 17,636
17,863,000 17,863,000 16,990,562
10 10 10
17,863,010 17,863,010 16,990,572
16,334,740 18,534,740 14,759,780
16,334,740 18,534,740 14,759,780
1,528,270 (671,730) 2,230,792
5,338,813 5,338,813 5,338,813
$ 6,867,083 $ 4,667,083 § 7,569,605
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Revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues
Expenditures
Office of the Mayor:
Other

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Special Revenue Loans Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts

$ 54,000 $ 54,000 $ 12,725
54,000 54,000 12,725

10,000 10,000 7,166

10,000 10,000 7,166

44,000 44,000 5,559

6,351 6,351 6,351

$ 50,351 $ 50,351 § 11,910
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Joint Economic Development Districts Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
JEDD revenues
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:

Previous year's encumbrances
Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures

Department Wide:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 20,880,990 $ 20,880,990 $ 16,469,662
1,198,770 1,198,770 1,454,611
978,240 978,240 1,004,047
23,058,000 23,058,000 18,928,320
164,352 164,352 164,352
23,222,352 23,222,352 19,092,672
688,430 588,430 527,534
17,238,092 18,468,092 17,258,660
17,926,522 19,056,522 17,786,194
5,295,830 4,165,830 1,306,478
2,333,811 2,333,811 2,333,811
$ 7,629,641 § 6,499,641 $ 3,640,289
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -

Akron Municipal Court Information System Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Service revenues

Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Court Clerk:
Other

Judges:
Other

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Original Final Actual Amounts

386,000 $ 486,000 $ 163,079

81,699 81,699 81,699

467,699 567,699 244,778
365,585 615,585 243,207
678,764 778,764 309,207
1,044,349 1,394,349 552,414
(576,650) (826,650) (307,636)
1,213,075 1,213,075 1,213,075
636,425 $ 386,425 § 905,439
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Police Grants Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues $ 6,453,830 $ 6,632,990 $ 842,083
Miscellaneous revenues 658,840 677,120 192,901
7,112,670 7,310,110 1,034,984
Other sources:
General fund subsidy 92,330 94,890 258,383
Previous year's encumbrances 57,909 57,909 57,909
150,239 152,799 316,292
Total revenues and other sources 7,262,909 7,462,909 1,351,276
Expenditures
Police:
Wages/benefits 460,550 752,180 440,080
Other 875,539 1,934,209 920,614
Total expenditures 1,336,089 2,686,389 1,360,694
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures 5,926,820 4,776,520 (9,418)
Fund balance, January 1, 2020 184,365 184,365 184,365
Fund balance, December 31, 2020 $ 6,111,185 § 4,960,885 $ 174,947

Note: Included in Miscellaneous revenues above is advances of $185,000 and Included in General fund subsidy above are
transfers in of $258,383.
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Safety Programs Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues $ 7,855,160 $ 7,926,230 $ 684,339
Income Taxes 1,060,460 1,070,060 -
Service revenues 4,223,920 4,262,140 874,624
Miscellaneous revenues 685,960 692,170 548,008
13,825,500 13,950,600 2,106,971
Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances 63,298 63,298 63,298
63,298 63,298 63,298
Total revenues and other sources 13,888,798 14,013,898 2,170,269
Expenditures
Public Safety:
Wages/benefits 478,210 478,210 472,030
Other 59,200 59,200 3,680
Capital outlay 200,000 200,000 -
737,410 737,410 475,710
Public Service:
Other 350 30,350 16,699
350 30,350 16,699
Fire:
Wages/benefits - 798,121 -
Other 697,121 - 640,999
697,121 798,121 640,999
Police:
Wages/benefits 1,305,640 1,305,640 910,098
Other 1,831,147 1,750,147 642,123
3,136,787 3,055,787 1,552,221
Total expenditures 4,571,668 4,621,668 2,685,629
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures 9,317,130 9,392,230 (515,360)
Fund balance, January 1, 2020 1,897,400 1,897,400 1,897,400
Fund balance, December 31, 2020 $ 11,214,530 $ 11,289,630 $ 1,382,040

Note: Included in Miscellaneous revenues above is advances of $250,000 and Included in General fund subsidy above are
transfers in of $88,472.
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenues
Service revenues
Taxes and assessments
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
General fund subsidy
Previous year's encumbrances
Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Department Wide:
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
City Facilities Operating Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 3,512,940 $ 6,304,970 $ -
1,899,060 3,408,410 593,035
- - 960,972
879,000 1,577,620 673,863
6,291,000 11,291,000 2,227,870
- - 5,000,000
28,340 28,340 28,340
28,340 28,340 5,028,340
6,319,340 11,319,340 7,256,210
2,317,010 7,462,010 7,380,125
2,317,010 7,462,010 7,380,125
4,002,330 3,857,330 (123,915)
228,504 228,504 228,504
$ 4,230,834 § 4,085,834 § 104,589
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes
Intergovernmental revenues
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:

Previous year's encumbrances
Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures

Department Wide:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Various Purpose Funding Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts

$ 48,740 $ 422,200 $ -
1,083,840 9,387,920 30,298,359

2,815,320 24,385,610 1,274,011

55,100 477,280 163,255

4,003,000 34,673,010 31,735,625

49,397 49,397 49,397

4,052,397 34,722,407 31,785,022

75,000 29,385,940 22,030,202

4,161,477 4,534,537 1,218,640

4,236,477 33,920,477 23,248,842

(184,080) 801,930 8,536,180

11,629,231 11,629,231 11,629,231

$ 11,445,151 § 12,431,161 § 20,165,411

Note: Included in Miscellaneous revenues above is advances of $10,000
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B-20
City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Deposits Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts

Revenues

Miscellaneous revenues $ 1,325,000 $ 1,325,000 $ 2,230,520
Total revenues 1,325,000 1,325,000 2,230,520
Expenditures

Finance:
Other 1,525,000 1,525,000 472,016

Total expenditures 1,525,000 1,525,000 472,016
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures (200,000) (200,000) 1,758,504
Fund balance, January 1, 2020 1,235,505 1,235,505 1,235,505
Fund balance, December 31, 2020 $ 1,035,505 $ 1,035,505 $ 2,994,009
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:

Income Taxes

Other

Total revenues
Other Sources
Previous year's encumbrances
Total other sources
Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Department Wide:
Other
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues and other sources
over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Police, Fire, and Road Activity Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 17,702,000 $ 17,702,000 $ 16,298,521
- - 6,008
17,702,000 17,702,000 16,304,529
1,309,669 1,309,669 1,309,669
1,309,669 1,309,669 1,309,669
19,011,669 19,011,669 17,614,198
10,730,608 10,730,608 6,464,207
7,951,661 7,951,661 2,526,051
18,682,269 18,682,269 8,990,258
18,682,269 18,682,269 8,990,258
329,400 329,400 8,623,940
908,071 908,071 908,071
$ 1,237,471 § 1,237,471 § 9,532,011
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:

Charges for Services

Other

Total revenues
Expenditures
Department Wide:
Other

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
General Grants Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

B-22

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ -3 -3 49,277
- 250,000 -
- 250,000 49,277
- 250,000 -
- 250,000 -
- - 49,277
$ -8 -8 49,277
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General Bond Payment Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Property taxes
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:

Previous year's encumbrances
Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures

Finance:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 1,720,689 $ 1,644,730 $ 1,575,986
- - 6,492
1,720,689 1,644,730 1,582,478
7,121 7,121 7,121
1,727,810 1,651,851 1,589,599
455,180 455,180 416,127
1,240,861 1,240,861 1,174,978
1,696,041 1,696,041 1,591,105
31,769 (44,190) (1,506)
55,257 55,257 55,257
$ 87,026 § 11,067 $ 53,751
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B-24
City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Information Technology and Improvements Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts

Revenues
Other Sources:

Note Bond Proceeds $ 588,000 $ 3,018,000 $ 2,500,000

Previous year's encumbrances 14,028 14,028 14,028

Total other sources 602,028 3,032,028 2,514,028
Total revenues and other sources #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE!
Expenditures

Department Wide:
Other 3,014,028 3,014,028 2,130,196

Total expenditures 3,014,028 3,014,028 2,130,196
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

sources over expenditures (2,412,000) 18,000 383,832
Fund balance, January 1, 2020 19,090 19,090 19,090
Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2020 $ (2,392,910) $ 37,0900 $ 402,922
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Parks and Recreation Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenues $ 800 $ 1,610 $ 694
Total revenues 800 1,610 694
Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds 1,545,200 3,104,390 500,000
Previous years encumbrances 154,440 154,440 154,440
Total other sources 1,699,640 3,258,830 654,440
Total revenues and other sources 1,700,440 3,260,440 655,134
Expenditures
Department Wide:
Other 1,387,177 1,387,177 878,724
Capital outlay 632,263 632,263 85,035
Total expenditures 2,019,440 2,019,440 963,759
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures (319,000) 1,241,000 (308,625)
Fund balance, January 1, 2020 756,419 756,419 756,419
Fund balance, December 31, 2020 $ 437,419 $ 1,997.419 §$ 447,794
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Public Facilities and Improvements Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Taxes, Assesment and JEDD - - 492,500

Intergovernmental revenues 2,870 2,870 245,000
Miscellaneous revenues 11,540 11,540 251,092

14,410 14,410 988,592
Other sources:

Interfund Transfers - 1,835,000 -
Note/Bond proceeds 1,720,590 1,720,590 333,731
Previous year's encumbrances 1,220,647 1,220,647 1,220,647

2,941,237 4,776,237 1,554,378

Total revenues and other sources 2,955,647 4,790,647 2,542,970

Expenditures
Department Wide:

Other 2,964,314 2,664,314 1,911,920

Capital outlay 433,333 733,333 582,833

Total expenditures 3,397,647 3,397,647 2,494,753
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

sources over expenditures (442,000) 1,393,000 48,217

Fund deficit, January 1, 2020 (84,054) (84,054) (84,054)

Fund balance (deficit), December 31,2020 $ (526,054) $ 1,308,946 § (35,837)
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B-27
City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Public Parking Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:

Miscellaneous revenues $ 555,000 $ 1,125,000 $ -
Other sources:

Previous year's encumbrances 19,000 19,000 19,000
Total revenues and other sources 574,000 1,144,000 19,000
Expenditures

Department Wide:
Other 2,089,000 2,089,000 727,810
Total expenditures 2,089,000 2,089,000 727,810
Deficiency of revenues and other

sources over expenditures (1,515,000) (945,000) (708,810)
Fund balance, January 1, 2020 976,132 976,132 976,132
Fund balance (deficit), December 31, $ (538,868) $ 31,132 § 267,322

2020
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Intergovernmental Revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Department Wide:
Other
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2020

Fund balance, December 31, 2020

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual -
Economic Development Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Budgeted Amounts (Unaudited)

Original Final Actual Amounts

$ 73,250 § 73,250 § 250,000
289,060 289,060 942,226

362,310 362,310 1,192,226

2,218,690 2,218,690 750,000

194,108 194,108 194,108

2,412,798 2,412,798 944,108

2,775,108 2,775,108 2,136,334

2,589,735 1,839,735 1,533,777

234,623 984,623 812,335

2,824,358 2,824,358 2,346,112

(49,250) (49,250) (209,778)

352,771 352,771 352,771

$ 303,521 § 303,521 § 142,993

191

B-28



(This page intentionally left blank)

192



NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds — are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges. The non-major Enterprise Funds are as follows:

Oil and Gas

Golf Course
Airport
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Assets

Current assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances

for uncollectibles

Due from other governments
Inventories, at cost

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Net pension asset
Property, plant and equipment,
net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total assets and deferred outflows

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Advances from other funds
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages
Accrued vacation and leave
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability
Net OPEB Liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

City of Akron, Ohio C-1
Combining Statement of Net Position - Non-Major Enterprise Funds
December 31, 2020
Oil Golf
and Gas Course Airport Total

$ 204,453 $ 27,882 $ 5,001 § 237,336
7,988 - - 7,988

- - 342,553 342,553

. 82,214 - 82,214

212,441 110,096 347,554 670,091

- 6,134 - 6,134

395,487 1,072,042 7,037,003 8,504,532

395,487 1,078,176 7,037,003 8,510,666

607,928 1,188,272 7,384,557 9,180,757

- 201,433 - 201,433

607,928 1,389,705 7,384,557 9,382,190

619 15,082 18,059 33,760

- 260,000 1,000,000 1,260,000

28 26,987 - 27,015

62,570 4,339 23,500 90,409

- 16,142 - 16,142

- 33,182 - 33,182

63,217 355,732 1,041,559 1,460,508

312,850 61,278 - 374,128

- 729,712 - 729,712

- 495,811 - 495,811

312,850 1,286,801 - 1,599,651

376,067 1,642,533 1,041,559 3,060,159

- 243,047 - 243,047

376,067 1,885,580 1,041,559 3,303,206

395,487 1,072,042 7,037,003 8,504,532
(163,626) (1,567,917) (694,005) (2,425,548)

$ 231,861 $ (495,875) $ 6,342,998 $ 6,078,984
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City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

il Golf
and Gas Course Airport Total
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 7,988 $ 1,028,762 $ 172,607 $ 1,209,357
Other 55,462 161,956 100,609 318,027
63,450 1,190,718 273,216 1,527,384
Operating expenses

Personal services - 466,785 - 466,785
Direct expenses 121,010 689,811 779,721 1,590,542
Rentals and lease - 70,623 - 70,623
Utilities - 48,928 1,442 50,370
Insurance 16,319 6,544 7,915 30,778
Depreciation, depletion and amortization - 57,771 217,726 275,497
137,329 1,340,462 1,006,804 2,484,595
Operating income (loss) (73,879) (149,744) (733,588) (957,211)
Interest expense - (1,060) - (1,060)
- (1,060) - (1,060)
Income (loss) before transfers (73,879) (150,804) (733,588) (958,271)
Transfers-in - 100,000 - 100,000
Capital contributions - - 599,045 599,045

- 100,000 599,045 699,045

Change in net position (73,879) (50,804) (134,543) (259,226)
Net position, January 1, 2020 305,740 (445,071) 6,477,541 6,338,210
Net position, December 31, 2020 $ 231,861 §  (495,875) § 6,342,998 $§ 6,078,984
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City of Akron, Ohio

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Non-Major Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid for salaries and employee benefits
Other revenues
Other expenses

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities
Non-capital financing activities
Transfers from other funds

Transfers/advances in for negative cash balances

Net cash provided by non-capital
financing activities

Capital and related financing activities
Interest paid on bonds and loans
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Capital Contributions

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related
financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1, 2020

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31, 2020

C-3

Total
Non-Major
Oil Enterprise
and Gas Golf Airport Funds
$ - $ 1,028,762 $ 329477 $ 1,358,239
(96,619) (790,715) (891,547) (1,778,881)
- (750,287) (29,900) (780,187)
55,462 161,956 100,609 318,027
(41,157) (350,284) (491,361) (882,802)
- 100,000 - 100,000
- 260,000 200,000 460,000
- 360,000 200,000 560,000
- (1,060) - (1,060)
- (D) (325,2006) (325,207)
- - 599,045 599,045
- (1,061) 273,839 272,778
(41,157) 8,655 (17,522) (50,024)
245,610 19,227 22,523 287,360
$ 204453 § 27,882 $ 5001 § 237,336
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C-3

Total
Non-Major
Oil Enterprise
and Gas Golf Airport Funds
Operating income (loss) $ (73,879) $§ (149,744) § (733,588) $§ (957,211)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization - 57,771 217,726 275,497
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Receivables (7,988) - 156,870 148,882
Inventories - (6,948) - (6,948)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable 494 5,754 (102,267) (96,019)
Due to other funds (44) 26,385 (202) 26,139
Due to other governments - - - -
Accrued liabilities 40,260 (290,925) (29,900) (280,565)
Accrued wages - 3,979 - 3,979
Accrued vacation and leave - 3,444 - 3,444

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ (41,157) $ (350,284) $ (491,361) $ (882,802)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds — are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other governmental units, on a
cost-reimbursement basis. The title of the funds indicate the type of service provided. The Internal
Service Funds are:

Motor Equipment

Medical Self-Insurance
Workers” Compensation Reserve
Self-Insurance Settlement
Telephone System

Engineering Bureau

Information Technology
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City of Akron, Ohio

Combining Statement of Net Position - Internal Service Funds

Assets

Current assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables, net of allowances

from uncollectibles

Due from other funds
Inventories, at cost

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Net pension asset
Property, plant and equipment,
net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total assets and deferred outflows

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages
Accrued vacation and leave
Liability for unpaid claims
Debt:

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability
Net OPEB Liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

December 31, 2020

Medical Workers'
Motor Self- Compensation
Equipment Insurance Reserve

49,553 § 4,927,979 $ 5,965,268
54,991 718,327 -
590,230 - -
797,783 - -
1,492,557 5,646,306 5,965,268
18,261 5,892 -
1,350,006 - -
1,368,267 5,892 -
2,860,824 5,652,198 5,965,268
656,665 191,767 -
3,517,489 5,843,965 5,965,268
245,432 3,054,867 9,750

- - 140,258

4,134 6,740 -
19,215 5,121 1,301,466
98,930 25,851 -
107,557 35,201 -

- 4,154,587 263,525

475,268 7,282,367 1,714,999
553,814 64,604 617,448
2,170,484 697,271 -
2,349,455 474,116 -
5,073,753 1,235,991 617,448
5,549,021 8,518,358 2,332,447
1,035,639 232,323 -
6,584,660 8,750,681 2,332,447
1,350,006 - -
(4,417,177) (2,906,716) 3,632,821
(3,067,171) $ (2,906,716) $ 3,632,821
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Self-

Insurance Telephone Engineering Information Total Internal
Settlement System Bureau Technology Service Funds
17,942 $ 216,027 $ 1,119,734 ' $ 1,063,612 § 13,360,115

- - - - 773,318

- 52,196 120,537 46,177 809,140

- - - - 797,783

17,942 268,223 1,240,271 1,109,789 15,740,356

- - 32,636 8,163 64,952

- 171,461 78,818 439,647 2,039,932

- 171,461 111,454 447,810 2,104,884

17,942 439,684 1,351,725 1,557,599 17,845,240

- - 1,197,885 322,757 2,369,074

17,942 439,684 2,549,610 1,880,356 20,214,314
127,638 25,183 9,497 182,843 3,655,210
- - - - 140,258

- - 92,001 1,483 104,358

- 199 29,646 10,850 1,366,497

- 997 148,511 52,571 326,860

- 631 316,558 70,200 530,147
603,545 - - - 5,021,657
731,183 27,010 596,213 317,947 11,144,987
- 7,994 1,711,511 552,914 3,508,285

- - 3,910,262 963,804 7,741,821

- - 4,393,292 1,530,611 8,747,474

- 7,994 10,015,065 3,047,329 19,997,580
731,183 35,004 10,611,278 3,365,276 31,142,567
- - 1,924,592 630,858 3,823,412
731,183 35,004 12,535,870 3,996,134 34,965,979
- 171,461 78,818 439,647 2,039,932
(713,241) 233,219 (10,065,078) (2,555,425) (16,791,597)
(713,241) § 404,680 § (9,986,260) $ (2,115,778) §  (14,751,665)
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - Internal Service Funds

City of Akron, Ohio

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Other

Operating expenses
Personal services
Direct expenses
Claims
Rentals and lease
Utilities
Insurance
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Other

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense

Gain (loss) before transfers
Transfers-in
Changes in net position

Net position (deficit), January 1, 2020
Net position (deficit), December 31, 2020

Workers'
Motor Medical Self- Compensation
Equipment Insurance Reserve

$ 7,307,940 $§ 37,815,834 § 2,538,015
85,721 4,350,213 2,970,004
7,393,661 42,166,047 5,508,019
2,368,684 926,655 -
4,153,558 4,393,442 622,916

- 33,097,314 498,538

- 30,477 -

61,438 1,927 -
15,138 3,023,412 140,258
36,837 - -
2,902 - -
6,638,557 41,473,227 1,261,712
755,104 692,820 4,246,307

- - 726

(20,894) (22,375) -
(20,894) (22,375) 726
734,210 670,445 4,247,033
950,000 - -
1,684,210 670,445 4,247,033
(4,751,381) (3,577,161) (614,212)
$ (3,067,171) $ (2,906,716) $ 3,632,821
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Self- Total
Insurance Telephone Engineering Information Internal
Settlement System Bureau Technology Service Funds

-3 765,347 $ 5,516,609 $ 3,869,752 § 57,813,497
174,436 7,794 55,622 9,159 7,652,949
174,436 773,141 5,572,231 3,878,911 65,466,446

- 130,082 3,740,616 2,041,845 9,207,882

- 374,204 471,577 3,205,032 13,220,729

- - - - 33,595,852

- - 243,155 141,202 414,834

- 85,460 24,172 3,930 176,927

- - 16,936 1,561 3,197,305

- 21,779 3,960 249,046 311,622

- - - - 2,902

- 611,525 4,500,416 5,642,616 60,128,053
174,436 161,616 1,071,815 (1,763,705) 5,338,393

- - - - 726

- - - - (43,269)

N R - - (42,543)
174,436 161,616 1,071,815 (1,763,705) 5,295,850

- - - 900,000 1,850,000

174,436 161,616 1,071,815 (863,705) 7,145,850

(887,677) 243,064 (11,058,075) (1,252,073) (21,897,515)

(713,241) § 404,680 $ (9,986,260) $ (2,115,778) $  (14,751,665)
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City of Akron, Ohio

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid for salaries and employee benefits
Other revenues
Other expense

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities
Non-capital financing activities
Transfers from other funds
Transfers/advances in for negative cash balances
Principal paid on bonds, loans and notes

Interest paid on bonds, loans and notes

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital
financing activities

Capital and related financing activities
Interest paid on bonds and loans

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net cash used for capital
financing activities

Investing activities
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1, 2020

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31, 2020

Medical Self -

Motor Self - Workers' Insurance

Equipment Insurance Compensation Settlement
$ 7,240,800 § 38,597,507 § 2,538,015 $ -
(4,600,208) (4,183,045) 389,047 -
(2,586,639) (33,946,638) (3,143,234) (174,436)
85,721 4,350,213 2,970,004 174,436

(2,902) - -

136,772 4,818,037 2,753,832 -
950,000 - - -
(1,020,000) - -
(1,500,000) - -
(22,375) - -
(70,000) (1,522,375) - -
(20,894) - - -
(20,894) - - -
- - 726 -
- - 726 -
45,878 3,295,662 2,754,558 -
3,675 1,632,317 3,210,710 17,942
$ 49,553 § 4927979 § 5,965,268  § 17,942
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Telephone Engineering Information
System Bureau Technology Total

$ 738,710 $ 5,695,083 $ 3,893,494 $ 58,703,609
(446,760) (835,526) (3,364,582) (13,041,074)
(126,955) (4,340,882) (1,088,205) (45,406,989)
7,794 55,622 9,159 7,652,949

- - - (2,902)

172,789 574,297 (550,134) 7,905,593

- - 900,000 1,850,000
- - - (1,020,000)
- - - (1,500,000)
- - - (22,375)
- - 900,000 (692,375)
- - - (20,894)
(36,393) - 1 (36,392)
(36,393) - 1 (57,286)

- - - 726

- - - 726

136,396 574,297 349,867 7,156,658
79,631 545,437 713,745 6,203,457

$ 216,027 $ 1,119,734 ' § 1,063,612 $ 13,360,115
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City of Akron, Ohio

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Receivables
Due from other funds
Inventories
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages
Accrued vacation and leave
Estimated liability for unpaid claims

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

D-3

(continued)
Medical Self -

Motor Self - Workers' Insurance

Equipment Insurance Compensation Settlement
$ 755,104  § 692,820 $ 4,246,307 $ 174,436
36,837 - - -
(16,719) (718,327) - -
(50,421) 1,500,000 - -
(171,053) - - -
(201,169) 3,016,504 (119,684) 127,638
2,148 (6,401) - -
- - 140,258 -
(252,740) 138,214 - -
16,813 1,514 - -
17,972 (62,397) - -
- 256,110 (1,513,049) (302,074)
$ 136,772 $ 4,818,037 § 2,753,832 $ -
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Telephone Engineering Information
System Bureau Technology Total

$ 161,616 § 1,071,815  $ (1,763,705) $ 5,338,393
21,779 3,960 249,046 311,622

- - - (735,0406)

(26,637) 178,474 23,742 1,625,158

- - - (171,053)

12,904 3,039 9,941 2,849,173

- (82,725) (22,798) (109,776)

- - - 140,258

5 (672,689) 853,345 66,135

164 15,850 23,471 57,812

2,958 56,573 76,824 91,930
- - - (1,559,013)

$ 172,789  § 574,297  $ (550,134) 7,905,593
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Custodial Funds — are used to account for assets held by the City for individuals, private organizations, or
other governments. The City reports on the following eight custodial funds:

Claire Merrix Fund — is used to account for assets held by the City for tennis related expenditures
to individuals, private organizations, and other governments.

Police/Fire Beneficiary Fund - is used to account for assets held by the City to provide
scholoarships to beneficiaries of deceased Police and Fire uniformed staff.

Police Property Monetary Evidence Fund — is used to account for funds held by the Police
Department that will be returned to the other agencies.

Copley-Akron JEDD Fund — is used to account for JEDD income taxes levied by the JEDD
Board and disbursements pursuant to the contract.

Coventry-Akron JEDD Fund — is used to account for JEDD income taxes levied by the JEDD
Board and disbursements pursuant to the contract.

Springfield-Akron JEDD Fund — is used to account for JEDD income taxes levied by the JEDD
Board and disbursements pursuant to the contract.

Bath-Akron-Fairlawn JEDD Fund — is used to account for JEDD income taxes levied by the
JEDD Board and disbursements pursuant to the contract.
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City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Custodial Funds
December 31, 2020

Police
Property
Holocaust Police/Fire Monetary
Claire Merrix Memorial Beneficiary Evidence
Assets
Cash $ 1,060 $ -3 8,065 $ 1,602,608
Receivables - - - 43221
Total assets 1,060 - 8,065 1,645,829
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities - - - -
Due to other governments - - - -
Due to others - - - 6,277
Total liabilities - - - 6,277
Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - -
Restricted for individuals,
organizations, and governments 1,060 - 8,065 1,639,552
Unrestricted - - - -
Net Position $ 1,060 $ -8 8,065 $ 1,639,552
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Bath - Akron -

Copley - Coventry - Springfield - Fairlawn

Akron JEDD Akron JEDD Akron JEDD JEDD Total
-3 -8 -8 -3 1,611,733
1,304,544 749,918 1,118,821 1,213,263 4,429,767
1,304,544 749,918 1,118,821 1,213,263 6,041,500
125,022 53,613 69,932 509,214 757,781
66,800 34,351 33,085 82,570 216,806
- - - - 6,277
191,822 87,964 103,017 591,784 980,864
597,252 260,991 712,632 742,943 2,313,818
515,470 400,963 303,172 - 2,868,282
- - - (121,464) (121,464)
515,470 $ 400,963 $ 303,172 $ (121,464) $ 2,746,818
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City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Custodial Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Police
Property
Police/Fire Monetary
Beneficiary Evidence
Additions
Confiscated evidence $ - 8 393,630
JEDD income tax - -
Miscellaneous 300 17,442
300 411,072
Deductions
Distribution to participatns - 90,016
JEDD district expenses - -
Refunds - -
- 90,016
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fiduciary Net Position 300 321,056
Net position, January 1, 2020 7,765 1,318,496
Net position, December 31, 2020 $ 8,065 $ 1,639,552
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Bath - Akron -

Copley - Coventry - Springfield - Fairlawn
Akron JEDD Akron JEDD Akron JEDD JEDD Total
$ - - 8 -3 -8 393,630
658,365 419,819 606,150 4,470,216 6,154,550
- - - - 17,742
658,365 419,819 606,150 4,470,216 6,565,922
- - - - 90,016
684,997 362,133 346,592 4,345,846 5,739,568
105,566 57,787 215,089 132,774 511,216
790,563 419,920 561,681 4,478,620 6,340,800
(132,198) (101) 44,469 (8,404) 225,122
647,668 401,064 258,703 (113,060) 2,520,636
$ 515,470 400,963 § 303,172 ' $ (121,464) $ 2,745,758
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Statistical Section

This part of the City of Akron's (City) annual comprehensive financial report presents
detailed historical information as a context for understanding what the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says
about the City's overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 217

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 224
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's
most significant local revenue sources which are income tax and property tax.

Debt Capacity 229
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability

of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue

additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 237
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within the City.

Operating Information 239
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader

understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the

services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

annual comprehensive financial reports for the relevant year.

215



(This page intentionally left blank)

216



‘G107 ynm Sutuuidaq suoisuag 10f Suipioday [p1ounul,] pun SUUnoIdl ‘go# JUAWARIS gSyO Jo Anuiojuod ur paredard usaq sey | o(npayds

juountedo doueulL] OO ‘UOIYY JO A1) :90IN0S

TTISIISLY  §  €ITST09ES $§  1S6°600°0th 8ISITOSYY  $§  L86TI6HY9  § uonIsod JoN JUSWIISAOD) ATewLid [e}0],
(rS6°6¥LT0P) (050°889°5€¢) (6TS°€TE69Y) (818°76€£°5€7) (9LT°166°121) pajLIsaIun
vLLOSILS 880°1€¥°001 906709t 1 8S9°6E1PEL 06L%L0°9¢€ pojoLnsay
T0€°L89°066 SLIT8TILL PLS8TLOLL 8LI9LT'9VL €LY 6T8°0SL sjessy [esrde)) ur jusunsaAu] 1N

JUSWUISA0D) %.:waﬁm

6L1"8€8°50S vPL9TT STy 67E°€ES 0SY 07T°€0T Y 20 1S0°9bY uonIso JoN seniAndY odA 1 -ssouisng [ejo],
Y6TLOL 9E 656°T80°€S 9T1°TLS 9S SOE'EIP° 18 606°9* Ly pajoLysaruf
$00°9€S°E rE€9815°¢ 119°88%°¢ LY 678°S 01€°68¢°6 pojoLnsay
081°565°S9% 1S1°629°89¢ T6STLY06¢€ 89%°068 L€ €81°G17°68¢ syessy [esrde)) ur jusunsaAu] 1N

SANIANOY ddA T -ssauisng

€79°6LT°691 691°86L°011 (8LE°€TS'Y) 86T°818°C81 $86°198°81¢C UonIsOd JON SOLIANOY [JUSUIUISAOD) [B)0,
(8YT° LS 6EY) (600°TLL 88€) (559°568°5TS) (€T1°858°91¢) (S81°8€t°691) pajoLnsaIun
69Lv79°€8 vSYT16°96 S6TIIT IY1 112°067°8C1 08+°589°9C pojoLnsay
TTITO0°STS  §  YTOLS9TOF  $§  T86°SST08E 01T98E'TLE  §  06TFI9TIE  § s10ssY [ende) ur jueunsoAu] 1ON

SONIATOY [BJUSWUIIAOD)

£020C x610C  810C x L10T x 910C

656°078°T99  §  €€6°L8€°608 $  09%°916°SLL vOT'TOL8YL  $  STI'T98°TSL  $ UonISOd JON JUSWIIIAOL) ATewLi{ [EJ0],
(0€9°0€L¥ST) 718°€8T'€ (801°7L8°61) (£€8°779°0¢) (S0T'¥66°6€) pajLIsaIun
T6T196°SY LTO691°€S v66°119°9S 61T961°SS TI90ILEL pojoLnsay
L6T06S0LL T60°SE6°TSL vLS'8LI6EL 8L8816°CTL 80LVP161L sjessy [eide) ur jusunseAu] JoN

JUSWUIOAOL) ATRWLIJ

€0TTLY 9EY 0 E61°LTY 69V 0S V1t ¥80°LE6'66E 87 SO T6¢€ uonIsod JoN seniAndy odA  -ssauisng [ej0],
059°886°6C 6751891 0L6°1TT61 SYT'ELY'S (LT1°868) pajoLysaru
7668616 $68458°6 996°68L°6 069°92L°6 S8I°059°6 paLsay
195°486°96€ 8LI'E€TS 00 €€6 TV S8E 6F1°LEL TSE 06" €5€°T8€ s10ssy [exrde)) ur jueunsoAu] JoN

SANIANDY ddA ] -ssauisng

95L8F€°STT 1€S°P61°C8€ 166° 117 19¢€ 081°558°8¥¢ L9S*SSLT19¢€ uonIsod JON SONIANOY [JUSUIUISAOD) €10,
(08T61L¥81) (s15°1€5°€T) (8L0°960°6€) (8L0°960°6€) (8L0°960°6€) pajoLsaun
00€°29t°9¢ (43R AEN7 820°TT8'9Y 6CS69L ST LT0909 pojoLnsay
9€L°09°cLE  $  VIGTIVTSE $  1#0°989°¢sE 6TLI8ITVE  §  SITT6L9EE  § s10ssy [ende) ur jueunsoAu] 1N

SONIAT)OY [BJUSWIUIIAOD)

* S10T v10T €102 T10z 110C
I 9[NPaYoS

(Bu1unosov fo s1svq [PNI2ID)
SIBJ X [BISI] US] Ise]
juouodwo)) £q uonIsod ION
omjQ ‘uonfy Jo Ao

217



875°L91°86% §  S16°9ST9¢r 670876 111 S LIL'TTO6LY  § 9IFITHHES § S99°SSI ISy  § 8TS'SSY'8EF  § 0€TTLHOSF  § SOY9IFEEy §  THELYE'SOF § sasuadxy JUAUWUISA0D Areuiiid [e10,
€LS°0S8°STI 880°6L9°191 759026111 0TL'SS1°6T1 PP S1E8T1 0TEYSH8I1 9LT66S €11 606°€60°56 655°590°96 197 79L°16 sosuadxy saNIALOY ddAL-ssoursng [e10L,
187°700°1 £E6°61'1 86€€SEl LO809L TS0 1L S9L°026 7€6°0TL 167°€89 768°€59 T6L'S00°T yodiry
8LT€TEl €P1°LS0°T ¥76°689°1 LTHE8T'1 6978011 TLSLTT SLT90I°T S6E VTl PrE9LIT 1LO°E61°T 9sIn0)) J[0D
659°0%6°9 086°LLT L S65°705°9 SPLGLE'S 96S°69T°L 791°€90°L P61°681°L 0€6°6769 8ST°08L L 856°SSE°L sanIIoe Sunjreq
601°LET S96°1LE 8TS‘TY 685°6€ 1LS 6 LILTTE 090°0S¢€ 17€20C 689°6LT £79°0SC seD 2 10
7€9°57698 06L°9%6°€01 081°7T8°€9 OLL'EPL €8 0S1°€€6°€8 9T€806°0L TL6'60L'TL 65€°656S SI8YTI'8S 608°0€L 'Ot IoMag
TIY'615°6C LLT'SLS OV L¥0°015'8€ 78€°TS6°EE S08°€16'7E 8ESH96°LE I¥L°TTsS e €€9°6LO°TE 10L°0S0°8T 881°87T'SE 7R
sanIAnoy odA | -ssoursng
SL6'91ETLE LTS LLSYLT L6€°LT0°00€ L6657 7S¢ €L6°S01°90% SHETOL'TEE 75€988%CE 17€°8T€°6S¢E 906°0S€°LEE 188°C81°V1€ SOSUAdXH SANIANOY [EJUSUILIDAOD) [€10 ],
SE6°LTSLT 0Z¥000°81 TIITIESI SSHEI6'LT 0LL0E8'8T T08°S90°L1 05816091 €61°89%°S1 TEI6SSST 6£685€°ST uoneroorda(y pajyedoffeur)
LTY 1861 660°L88°€T 885°68€°1C T6SvE8 YT 81T €T6°ET 18€°681°0€ 0T 0P6°LT TIL'YTE9T S$8°99%°SE ST9°TITTT 1S9103U]
8TOPIS €01°02L'S 0vE6TIy 18T 6vt'y 86L°LIL'S €6€°L95°S 0LY 1189 9€8°069°L 9069069 LSY108°S S3Ied puB UONEBIIONY
PLLTIS'S 1€5°0S+Y 9L8°16t' % L18'vTr'y 0Z8vSEy LE6TSY'Y SLETESY TL91T6%€E $09°786°€ 8LELISE WIeSH o1qnd
SITTIFIL 617 TT8 LY €7L°66T°ST #80°106°09 85€79€'86 £09°€6€ T 879°0L6'TH €S1°€L9°88 SHEYLIO9 1LT°SSE'8S JUSWUOIAUY A)UNUILO))
PP E9T 8T 09T°8ST 61 016'FSL'STI 99€°FT1°6C1 B AN SL8'EV6 VTl YLTILI'OTI TLIPLETIT 697 IV1°El 1 G8L056°601 Kjoyes onqng
606°9C1°99 861°STE69 09L°SSTHL LTOEE0TL LOTTISTL TEL'EET YL SPI91S°L9 186°0%L°S9 TIS'SH0°TS 905°892°0S 901A10G dqng
L8LOTT'SY $  L6V'EI6SS 890°76€°9¢€ $  SLE'S8LOY S ¥6v0r6Ty $  €99°7S6°1€ $  90¥'LPS8E $  TOEPEISE $  €80°7LOVY $ 0T6LILSY § JUSUIULISAOL) [IOUSL)
SAMIATIOY [BJUSWUISAOL)
sasuadxy
¥L5°800°CST §  8LO'CIL0ST 9LV EE'8IT S TOL'SFI'IET  § 6IL'I9LLET  $ 890°TISHCT  § 68Y6PLIIT  § €€9°9L9°L0T  § LEOLSO'E8L  §  SOL'869°981 § SONUSAYY WS04 JUSWUIIAOD) ATBWLL] [B}OL
LIL068°I€] TLO'6LO™EE] 08€°67L°TT1 910°859°G€1 L98°6€L°SE] SPLE86'FE] S06°509°ST1 S10°SET'801 8600517201 8y 1 V1L Y6 SONUOAY WLIS0Iq SaNIANOY odA I -ssoursng [ej0]
08€°L0T'8 8EETES L 6T¥T0S°1 Yor 1vL Y 6v1°18t'S Y1916 v16°1L8 Y 8TS SH0Y 8I1¥°98L°L 0€91t'y suonnqLIuo)) pue sjueln) [ende)
9€1°9€9 r18°161 - - - - - - - - suonnquyuo)) pue spueln) sunendo
LO9TLI 928051 9SLTLY 895°€91 LLS 691 £99°C81 €86°9S1 T69vS1 8L8°L61 TI69L wodiry
ILLOEOT 617256 001°098 91916 9T1°1€6 TILLI6 £05°928 SI8°€68 STL'SE6 £69°L08 9sIn0D) J[0D
060°LTT°T 90€0L1 Y €65°LYE'E 7€889C°C SSSLOS Y CIS'SLTY SL6°0LS'Y T88°ELLY 96¥°LLS' Y 01€0ILY soniIoe, Sunjred
886°L - 1L5°96 696°C11 19 0€0°0€1 S06°1+¢C 611°00€ TLI9TT 69T°€LE seD 2 10
909°785°€8 P6E V6188 087°S0t'S8 SIT°18L°€6 910°07L 68 LLO'OLT 68 0EY 1S6°0L 9%0°L60°€9 £€€°80T°9S 0SL019°61 10M3g
6€8°€T1°9¢ SL6'L8LTE 1S9'770°1€ TiLLYEE £8€°0167€ 979°16€°5€ S61°986°¢E £€6°696' 7€ 9L0°S1T°TE TI6'8ILYE 7R
:SAIIAIDS 10J mow‘_wﬁ_o
SANIANDY D&H.mmoﬁmmsm
LS8 LIT'0TI 9007€L 911 960 707°S6 989°06%°56 768120701 €7€°878°68 78S €71°96 819°1¥7°66 6£6°906°08 LSS86°16 SONUOAY WLIF0I] SONIATIOY [BJUSIUISAOD) [e10],
LIS TH6'EE 856°185°01 €6 1LI°LE 8TYTYLYE 799°€S€°9t er16vE Ty 9TSS60° 11 099 VLL Y TIPLOS SE 9T98LL'8E suonnqryuo)) pue sjueln) [epde)
90L YT ¥E L86°THS'ST ¥€6°C10°T1 LEETIFOT 9€°ShEEl 968¥TL Tl 9€8°97€°61 608°601°0C 857°859°61 SLY'TOE'LT suonnqLIuo)) pue syueln Junerdo
181°9Tt LSY TH9 YTe1€9 9TY 10L 019°€S0°1 L 6L0°0€EL 0Ty 0€T PSL'E]T LESTYT S3jIed pue UONEBAIY
Y0€ - - - - - - LST'T Tis'e TEl'LE )eay onqng
TTIELT’9 L80°STI01 129°TT'Y SELILE'S 91+ LIY'E 197°8CC 18€°0€T°C 000v91 981°CTH LO9'L JUSLIUOIAUY A)UNUILIO))
691V€LT 7T0°868°€ L61€01Y T66°'181% 12S9L1y L19'6¥€Y 8LL'LILY S0t°798 16£°80S SEELY8 Kayes orqnd
L69°98T°0C 0L9°€6€°81 9L0°881°91 609°78E'81 865G €SE'8T TL96¥6°61 LTS 68181 9L YTSI1 LST POV ¥ 1 SIET60°ST 991A19G Qg
198°686°1¢C $  ST86rSLT 100°1LS 0T $  6S1°869°1¢C $  1TLILTSI $  TSESOSL $  LSH'ESS6 $ ICEELY Yl $ 69681701 $ 0€TYL96 $ JUSWIUISAOL) [eIouaD)
‘SAIIAIDS 10] mmw‘_mau
SONIANOY [BJUSWIULIOAOD)
SANUIAJY weadolg
020T 610T 810¢ L10T 910¢ S10¢T ¥10T €10 [414 110T
T 2Ipayds

(Bununoosov fo s1Svq JPNI2ID)

SIB9 & [eoSI] U9 ISe]
uonIsod JoN ur saguey)
oI ‘uoryy Jo Ao

[ee]
—
N



juaunreda(q 2dueul OIYQ ‘UODY JO A1) :90IN0S

€1L190°L9 S 0S0'768°68 $  100°7Sy'8L $ (99€°LL9°0T) $ 8E6THTY $  L9I°LOT'LI § LIEBELIL $  968°018°1% $  T06°LE69 § E6LPOI'TY §  UONISOJ JON UI d5Uey)) JUSUIUIIAOD) ATewId [el0],
6£5°085°8 (859°TLTHT) €89°66°C1 8IS TSI 9T 6£5°861°6 198°069°61 880°V€C9 S8E°L9S T 9€5°1€8°8 L96°0€8" SOMIAIDY ddA [ -ssoursng
YL I8F'8S S 80L99TPII $  8IEVTSSY $ (¥81°678°97) $ (109°€5T°S) $ (F69°€8+°0) $  6TTH0S01 S TIS'erTLT $ (v€9°€68°1) $ 978°c9c9e  § SONIALDY [EJUSLILIDAOL)

uonisod 1oN ut auey)

L89°0TTEIE  § LSSLEY'SLT  § VLSITTLT  $ 6VISOLLET  $ vEOH06'00E  $ YIL0SS'EYT  § 9SEHLYEPT  $  €6V'9SSHRT  §  0€EL6TLST  $  OLHERH09T § JudwuIA0D) ATewlid [210],

S6E°0¥ST §  8SETLTYE $  SS6°0TIT $  TTS6H9'S $ PIIPLOT $  9erI9I°E $  6SELITY § 6LTITY'1 $  L66'9VLT $ 08TI88T  § SONIADDY ddA [ -ssoursng [e10L
000°00L°T 000°0€L 000°T6L 000°1#6 000°T19 00£°L88 000°99% 09€°8€€ 000°80€ 966°6CS SIQpsuel],
- ﬁNm - - - - - - - - SONUIAIT Uv\:wﬁ—m ﬁouoﬂbmu\qﬁ:
YTLIES 011°199°C SET'86TT YILOLS' 65°5SET 09v°991°C TE€9°09L°€ $90°L80°T TIT8EY'T 859°0S€°T SNOAUEJ[ISIA]
1L9°8 $  LT6'sE $ 0T8I€ $  8SLILET $  $S9°L01 $ 9L9°L01 $ LTl $ ¥s8 § <8L $ 979 $ SBUTLLIBH JUSUIISOAU]

:sonIANOY odA ] -ssoursng ®
N

T6T°089°01€  §  6TS010°TLT  § 6I9°LVI'OLT  § LTIOWI'TEC  § 0TS0E8'86T  § 8TEGSEOVT  § L66'OVT6EC  $ bITOEI'E8T  § €EE0SSHST  §  0SI°T9S8ST § SOIALOY [EJUSIUIOAOD) [E10,

(000°00L°T) (000°0€L) (000°T6L) (000°T+6) (000°119) (00£°L88) (000°99%) (09€°8€€) (000°80€) (966°62S) SIOJSUEI],

YILYT €THTL 09€°€S 8L8°101 065°€€ 8€LT 6£TH1 LOETE S¥0°09 666°S6 sjessy [ende) Jo o[eg uo (ssof) uren
SLS'LLO'0E €ET165°T1 PESHIEDT 61€°12C°01 160111 LSE‘ES'L 961°SS1°01 08€°LS9°01 8LO'LEES 768°650°0€ SNOAUE[ISIN
610°€69°TL 0$8°850°St 9TL €190 €8L°9TL T 0£0°L8Y°86 PSTLYE9Y Y61°TSL9Y Y61°€78°T6 ¥8T01L69 L8ETITTS SONUOAY PATEYS PAIOLISAIU()
020°T6£°T LS9°606°S €IT60b°E LLSTTTT 661°0LT°T 106°8+8 ¥8L°00€ 669°€SS S00°6EY TI9°Eh9 SSUTLLIBH JUSUIISOAU]
LTS S8L'ST £6£°€80°91 €L0°S06°FT 0S€°008°t1 18 THETI TELTLT61 0TS'8SL'LT Th6°S8Y 81 112°90L°0T €51°928°91 sonuoAdY (Al

888°620°9C 091°8¥0°4C 96€£°991°9T PPETES YT 9SETHE'ET L9T189°€T 091°Tre‘€T TELTI61 TI6°€004T 0T0°1£8°ST soxe], Aiadoig
66 LLESIT  §  €I89E0°0LI $  LIE9TYILI $  9L8°€81°6€1 $  €vP9S8°TSI $  08€°1€TEV] $  $06°68E 11 $ 0IL68TIHI $  86LT09°1€1 $  €80°CLYPEL $ SOXE, uodu]

saxe ],

ISAMIATIOY [BJUSWUIIAOL)

uonIsod PN ur mumcmﬂU REViTQ)

PpuUe oNUIAIY [BISUID)

(PL6'8STOVT)  § (LEQEPS'S8I)  § (ELSHI8°€6)  § (SS8TTOL'6YD)  $ (969°659'967)  § (L6S°€EbE9TT)  § (6€0°9€L97T)  § (L6S'SPLTHD)  § (8TH'65€°0ST)  § (LE9'BKT'61T) § asuadxy JoN JUSUIUINA0D) ATEWIId [e10,

PP1°0¥0°9 (910°00L°LT) 8TL'808°01 9TIVLT'6 STH YL STH6TSIT 62L°900°C 90T THI'El 6£S7809 L89°616°T SOMIAIPDY ddA [ -ssoursng

@Q11°661°T57)  § (1T8°cr8LSD) ¢ (10€°€T9'v00)  $ (11€°6L6'8ST)  $ (ITI'P80b0E)  § (Tro'eL8Tye)  § (89L°ThL'8TT) & (€0L°988°6ST)  § (L96°eht'9sT)  § (bTe'861°TTD) § SOIIATIOY [EJUSUILIDAOD)

onuaAdY/(esuadxy) 1N

0202 610 810C L10T 910¢ S10T ¥10C €10C [414 110T

C ?[MpaYds
(panunuod)
(Bu1Iunod2ov Jo S1Svq [PNIIOD)
SIBd X [BOSI] USJ, IS
uonIsod 19N ur saguey)

olQ ‘vony Jo A1)



T10T YHm Suiuui3aq suoniuyaq adA [ pung [pjuduuidaor) puv unioday aouvpg pun. “4G# JUawlels gSvo Jo Aruojuod ur paredard usaq sey ¢ o[npayds,

juoweda 9oueUL OIY() ‘UOL[Y JO A1) :90IN0S

PESTL680T $ TEBTEL'S6 $§ TTIO08VIT § €OLTYTOIT $ 8ET096°LST $ 868°SHO'CET § 8TLS99°99T § 60L°6€S°SOT $ LOSOT6'ETT § 988°V06°61T $ Spunyj [BJUSWUISIA0D mé
TETSOV'LL 19€° 15778 YTTOSHFTOT  €€8°9€L°901  T6V9€9°0FT  YIOTIIOTI  €PPOE8EST  €IL90EY6 0Z0°S0E°LOT  S69°09L°011  SPUN [BIUSWIUIDA0D JYIQ [[V [8I0L
(69¢v20°10)  (9LS'Ly6vT) (869 T116°LT)  (eh¥'T89°vT)  (LzLz8recl)  (ssT's8zel)  (1Tssiv'e)  (06L°896°0)  (T6T8bPLT)  (€ST'E€T9°0h) paugisseu()
- - - - - - - - 08€°SLE - pougissy
88€°696°C1 €LS 9t 6 Y20vhss 950°886°8 €09°TI8 Y1 ¥16°015°01 L8Y°6T8°ET 968°06%°L 186°20S°€T 187°8tt'S panIwwio)
€ITPIr°ss YOELEL'LS 868°€T8 IIT  OTTISHTIT  919°L00°8ET  €TI00ILIT  SYTOL9'PPl  TOL'8SP'60T  90€68L°LIT  TTO'0SSTHI papLsay
- - - - - TET98LY TET98LY SI8°TE’S $$9°680°¢ $$9°680°¢ s[qepuadsuoN

spunj [eJUSUIUISAOD) IOYIQ [[V

T0€°L9S 1€ 1LY 08P €l 86€°05€T1 0L8°50S°6 9L €CE L] ¥88°€€6°T1 GLT'SE]T] 966°TEC 11 L8L°S09°9 161116 pun, [eIouas) [e10],
LTO°0TT'ST 180°STS 11 LEL'66T01 vT6'S8Y L 691°TT0°S1 6T0°T8€E'8 09€°T16°01 T9S°TE16 YEITOI'S 61L°T06°L pougisseun
0vL6£8°C 9169%°1 S0T°6LS 1 LYE9LS ] 090706°1 SIOPLIY $S6°€65°1 9LL608°1 996°9¢C°1 LY TYT] pousissy
SESLOS § vrTosy $ 9S¥ILY § 665€ry § LIS°L6E § OV8°LLE $ 196°62€ § 859°06C § L89°99T $ - $ papIuwos

pun, [eIoUdD)

020¢ 610¢ 810¢ L10T Sroc Sroc 10T €10¢ (41014 110¢

€ Inpayds
(Bununodov fo S1Spq [PNI2ID patfipout)
SIBI A [BOSI UQJ, IS
spun,J [eJUSWILISAOL) ‘SaduR[Rg punj

olQ ‘vony Jo A1)



oot 610z 810T LTOT 910t £T0T FIO0T £10T fatine 110t

H_______;

Jduejeyg pung [RIUID PIAUSISSRU[)/PIAIISAIU)

5

00000075

000°000°0T$

000°000°STS

000000 0TS

0007000 <TS

0007000 055

€ 2[NpaYdS

(Bu13uno2ov fo S1Svq [PNI2ID Patfipout)
SIBd X [BOSI] US], IS8
spun, [RJUSWIIdAOL) ‘SaduR[Rg pung
oIjQ ‘uony Jo Ao

221



(99%°L80°9) $ (brL°s98°8L)  § (29S°9LT'T8)  § (W6T6I6'WL)  § (SS9°6S6%S)  § (10€°LE8°9F)  § (T€L°890°C9)  § (T9L981°TE)  § (TLTHI6SE)  § (901°T€9°6E) SoIIpuadxz Iopu[) SONUSARY JO SSOIXH
800'VSTTHY  $ POL'SEVEOr  § 8PLOLOTHY  § 9LTOV8'SOF  § L8LLG6SESY  § 66VPTCLE  § TBSTOL'66E  § €OULVTIIY  $ LIOT6EVLE  § 685°860°68¢  $ somypuadxy [ejo,
6L17SE T69°99L 699°66C SIE°€9L S6S°L61°1 96C7€6 SP9TI8°l TLO'6LY 6£TH0ET 659°8S¥°1 somypuadxy douenss| puog
$0S 667 7T STT'STL'9T 626°011°9C 9LL'TILI'LT LOS'STY'LT 106°90%°6C 1€8V1L°8C T91°€SE°0E L10°009°8T 9€1°029°€E 1sa19u]
P61°€0L Y T€9°01€°L8 608°1€1°6L 908°91L99 9€5°990°1S ¥T1°559°6€ 206°618°6S LEIS6'EY 085°880°6C 1€6C18°TY Juowoay [edioutig
190IAISS 1G9
- - - - - - - - - - KepnQ ende)
[l ez a 9€TTELY b8 ISLY 881 TH6'E SPHTIY'S 0€1°0TE’S TES'LYL'O 699°T6L°L €6L°9%6°9 L¥8°08Y'S S3IEJ PUB UONEAIOY
€6£°S0bY 200°THT'Y €TELEEY 960°6£T° 0P6°€STY YTT981Y PPr009'y 768°006°€ LYT Y00y €69°LS6°€E WeaH orqnd
€50°095°€8 0€1°96£°59 TI19°66T°€S 88STLY 19 €59°9SL°TTT 190°L68°19 6¥0°66£°€S 819°T1°€01 688°5Y9°16 89T'LEOLL JUSLIUIOIIAUH A)UNUILIO))
[LT6STTET 687910141 90 TIY P POT°9EL ST YPLLYS TET 986°00L 811 SHP910°CTI TIS8SH 601 LIYE49°601 0L0F18°0T1 Kioyeg orqng
$86°TEL00T €S1°€T6'48 L88°L66°L8 809°T1CTHL 6T6°1TI°18 8.8°09L°+8 $69°897°S8 6€1708°8L 098°9t1°6S OFL €IS TL 92I1AIRS QN
L90°S6E9Y  § SETYTESY $ €€9°659°6¢ $ S6v°985°8¢ $ 8EI'cI86E $ 668°T9L‘8T $ 6LLECTELE $ T9T9LIEE $ sze0lL'Ty  $ S8T00VTH $ JUSUILLIDAOD) [EIOUDD)
Juoimn))
saamyipuadxy
THS'991°9¢F  § 0SO'0LS'H8E  $ 98I'FSL6SE  $ T86'0TE'0ELE  § TEI'BEY'B6E  § 86I°L8LOTE  § 0S8'EEY'LEE  § T0K°090°08€  § SPLOLY'SEE  § €8F'LOV'6VE  § SONUAAY [EI0],
1TH'9TI 1€ TTRLLLYT 788°STH91 60185991 112°629°T1 L66'VYY°6 6v1°508°C1 ¥68°8TT01 065°799°8 67E°€€S 8T SNOAUB[[ISIA]
8L6'V60°61 0LT 16681 09€°€20°ST 001°596°€T 6LL6YL0T T9%°9€9°0C $99°005°€T 60%°LYTvT 0TS 6SLLT 911°200'vT SOJIAIRS 10] SABIRYD)
0T9°TE1°9C 8PP €S 0€E 819°1S9°81 786°019°LT PITTISLI PLI09%°6 1LL°T6T°01 YSLTY'8 [P T10°8 SL8T8Y'L SOUL] PUE S99 ‘SSUOIT
£66°079°8L 162785 61 L60°S68°St 99T'SSS St 020°9T€ 001 965°L08°St 1S6°1SE"LY SSL'6LS'Y6 ¥8€°89L°89 818°164°CS SONUDASY Pareys
9LL9TY'T Y9SYH6°S 006°0S¥°€ S99°T1TT 68T°661°1 ¥1T°0S8 869°8€€ £8¢°¥8S T88°LIS 601°CTLL sBuIuIey JUSUNSIAU]
T9€°914°0S ¥8€°906°9¢ 96L°T9¥°6T €8L°7S0°8T 186°CL6°ST 69606 vT 18€°997°0¢ 0T0°9bL ¥E S6TSIE Y 68T 1H8°St eliile}
- - - - - - - - - 9L8°S6L L juawdoaasg Ayrununuo))
SAIPISqNS pue SjuLID)
16£°LS6°81 €87°0T€ 61 8Y8°TOY'LT TOLTTY ST 86V°6L1°T¢E 0€€°0L9°0€ L18°TS6 1€ SPPPTS 8T §98°696'%1 LY8TIE9 SJUSWISSISSY [e10adg
LTS S8L'ST £6£°€80°91 €L0°S06F1 0S£°008°t1 6V 63€ b1 €LS°€TLI €€6°S6E°LT LTI°060°81 Y19 T180C 866°LLS 91 sonuoAdY QAL
6S9°TTL YT SETTE6YT 768°098%C TU6 SOV HT T00°€TY €T TETYIV'ET 8I1°8IS €T 910° 1Lt 0T 6TLELS YT TLETIIYT soxe], Aiodoig
SIS'EL8'8IT  $ 09V'6LVL9T  § 0TL'S6S'EIl  § EPLOLI'EYT  § 68L9STIST  § 1S9°88T'Ehl  § LOEC'TIEOVT  $§ 868°096°6E1  $ SEV060°TEl  § bET'SHESEl  § + SOXE, QW0ou]
SINUIAIY
020¢ 610 810 L10T 910¢ S10T ¥10T €10 [404 110T
¥ [MpaydS§

(Bununodov fo s1svq [pn.aodD pafipout)
SIB3 X [BOSI US], Ise]
Spun, [BJUSTULLIDAOLD) ‘saoue[eq pung ur soduey)

orjQ ‘uonfy Jo A1)

222



‘soryrpuadX 99UeNSS] puog UT POPN[IUT SeM JUNOISIJ ANSS] puog [BUISLIQ ‘4107 O3 JOUI 44

'04,G"7 SeM OBl XB ] SWO0OU] oY) ‘()7 OUIS 4

juoweda(q ooueul] OIYQ ‘UOLYY JO A1) :921N0S

%8L81 %81°8C %09'8T %LL'ST %LS 61 %%9°0T %LS T %95°0T %6Y'LT %L9°TT soxypuadxy [endesuoN
JO 98.ju00104 ® Se 991AI9S 192
0L 0V EL $ (626'62C00)  $ (180°9¢H°T) $ (€L0°681°9€)  $ 016°LP1°9C $ (0T8°619°€€)  $§ TLLTTOHY $ (860°TLE'S) $ (6L0°V66°S) $ (1€8°6S°00) soue[eq pung ur d5uEY) 1N
891°8TE 61 S18°5€9°8S 187°0¥8°08 12T0€L°8€E S9S°LOT'I8 18Y°LITET $0S°060°9C1 ¥99°518°CC £61°076°6C SLT'SOT 61 (s9s)) $00IN0S FuroUEUL] IOYIQ [BI0L
(SSLSTH'TIT) (TT6°0S+°11) (190°LL6°TT) (891°5€8°€T) (196°LT8°€) (TTY°LL6'S) (000°€61°€) (I15+'885°8) (POLYTIY'L) (S05°90L°C1) INO-SIYSUBLL,
GSL'S98°L TT6°0TL01 190°981°T1 891v68°C1 196°91C°¢ TTE060°8 000°LTLT 160°001°8 POL TH0°L Y SHI°TI ul-S19JSuel],
- - - - - (psL1€L) - (6T8°LSET) (0ST°LTT'Y) - sjossy [ende) paoueul - 9sed]
(000°509°L2) (000°068°12) - (T8L°9¥8°TS) (T06°€0Y v<) (000°5L0°0L) (000°089°29) - - - JeBY SuIpuryay o} Juswked
S8LE6L - 6¥1°68L°01 $86°6€0°T 000°$£9°01 PSLTEL $8T6ST 6T8°LSE'T 0ST°LTT'S - asea] [ende)) o aouenss|
- - (19t°6£2) (80t°€ST) (196°11) (38:329) (620°1ED) - - - 4 JUNOISI(T ANSS] puog [EUISLIO
- - - - - - - - (LEEPREE6T) (€6T°5€T°€6) suonesIqQ Supunyoy| 1oy juowked
- - - ¥61°820°t - - - - - - SSUIMOLI0q PIZI[BIdIR[[0D JO SPISI0I]
- - - - - - - - 000°ST6°0LT 600°€€9°L6 suonesIqQ punyay Jo spaadoid
061°L18°1 Y0T'STS L 00T°LT6 €18°L90% 867°651°9 S99°€L8‘y YELTIL'6 0rS6LI S1€969°1 L8E°50T 1920 "0’ U0 W1
- - - - - - - - SIT'981%C €61°09¢'y WNIUd1J SpUOg SUIpUNY JO Spa2dold
000°5€8°8CT 000°50¥°0C - 000°096°8% 000°StS°TE 000°St6°€9 000°580°88 000°016'+1 - - suonedIqQ Surpunyay Jo douenss|
- - 000°St¥vT - 000°596°TT - - 000°59€°T - - $,d0D Jo dduenss]
- - - - - 8¥T'6 SIS‘eLE'E 000°000°T - - SUBO' JO QOUENSS]
- - - - 0€6°€£6°C - - - - - suonnqruuo)) [ende)
€61°LE0°61 $ 119°sTees $ €6S60LSY $ 6Iv LS ce $ 000°000°CS $ 000°00S°ST $ 000°887°88 $ P86 $ 000°0L8°9T $ 000°€0L°01 $ puog uonesIqQ [e1oU0D) JO SOUENSS]
(s3s)) sd2anog Surdueul JYIQ
0202 6102 810 L10T 910¢ S10T ¥10T €10 [404 110C
¥ 9[payds
(panunuod)

(Bu1unoodp Jo S1S0q [PNL2ID Pafipout)

SIBd X [BOSI US], ISe]
Spun,{ [eJUSWIUIIAOL) ‘sooue[eq pun, ur sdguey)
oIyQ ‘uonyy Jo Ay

223



'saIn31y 0M) JO UOIIBUIQUIOD o) ST SANI[IN o1jqnd I0J 9N[BA [EN}OR PIJBUINISO ON[BA PISSISSE Y[,
'04,G € AQ on[eA PIssasse o} SUIPIAIP AQ POALISP SI anjea [enjoe pajewinsd oy ‘Ajodoiad [eax 10 910N

juowredo dourulq OO ‘UOLY JO A1) 190In0S

00°S¢ 0S°0T1 1L6°€50°6 068°891°¢ 809°119 €95vTT €9€°TIV'8 LTEYY6T 120t

00°S¢ 0501 061°CE1°8 099°9%8°C 10C%29 ¥98°81¢ 686°L0S°L 96L°LT9T 020T

00°S¢ 0501 0T6ILL'L 96L°80L°T 607 7€9 L99°01¢ TISLET'L 6T1°86%°C 610T

00°S€ 0S°01 08T'TOL'L 86L°S69°C 60779 €¥0°TTT 1L8°L90°L SSL'ELYT 810C

00°S¢ 0S°0T1 PLETES L 186°6€9°C 1£676S 92T‘80C €PY°9€6°9 SSLELTY'T L10T

00°S€ 0€°01 8TELSEL §90°SLST LEOTLY €17°691 162°588°9 T58°60¥°C 910T

00°S¢ 0¢°0T1 SLO'6LE L 988°78ST 6T S1Y 00%°Sy1 9TY96°9 98Y°LEVT S10T

00°S¢ 0€°0I 0y S8Y°L 706°619°C €77 79¢ 8LL9TI LIT'ETI’L 9T1'c6¥T ¥10¢

00°S¢ 0€°0I vLO'LO9L 9L¥°T99°C 169°61¢€ T6S° 111 €8€°L8TL ¥85°0SS°T €10¢

% 00°6€ 0€°01 909%€9°L TITLYT 8 0T6°79¢C 7e0c6 S 989°1LEL $ 060°085°C $ (45014

anfeA [ENOY ey anjeA onjeA onfeA anjeA anfeA onfeA ICEN

pajewisy (810, 03 1211 ey Ppassassy [emoy passassy [emoy passassy uondS[0)

onjeA passessy reloL parewsy parewnsy parewnsy Xe[,

[e10] JO JUQ0IdJ TeloL senImN oqnd K1odoid [eoy

G d[mpayd§

(s4vjjop fo spuvsnoy; u1)
SIBd X [BISIJ US] Ise]

Kiradoig o[qexe] Jo anjeA [EN)OY PAJEWNSH Pue dnJeA PISSISSy

OIQ ‘UOIYY 30 A1)

224



juownreda(q doueUl] OIYQ ‘UOD[Y JO AII) :99IN0Y

225

91 09°CI1 9¢°6L 0501 290 0€0 0¢€0 8C6 120¢
9’1 9l 9¢°6L 0501 90 0¢0 0¢€0 8CT6 020t
9’1 9T ¢Sl 9¢°6L 0501 90 0€0 0€0 8C6 610¢
9wl 9T ¢Sl 9¢°6L 0501 290 0€0 0€0 8C6 810¢
991 0¢¢SI 9¢°6L 0501 290 0€0 0¢€0 8C6 L10¢
9’1 439! 9¢°6L 0¢01 wo 0¢0 0¢€0 8CT6 910¢
9’1 0811 9¢°6L 0¢01 w0 0€0 0€0 8C6 91114
9wl I8¥1 9¢°6L 001 44\ 0€0 0€0 8C6 ¥10¢
991 124! 9¢°6L 0col o 0¢0 0¢€0 8C6 €10¢
9’1 0811 99°'1L 001 wo 0¢0 0¢€0 8CT6 (41014
syIed Auno) 10LSI(J [00YOS ey JUOWIAINY uoIsus g uoIsuod suneradQ FCEYN
OJ}OIN UOLY junung A1) uony 10011 [BI0 L, 199 a1 ao1104 uoro9[[0)
Xe]J,
sajey] Surddeproa( sayey] 10011 A1)
9 9MpadS

(anppa passassv o 000 [§ 1od a1v.4)
SIBO X [BOSI] UQ] ISe]
sarey xe] Aadord Surdderroa( pue joo1q
oIy ‘uoryy Jo A1)



yusunteda(q doueUl] OIYQ ‘UOIY JO A1) :90IN0S

% 879 905°L91 % 19'vC LIL°6LL
¥T0 €6£°9 d10)) JudwaSeuLy UonY S0 918°L DT Suneurun||] OLOS[F PUBOAJ]D
LT0 SLI'L D711 sdnaedoid uonfy T4OH wo Tseel OTTIIH [pdeyd od
LEO0 86L°6 SeD OO Iseq w0 T6€€l SurpjoH jueunedy doj sequir,
LEO0 8566 ANITIQEIT PAYIUIT JOMO [, UOSIPH OO 810 TSI pajesodioou] JyoaIqry
evo 08€°11 UoIssTusuel ], UedLIoWy 01T 066t€ 101ua)) [BIIPIJA [€IIdSOH SUAIPIYD)
9%°0 L8ETT uossng "( pleulog 69°C G168 D11 UOISSIUSUeL], Sef) SNXON
LY0 0€5°Cl 12u9)) [BOIPIJN [eNdSOH S,udIp[IYD Iee 9LLY01 WoISAG ([eoH ewwng
€50 Propl pajesodioou] Jyoaiqry 0S¢ 900°TTI Sep o1 Iseyq
¥9°0 G80°L1 Uon[y Jo ANSIOAIU() 68°S vLS981 UoIssTusuel ], UedLIowy
% 0S°C 95.°99 A31oug 18114 % SS9 0€¥°L0T uosipy oo
onfeA onfeA IoKedxe], anfeA anfeA IoKedxe],
passossy passossy passossy passassy
J[qexe] Jo JIqexe], J[qexe] Jo J[qexe],
a3rjuooiog a3rjuodiog
110T ‘1€ 1quaosqg 0T0T ‘1€ 1quiadsqg
L 9Mpayd§

(s4vjjop fo supvsnoyi u1)
110T/T¢/C1 PUB 0T0CT/T¢/CT
s10Aed xe] Ajadoid [edourrd

oI ‘UOLYY JO KD

226



yusunedo(q ooueul OIYQ ‘UOLYY JO A1) :90IN0S

G'€6 0T8°LEGLT ovTevL'E S'LS vLO'EV1°9T 12€°768°6C 020t
986 [LL'SE0°8T 061°VL0°T LT6 680°89€°9C 6LTTHY'8T 610¢
6'86 60t°S00°8C 179°788°1 €'¢6 690°12t°9C 01L°S0€°8C 810¢
6701 10£°786°8T [L1'P€9°] I'v6 890°686°ST 6€T619°LT L10T
866 I¥L0LY 9T TIS'SES T Y6 v18°L86VT 9TE€TS9T 910¢
6'86 SLSS1€9C TO8LLS'] 0°¢6 €89°LELYT SLEV09°9T ¢10¢
0°66 089°61L°9C 0S9°L69°1 LT6 0€0°CT0°ST 0SL‘¥86°9C ¥10¢
$'86 618°C00°LT L¥9°8TS°1 8’16 TLI'PLI'ST 96S°61¥°LT €102
9°S6 18€°91€°9C €75°8¢€8°1 6'88 8S8°LLY VT 86881S°LT T1oz
% L'S6 L10°9TL 6T LET'LTO'T $ % ¢S68 ITL86LLT 1E€SY90°T€ 110¢
AA9T JO junowry SUOI}I9[[0D) AA9T 3O junowy Jea X [BoSIq 1€/21
a8eiuaoIog XeJ. a8euaoIog Ay Iog Surpug
9Je(J 03 SUONDII[0) [BI0L juenburjoq AAQT O3 JO JBI & [BOSI] PoIAdT XB L Ieo X [eoSI]

oY) UIIA PJO[0D)

8 2[NpaYdS

SIBQ X [BOSI US ], ISt

SUONI[0)) pue $AIAdT xe ] A1odoid

oIyQ ‘uony Jo Ko

227



"9NUIAAI S A1) 9} JO $20INOS A} SUIPILTII UOTBULIOJUI SAT)RUID)E 9PIA0Id 03 papudiul are pajudsald
SO11039180 Y [, "9[qR[IBAR JOU Ik SI9ARd ONUIAJI JS35IR] U9) I JO SOUIRU Y] ‘SANSSI AJ[BNUSPIUOI 0} aN( 910N

yuounaeda(q doueur] OO ‘UOD[Y JO A1) :90IN0S

% 007001 Yoy 8Yy 991 $ % 000071 ST8YE
orov 0L1°TSL 99 S0°0 L1 100°000°T$ 1940
69°¢l €V9°€6L°TT S1'o [4S 000°000°T$ - 100°0ST$
£6'6 L8T61591 1€0 801 000°0S<T$ - 100°001$
ILL 917°5T8°C1 €50 981 000°001$ -100°0S$
124! G8L°S98°€T 0T'¢ €Il 000°0S$ - 100°01$
vey 611°91CTL ¥6°C TT0°1 000°01$ - 100°S$
se'e €88°¢86°S SS'y G8S°1 000°S$ - 105°T$
8¢'¢ 191°979°S 001 €65°¢ 00S°C$ - 100°T$
% 9l'¢ 006°S9T°S $ % LOSL 681°LT Iopun pue 000‘1$
[e101, SUOII9[[0D [e10L SJUN090Y [9A9T UO1I9[[0D
Jo aSejuoo1og X ], QWOoouJ [e10], Jo oSeiusorog Jo JaqunN
020C 1ed A [eds1q
% 007001 SP8'6SL691 $ % 00001 SSO°LE
PL'8¢E 184°0LL'S9 S0°0 L1 100°000°1$ 1940
61°¢l 81TYLETT €10 (% 000°000°T$ - T00°0ST$
SETI 12S°TLT 61 €e0 vCl 000°0ST$ - 100°001$
0L9 €LO'LIE T 0 ¥91 000°001$ -100°0S$
(149! 6€8°078°ST €T'e L61°1 000°0S$ - 100°01$
SI'y ¥8L8E0°L IL'C 700°1 000°01$ - 100°S$
Sv'e L80°€98°S 87'Y 1991 000°S$ - 105°T$
Is¢ 8TP'€96°S 1701 €8L°E 00S°T$ - 100°T$
% 69°¢ v1¥°692°9 $ % TWSL 950°6¢C Iopun pue 0001 $
[e101 SUONI3[[0D 810 SIUN0o0Y [9A9T UO1IR[[0D
Jo o3eju0o1og Xe] owoouf [e10 [, Jo oSeuoorog Jo JoqunN
610C 182 A [edsl

6 9IMpaYdS

020C PUB 610C STe9 A 183STq

oIyQ VoYY Jo K1)

(S3Un090Y 39011 pue SUIP[OYYIIAL) JUNOWY UOI}I[[0)) [eNUUY AqQ SUONII[[0)) X ], SWOdU]

228



- 000°00%°L1 000°000°€T - 020T
000°00S°T - 000°000°€1 - 610C
000°005°C 000°00€° 1Y 000°000°€1 - 810C
000°005°¢ 000°000°0€ 000°000°€T - L10T
000°00S°€ 000°000°0T 000°000°€T 000°0Tt 910T
000°00S‘¥ 000°000°01 000°000°€1 000°0€8 S10T
000°005°9 - 000°000°€T 000°0€T°1 ¥10T
000°000°6 000°0€L¥T 000°000°€1 000°S19°1 €102
000°000°T T 000°STT°01 000°96L°T1 000°000°C T10T
000°000°€1 $ 000°059°6€ 00L°819°0T  $ - 110T
JlqeAed SAION JlqeAed SAION J[qeAed S9ION ANUIADY JTed X
[)[edH [eIoUaD) syoafo1g JUSWISSASS Y XBJ, dwoou| [eos1g

QOIAISS [eUIdIU] rende) [eroadsg QOIAISS TeuIdIU]

SONIATOY [BJUSWIILIDAOD)
- ¥L6°901°79 ¥87°865°L 000°089°¢ 88LVL6'8 000°STI°S€EE 000°S0€°LT 000°5€9°¢ $T9°TH8’S 000°680°S01 020T
- €SLTIE6S LESTILTL 000°0TL L L6T¥89°6 000°S¥6'8¥€ 000°01+°0€ 000°5S6°€ €98°071°S 856°000°1C1 610T
- 998°791°%9 61€°TTL9 000°SSS°TT - 6S0°L19°vCE 000°SEV € 000°59C°¥ OvELEL'S 1£9°89¢°8¢€1 810C
- S69° 1 er L80ETO‘S 000°0TT'ST - 0ST°080°6€€ 000°0LT 6€ 91°019°F 618°1LE9 192°6276°951 L10T
- SLOEVI'LY L66°L68°T 000°S0L 8T - PS9PIL'ESE 000°SPLEY 61951 90£°900°L 16€°T09°VLT 910T
- LIY'SEL0E 12€°098°C 000°0£0°CC - S9S°011°6€€ 000°S€0°8Y 6CT0LT'S Y6L°0¥9°L LOL0Y8°981 S10T
SOTEIE 660901°L9 LTS6LOY 000°S+T°ST - L80°189°81¢€ 000°595°€S €6S°8LES ¥91°780°6 7€8°8LETOT ¥10T
6LTTYL T €IT0IS SL 85.°0TT9 000°S91°LT - SEI°L8YPPT 000°SLY 8% 9€9°T8%°S €96°1¥C°6 €6L6E1°61T €10t
LTV 6T1'E 8¥€°509°SS 678°165°8 000°91°LT - 000°0€£T'8%C 000°080°0S SY9°T8S°S €9L°5¥8°6 1€ €H8°8TT 10T
8L8SLY'Y  § 8LLYIETY 0s0vTIT$ 000°S91°LT - $ 000°S60'7€C  $ 000°5€8°0S 1L°689°S S¥90L0T  $ 081°€8%°0¥C 1102
sueo g1S SOSBY| JUQWISSISS Y ANUIADY sSumoriog ANUIADY ANUIADY ueo| Aoualy ueo| uone3qO RPN
Tende) [eroadg [eroadg JOQII(J ONUIAY XB ] ouoouy XBJ -UON SIOIAIOS MO 2ELET) [Bos1q
XB ], 9uWoou| juowdojorsg
oo
SONIANOY [BIUSWIULIDAOL)
01 S[Mpayds
SIed X [eosI U], ise]

od£ 1, £q saseo] [ende) pue 1go SurpueisinQ Jo soney
oo ‘uonyy Jo A1)

229



eyep swodur [euosiad pue uonendod 10§ 9 SMPIYDS 3G,

juounedo ooueUL] OIYQ ‘UONY JO AJI) :90IN0S

o
17°€€ 0£5°9 €20 ¥81°00€°T SLTEE] 1€ 16+°06C L8SL18°€99 - 000°50T°S 000°S8C°L - 020T &
6€°1¢ TLT9 $88°678°8TT 1 yTTessee 686'1S€ TTT'LOYTLS - 000°S66°S 000°099°L wo'61T 6102
[ANES 19 LS8SS681T 1 LYE1L8SE €61°6¢S €ELYOLTTS - - 000°S8LP1 69£°90¢ 810C
81°8C 009°S 69S°ST6PIT°T - LOL9EL CETETH 3EY - - 000°0¥0°61 GGE68¢ L10T
LL'ST L90°S 0S6°0%6°800°T 078°CL 02T'8€6 P19°0L1°€6T 000°008°T - 000°001°€T 18%'89% 910T
L1TT 09¢'t 019°881°898 0TELST PEL'GET'T 6T 7L6°191 000°0S5°9 - 000°0L6°9C 6TT TS S10T
96°0C Wiy L6T'EYL 0TS 0€1°0¥C 8YT 1P| £85°00€°S6 000°SLO°TT - 000°09€°0€ 665919 ¥102
19°0 €50y 006°020°L08 0ST1TE 9L THS T S65°S6TEL 000°S8€°ST - 000°5€8°€E 955°1€9 €102
6661 0£6°¢ T15°785°T8L TS1°L8¢€ SLTYPL1 SOETYI‘IS 000°S1S°61 - 000°SLI‘LE 0St'v€9 10T

% LS0T S $ TETTOT'S08 606°€SY 68LSY6°T $ PrLSST'8T 000°0L¥ €T - $ 000°S9€°0F LTSLEY $ 110T
© owoouy e ejide) 104 JUSUWILLIOAOD) S9SBY T o2MdO vamo ANUIAY SIUdUdIR[J ANUIADY uonesqO Ied X
Jeuosiog TeloL Tende) J0QII(J ONUIAY o3e3uoN [eIouan) [eos1

Erialichies | o3e31oN
SAIIANOY odA] -ssoursng
0T 9[Mpayss
(ponunuoo)

SIed X [BISI] U] ISe|
odA 1 Aq saseaT [eyde) pue 1o SurpueisinQ Jo soney
oo ‘uony Jo A1)



%LS'C %6’ %9t ¢ %T6'¢

%97 €S %S9vL %879 %VYTEL

juountedo(q 9ourUL OO ‘UOLYY JO AJI) :90INOS

%IS ¥ Ky1adoad [1e Jo anfea passasse (810} Jo
o3ejuadi1ad e se 1qap Jou pajoAun [e0 ],

%618 ] 3qop Jo 9ejuoorad e se
iy 03 9qeodrdde 1qap jou [B10],

TO9'LYEIL  $ €09°906°S€  § L8T°0OTI'SS  § T0€°619'8€  $

090%62°18 S86°1TLS01 $S9'8¥1°€6 $86°17LS01

T99°1¥9°CST  $ 88S°8TY'I¥l §  TP8'8IT'SYI $ L8TIPEPYT  $

0c0¢ 610¢ 810C L10T
%IT°S %0¢°S %lv'y %LV
%96°'C6 %S1°96 %¥v¥ 08 %8668

T0T6LI9T  $ wdrew 1qop (391

SYL'66L8T1T g 03 9[qearydde 1gop 10U [RI0 ],

LY6'8L6TYT  $ Iy 399g
910¢

%G8°S K1adouid [1e Jo anjea possasse [8)0} JO

93ejuooiad e se 1qop JoU pajoAun [BJ0],

%1901 JaI] 3gop Jo 93ejuoosad e se
iy 03 9qqeordde 1qap jou [B10 ],

Y9TvL6'6 $ LT9°6¥0°S § Se016I8T $ 6vT1es’or  $

YTEYSITET 1ZI°600°LET 789°€06°STI 916706°STI

88S°8TY IVl $ 8YL8SO'TYT  §  LILV60'VYI $ SOT9EY VL §

S10T ¥10C €10¢ (4114

(S1579t°'6) § urgrew 1qop [e39]

T99°8TH°9S1 ywiy 03 d9[qedrjdde 3qop jou [e10

LY1°996°911 § Iy 399g
110C

[T S1payog
SIBO X [8OSI] U9 ISe]
(%T/1 §) NI 3gaq pjoAun
uoneuLIoJu] uIsIej 199 €89
oI ‘uoryy Jo Ao

231



yuounaeda(q doueur] OO ‘UOL[Y JO A1) :90IN0S

%LS'C %T6°¢ %9%°¢ %C6'¢ %I1SY K1odoxd fre jo anjea possasse
[e303 JO a8eju0oiad € st )qop 10U [0,
%06'LT %01°6€ %I16°CE %LE8E %C6'CY MW 1G9P JO dFeIudIad e se
yw| 03 o1qearjdde 1qap 10u [e10 L,
0SLTIT'0IT  § G98°6S9v91  §  ¥H0'016'681 $§  $S98ESGIT SYT'SLO'LST  § urgrewr 1qap [e5o]
090'76T°18 $86°1TL'SO1 SSO8PI°EH $86°1TL'SO1 SYL'66L°811 iy 03 o[qeorjdde 1gap jou [e10],
01890¥°16T $ 0S8°I18€°0LT §  669°850°€8T  § 6€9°09S°SLT  §  066°LLLILT $ w399
020¢ 610¢ 810C LT0T 910¢
%IT'S %0€'S %lt'y %EL'Y %S8'S £y1adoad [1e Jo anfea passasse
18101 JO 93ejuaoIad e se 1qap Jou [BIO ],
%69'8% %CS0S %'ty %¥r0° Sy %SL'SS iy 1q9p Jo dFejudiad e se
iy 03 9[qeosrdde 3qop jou (10,
9TS'LTLSET  §  wP6'E6IVEL S €€T981°6ST S SE0°6S9°€ST  § pLO'EVIVTL S urdrewr 1qop [e39]
YTEYSIIE] 121°600°LE1 789°€06°S11 916'706°ST1 799°8TH 951 iy 03 djqeorjdde 1ap 1du [eI0 ],
0SS°I8€0LT  $ S90°€0TILT  $ S16°680°SLT  $ 1S6°6SS°6LT $§  9€L'ILS08T  § w399
S10¢c ¥10¢ €10T cloc

110C

C1 9[Mpayds

SIBO X [eOSI] UQ] Ise]
(%T/1 01) MWITIQQ [#10L
uornewIoyu] urdIejA 199 18891
oI ‘uoryy Jo A1)

232



"SUOISIAIPQNS QY] JO UOHEN[BA PISSISSE [810} A} AqQ A1) ) JO SILIBPUNOQ I}
uIy}im pajedo] uoIsIArpqns [eonrjod oy) JO uonen|eA passasse Jo Junowe dy} SUIPIAIP £q POUILISOP $9SBIU00I0d :9I0N

yusunaedo(q doueur] oIy ‘UoI Y Jo A1) pue

1202/1/1 30 se (DVINO) [1ouno)) A10SIApY [edIotunyy o1gQ wolj uaye) ‘syjuowuionod Surdderoao 10y Surpueisino 1qo(q :S00I0S

vES'LYO Y19 $ SLO'S9V'LIL $ 19op Surdde[1oa0 pue 30011p [EJO L,

v91°567°CT $ SOV TIL'SLI $ 19op Surddefiaao [ejo,
vLL9T0°6 €8'8C 1SE0IETE JOLSI(] [00YDS [8007] SFPLIPOO M
£99°750°C 8S°L 000°080°LT LISI(T [00YDS [8007T PoySuLidg
TLLOTS'T S0'¢ TEV L69°6S LIS [00YIS [BI0 AIOANY
9% TH8°C 61°01 TT9V68°LT WLISI [00YDS [820T AJUSA0D)
T6¥°TSS9 $ % $0°CCT 000°0€L°6T $ Ayuno) yuwng

Surdderroa

0L9°TSL16S $ 0L9°TSL16S $ 1Q9p 10211 €10,
0L9°TSL16S $ % 00°001 0L9°TSL16S $ uonyy Jo A1)

10211

areys s AN A1) 0y 192 UOISIAIPANS [BIH)I[0

orqeorddy JOo junowry
JUAdI_d

¢ SMpayds

0T0T ‘1€ 19quiaos(J Jo sy

1go Surdde(1oa pue 30211(] Jo uonendwo))

oIyQ ‘uony Jo Ko

233



“eep uone[ndod 10 ‘sonsne)s onuouody pue soydeiSows( ‘91 I[NPIYOS 393G ;
“ejep onjea A11adoid 10y ‘A110do1d 9[qexe] JO on[eA [BNIOY PAJBWIISH PUB INJBA PISSISSY G (NP 929G |
“SJUQWUAIE)S [BIOUBULJ O} 0} SOJOU 3} Ul PUNnoy 9q ued jqop Surpueisino s,A10) oy SurpieSar sreldaq 910N

juownjaeda(q doueul] Oy ‘UOL[Y JO A1) :90IN0S

901 €60 €8L°08 [R5 v6T18 0co0¢
8¢S 0¢'1 LITS01 ¥0S 1TL°S01 610¢
8CL 981 1L8'p¥1 9¢¢ L6ESY1 810C
6L8 6¢°C v€0°SLI 1489 8¥SSLI L10¢
c88 6¢°C 9TT°9LI (4% 896°9L1 910¢
8L6 ¥9°C 169761 1433 SYTsel S10¢
0€0°1 8LC ¥T1°50T 1S6 $L090T v10¢
OrT°1 S6'¢ LEO1TT 6S6 T66°1TC €10¢
v8I°1 60°¢ 69L°SET 10€°C 0L0°8€T cloc
€ST°1 $ % LTE 6€S 61T $ €78°C §  T9gTsT $ [1oc
2 ende) K1adoig Jo anjep [e101, pun,{ 991AI10g spuog Tea &
od 9Iqexe ] [eMOV 199 Ul S[qe[reAY uonesqo [eostq
parewinsg syjunowry :ssoJ [e1ousD)

Jo a8ejuoorog

¥1 9[npaydg
(qunown vi1dpo 4ad jdaoxa ‘sivjjop fo spuvsnoyi ui)
SIBO & [BOSI] UQ] Ise]
SurpueisinQ 199 papuog [BIAUILD) JO SonRY
oIy VoY Jo K1)

234



88°9¢ 860°1 sore V66 7S 1 0s'1 SIT1 85€°e LS89 T9°6¢ 667°9¢ 020¢
€1'LT €LI'l $z0°e S06°€1 1 (o) 0ST'1 820°¢ (€18°D 0S¥°9¢ LE9VE 610C
LOST 962C°1 SEL'S 986°S01 6¥°0 €LYl 0L6°S 8€9°¢ 809°8C 9TTE 810¢
VLl 08¢l SLSY 06L°€01 60 €99°1 6TL'S L18%9 TILLT 6LSYE L10T
YT9¢ €LYl 06Ty LITIST or'1 T19°1 S9€°S 108°6 910°8¢ LIS'LE 910¢
0cv LyS°1 08L°81 6v€°S8 0¥'0 600°C cerel 611°9 0TL0€ 6€8°9¢ S1oc
SL'¢ LSS'1 0v1°€T 168°€6 0s'1 808°1 (4% 8LY'6 86S°ST 9L0°S¢ ¥10¢
LETE 8¥9°C S09°1 V89°LEL 91 vT6°l 69¢Y 01€01 €TEST €€9°C¢E €10¢
LO0¢ LLYT SSL T0T€01 16’1 0S0°C 9TIY LOLTT 189°1¢C 8P ee (41014
% 0881 S8E'e$ 019T $ 0ILTIT § % 1071 T8CTS 16y $ 91€’L  § €€6°LT $ 6vTSE$ 110¢
93eI19A0) 1S219)U] redrourig SUOII9[0) a3e10A0) 1S219)U] [edrourig ANUAAY | sasuadxy ONUAAY FCEJA
901AI0S 199 Xe]-UON (AIIAINS 1990 o[qereAy Suneladp SS0ID) [eosL]
1N H=lg I91B M
SPUO NUIANY XB ] -UON Sue0T VMO PUB SPUOY SNUAIY 1918 A\
0L¢ 8¢CC 0v0‘t 98L°S1 SL0 609°T1 vL8°9T 8€6'8T 858 VS L6L'ES 0c0cT
8L'¢ 0Ty Ses’e €80°91 SIo 061°9 TI9°L1 196°¢ 880°G8 619°88 610¢C
6v'¢ €09 $99°¢ S0611 961 01¢TS 454! vre8e 1€T°LY SLSS8 810¢
Ly'€ 8LL Ssy'e 008¥1 (! 6SEY €81°91 6T6°TC LSLTL 91LY6 L10T
LEE 122°) sTee 68€ V1 140! 6¥8°C LLYTI LS9°LT T8I°TL 6€8°68 910¢
LEY TLOT SITe vTL 81 89°0 96€°¢c 080°L€E 199°LT 6€1°C9 008°68 S1oc
LS 6v1°1 026°1 96€°L1 650 €LLT 10T°81 60¥°C1 8I1°19 LTS'EL ¥10C
LGl 6v1°1 - 060°S1 9¢'1 €€1°T TSeEll 1v€°81 LY6' vy 887°€9 €10¢
8161 S80°1 - 7180t 880 910°C €86°8 859°6 1LS'LY 6TT'LS 10T
% s8¢ VLL'T S SeST $ 8LS9T § % LTI 0STT$ €w's $ Sos€l  § 691°9¢ § vL96y §  110C
93e19A0) 191U redroutig ANUAAY a3e10A0) 1S91)U] redrourig ANUIAY (sasuadxyq NUAAY 183 X
901AI9S 192 SS01D) Z90IAIAS 199 o[qereAy Suneladp SS0ID) [eost]
aa4dr 19N =g IoMoS
spuog AQAf SuUB0T VAMO PUB SPUOg oNUIADY JoMaS

G SMpayds

(s4pjj0p _fo spuvpsnoyj ut)
SIBd X [BISIJ UQ ], Ise]
93eI10A0)) SNUAAIY-PIZPIld

oIyQ ‘uony Jo Ko

235



“JeoA o) Jurmp painal sem Jey) puoq e 10J .08 1$ Jo Juowked Jsa1oiul [eulj Y} SOPN[OUI OS[. JUNOWE IJIAIIS }qOP ], "6 9ION UO Pajod[jol Jou pue
T8dA oY) SuLmp papunjaI sem 1Byl puoq B 10J (588§ Jo 1udwked 1sa1ut pue 000 0z9$ Jo 1udwked [edouid [euy 91 Spn[OUT SOIAIIS 1GIP 10 SIUNOWE ()Z0T Y.Ly,

"61 9ION UO Pajoo[jal jou pue Jeok
31 SuLINp PAINAI AI9M TRy} SUBO] 10] 7€ S JO syudwked jsaxoul pue G/ /7L L$ Sul[e1o) siuswAed [ediourid [euly oY) opnjoul 30IAISS 1Gap 0] sjunowre )z0g dYLe

‘6] 9JON UO PIJOJ[JoI J0U Pue Jedk o)
SuLmp painal 1M Jey) SUBO[ 10J SS[°L01$ JO siuawAed 1sa1aiul pue 99¢“¢50°1$ Sureio sjuswAed [edourid [euy Yy Spn[oul JIAISS 1P JOJ SHUNOWE (70T Y.L,

uoneroa1da( Jo 19N

juountedo(q 9ourUL] OO ‘UOLYY JO AII) :90INOS

8¢'0¢ 989°C SI8Y L6STST €L°0 1€8°01 0v6°01 LL6ST 020t
€091 v1e'e 801°9 STOIST SL°0 vLETT 059°01 vSy91 610C
v6'v1 €81°c €€€9 6L9°9%1 9L0 000°CI 0€1°01 L1691 810T
[/ TsLe 6899 8I¥'CCl 81°0 €9T°6¢ 086ty 1€T°61 L10¢
vL'S 666°€ 16561 TTessel 18°0 L6LTI 0L8L S€6°C1 910t
9°0¢ SI8°C 962°¢ $€0°9z1 88°0 woTl SPSL vSTLI S10T
89°6¢ 96T°1 7161 SLE'LTL 690 06€°11 SSY'L LE6TI ¥10T
S99 YLT] LOY'1 180°SCTI w60 895°01 0LS'S 088¥1 €10t
0T6CL S¢Sl - 9TOELT 09°1 LS09 STT'S #90°81 (414
%  8T¢l 886°S $ 6€6CT $ €S8 $ % 960 SP8I1 $ 0SLS  $ TTs9r$ 110¢
oSe10A0) 1S91)U] Tediourrg SUO1O9[[0) oSe10A0) 1S919)U] Tediourig SuO1I9[[0D Jeo &
,A91AI0S 192 Xe ], QuOoou[ 901AI0S 1q2(J 010 [eoSIg

SpUOg SNUIAIY XE ], dWOdU] spuog D10

G 1 9[Mpayas
(panunuoo)
(s4pjjop fo spuvsnoy; u1)
SIBQ X [BISIJ US ], IS
03e19A0)) INUIAIY-PIZPId

Ol ‘UOLYY 30 KD

236



Se01AIRS AJIwe{ pue qof Jo yuswiedaq oo
"S[qE[IEAE JOU [[1)S BIEP (TOT SUIn pue QAQD O} oNp ‘Neding snsuo) ‘g’ | :99Mog

v'e 09L°9S 0¢ gse 6SEPE 799°61 070°66T°S16°€ 0r1°661 1102
9L 09L°9¢ 0¢ gse 6SEE ¥99°61 0¥0°66T°S16°€ 011661 (414
9L 09L°9S 0¢ gse 65SE V€ 799°61 0%0°66T°S16°€ 0I1°661 €10¢
99 09L°9¢ 0¢ gse 6SEE ¥99°61 0¥0°66T°S16°€ 011661 v10¢
LS 09L°9S 0¢ gse 6SE V€ 799°61 070°66T°S16°€ 0I1°661 S10¢
8¢ 09L°9S 0¢ gse 6SEE ¥99°61 0¥0°66T°S16°¢ 011661 910¢
8¢ 09L°9S 0¢ gse 6SEPE 799°61 0%0°66T°S16°€ 0r1°661 L10T
£¢ 09L°9S 0¢ gse 6SEE ¥99°61 0¥0°66T°S16°€ 011661 810¢
6t 09L°9S 0¢ gse 6SEVE 799°61 0%0°66T°S16°€ 0I1°661 610¢
% 10l 09L°9S % 0T gse 65E e §  ¥99°6l1 $§ ovo6eTSI6’t §  011°661 020t
ey JJuswI[oIug 1oyS1y 10 198y ,awoou] |ouoou] |awoou] Tuonendog FTEYN
yuowAoydwoun [00yoS 001397 sJo[oyoeyg  UBIPOIA pPIoyasnoy [euosiog [euosIog
- uoneonpy UBIPOIN epde) 194

91 SMpayds
SIBQ & [eoSI] U9 Ise]
So1IS1IEIS O1Iouo0dy pue sryderdowaq

olQ ‘UMY Jo A1)

237



gleey

‘uon[y Jo A1) ays yim (s)3urfiy xe) [[e opnpoul soqunu juswioduyg

0697

jusunedo(q 9ourUL] OO ‘UOLYY JO K11 :90INOS

€56y

% 1Tt %
S1'T o1 L0IT uoneiodio) AZ1ougysity 67T 01 60T s19]0M3[ JoUBIS
8t'C 6 1€¥°C uonyy jo Ay €9°C 6 90t'C uonyy jo Ao
69'C 8 SE9°T Jomar Sulfialg LL'T 8 8€S°T uonerodio) A31oug ISIL
€v'e L 99¢°¢ Auedwo)) 10qqny % 211, 189Apo0D) e L ¥S6°C Auedwoy) 10qqny % 211, 189Ap00D
0S°€ 9 LTr'E Ayuno) ywuwing €9°¢ 9 €Tee Ayuno) ywuwing
10 S §T6°¢ [e3tdsoH [e1oudD) uonyy 96t S vrS'y S[00YdS 1[N UOLYY
€0y 4 LY6°€ [endsoy s,udIp[Iy) uony s 4 6LLY [IOUAD) UOI{Y-OTUI[D) PUBOAI[D
60°S € $86'F WLISI [00Y0S O1[qnd WOy 0€'9 € €LL'S [eytdsoH sudIp[Iy) uonY
$6'9 C €189 Wo)SAS YI[edH ewing 89 4 €€6°S uon[y Jo ANsIoAun
% 886 I 789°6 Uony Jo ANSIATUN % 0’6 I 6098 WoSAS YI[edH ewng
juowAojdwy  yuey — sodkojdwyg IoAojdwyg wowAoldwy — yuey saoAojdwyg IoAo1dwg
An) repo Jo A1) reog Jo
a3rjuoo1og eYsalich R |

1102 ‘1€ 19qua0s(q

0T0T ‘1€ 1oquidoaq

LT 9[Mpaydg

110T/T¢/C1 PUe 0T0T/T¢/CT
s1oAofdwy [edrourig

oI ‘UOLYY 30 KD

238



juountedo(q 9ourUL] OO ‘UOLYY JO AII) :90INOS

"110T ‘1 Arenue[ uo 10SI S AUNo)) JIUIWNG 9} YHIM PIIEPI[OSUOI SIIAIIS YI[ESH dI[qnd UODY JO AITD) oYLy

- - - - - - - - - LET wiuounteda yiesH
eI dAqnd
- - - - - - 61 1T 81 €T Surreoursuy dyjeL],
€8% 00 €Ly 0L 68Y S8t c6v (497 1454 €0 yusunreda(g 90104
ILE 08¢ SLE vLE 0S¢ TLe 89¢ 18¢€ 943 £33 Juswpredaq o1
9 8¢ €9 8¢S ss 65 g LS 8¢ LS suonedrunIIo)) )oyes
1 €l €1 Sl - - - - - - suonedIUNUWWOY) Yoo ], uoneuLIojuy
- - - - SI vl 91 91 SI SI SUONEOIUNUILIO))
- - - - - - - - - - juaunteda yieoy
I I - - I z I I - - s[eyjO parutoddy pue paddq
:Ayoyes dMqnd
- - - - - - - - - 1 neang Junouiduy
9] L1 ST 91 ! - - - - - juounredo( S90IN0SAY urWINy
- - - - - 01 8 6 6 8 juaunreda(q [ouuosIDg
L 3 L 3 8 8 L 8 8 8 [UIUILID/[IALD)
- € € € - - - - - - € 3007
0z 6 6 9 - - - - - - A3ojouyo9], uoneWLIOJU]
€L LL 9L LL 6 86 66 001 8L 8L Jueurredo oouRUL]
- 9 9 S S 1% IS 1% 1% S juowdooadg oruouooyq
€S 0S s €S IS a4 St a4 3% 9% s[eroyyO payutoddy pue pajoa[g
86 $6 96 66 €6 68 6 06 68 68 Eiulve)
€ € € € € € € € € € [ouno) A1)
SJUBUWIWLIIAOY) [BIUID)
0202 610 810C L10T 910¢ S10T v10T €10T T10t 110T wel3ord/uonoun,

81 3[Mpayos
SIBd X [BOSI] UQ] ISe]
weidoid/uonouny Aq saakojduryg juswurdaon) L)1) juoreAmby swi | -[ng

Ol ‘UOLYY 30 KD

239



juountedo(q 9ourUL] OO ‘UOLYY JO AII) :90INOS

T€8°1 9¢8°l 118°1 128°1 16L°1 818°1 vT8°l T08°1 STL1 ovL‘1 S[elo ],
- 61 1T 1T |14 (44 61 61 €T 1T neaIng uoneaIdy
T - - - - - - - - - mﬁOGMHOQO UMOJUMO(] 29 UOIIBIIIIY
97 - - - - - - - - - (a10) yuswdojaadq payerdoyuy Jo 901330
S1 43 43 ¥€ 44 8 6t 49 43 S jusunredda( Suruueld
N~ Nﬁ N— N~ - - - - - - DOQNEQEOO oo:wm_ﬁz
6 6 6 6 - - - - - - SQOIAIOS Ajrunuiio)) 29 JUISnoy
11 4l 41 1 - - - - - - souerdwo)) Juisnoy
3 8 8 L - - - - - - Iua) 1D 1-1-¢
S S 4 4 4 4 4 I - I s[erIO pajutoddy pue pejooy
JJUIWUOIIAUY A UNWuwo))
0c @ 61 61 81 61 - - - - SuULRAUISUY AoLFeIL
- - - - - - - - - v $901A10§ Sunourduy
LT 1€ £3 43 1€ 43 43 €€ ¥ <4 QQuBUAUIRIA SIed
or 6€ It Iy LE It |87 LE 43 s¢ Surues|) 10918
(9% LE 14 or 8¢ Iy |87 w 6€ 8¢ SOOIAIOS UOTIBIIUES
19 8¢ LS 19 19 6S 09 9$ 0S 79 ooueusjure]N AemySIH
L 9 L 9 S L L L 3 9 UONENSIUIPY SHIOM dl[qnd
691 091 €91 $91 961 91 L91 ¥S1 8+l 861 neamg 1B
LY 0S 0S IS 43 96 6S 19 96 8 neang Iomag
- - - - - - - - - I UoneNSIUIPY SABIN( dlqnd
S S S S v 14 14 ¢ € € ESUIVORI(US)
8T 8T 0€ 13 ]9 6¢ 6¢ 8T 0€ ¢ jyuowdmbyg 10}0 N
LT LT ST LT LT 74 ST 9T ¥ 9T SouBUSIUIE]N SUIp[Ing
- - - - - - - - - I yodiry
|87 44 44 Ly 6t 44 6¢€ S¢S ¥S €S neaing SULIAUISUY
- - - - 8 S ] S B L umﬂoawom oo.—>.5m uoisn)
4 4 (4 € 4 4 4 4 I 4 IJua)) sy pue sue[d
- S S L - - - - - - A3ojouyoa], uonBUWLIOJU]
- - - - 1 1 4! 4! 6 6 Sursnoy
- - - - 4! 1 1 4! 4! 01 9IAISS IOWOISN)
4 4 4 I 14 14 S € I 4 UONENSIUIPY OIAISS J[qnd
4 € € € € 14 € 14 14 14 s[erIO pajutoddy pue pejooy

19IIAIIS d1[qng

020¢ 610C 810¢ L10T 910C Sroc ¥10C €10¢ (41014 10T weIgoi/uonoun,y

81 9[MPayds
(panunuoo)
SIBd X U] IS
weidoiJ/uonoun, Aq seakoduy JuswuIdAon) A7) judreAmby swr | -[ng

oIjQ ‘uonyy Jo Ao

240



ountedo 9dueUL] OIYQ ‘UONYY JO A1) :90IN0S

‘pajtodar Ajsnoraaxd a1om Jet) S[[ED SWIOS APN[OUT JOU S0P WISAS (T MU Y], 'S[[BI AOTAISS JO N0 PUE SYEOIQ [ ‘S[[BD UOTIE)S SSI] S[[D [[ S)uasaIdal 9d1AI0S 10 S[[eD) 901[0d Y} 0707 O3 0TI 4

¥95°6C $  LL96T $  79g0¢ S87°0€ S19°6T $  9500¢ $ TIgie 1S6°1¢€ STIee £€0°0€ $ (Spuesnoyy ur) pa[Ig SHUNOUTY o)A

87°¢8 SS0°18 92608 ¥€8°08 908°08 #8908 179°C8 £49°€8 055°¢8 Y6L°€8 SJUNOIVY JOJe
JIJBAN

849°0L $  06T€L $  L8TSL 0€8°SL 911°C6 $  SLS16 $  S8¥SL 8€6°SS 9SL°€S 110°6€ $ (spuesnoyy ur) paf[Ig SHUNOWY JOMIS

996°SL Y€9°SL 069°SL LSSSL LOSSL 0LS9L 90L°9L TI0°LL €59°8L €59°8L SJUNOIIY JOMIS
JIMIS

€759 ¥62°79 L9T°T9 ¥20°C9 86719 660°19 1€6°09 6£0°19 0LT19 11419 SJUNOJVY SOIAIRS qIND
SIIIAIIS ssauIsng

769°81 T6T81 L6TY1 9zLEl 9861 79TSI 099°01 ¥88°CI Yor €l 908°01 20UBPUANY SIN0Y) J|OD) UMY Py

180°C¢ $89°0¢ SIS°TE vreiLe 716°8¢ 116°L¢ 1€T°1¢€ vTe'Le 169°¢¢ 190°0¢ 95UBPUANY 9SINOD) J[OD) YIed POOD
uonead.nddYy pue sy.aed M

LYET1 $8€°0¢ €L8°1C 600°1C 1€2°sT L80°ST or1've 661%C 9T1°6T 1L5°€C Pa[I] $3sB)) UOISIAL SunjIed

L6LYT SP1°TE €I6°€E r19°¢ce L8I°€E €01°5€ €T8°vE L1¥'€€ 867°CE €SP TE P[L $ase)) UOISIAI(] dUJeL] /[RUILL)

099 180°11 SLLOT LYE01 8696 TLE6 SPI°01 6201 7501 STSI1 P[] S9SBD UOISIAL( [IAID

S08‘611 097°T81 196661 8LT01C 6LY°0TT 020°€1C 9LTS0T SLY 10T STI°661 £h 0T ¥90IAIRS I0] S[[eD)
AIod

S6L°6 6086 880°6 98L°6 956 8TH'8 €E8’L 9¢T'L €8T°L 7189 CUBEEN JENE|

86T 6vS‘cy L6S 1Y L8EOF €10°0% 908°LE 68L°S¢E 6S0°v€ Y6TveE 9rTHE sosuodsay] KousSrowy
vh_ﬁ,—

LOE 143 88¢ 443 Sy 811 8¢ 68¢ 1487 S6¢ passeq SOOUBUIPIQ [1OUNOY) A1)

88¢‘1 8SH°1 €81°1 (VAN LyY'l ¥6T°1 LETT 96T1°1 (443 €L0°1 Panss] $HIULIdJ JO JoqunN [e10],
JUDUWIUIIAOY) [BIURD)
0202 610¢ 810T L10T 9102 S10T ¥102T €10T 7102 1102 WeIZ01d/Uuonoun,y

61 2[Mpayds

SIBO & [BOSI] UQ] Ise]
weidoid/uonouny Aq s103edrpu] sunerddQ
oI ‘uorfy Jo A1)



“UOTIE}S SIY) SOPNOUI JUNOD Y [, "ULSOq UONONLIISUOD MU PUB POZEI Sem UONE)S 911 9U0 ‘§1 ()7 Suln(y
Jusureda(T 90URUL] O ‘UOLYY JO A1) :90IN0S

01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 syoo( Sunyred

1 1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 S[PM 'O
SYI0AN [qnd 1Y

9¢ LE LE LE €€ €€ €€ €€ €€ €€ suone)s dung

£€6¢ v6T 6T 86C 60€ 60¢ €0¢€ 60€ 60€ 60¢ (Soy1) S19]U] JOMIS PAUIGUIO)) PUE WLIO)S

0LE v9¢ $9¢ 69¢ 19¢ 19¢ vLE 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ (so1u) s19MaG WLI0)g

€89 789 €89 989 8L9 8L9 TL9 $89 189 189 (soqmur) s1omag Areyues
JIMIS

bl SI SI SI ST SI SI SI SI Sl SIIOAI0SY 95eI0)S-UonNNqLISI(]

£ €€ e 4 e e e e ¢ 93 (suoj[es jo suor[[iu ur)

a3edwng AJre 95e10Ay

6€T°1 0€T°1 LET'T 1€T°1 0€T°1 8TT'1 97T’ 9TT'1 STl STl odid Jo so[IN
REILYVY

C C z z C C z z C (4 $9s1M0) J]0D) pajerdad/paumQ Ay

001°C 001°C 001°C 001°C 001°C 001°C 001°C 001°C 001°C 001°C (soroe ur) wesg yred K1)
UOoNed.IIY pue sy.aed

« €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 €1 SUOIIE)S JO JoquInN

6v€ LS¢E s €s¢ 8¢ 6¥€ 6¥€ 09¢ 43 6C¢ SIOUJQ Pue SINYSYAIL] JO JoquInN
CRIN |

1 1 1 4 1 1 1 4 1 4! SIOLSI JO JaquinN

€St 89t It Se €St 44 0st s Ty 90t SIOOLJ(Q) 01[0d PAULIOJIUN JO JOQUINN
ad110d
0202 610C 810¢ L10T 910T S10T v10C €10 T10t 110C WeIs01d/uonoun,y

0T 2[npayds

SIBd X [BOSI] UQ] ISe]
weisoig/uonouny Aq sonsnels 10ssy [eyde)
oIy ‘uoryy jo Ao

242



Plante & Moran, PLLC

plante

Toledo, OH 43617
Tel: 419.843.6000

moran Fax: 419.843.6099

plantemoran.com

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance
Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Daniel Horrigan, Mayor, and
Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance
City of Akron, Ohio

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Akron, Ohio (the "City") as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated August 2, 2021, which contained an
unmodified opinion on the financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on
the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. We have not performed any
procedures with respect to the audited financial statements subsequent to August 2, 2021.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for the purpose of additional
analysis, as required by the Uniform Guidance, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

7424&/ f 7)&4,«/, PLLL

August 25, 2021
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Plante & Moran, PLLC

plante 3434 Granite Circle

Toledo, OH 43617
Tel: 419.843.6000

moran Fax: 419.843.6099

plantemoran.com

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor's Report

To Management; the Honorable Daniel Horrigan, Mayor; and
Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance
City of Akron, Ohio

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Akron, Ohio (the
"City") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated August 2,
2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies, and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and another deficiency that we
consider to be a significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Findings 2020-001 and 2020-002 to be material
weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than
a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Finding 2020-004 to be a
significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
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To Management; the Honorable Daniel Horrigan, Mayor; and
Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance
City of Akron, Ohio

The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other matter that is required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards, which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as Finding 2020-003.

The City's Responses to the Findings

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. The City's responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not

suitable for any other purpose.
7424&/ f 7)&4,«/, PLLE
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Plante & Moran, PLLC

plante

Toledo, OH 43617
Tel: 419.843.6000

moran Fax: 419.843.6099

plantemoran.com

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Required by the Uniform Guidance

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Daniel Horrigan, Mayor, and
Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance
City of Akron, Ohio

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Akron, Ohio's (the "City") compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of the City's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2020. The
City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal programs based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (the "Uniform Guidance"). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of the major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported in
accordance with the OMB Uniform Guidance, which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as Finding 2020-005. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to
this matter.
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To the Honorable Daniel Horrigan, Mayor, and
Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance
City of Akron, Ohio

The City's response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs and/or corrective action plan. The City's response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention of those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. We identified a certain deficiency in internal control over compliance, as
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Finding 2020-005, that we consider
to be a material weakness.

The City's response to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City's response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of compliance, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

7424&/ f 7)&4,«/, PLLL
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CITY OF AKRON, OHIO

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Pass-through or
Federal Entity Identifying
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title CFDA No. Number

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Education:
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 FY2019-2020-079111
Total Department of Education

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct Programs:

CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster:

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-20-MC-39-0001
COVID-19: Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-20-MW-39-0001
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 14.218 B-08-MN-39-0001
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 14.218 B-11-MN-39-0001

Total CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster

Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 E-20-MC-39-0001
COVID-19: Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 E-20MW3-90001
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 M-20-MC-39-0206
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 OH056265E061600
Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing 14.900 OHLHB0735-19

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Direct Programs:
COVID-19: Coronavirus Emergency Supplementat]l Funding 16.034 2020-VD-BX-1552
Violence Against Women 16.588 2019-WF-VA2-8503
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants 16.710 2018SVWX0034
National Sexual Assault Kit Initiative 16.833 2018-AK-BX-0010
National Sexual Assault Kit Initiative 16.833 2019-AK-BX-0004
Equitable Sharing Program 16.922 OH0770100
Passed Through the Governor's Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Project Safe Neighborhood 16.609 2018-PS-PND-433
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance - Formula Grants 16.738 2017-DJ-BX-0659
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance - Formula Grants 16.738 2018-DJ-BX-0178
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance - Formula Grants 16.738 2019-DJ-BX-0495
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance - Formula Grants 16.738 2019-JG-A02-6005

Total Department of Justice

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Passed Through the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency:

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Cluster:

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 66.458 OWDA 7154, OWDA 8540, OWDA 8727

Total for Clean Water State Revolving Fund Cluster
Clean Water Act Section 319(h)
Nonpoint Source Implementation Program 66.460 C9975500017

Total Environmental Protection Agency

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Direct Programs:
COVID-19: Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-39-0002-021-2020
COVID-19: Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-39-0002-019-2018

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Public Safety:
Minimum Penalties for Repeat Offenders for Driving While Intoxicated (DWI) 20.608 IDEP- 2020-APD-00016
Minimum Penalties for Repeat Offenders for Driving While Intoxicated (DWT) 20.608 IDEP--2021-APD-00054

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Highway Safety:
Highway Safety Cluster:

Passed
Through to
Subrecipients

Total
Federal
Expenditures

196,133

196,133

2,926,803
352,291

6,379,250
355,652
3,537
1,502

3,279,094

6,739,941

465,429
87,536
1,365,182
104,369

476,185
92,642
1,365,182
144,803
649,452

5,301,610

9,468,205

46,518
128,451

1,971
15,879

149,156
44,998
77,899

293,545

136,579

126,506

6,632
88,048
31,817
27,649
13,834

192,819

996,663

67,459,965

67,459,965

221914

67,681,879

69,000
179,055

248,055

22,524
8,424

30,948




State and Community Highway Safety

State and Community Highway Safety

Alcohol Impaired Driving Contermeasures Incentive Grants I

National Priority Safety Programs - Impaired Driving Enforcement Program
National Priority Safety Programs - Impaired Driving Enforcement Program

Total Highway Safety Cluster

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster:
ODOT - Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study - Rideshare
ODOT - Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study - Air Quality
ODOT - Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study
ODOT - Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study - Rideshare
Total Akron Metroploitan Area Transportation Study

ODOT - Akron Safe Routes to School

ODOT - Brittain Road Signals

ODOT -Canton Road Market Street Intersection
ODOT -Cedar/Exchange

ODOT -Copley Road Signals

ODOT - Evans Avenue

ODOT - Main Street Corridor
ODOT - Summit Signals, SR 18 Portage Path to Summit

ODOT - SR 18 Signals Portage Path to Hawkins
ODOT - Tallmadge Avenue
ODOT - Tallmadge Avenue Signals
ODOT - US Massillon Road Intersection
ODOT - East Waterloo Road Resurfacing
ODOT - Seiberling Way Phase 1
Total Highway Planning & Construction Cluster

Total Department of Transportation

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Passed Through the Ohio Office of Management and Budget and Summit County:

COVID-19: Coronavirus Relief Fund

Total Department of Treasury

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT
Office of National Drug Control Policy
Passed Through the City of Shaker Heights, Ohio:
High Intensity Drug Trafficing Area
Total Executive Office of the President

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Direct Programs:
From the Federal Emergency Management Agency
Assistance to Firefighters Grant

Total Department of Homeland Security

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

See notes to supplemental schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

20.600
20.600
20.601
20.616
20.616

20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205

20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205

20.205
20.205

20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205

21.019

95.001

97.044

IDEP/STEP-2020-APD-00016

IDEP/STEP-2021-APD-00054

OVITF-2015-77-00-00-00-450
DDEP-2020-00009
DDEP-2021-00037

PID-97831
PID-97834
PID-109386
PID-111606

PID-103747
PID-93432
PID-93433
PID-88990
PID-88968
PID-80684

PID-104042
PID-93435

PID-93436
PID-88556
PID-93439
PID-107203
PID-108133
PID-84397

95.001

EMW-2018-FO-04504

19,913
5,396
23,511
7,430
2,974

59,224

38,180

40,413
931,400
383,422

1,393,415

238,123
71,107
76,454

1,069,152
63,481

1,670,627

1,872,678
71,301

36,745
167,004
52,439
23,308
500,120
33,227

7,339,181

7,677,408

150,000

22,735,439

150,000

22,735,439

29,019

29,019

242,689

242,689

5,644,429

109,027,435




CITY OF AKRON, OHIO
SUMMIT COUNTY

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
2 CFR 200.510(b)(6)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of the City of Akron, Ohio, (the Government’s) under programs of the federal government for the year
ended December 31, 2020. The information on this Schedule is prepared in accordance with the requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the Government, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net position, or cash flows of the Government.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the cash basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein
certain types of expenditures may or may not be allowable or may be limited as to reimbursement except for
expenditures related to CFDA 21.019, Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF). CRF does not apply the cost principles
contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principals, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards but rather applies the U.S. Department of Treasury’s
guidance. The Government has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.



City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

o Material weakness(es) identified? X Yes

¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? X Yes

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

o Material weakness(es) identified? Yes

¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 2 CFR 200.516(a)? X Yes

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

No

None reported

None reported

X No

X None reported

No

Opinion

21.019 COVID-19: Coronavirus Relief Fund
66.458 Clean Water State Revolving Fund Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $3,000,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

Unmodified
Unmodified




City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Section Il - Financial Statement Audit Findings

Reference
Number

Finding

2020-001

Finding Type - Material weakness

Criteria - An auditee must prepare appropriate financial statements, including the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule"), as required by 2 CFR 200.508. The Schedule
should be for the period covered by the auditee's financial statements, which must include the
total federal awards expended.

Condition - The controls in place were not adequate to ensure the Schedule was complete
and accurate.

Context - The Schedule was initially understated by approximately $38.5 million related to
errors in reporting on the Schedule with the Clean Water State Revolving Fund Cluster (CFDA
66.458). The error was due to two programs through the Ohio Environmental Protection
Agency for which disbursements were federal expenditures and were not properly identified by
the City for inclusion in the Schedule.

Cause - Although the City had processes in place to prepare the Schedule, it did not have
processes in place to confirm which funds should be reported on the Schedule each year
related to its loans received through the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency.

Effect - The Schedule was initially understated by approximately $38.5 million. The correction
of the Schedule resulted in significant additional expenditures to test under the major program.
Without proper processes and controls to determine the completeness and accuracy of the
Schedule, the City risks noncompliance with federal requirements.

Recommendation - The City should obtain confirmation of the loan programs through the
Ohio Environmental Protection Agency that should be reported on the Schedule each year, as
it is not easily determinable from the loan agreements.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions - The City will obtain a
confirmation of loan program activity from the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency to report
on the Schedule.



City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Section Il - Financial Statement Audit Findings (Continued)

Reference
Number

Finding

2020-002

Finding Type - Material weakness

Criteria - According to Clarified Statements on Auditing Standards, management is
responsible for producing financial statements that are prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) (AU-C 260.10).

Condition - Adjustments were required to amounts presented in the 2019 financial statements
in order to correct material misstatements for capital assets and net position. Auditor-identified
adjustments were also required to be posted to capital assets, accounts payable and
expenses, and net position in the 2020 financial statements.

Context - The prior period adjustment for capital asset amounts presented in 2019 related to
vendor-direct payments made on the City's behalf. During 2020, the City did not properly
record similar vendor-direct payment activity related to capital assets projects, and auditor-
identified adjustments were required to be posted in order to be in accordance with GAAP.
Total net position changed for 2019 and 2020 as a result of these adjustments.

During 2020, the City did not properly record net position categories for governmental
activities, and an adjustment was required to be posted in order to be in accordance with
GAAP. Unrestricted net position and net investment in capital assets for 2019 was also
misstated due to the same calculation error identified for 2020 in net investment in capital
assets. Total net position did not change for 2019 or 2020 as a result of these net position
adjustments.

Cause - The City did not have adequate procedures in place to ensure that amounts recorded
for capital assets, accounts payable, and corresponding expenses, as well as governmental
activities net position, were recorded in accordance with GAAP.

Effect - The December 31, 2019 net position (fund balance) for business-type activities was
restated as follows (dollar amounts are rounded) for the capital asset adjustment: increase the
Sewer Fund by $72,031,000.

The adjustments for 2020 are as follows (dollar amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand):

Increase governmental activities capital assets by $14,196,000 and increase accounts payable
and decrease expense by $2,353,000 and $11,843,000, respectively.

Increase business-type activities capital assets by $46,047,000 and increase accounts payable
and decrease expense by $7,958,000 and $38,089,000, respectively.

Increase Sewer Fund capital assets by $45,422,000 and increase accounts payable and
decrease expense by $7,958,000 and $37,464,000, respectively.

Increase Water Fund capital assets by $625,000 and decrease expense by $625,000.

The adjustment for the identified net position calculation error for 2019 resulted in an increase
in net investment in capital assets and a decrease in unrestricted net position of $43,244,000.

For 2020, the adjustment affected all categories of net position in the following amounts:
Increase net investment in capital assets by $61,644,000, decrease restricted for debt service
by $2,391,000, decrease restricted for Community Learning Centers by $50,643,000, decrease
restricted for capital projects by $21,061,000, decrease restricted for program purpose by
$13,189,000, and increase unrestricted net position by $25,640,000.



City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Section Il - Financial Statement Audit Findings (Continued)

Reference
Number Finding
2020-002 Recommendation - The City should implement procedures and review processes for capital
(Cont.) assets, accounts payable, expenses, and net position to ensure that amounts presented in the
financial statements are materially correct and are recorded in accordance with GAAP.
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions - All prior period
adjustments were promptly posted and reflected in the financial statements. The City will
continue to implement additional review procedures to minimize auditor-proposed adjustments.
Reference
Number Finding
2020-003 Finding Type - Material noncompliance with laws and regulations

Criteria - Ohio Auditor of State (AOS) Bulletin 2015-007 indicates that annual reports filed with
AOS must be complete to avoid the application of a penalty of $25 per day ($750 maximum)
permissible under Ohio Revised Code §117.38. To be complete, GAAP entities must submit
the basic financial statements, including the government-wide financial statements, fund
financial statements, notes to the basic financial statements, management’s discussion and
analysis, and any other required supplementary information to be considered a complete filing.

Condition - Adjustments were required to amounts presented in the 2020 financial statements
filed in the Hinkle System in order to present financial information in accordance with GAAP. In
addition, the financial statements filed in the Hinkle System did not include management's
discussion and analysis.

Context - See Finding 2020-002 for context on the adjustments for capital assets, accounts
payable, expenses, and net position. Other changes were also required to be made to the
financial statements filed in the Hinkle System, which were identified as a result of audit
procedures performed, as well as city-identified entries.

Cause - The City did not ensure that the financial information that was uploaded to the Hinkle
System was complete and accurate.

Effect - Significant adjustments, as described in Finding 2020-002, were required to ensure
that the financial information in the Hinkle System was complete and accurate. In addition, the
omission of the management’s discussion and analysis resulted in the City not filing a
complete annual report in a timely manner.

Recommendation - The City should implement processes and procedures to ensure that
information uploaded to the Hinkle System is complete and accurate.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions - The City will continue to
implement additional processes and procedures to ensure that the information uploaded to the
Hinkle System is complete and accurate.



City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Section Il - Financial Statement Audit Findings (Continued)

Reference
Number

Finding

2020-004

Finding Type - Significant deficiency

Criteria - To maintain a secure information technology (IT) environment, procedures for
change-management processes should be documented, and supporting documentation should
be retained to log any changes.

Condition - The City does not have formal change-management procedures documented, nor
does it retain a log of any master file changes.

Context - The City does not have formal change-management procedures.

Cause - The City did not provide support showing that no master file database changes were
made during 2020.

Effect - Without formal change-management procedures, there is a risk that erroneous master
file changes will be made and not be detected or corrected in a timely manner. A lack of
change-management procedures may result in accidental or intentional loss or damage of
data.

Recommendation - The City should create a formal change-management policy that includes
retaining and reviewing a log of all master file changes.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions - The information
technology division is reviewing the procedures regarding master file database changes.



City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Section lll - Federal Program Audit Findings

Reference

Number

Finding

2020-005

CFDA Number, Federal Agency, and Program Name - CFDA No. 14.218, Department of
Housing and Urban Development, Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants

Federal Award Identification Number and Year - COVID-19; B20-MW-39-0001
Pass-through Entity - N/A

Finding Type - Material weakness and material noncompliance with laws and regulations
Repeat Finding - No

Criteria - The Community Development Block Grant CARES Act (CDBG-CV) grant was
required to be used for "CDBG-eligible activities that are carried out to prevent, prepare for,
and respond to coronavirus," per the CDGB-CV Notice Federal Register Publication 2002-08,
Section III.B.5.(a).

Condition - The City used grant funds under the CDBG-CV grant for unallowable activities in
accordance with the grant regulations, as they were not clearly used for activities carried out to
prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus.

Questioned Costs - $42,483

Identification of How Questioned Costs Were Computed - We reviewed all expenditures
charged to the CDBG-CV grant for 2020 and noted expenditures for $42,483 that were not
used for eligible activities under the grant. Ineligible use of funds that were returned to the
federal agency in the amount of $375,000 was not considered to be questioned costs.

Context - A HUD monitoring review identified that the City used CDBG-CV funding for street
resurfacing of $375,000 that did not meet the requirements to prevent, prepare for, and
respond to coronavirus. The City paid the amount back to the Department of Housing and
Urban Development in July 2021 and did not include that activity on the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards for the year ended December 1, 2020.

Additionally, we identified that the City used CDBG-CV funding of $42,483 for technical
assistance provided to small, diverse businesses that did not clearly meet the requirements to
prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus. These expenditures were considered
questioned costs.

Cause and Effect - The City did not properly review and apply the specific requirements for
the CDBG-CV funding to be used for activities carried out to prevent, prepare for, and respond
to coronavirus. As a result, the City used for activities that would have been allowable under
the normal CDBG grant but were not allowable under the COVID-19 CDBG funding.

Recommendation - The City should review the specific guidance for the CDBG-CV funding
and ensure that the requirements are strictly followed for all expenditures.

Views of Responsible Officials and Corrective Action Plan - The City is reviewing
procedures and policies to prevent ineligible expenditures.



STEPHEN F. FRICKER
Director of Finance
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200 Municipal Building / 166 South High Street / Akron, Ohio 44308
PH: (330) 375-2316

City of Akron, Ohio

August 24, 2021
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Prior Year Finding Number: 2019-001

Fiscal Year in Which the Finding Initially Occurred: 2017

Federal Program, CFDA Number and Name: N/A

Original Finding Description: The City does not have formal change-management procedures documented, nor does it
retain a log of any master file changes. In addition, the City did not retain documentation showing user-access changes
for the City's network.

Status/Partial Corrective Action (as applicable): Not corrected, reissued in finding 2020-004

Planned Corrective Action: The Information Technology (IT) Division is reviewing the procedures regarding master-file
database changes.

Prior Year Finding Number: 2019-002

Fiscal Year in Which the Finding Initially Occurred: 2019

Federal Program, CFDA Number and Name: N/A

Original Finding Description: Auditor-proposed journal entries were identified during the audit and posted by the City in
order to ensure the financial statements were not misstated. In addition, a significant number of journal entries were
posted by the City after the draft financial statements were provided for review.

Status/Partial Corrective Action (as applicable): Partially corrected, reissued in finding 2020-002

Planned Corrective Action: All journal entries were promptly posted and are properly reflected in the financial
statements. The journal entries do not relate to grant funds and the City will continue to implement additional review
procedures to minimize auditor proposed journal entries.

Prior Year Finding Number: 2019-003

Fiscal Year in Which the Finding Initially Occurred: 2019

Federal Program, CFDA Number and Name: N/A

Original Finding Description: Adjustments were required to amounts presented in the 2018 financial statements in order
to correct material misstatements for income tax revenue and receivables, as well as capital assets and capital leases.
Status/Partial Corrective Action (as applicable): Partially corrected, reissued in finding 2020-002

Planned Corrective Action: All prior period adjustments were identified by the City and promptly posted and are properly
reflected in the financial statements. The adjustments do not relate to grant funds and the City will continue to implement
additional review procedures to minimize prior period adjustments.
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PH: (330) 375-2316

City of Akron, Ohio
August 24, 2021
Corrective Action Plan

Finding Number: 2020-001

Condition: The controls in place were not adequate to ensure the Schedule was complete and accurate.

Planned Corrective Action: The City will obtain a confirmation of loan program activity from the Ohio Environmental
Protection Agency to report on the Schedule.

Contact person responsible for corrective action: Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance

Anticipated Completion Date: March 31, 2022

Finding Number: 2020-002

Condition: Adjustments were required to amounts presented in the 2019 financial statements in order to correct material
misstatements for capital assets and net position. Auditor-identified adjustments were also required to be posted to capital
assets, accounts payable and expenses, and net position in the 2020 financial statements.

Planned Corrective Action: All prior period adjustments were promptly posted and reflected in the financial statements.
The City will continue to implement additional review procedures to minimize auditor proposed adjustments.

Contact person responsible for corrective action: Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance

Anticipated Completion Date: August 31, 2021

Finding Number: 2020-003

Condition: Adjustments were required to amounts presented in the 2020 financial statements filed in the Hinkle System
in order to present financial information in accordance with GAAP. In addition, the financial statements filed in the Hinkle
System did not include Management's Discussion & Analysis.

Planned Corrective Action: The City will continue to implement additional processes and procedures to ensure that the
information uploaded to the Hinkle System is complete and accurate.

Contact person responsible for corrective action: Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance

Anticipated Completion Date: May 30, 2022

Finding Number: 2020-004

Condition: The City does not have formal change-management procedures documented, nor does it retain a log of any
master file changes.

Planned Corrective Action: The Information Technology (IT) Division is reviewing the procedures regarding master-file
database changes.

Contact person responsible for corrective action: Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance

Anticipated Completion Date: December 31, 2021

Finding Number: 2020-005

Condition: The City used grant funds under the CDBG-CV grant for unallowable activities in accordance with the grant
regulations as they were not clearly used for activities carried out to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus.
Planned Corrective Action: The City is reviewing procedures and policies to prevent ineligible expenditures.

Contact person responsible for corrective action: Stephen F. Fricker, Director of Finance

Anticipated Completion Date: December 31, 2021
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